
1. 

2. 

LOS Banos 
.4t the Crossroads o( California .. . 

www.losbanos.org 

AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
520 J Street 

Los Banos, California 

AUGUST 6, 2014 

If you require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the 
City Clerk's Office @ (209) 827-7000 atieast 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

The City of Los Banos complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

Sf (equiere asistencia especial para Btender 0 parlicipar en esta junta por favor lIame a /a oficina 
de /8 Seeretaria de la ciudad af (209) 827~7000 a /0 menos de 48 haras previas de lajunta. 

La Guidad de Los Banos cumpfe con /a Acta de Americanos con Oeshabi/idad (ADA) de 1990. 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the meeting 

and in the City Clerk's office located at City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, California 
during normal business hours. In addition, such writings and documents may be posted 

on the City's website at www.losbanos,org. 
** ********** 

Cua/quier escritura 0 los documentos proporcionaron a una mayorfa del Ayuntamiento respecto a cua/quier 
articulo en este orden del dia sera hecho disponible para la 

inspeccion publica en la reunion y en ia oficina de la Secretaria de la ciudad en City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, 

i
' California durante horas de oficina normales. Ademas, tales escrituras y los documentos 

pueden ser anunciados en el website de la ciudad en wvvw./osbanos. ora. 

CLOSED SESSION. 6:00 PM 
(Members of the public may address the City Council on the following closed 
session items_ Speakers are limited to a five (5) minute presentation. Detailed 
guidelines are posted on the Council Chamber informational table.) 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957.6, Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Carrigan, City 
Attorney Vaughn, City Clerk/Human Resources Director Mallonee, Finance 
Director Williams, Legal Counsel Tuffo; Employee Organizations: Los Banos 
Police Dispatchers/Community Services Officers Association (LBPDCSOA), 
Los Banos Fire Fighters Association (LBFFA). 

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 PM 

Los Banos City Council Agenda August 6, 2014 Page 10f5 



3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

4. ROLL CALL: (City Council Members) 

Faria _, Lewis __ , Silveira_, Stonegrove _, Villalta_ 

5. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 

6. PUBLIC FORUM. (Members of the public may address the City Council Members 
on any item of public interest that is within the jurisdiction of the City Council; 
includes agenda and non-agenda items. No action will be taken on non-agenda 
items. Speakers are limited to a five (5) minute presentation. Detailed guidelines 
are posted on the Council Chamber informational table.) 

7. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA. (Items on the 
Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be voted on in one motion 
unless removed from the Consent Agenda by a City Council Member.) 

A. Check Register for #148525 - #148839 in the Amount of $2,871 ,768.33. 

Recommendation: Approve the check register as submitted. 

B. Minutes for the July 30,2014 Special City Council Meeting. 

Recommendation: Approve the minutes as submitted. 

C. Agreement by and between CAL Office of Emergency Services (OES) and 
the Los Banos City Fire Department for Temporary Assignment of Vehicular 
Equipment for an Additional Ten (10) Years. 

Recommendation: Approve the agreement as submitted and authorize the Fire Chief to 
execute the agreement. 

D. City Council Resolution No. 5595 - Approving the Operation of a Taxicab 
License for Martinez Taxi and Deeming the Operation a Public Convenience 
and Necessity. 

Recommendation: Adopt the resolution as submitted 

E. City Council Resolution No. 5596 - Authorizing a Contract Agreement with 
BSK Associates for the Clean Closure of the Old Los Banos Landfill in the 
Amount of $273,000. 

Recommendation: Adopt the resolution as submitted. 

F. City Council Resolution No. 5597 - Authorizing the City Manager to Execute 
Professional Services Agreements and the Public Works Director/City 
Engineer to Execute Individual Project Service Requests with Gouveia 
Engineering, O'Dell Engineering, and Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 
for On-Call Engineering Services. 

Recommendation: Adopt the resolution as submitted. 

Los Banos City Council Agenda August 6, 2014 Page 2 of 5 



8. PUBLIC HEARING. (If you challenge the proposed action as described herein in 
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised 
at the public hearing described herein or in written correspondence delivered to the 
City at, or prior to, the public hearing.) 

A. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of Approval 
of Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 for the Use of a Type 20 Alcohol License 
for the Off-sale of Beer and Wine for Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart Located at 
403 N. Mercey Springs Road, Assessor's Parcel Number 082-072-024. 

1) City Council Resolution No. 5598 - Approving Conditional Use Permit 
#2014-09 for the Off-sale of Beer and Wine for Mi Barrio Food & Gas 
Mart Located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road. 

Recommendation: Open the public hearing, receive public comment, close the public 
hearing and adopt the resolution as submitted. 

B. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of an 
Appeal of the Los Banos Planning Commission Approval of Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (MND) SCH#2014011068 and Tentative Tract Map 
#2013-01 for AMG & Associates, for Property Located at the Northeast 
Corner of Willmott Avenue and North Street, Assessor's Parcel Number 082-
050-066. 

1) City Council Resolution No. 5599 - Denying the Appeal from the Los 
Banos Unified School District and Upholding the Decision of the Los 
Banos Planning Commission and Approving Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and Approving Tentative Tract Map 
#2013-01 for AMG & Associates. 

Recommendation: Open the public hearing, receive public comment, close the public 
hearing and approve, amend, deny or continue the mitigated negative declaration and 
tentative tract map. 

C. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of Levying 
Properties for Weed Abatement Services Performed During the Fiscal Year 
2013/14 or Prior for Areas of Land Located in the City of Los Banos, Merced 
County as Follows: Assessor Parcel Numbers 026-082-022, 082-357-012, 
025-101-006, 027-081-007, 027-031-032, 025-103-004, 027-053-001, 027-
161-040,027-055-019,027-086-009. 

1) City Council Resolution No. 5600 - Authorizing the Levy and Collection 
of Assessments for Weed Abatement within the City of Los Banos. 

Recommendation: Open the public hearing, receive public comment, close the public 
hearing and adopt the resolution as submitted. 

D. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of Approval 
of an Urgency Ordinance of the City of Los Banos Changing the Irrigation 
Restriction Schedule from Three (3) Days to Two (2) Days and Make the 

Los Banos City Council Agenda - August 6, 2014 Page 3 of 5 



Schedule Year Round Due to Public Health, Safety and Welfare as a Result 
of the Statewide Drought. 

1) Ordinance No. 1120 - Amending Title 10 Chapter 2 Section 10-2.03.10 
(a)(2) of the Los Banos Municipal Code Regarding Scheduling of 
Landscape Irrigation. (Urgency Adoption) 

Recommendation: Open the public hearing, receive public comment, close the public 
hearing and adopt the urgency ordinance as submitted. 

E. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of Approval 
of an Ordinance to Indefinitely Suspend the Collection of All Regional 
Transportation Impact Fees (RTIF) Established by Ordinance No. 1031. 

1) Ordinance No. 1121 -Indefinitely Suspending the Collection of Regional 
Transportation Impact Fees Established by Ordinance No. 1031 as 
Amended and Codified in Title 3 Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal 
Code. (First Reading & Introduction) 

Recommendation: Open the public hearing, receive public comment. close the public 
hearing and adopt the urgency ordinance as submitted. 

9. SUBMISSION OF BY-DISTRICT METHOD ELECTION OF CITY COUNCIL' 
MEMBERS TO THE VOTERS PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT 
CODE § 34871 AND APPROVAL OF BALLOT ARGUMENT IN FAVOR. 

A. City Council Resolution No. 5601 - Calling and Giving Notice of a Special 
Municipal Election to be Held on Tuesday, November 4, 2014, for the 
Submission to the Qualified Voters of the City a Measure to Establish 
electoral Districts for election of members of the Los Banos City Council By 
Districts and Election of the Mayor of Los Banos City-wide, and Requesting 
the Board of Supervisors of the County of Merced, California, to Provide for 
the Consolidation of the Special Ballot Measure Election with the Statewide 
General Election to be Held on November 4, 2014, Pursuant to Section 10403 
of the Elections Code. 

B. City Council Resolution No. 5602 - Approving and Submitting a Ballot 
Argument in Favor of a Measure to Establish Electoral Districts for Election of 
Members of the Los Banos City Council by Districts and Election of the Mayor 
of Los Banos City-Wide, to be Voted on November 4, 2014, Pursuant to 
Section 9282(B) of the Elections Code. 

Recommendation: Receive staff report and adopt the resolutions as submitted. 

10. ADVISEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICES. (Two Reports) 

11. CITY MANAGER REPORT. 

Los Banos City Council Agenda - August 6, 2014 Page 4 afS 



12. 

13. 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS. 

A. Scott Silveira 

B. Elizabeth Stonegrove 

C. Tom Faria 

D. Deborah Lewis 

E. Mayor Mike Villalta 

ADJOURNMENT. 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

~~, Pet. f. ~e.~ 
Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk Dated this 31" day of July 2014 

Los Banos City Council Agenda - August 6, 2014 Page 5 of 5 



81612014 $ 2,871,768.33 CK #148525-148839 

Bank Reconciliation 
Checks by Date LOS Banos 
User: ktomas 

Printed: 07/3112014 - 824AM 

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks 

Print Void Checks 

148526 7/10/2014 

148527 7/10/2014 

148528 7/10/2014 

148529 7/10/2014 

148530 711112014 

148531 7/1112014 

148532 7111/2014 

148533 7111/2014 

148534 7/1112014 

148535 7/1112014 

148536 7/1112014 

148537 7/1112014 

148538 7/1112014 

148539 711112014 

148540 711112014 

148541 711 112014 

148542 7111/2014 

148543 7111/2014 

148544 7/11/2014 

148545 711112014 

148546 7/1112014 

148547 7/11/2014 

148548 7/1112014 

148549 711112014 

148550 711112014 

148551 711112014 

148552 711112014 

148553 7/11/2014 

148554 7/11/2014 

148555 7/11/2014 

148556 7/1112014 

148557 711 112014 

148558 711112014 

148559 7111/2014 

148560 7111/2014 

148561 711 1/2014 

148562 7/1112014 

148563 7/1112014 

148564 7/1112014 

148565 7/1112014 

148566 711112014 

148567 7111/2014 

148568 711 112014 

148569 7/11/2014 

148570 7/11/2014 

148571 7/1112014 

Dept of Housing & Community Development State NSP 

P G & E Company 

P G & E Company 

U.S. Bank Equipment Finance 

A & A Portables Inc 
Abbott & Kindermann, LLP 

ABS Direct, Inc. 

Anderson Homes 

Aramark Unifonn Ser Inc 

Dorothy June Baker 

Jeffrey BaJdys 

Board of Equalization 

Borelli Real Estate Service, Inc. 

Debra Bon'ego 

BSK Analytical Laboratories 

California Building Standards Commission 

Michael Canyon 
Franklin Carter 
Century MFG 
Gilbert & Letecia Chavez 

Jessica Clancy 

Scott Crist 

CSNRMA 
Laura De La Torre 

Eduardo Dominguez 

Ernest Packaging Solutions 

Food 4 Less 

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC 

Aime Fuentes 

Garton Tractor Inc 

Anthony Gomes 

Grainger Parts Operations 

Juan Granados 

Grassland Water District 

Graystone Property Mgmt 

Greenwire, Inc. 

Helena Chemical Co Inc 

Heppner Precision Machine 

AmyLHetman 

Ricardo Hernandez 

Daniel Iniquez 

Pratap Kurra 

LN Curtis & Sons 

Estela Lopez 

Irene Macias 

Matson Alann Co Inc 

Module 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 
AP 

AP 

AP 

AP 

13,172.00 

148,279.49 

5,461.94 

1,890.82 

286.20 

2,373.77 

1,055.82 

74.16 

216.81 

305.59 

13.67 

604.00 

90.00 

21.30 

400.00 

220.00 

58.81 

28.27 

986.87 

15.13 

35.57 

135.00 

326,021.00 

500.00 

26.03 

10.52 

25.08 

4,420.32 

42.43 

987.65 

398.26 

311.81 

500.00 

80,260.00 

19.08 

750.00 

1,620.00 

1,395.42 

2,205.00 

23.11 

13.67 

425.00 

417.78 

69.95 

39.56 

180.00 



Check No Check Date Name Module Void Amount 
148572 711112014 Merced County Association ofGovemments AP 18,644.00 
148573 711112014 Merced Sun Star AP 501.18 
148574 711112014 Napa Auto Parts AP 21.36 
148575 7/11/2014 Irineo and Juanita Naranjo AP 41.60 
148576 711112014 O'Reilly Auto Parts AP 429.88 
148577 7111/2014 TIle Office City AP 237.58 
148578 711112014 OSE AP 228.12 
148579 7111/2014 Purchase Power Inc AP 4,000.00 
148580 7111/2014 Ivis Rubio Sepulveda AP 22.68 
148581 7/1112014 Santos Ford LincoIn Mercury, Inc. AP 259.09 
148582 7111/2014 Seasons & Reasons, LIc AP 6,850.00 
148583 711112014 Sherwin Williams Co AP 58.91 
148584 711112014 Sierra Chemical Co AP 2,525.45 
148585 7/1112014 Hector Silva AP 1,470.00 
148586 7/1112014 Sloan Realty ~ Richard Angel AP 76.23 
148587 711112014 Sorensens True Value AP 326.38 
148588 7/1112014 Springbrook Sofm'are, Inc. AP 4,387.87 
148589 7/1112014 Ta1iey Oil Inc. AP 16,841.04 
148590 7/1112014 Thompson Infonnation Services AP 536.99 
148591 711112014 Tractor Supply Credit Plan AP 228.97 
148592 7/1112014 Triangle Rock Products AP 27,487.29 
148593 711112014 Tritech Software Systems AP 2,231.81 
148594 7/1112014 Unique Glass AP 49.44 
148595 711112014 Windecker Inc AP 1,481.65 
148596 711112014 Young's Air Conditioning AP 8,428.85 
148597 711112014 Zero Waste USA Inc. AP 267.00 
148620 7118/2014 Aflac~Customer Service AP 130.31 
148621 7118/2014 Aflac~Customer Service AP 143.95 
148622 7118/2014 Aflac~Customer Service AP 41.26 
148623 7/18/2014 Af1ac~Customer Service AP 83.59 
148624 7118/2014 Bank of America AP 86,122.86 
148625 7118/2014 Bank of America AP 10,793.76 
148626 7/18/2014 Bank of America AP 2,519.24 
148627 711812014 Hartford Life Ins Co AP 1,371.40 
148628 711812014 Hartford Life Ins Co AP 4,887.00 
148629 711812014 Los Banos Fitness & AP 670.00 
148630 7/1812014 Los Banos Police Assn AP 1,950.00 
148631 7/1812014 Merced County Sheriff AP 176.65 
148632 711812014 Nationwide Retirement Solutions AP 1,840.00 
148633 7118/2014 PERS Long Tenn Care AP 88.45 
148634 711812014 Professional Fire Fighter AP 630.00 
148635 7118/2014 State Disbursement Unit AP 1,502.50 
148636 711812014 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents ~ 705827 AP 25.00 
148637 711812014 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents ~ 801838 AP 825.00 
148638 7118/2014 Vantagepont Transfer Agents· 306797 AP 455.00 
148639 7118/2014 Allied Waste Services #917 AP 286,474.08 
148640 7118/2014 Ameripride Valley Unifonn Services Inc. AP 426.24 
148641 7118/2014 Aramark Unifonn Ser Inc AP 560.34 
148642 711812014 Tim and Janet Ash AP 8.00 
148643 7118/2014 AT&T AP 1,000.54 
148644 711812014 Dorothy June Baker AP 64.71 
148645 7/1812014 BJ's Consumers Choice AP 128.00 
148646 7/1812014 Bruce's Tire Inc AP 138.80 
148647 711812014 BSK Analytical Laboratories AP 10,401.38 
148648 711812014 Ca Dept of Justice AP 1,858.50 
148649 711812014 Cal Traffic AP 59.47 
148650 7118/2014 Cal~Line Equipment Inc AP 146.06 
148651 7118/2014 Arlene Cardoza AP 600.00 
148652 7118/2014 Maria Carrillo AP 115.00 
148653 711812014 Jesse Castillo AP 165.00 



Check No Check Date Name Module Void Amount 

148654 7/18/2014 Central Valley Toxicology, Inc AP 117.00 

148655 7/18/2014 Chabin Concepts, Inc. AP 1,995.00 

148656 7/18/2014 Comcast AP 106.22 

148657 7/18/2014 Cook's Communications Corp. AP 90.00 

148658 7/18/2014 Richard Cottez AP 9.79 

148659 7/18/2014 Richard C. Cox AP 1,158.75 

148660 7/18/2014 Department of Public Health AP 60.00 

148661 7118/2014 Dept of Conservation AP 305.73 

148662 7/18/2014 Drager Safety Diagnostics Inc. AP 210.52 

148663 7118/2014 E.S. Inc dba Energy Systems AP 1,065.84 

148664 7118/2014 Electrical Distributors Co. AP 235.46 

148665 711812014 Employee Relations, Inc. AP 50.00 

148666 7/18/2014 Fred and Linda Erickson AP 52.14 

148667 7118/2014 F S Rod Inc AP 2,031.22 

148668 7/18/2014 Fact Automated Entrances AP 36.36 

148669 7/18/2014 Fastenal Company AP 392.85 

148670 7/18/2014 Federal Express AP 6.24 

148671 7118/2014 Ferguson Enterprises Inc DBA Groeniger & Company AP 1,495.17 

148672 7/18/2014 Fresno Truck Center AP 82.91 

148673 7/18/2014 DarraH Gargano AP 412.80 

148674 7/1812014 Anthony Gomes AP 1,984.00 

148675 7/18/2014 Heppner Precision Machine AP 681.72 

148676 7/18/2014 Victor Hernandez AP 25.79 

148677 7118/2014 Hi Tech Emergency Vehicle Services, Inc AP 636.72 

148678 7/18/2014 Claire and Thomas Hunt AP 45.87 

148679 7/18/2014 Integrated Electronics AP 90.00 

148680 7118/2014 Interstate Truck Center, LLC AP 623.73 

148681 7/18/2014 Kimball Midwest AP 143.88 

148682 7/18/2014 Krazan & Associates Inc AP 4,180.75 

148683 7118/2014 language Line Services AP 4.70 

148684 7/1812014 Law Offices ofWi11iam A Vaughn AP 9,494.36 

148685 7/18/2014 LC Action Police Supply, LTD AP 174.16 

148686 7/18/2014 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore AP 3,035.50 

148687 7/18/2014 Lincoln Equipment Inc AP 154.56 

148688 7/18/2014 Bill & Linda Liu AP 48.45 

148689 7118/2014 Los Banos Express Oil & Lube AP 47.85 

148690 7118/2014 Los Banos Vet Clinic AP 238.80 

148691 7/18/2014 Lucas Business Systems AP 912.40 

148692 7/18/2014 Madera Carports, Inc. AP 4,354.44 

148693 7/18/2014 Marfab Inc AP 57.12 

148694 7118/2014 Jose Melendrez Sr. AP 854.00 

148695 7/18/2014 Merced County Assessor AP 360.00 

148696 7118/2014 Merced County Regional Waste Management Authority AP 1,830.92 

148697 7118/2014 Merced County Regional Waste Management Authority AP 47,024.45 

148698 7/18/2014 Merced County Regional Waste Management Authority AP 3,286.74 

148699 7/18/2014 Merced Hesston Inc AP 0.13 

148700 7/18/2014 Merced SWl Star AP 263.68 

148701 7/1812014 Merced Unifonn & Accessories AP 1,772.60 

148702 7/18/2014 Nest Environmental Services Inc. AP 125.00 

148703 7118/2014 Nonnac Inc AP 361.83 

148704 7118/2014 OCTanner AP 951.59 

148705 7/18/2014 TIle Office City AP 570.73 

148706 7118/2014 Ruth Olivas AP 60.00 

148707 7118/2014 OnTrac AP 35.90 

148708 7/18/2014 OSE AP 270.79 

148709 7118/2014 P G & E Company AP 11.90 

148710 7118/2014 Pinnacle Medical Group AP 103.00 

148711 7/18/2014 Esther Prado AP 350.00 

148712 7/18/2014 Price Paige and Company AccoWltancy Corporation AP 8,860.00 

148713 7/1812014 Pro Clean Supply AP 1,138.64 



Check No Check Date Name Module Void Amount 
148714 711812014 Protech Security & Electronics, Inc. AP 255.00 
148715 711812014 Scott and Rosie Randles AP 20.97 
148716 711812014 Recall SecW"e Destruction Senrices Inc AP 431.69 

148717 711812014 Riggs Ambulance Service AP 456.36 
148718 711812014 Maria Sanchez AP 67.38 
148719 711812014 Santos Ford Lincoln Mercury, Inc. AP 163.72 
148720 711812014 Save Mart Supermarkets AP 325.76 
148721 711812014 Shelwin Williams Co AP 742.16 
148722 711812014 Solomon Shiferaw AP 14.95 

148723 711812014 Sierra Chemical Co AP 2,667.95 
148724 711812014 Jose Silva AP 50.68 
148725 711812014 Silveria Electric AP 501.69 
148726 711812014 Sky Blue Mobile Glass, LLC AP 196.25 
148727 7/1812014 Snap On Tools AP 285.39 
148728 711812014 Sorensens True Value AP 1,519.70 
148729 711812014 State Water Resources Control Board AP 140.00 
148730 711812014 Stonecreek Properties AP 5,808.43 
148731 711812014 The Lighthouse, Inc. AP 216.96 
148732 711812014 The Phone Connection Inc AP 6,115.56 
148733 711812014 Tredent Data Systems, Inc. AP 2,659.00 
148734 711812014 Triangle Rock Products AP 1,664.46 
148735 711812014 Tritech Software Systems AP 34,173.70 
148736 711812014 Tulare Firestone AP 20.00 
148737 711812014 Unique Glass AP 203.47 
148738 711812014 Windecker Inc AP 26,523.89 
148739 711812014 Winner Chevrolet AP 60,486.70 
148740 711812014 Jerry Witt AP 346.00 
148741 711812014 YuXu AP 48.45 

148742 711812014 Young's Air Conditioning AP 290.00 
148743 711812014 Young's Automotive AP 340,43 

148744 711812014 Violeta Victorio Zavala AP 400.00 
148748 712412014 Bank of America AP 129.28 
148749 712512014 Alhambra AP 28.91 
148750 712512014 ASS Direct, Inc. AP 5,000.00 
148751 712512014 Altec Industries Inc AP 969.45 
148752 712512014 Ameripride Valley Unifonn Services Inc. AP 142.08 
148753 712512014 Anthony Gomes AP 962.84 
148754 712512014 Ararnark Unifonn Ser Inc AP 768.45 
148755 712512014 AT&T AP 1,052.53 
148756 712512014 Battery Systems, Inc. AP 273.63 
148757 712512014 B1's Conswners Choice AP 154.00 
148758 712512014 Brinks Inc. AP 539.78 
148759 712512014 BSK Analytical Laboratories AP 62.00 
148760 712512014 Hector Castillo AP 2,050.00 
148761 712512014 Comcast AP 420.00 
148762 712512014 Credit Bureau Associates AP 127.16 
148763 712512014 Credit Bureau Associates AP 90.46 
148764 712512014 CSG Consultants Inc. AP 22,111.57 
148765 712512014 LN Curtis & Sons AP 271.98 
148766 712512014 City of Los Banos ** AP 70.50 
148767 712512014 Custom Locksmith & Alann Inc. AP 320.49 
148768 712512014 Melanie Contreras AP 100.00 
148769 712512014 Dell Marketing L P AP 1,062.17 
148770 712512014 Electrical Distributors Co. AP 323.67 
148771 712512014 Ernest Packaging Solutions AP 2,322.70 
148772 712512014 Fastenal Company AP 441.83 
148773 712512014 Fast Track Car Wash AP 3.50 
148774 712512014 The Frame Shop AP 1,202.17 
148775 712512014 Food 4 Less AP 25.08 
148776 712512014 GCS Environmental Equipment Services AP 2,946.87 



Check No Check Date Name Module Void Amount 
148777 7/25/2014 Gibbs International, Inc AP 2,672.40 
148778 7/2512014 Greater San Joaquin Softball Association AP 288.00 
148779 7/25/2014 Heppner Precision Machine AP 3,013.81 
148780 7/25/2014 Holt of California AP 486.00 
148781 7125/2014 Interstate Truck Center, LLC AP 138.61 
148782 7/25/2014 Maria Isas AP 500.00 
148783 7/25/2014 Kimball Midwest AP 110.03 
148784 7/25/2014 Los Banos Car Wash Inc AP 18.00 
148785 7/25/2014 Los Banos Express Oil & Lube AP 195.91 
148786 7/25/2014 Anna Lopez AP 350.00 
148787 7/25/2014 Mariab Inc AP 26.90 
148788 7/25/2014 Merced County Tax Collector AP 72.88 
148789 7/25/2014 Barney Meza AP 490.00 
148790 7/25/2014 The Modesto Bee AP 187.20 
148791 7/25/2014 Napa Auto Parts AP 40.29 
148792 7/25/2014 The Office City AP 43.85 
148793 7/25/2014 OSE AP 1,315.56 
148794 7/25/2014 PERS - Public Employees AP 117,272.76 
148795 7/25/2014 The Phone Connection Inc AP 829.50 
148796 7/25/2014 Protech Security & Electronics, Inc. AP 60.00 
148797 7/25/2014 Radio Shack Accounts Rec AP 22.13 
148798 7/25/2014 Jeremy Rahn AP 183.60 
148799 7/25/2014 Santos Ford Lincoln MerculY, Inc. AP 896.18 
148800 7/25/2014 Save Mart Supermarkets AP 99.74 
148801 7/25/2014 Sharpening Shop AP 457.40 
148802 7/2512014 SolarBee, Inc. AP 36,040.00 
148803 7/25/2014 Sorensens True Value AP 413.23 
148804 7/25/2014 Specialty Distributors, Inc. AP 518.88 
148805 7/2512014 Spriggs Inc. AP 692.83 
148806 7/2512014 Sprint Solutions, Inc. AP 759.81 
148807 7/25/2014 Telstar Jnstruments, Inc. AP 1,267.80 
148808 7/25/2014 Tenninix Processing Center AP 325.92 
148809 7/25/2014 US Bank COIp Pymt System AP 10,339.33 
148810 7/25/2014 Jermifer Carrasco AP 90.33 
148811 7/25/2014 Lany & Karen Custer Jf AP 22.34 
148812 7/25/2014 Alfredo Jimenez AP 25.35 
148813 7125/2014 Westhill Property Mgmt AP 76.81 
148814 7/25/2014 Roy Tabigo-on AP 84.17 
148815 7/25/2014 !raj Ghazanfari AP 74.23 
148816 7/25/2014 Westhil1 Property Mgmt AP 9.80 
148817 7/25/2014 Joe Gutierrez AP 20.19 
148818 7/2512014 Diego Hernandez Nunez AP 27.84 
148819 7/25/2014 May Zepeda AP 22.68 
148820 7/25/2014 Raquel Gaona AP 24.43 
148821 7/25/2014 Westhill Property Mgmt AP 84.34 
148822 7/25/2014 Bourdet Family Trust AP 7.32 
148823 7/25/2014 Verizon Wireless AP 14Q.43 

148824 7/25/2014 VFW & American Legion AP 30.00 
148825 7/25/2014 Walmart AP 704.46 
148826 7/2512014 Westamerica Bank - Cafetetia Plan AP 49,652.81 
148827 7/25/2014 Westside Water Conditioning AP 161.70 
148828 7/25/2014 Whitehurst Funeral Chapels, Inc. AP 3,640.00 
148829 7/25/2014 Young's Air Conditioning AP 156.00 
148830 7/25/2014 Young's Automotive AP 530.48 
148831 7/2512014 Zee Medical Service Co AP 138.89 
148832 7/29/2014 Calpers - Health Benefits AP 207,079.30 
148833 7/29/2014 Elvira Grimes AP 500.00 
148834 7/29/2014 Michael Lewis AP 150.00 
148835 7/29/2014 Lucille L Mallonee AP 450.00 
148836 7/29/2014 Met Life AP 3,924.24 



Check No Check Date Name Module Void Amount 

148837 7/29/2014 Premier Access Insurance Co. AP 16,548.79 

148838 7/29/2014 Jessica Salvatier AP 500.00 

148839 7/29/2014 Anthony Terranova AP 150.00 

Total Void Check Count: 0 

Break in check sequence due to the following: Total Valid Check Count: 290 

Check #148598-148619 (payroll checks) Total Valid Check Amount: 2,871,768.33 

Total Check Count: 290 

Total Check Amount: 2,871,768.33 



CITY OF LOS BANOS 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

JULY 30, 2014 

ACTION MINUTES - These minutes are prepared to depict action 
taken for agenda items presented to the City Council. For greater 
detail of this meeting refer to the electronic media (CD and/or audio) 
kept as a permanent record. 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Villa Ita called the City Council Meeting to order at the hour 
of 7:00 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The pledge of allegiance was led by Police Chief Brizzee. 

ROLL CALL - MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: Council Members 
Tom Faria, Deborah Lewis, Scott Silveira, Elizabeth Stonegrove, Mayor Michael Villalta; 
Absent: None. 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: City Clerk/Human Resources Director Mallonee, City 
Manager Carrigan, City Attorney Vaughn, Accountant II/City Treasurer Brazil, 
Accountant II/Deputy City Treasurer, Fire Chief Guintini, Police Chief Brizzee, Public 
Works Director/City Engineer Fachin, Information Technology Director Spalding, 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Silveira, seconded by 
Lewis to approve the agenda as submitted. The motion carried by the affirmative action 
of all City Council Members present. 

PUBLIC FORUM: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBERS ON ANY ITEM OF PUBLIC INTEREST THAT IS WITHIN THE 
JURISDICTION OF THE CITY: INCLUDES AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS. 
NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE 
LIMITED TO A FIVE (5) MINUTE PRESENTATION. DETAILED GUIDELINES ARE 
POSTED ON THE COUNCIL CHAMBER INFORMATIONAL TABLE. BERTHA 
FARIA, Executive Director of the Los Banos Chamber of Commerce, spoke in support 
of the Industrial Park Project. No one else came forward to speak and the public forum 
was closed. 

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC INPUT AND TESTIMONY REGARDING 
PROPOSED COUNCIL DISTRICTS FOR BY-DISTRICT CITY COUNCIL ELECTIONS 
TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT THE NOVEMBER 4. 2014 ELECTION. 
Douglas Johnson, Consultant with National Demographic Corporation, presented the 
staff report, noting that Plan #3 was selected at the July 16, 2014 City Council Meeting. 

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. No one came forward to speak and the public 
hearing was closed. 



No action taken, just an opportunity for public input and testimony. 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 5594-
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH QUAD KNOPF, INC. FOR THE PREPARATION OF A 
GUIDANCE PACKAGE FOR A CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN FOR A NEW 
INDUSTRIAL PARK AND RELOCATION OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL 
AIRPORT AND AMENDING THE 2014-2015 BUDGET BY INCREASING THE 
COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $70,500. Assistant Planner II Elms presented the staff report, which 
included a PowerPoint presentation. 

Garth Pecchenino, Merced Branch Manager; Desmond Johnston, Project Manager; 
Lydia Zabrycki, Director of Business Partnering introduced themselves stating how they 
are looking forward to working with the City of Los Banos on the exciting project. 

Mayor Villalta asked City Manager Carrigan if he had heard "no" at anytime regarding 
this project for which he stated he had not, explaining all that has been done to this 
point regarding the proposed Industrial Park Project. 

Council Member Silveira spoke in support of the Industrial Park Project, he knows that it 
is in the very preliminary stages, how $70,000 seems like a lot now but will be a very 
small fee to pay for what we will get in return, and feels that this is an investment that 
could turn into a very good thing for the future of Los Banos. 

Mayor Villalta stated that this project is right off of Highway 1-5 and how important the 
location is, easy unloading and loading for potential businesses, spoke to the elements 
of the this project retail commercial, airport, and how he too is looking forward to the 
project. 

Council Member Lewis stated she feels this project is an excellent idea, how years ago 
when Silicon Valley was starting up businesses were started up in homes and garages 
and how they had the vision to put up the infrastructure and this is what Los Banos is 
trying to do, it is a great opportunity for jobs, income, very happy that we are moving 
forward with project. 

Council Member Faria stated that he is very pleased to see us moving forward with this, 
how we are doing something to help deal with the unemployment, spoke regarding the 
Owens Glass Factory in Tracy that his father worked in and how that sparked spin-off 
jobs in the area, feels that this a good way to get Los Banos going in the right direction 
and how important the aggressive schedule is and how this will make life better for our 
citizens. 

Council Member Stonegrove thinks there is a lot of potential for this project, the 
opportunity for the jobs is a great element and inquired as to the reimbursement 
agreements and how that would work for which Assistant Planner II Elms explained. 



Motion by Silveira, seconded by Lewis to adopt City Council Resolution No. 5594 -
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Quad 
Knopf, Inc. for the Preparation of a Guidance Package for a Conceptual Master Plan for 
New Industrial Park and Relocation of the Los Banos Municipal Airport and amending 
the 2014-2015 Budget by Increasing the Community & Economic Development 
Department Expenditures in the Amount of $70,500. The motion carried by the 
following roll call vote: AYES: Faria, Lewis, Silveira, Stonegrove, Villalta; NOES: 
None; ABSENT: None. 

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting was adjourned at the hour of 7:31 P.M. 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 



LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

TO: 

FROM: 

Mayor & City Council Mem~ 

Chet Guintini, Fire Chi~ 

DATE: August 6, 2014 

SUBJECT: New OES Engine consigned to Los Banos Fire Department 

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent Agenda Item 

Recommendation: 

Allow the Fire Chief to sign new Cal-OES Agreement for an additional 10 years. 

Background: 

The Los Banos Fire Department has been an assignee with Cal-OES for the past 5 
years, housing Cal-OES Engine 263 in Station No.1. 

This agreement is for the purpose of assigning a new Cal-OES Engine to our 
Department CAL-OES 377. The term of the agreement is the same as the agreement 
in place for the current OES Engine 263. 

Discussion: 

Over the past 5 years, it has been very beneficial for our Department to participate in 
the State Master Mutual Aid Program and being an assignee with Cal-OES, our fire 
fighters have responded to numerous fires and emergencies throughout the state. We 
also have used OES Engine 263 within our community on several occasions, because 
of one or two of our engines being down for repairs or on assignment out of the city. 



The skills learned and working with departments throughout the state has been very 
beneficial to our fire fighters and community. It is very important for our Department to 
continue to participate within the State Master Mutual Aid Program and to partner with 
Cal-OES as an assignee. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Under the Agreement, the Department will provide four (4) fire fighters per assignment. 
The City will receive full reimbursement for the personnel assigned, to include covering 
overtime costs for call-back personnel. 

The City and Fire Department will accept additional costs for insurance and routine 
maintenance. We currently budget for the added expenses under the current 
agreement. I anticipate the cost to remain the same. 

The Fiscal Impact would be a positive one for the City overall. 

Steve Carrigan, City Manager 

Staff Report OES Engine (OB-06-14).doc 



EDMUND G. BROWN, JR. 
GOVERNOR 

July 18,2014 

Chet Guintini, Chief 
Los Banos City Fire Department 
333 7'h. Street 
Los Banos, CA 93635 

Dear Chief Guintini: 

CaiOES 
BOVERNOR·S OtFlCE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

MARK S. GHILARDUCCI 
DIRECTOR 

You will find enclosed two copies of Assignment of Equipment Form, and Agreement for 
Temporary Transfer of Vehicular Equipment covering the assignment of Cal OES Fire Engine 
No. 377 to the Los Banos City Fire Department. The Agreement is effective August 18,2014. 

Please have the authorized official sign both copies of the above-mentioned documents and 
return one original set to our office. 

NOTE 1: Cal DES cannot assign the apparatus to your agency untif this signed Agreement is 
returned. 

It is required that this office be furnished with a Certificate of Insurance, or a letter certifying 
self-insurance in accordance with Paragraph 14 and 15 of the Agreement for Temporary Transfer 
of Vehicular Equipment. 

If you have any questions regarding this assignment, please feel free to contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

KZ/ald 
Enclosures 

Cc: Mark Johnson, Region V Fire and Rescue Coordinator 
Nancy Koerperich, Merced County Operational Area Coordinator 
Brian Woodbeck, Cal OES Deputy Chief of Operations 
Bill Bondshu, Cal OES Assistant Chief 

3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE' MATHER, CA 95655 
FIRE AND RESCUE DIVISION 

PHONE: (916) 845-8711 • FAX: (916) 845-8396 



State of Calitomia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

AGREEMENT FOR 
TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT OF VEHICULAR EQUIPMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this 18th
• day of August, 2014, by and between the 

Governor's Office of Emergency Services, hereinafter "CAL OES" acting by and between its 
duly appointed and qualified Director of the Governor's Office of Emergency Services and the 
Los Banos City Fire Department, acting by and through its duly appointed, qualified and acting 
officers, hereinafter called If ASSIGNEE. 1f 

W ITNE S SETH: 

WHEREAS, the State of California has purchased fire apparatus and equipment for the purpose 
of responding to incidents in furtherance of the California Fire Service and Rescue Emergency 
Mutual Aid Plan; and 

WHEREAS, Cal OES is authorized to assign these fire apparatus and equipment to local 
jurisdictions throughout the State under written agreements to be staged for Cal OES purposes 
and for use by local jurisdictions for the purposes described below; now, therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED between the parties hereto as follows: 

I. ASSIGNMENT. CAL OES hereby transfers possession to ASSIGNEE and ASSIGNEE 
hereby accepts possession from CAL OES of the fire apparatus and equipment listed on the 
attached Exhibit "A" which is by this reference made a part hereof, for the period commencing 
August 18, 2014, for the following all-risk events, emergency incidents, civil defense and 
disaster purposes, namely: 

Mutual aid, multiple alarm events and emergency incidents, emergency incidents 
threatening properties vital to national defense or important military installations, 
parades and displays, training of regular, volunteer and auxiliary firefighters and 
temporary standby for ASSIGNEE's regular apparatus and the regular apparatus 
of other departments while out of service for repairs. 

a. Vehicle Description: 2013 HME/Ahrens-Fox Model 18 
Vehicle Designation: 377 
Vehicle License Number: 1433587 
Vehicle Identification Number: 44KFT4282DWZ224I 0 
Value of Vehicle: $345,000.00 
Value of Hose and Appliances: $38,000.00 

b. Equipment inventories (Exhibit "A") may by mutual concurrence of the CAL 
OES and ASSIGNEE be changed during the term of this Agreement, utilizing property 
accountability procedures established or approved by the State. 

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall be for ten (10) years unless terminated pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement. 

3. CONSIDERATION. Consideration for this Agreement is the mutual benefit the parties will 
enjoy by having a fire apparatus locally available for use as provided in this Agreement. 

1 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment of Vehicular Equipment 



State of Calilornia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

4, HOUSING, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND REPLACEMENT, During the term of this transfer, 
ASSIGNEE agrees to adequately house in an enclosed secure structure, staff, operate, maintain 
and repair (consistent with section 4b) said fire apparatus and equipment (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as "the Apparatus" except where it is desired to refer to equipment alone, in which 
case the term "Equipment" is used) at its sole cost and expense, except as otherwise expressly 
provided in this Agreement ASSIGNEE also agrees to complete all reports and maintain 
records consistent with Section 14, Apparatus shall be housed on property of the ASSIGNEE in 
a manner to provide reasonable protection against inclement weather, sabotage, theft, or 
malicious damage, Apparatus shall be maintained in such condition that it is available for 
immediate emergency use, and at the same standard as other emergency apparatus operated by 
ASSIGNEE. Maintenance shall include care of hose, batteries, tires, appliances, lubrication and 
fuel, general cleaning and polishing, minor body repairs and periodic testing, Repairs shall 
include, without being limited to, motor tune-ups, pump repairs, transmission, differential and all 
running gear, brake and exhaust systems, cooling devices including radiator, pump packing, and 
equipment assigned to Apparatus, 

a, Repairs to the extent of $100.00 for each individual item of repair shall be the 
responsibility of ASSIGNEE. 

b, Repairs to the extent that they exceed $100,00 for each individual item of repair 
shall be the responsibility of CAL OES on a $100,00 deductible basis, unless in the judgment of 
the CAL OES the need for repair results from misuse or negligence on the part of ASSIGNEE 
in the maintenance or use of the Apparatus, in which event the cost of each such item of repair 
above $100,00 shall also be the responsibility of ASSIGNEE. In no event shall ASSIGNEE 
arrange for repairs costing over $100,00 for any item of repair, whether it is the responsibility of 
CAL OES or ASSIGNEE, without first obtaining written authorization from the Cal OES Fire 
and Rescue Division, 

c, Notwithstanding the foregoing, replacement of hose, batteries and tires shall be 
the responsibility of CAL OES, except to the extent CAL OES determines that the damage 
thereto is the result of negligence or misuse on the part of ASSIGNEE, in which event 
ASSIGNEE will bear such portion of the replacement cost thereof as the CAL OES deems 
equitable, Procurement of tires, hose and batteries is subject to State fiscal policies and 
procedures, and written approval must be obtained from the Cal OES Fire and Rescue Division 
prior to procurement. 

d, Maintenance and repairs must be requested and authorized pursuant to the most 
recent version of the Cal OES Fire and Rescue Division Operations Bulletin #18, which is 
hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference, 

e, Repair or replacement of the Apparatus transferred hereunder which is consumed, 
lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed during mutual aid operations when CAL OES has dispatched 
or directed the dispatch of said Apparatus through Regional or Operational Area Fire and Rescue 
Coordinators, or when CAL OES has reassigned said Apparatus pursuant to the provisions of 
paragraph 11 of this Agreement, shall be the responsibility of CAL OES, providing that any 
such loss or damage shall be the responsibility of ASSIGNEE, if due to the negligence of 
ASSIGNEE. ASSIGNEE agrees that it will assume responsibility in full for the repair or 
replacement of Apparatus that has been consumed, lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed III 

2 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment of Vehicular Equipment 



State of Calitornia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

operations ASSIGNEE has directed or controlled. 

f. ASSIGNEE must request from CAL OES, in writing, permission to make any 
and all changes to assigned fire apparatus and equipment. Furthermore, ASSIGNEE will not 
make modifications, changes, adjustments, or additions, including decals or stickers, to 
Apparatus without prior written approval from CAL OES. 

5. INSPECTION OF ApPARATUS. ASSIGNEE agrees that representatives of the Cal OES Fire 
and Rescue Division and other authorized State personnel may inspect the Apparatus at any time. 

6. STAFFING. Reasonable and continual training shall be carried on so that trained personnel 
shall at all times be available to staff and operate said Apparatus. The ASSIGNEE shall provide 
personnel to staff the assigned apparatus per FIRESCOPE ICS standards. The Cal OES engine 
may be assigned to out of area assignments for up to 14 days, plus travel time. When local 
government personnel, staffing Cal OES Apparatus, are committed to extended assignments 
there may be a need to replace or rotate personnel. Personnel rotation will follow the direction 
outlined in the California Fire Assistance Agreement when assigned to an incident within 
California. Crew rotation for incidents outside of California shall be consistent with the 
appropriate forest's agencies policy and coordinated by Cal OES. 

7. PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EOUIPMENT (ppm AND SPECIALIZED EOUIPMENT. In addition to 
providing the standard complement of firefighting PPE, it shall be the ASSIGNEE'S 
responsibility to provide its personnel with all other PPE that may be required by NFPA 1901, 
other NFPA Standards, and California Title 8. This shall include, but not be limited to, one 
Traffic Vest (ANSI I ISEA 207) for each seating position. In addition, we recommend chainsaw 
chaps be provided. In addition, an automatic external defibrillator (AED) has been added to 
"Miscellaneous Equipment" in NFPA 1901. To provide consistency with the ASSIGNEE'S 
equipment, it shall be the ASSIGNEE'S responsibility to provide this device for use on the 
assigned engine. 

8. TRAINING. Personnel assigned shall meet wildland fire and ICS standards established in 
the California Incident Command Certification System (CICCS) or NWCG 310-1, Wildlife 
Qualification System Guide (current edition). Personnel assigned to Cal OES Engine's shall 
meet Rescue System I standards as certified by the California State Fire Marshal, or have 
completed an equivalent course that meets or exceeds Rescue System I curriculum. 

9. DISPATCHING. All movement of the Apparatus shall be handled through the official 
dispatching channels of ASSIGNEE. ASSIGNEE dispatchers will recognize and act on all 
official requests for movement of the Apparatus in conformance with the Fire and Rescue Annex 
(California Fire and Rescue Mutual Aid System) to the State Emergency Plan and its subsequent 
revisions. CAL OES reserves the right to dispatch, direct the dispatch of, or temporarily 
reassign the Apparatus whenever, in the opinion of the Director of Cal OES, his representatives 
or Operational Area and Regional Fire and Rescue Coordinators, such Apparatus is essential to 
the protection of life and property in another jurisdiction or in the best interest of the State. 

10. MUTUAL AID RESPONSE. Procedures for mutual aid response shall be in accordance with 
California Fire Service and Rescue Emergency Mutual Aid Plan. 

11. REIMBURSABLE RESPONSE. Reimbursement for mutual aid may be provided pursuant to a 

3 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment of Vehicular Eqnipment 



State of Calitornia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

governor's disaster proclamation or when conditions warrant invoking the California Fire 
Assistance Agreement, the State of Nevada Cooperative Agreement, or the Interstate Compact as 
appropriate. There is no other existing provision for mutual aid reimbursement. 

12. TEMPORARY USE. ASSIGNEE shall be permitted to use the Apparatus for temporary 
cover of ftre stations when emergency conditions warrant, or when regular apparatus is out of 
service for repairs and a closer engine cannot cover the gap. In either case, the ASSIGNEE shall 
immediately notify the Operational Area Dispatch Center and the Cal OES Fire Duty Chief. The 
ASSIGNEE further agrees that Cover-in or Standby of said Apparatus exceeding 30 days is at 
the discretion of the CAL OES. 

13. TEMPORARY TRANSFER. 

a. A sub-assignment of the Apparatus or any portion thereof by ASSIGNEE for any 
period not exceeding seven consecutive days within a given Operational Area may be made with 
the consent of the Operational Area Fire and Rescue Coordinator and the CAL OES, providing 
that at the time such Apparatus is received, such Sub-Assignee furnish ASSIGNEE and CAL 
OES a letter to the effect that he assumes all obligations of ASSIGNEE with respect to such 
Apparatus under this Agreement during the period of assignment, including insurance coverage 
in accordance with Section 16 or 17, as appropriate. Any sub-assignment by ASSIGNEE for a 
period of more than seven consecutive days shall be subject to authorization by the CAL OES 
and execution of an "Agreement for the Temporary Transfer of Vehicular Equipment," with the 
agency requesting the transfer. 

b. Whenever Apparatus is assigned in accordance with the prOVISIOns of this 
paragraph, regular ASSIGNEE shall be relieved of its obligations under this Agreement during 
such period of sub-assignment. 

c. Complete a written Temporary Cal OES Apparatus Assignment Record, Exhibit 
"B". The ASSIGNEE will retain one copy, the Sub-Assignee will retain one copy, and one copy 
will be forwarded to the Cal OES Fire and Rescue Division. 

14. REpORTS AND RECORDS. ASSIGNEE shall maintain daily and monthly reports on the 
details of Apparatus use on Cal OES F-IOI Form. A Smoke Opacity Test, Pump Test, Hose 
Test, and Ladder Test shall be the responsibility of ASSIGNEE and completed annually. 
Written results of all tests and reports shall be forwarded to the Cal OES Fire and Rescue 
Division by the end of the calendar year. A recent copy of the tests and reports shall be 
maintained in the vehicle logbook. 

15. REPORT OF ACCIDENTS. ASSIGNEE shall immediately notify the Cal OES Fire and 
Rescue Division following any and all accidents involving the Apparatus. It shall be the 
responsibility of ASSIGNEE to ftll out State Form 270, "Report of Automobile Accident," and 
ftle the report with the Governor's Office of Emergency Services. A copy of this report shall be 
retained by the ASSIGNEE and the original and four copies forwarded to Cal OES. 

16. INSURANCE PROTECTION. (Non- State Agencies) 

a. ASSIGNEE agrees forthwith to furnish evidence of insurance protecting the legal 
liability of the ASSIGNEE and CAL OES for liability and/or property damage with a combined 

4 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment ofVehicnlar Equipment 



State of Calitornia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

single limit of $1 ,000,000,00 per occurrence, by means of a Certificate of Insurance naming the 
State of California as Additional Insured, Said certificate shall contain an Agreement by the 
insurance company that it will not cancel said policy without 15 days prior written notice to the 
CAL OES and that the CAL OES is not liable for the payment of any premiums or assessments 
thereon, Said certificate must include the description of the apparatus including VIN, state 
license number, and Cal OES unit number, 

b, In the event the ASSIGNEE is self-insured, ASSIGNEE in lieu of a certificate of 
insurance shall furnish CAL OES a written statement of such fact In such event, ASSIGNEE 
agrees to hold the CAL OES harmless from any personal injury or property damage claims 
arising out of its maintenance, use or operation of the Apparatus under the tenns of this 
Agreement 

c, Physical damage insurance, including collision coverage and comprehensive 
coverage, shall be obtained, The State of California will be named as a loss payee, In the event 
of a non-total loss, ASSIGNEE is responsible for returning Apparatus to original standard, The 
description of the vehicle and the necessary amount of insurance required is outlined in attached 
Exhibit "C" which is by this reference made a part hereof 

17, INSURANCE PROTECTION, (State Agencies) Any insurance necessary for coverage of the 
apparatus shall be the sole responsibility of the department having custody of the vehicle, 
including when it directs, dispatches, and controls the use of the Apparatus, ASSIGNEE agrees 
to report Apparatus as being under its control to the Insurance Officer, Department of General 
Services. 

18. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

a. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 14 days written notice to other 
party, or ASSIGNEE may relinquish or CAL OES may repossess any portion of the Apparatus 
upon like notice to the other party, except that CAL OES may repossess any portion thereof 
without written notice whenever it deems the same is not being maintained in accordance with 
this Agreement 

b. Upon the termination of this Agreement, ASSIGNEE agrees to return said 
Apparatus in the same condition as received, reasonable wear and tear, acts of God, and 
conditions over which it has no control excepted. 

c. As inventory changes occur, or items of equipment are replaced, deleted or added 
by the CAL OES or replaced by ASSIGNEE, it is mutually agreed that no amendment to this 
Agreement need be made at the time of the change; provided however, at the termination of this 
Agreement a complete reconciliation of all equipment will be made. ASSIGNEE further agrees 
that all replacements for equipment or apparatus will be made with identical or substantially like 
items as approved by the CAL OES. 

d. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a new property interest or 
right of action for the ASSI GNEE. 

19. UNAUTHORIZED USE OF CAL OES ApPARATUS AND EQUIPMENT. Use of this Apparatus 
other than as specified in Paragraph 1 will be considered a breach of this Agreement 

5 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment of Vehicular Equipment 



State of Calitornia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

20. USE OF RADIO EOUIPMENT 

a. CAL OES will furnish at CAL OES'S sole cost, radio equipment installed in the 
Apparatus to be operated on the following frequencies: 151.145 -170.925 . 

b. CAL OES agrees to maintain said equipment without cost to ASSIGNEE. 

c. The ASSIGNEE agrees to operate said radio equipment in accordance with the 
Rules and Regulations of the Federal Communications Commission. 

d. Ownership of said equipment is in the CAL OES, and all applications to the 
Federal Communications Commission seeking authority to add, modifY, or replace radio 
equipment covered by this Agreement shall be made by and in the name of the State of 
California. To activate this Agreement and in compliance with the control requirements of the 
Communications Act of 1934, as amended, the CAL OES hereby deputizes the Chief of the 
agency of said ASSIGNEE, and such volunteers, regularly employed and salaried assistants as 
shall be designated by the Chief of the agency as his agents to operate said radio equipment as 
specified in Paragraph "c" above. 

e. CAL OES assumes no liability hereunder for claims or losses accruing or 
resulting to any person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work, services or material or 
services in counection with the performance of this Agreement or for any claims and losses 
accruing or resulting to any person, firm or corporation injured or damaged by performance of 
either party hereunder. 

21. NOTICES. All correspondence and notices required or contemplated, or which may be 
given by either party to the other shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing 
and deposited in the U.S. mail, registered and postage prepaid and addressed as follows: To the 
ASSIGNEE at Los Banos City Fire Department, 333 7th

. Street, Los Banos, CA, 93635, and to 
the CAL OES at Governor's Office of Emergency Services, Fire and Rescue Division, 3650 
Schriever Ave., Mather, CA, 95655. The address to which notices shall or may be mailed as 
aforesaid to either party shall or may be changed by written notice given by such party to the 
other, as hereinabove provided; but nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving of any 
such notice by personal service. 

22. ALTERATION. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the 
terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, 
and that no oral understanding or agreements not incorporated herein, and no alterations or 
variations of the terms hereof unless made in writing between the parties hereto shall be binding 
on any of the parties hereto. 

23. WAIVER. The CAL OES may in its sole discretion and for such good cause as it 
determines waive in writing in whole or in part any requirement of this Agreement that apparatus 
and/or equipment shall be maintained in operating condition, or repaired, or replaced, providing 
that any such waiver shall be applicable only to the specific apparatus or equipment to which it 
refers. 

24. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship 

6 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment of Vehicular Eqnipment 



State of Calilornia 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

between the parties to this Agreement, will be governed by the laws of the State of California, 

25, WHOLE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties hereto, with respect to the subject matter hereof. No party has been induced to enter into 
this Agreement by, nor is any party relying on, any representation or warranty outside those 
expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement upon the date first 
above written. 

ASSIGNEE: CALOES: 

Los Banos City Fire Department Mark Ghilarducci 
Director, 
Governor's Office of Emergency Services 

By ________________________ __ 

Chef Guintini, Chief .-ta~~~~:e'~~~r~. rv~~/9 m ire and Rescue Chief 

7 04/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Assignment ofVehicnIar Equipment 



State 01 Cahtonua 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Fire and Rescue Division 

EXHmIT "A" 
EQUIPMENT INVENTORY: OES 360 + 

ENGINE 
NUMBER: 377 

LICENSE 
NUMBER: 

1 Adapter, 6" x 2-1/2", DF Hydrant 
1 Adapter, 6" x 4", DF Hydrant 
I Adapter, 6" x 4-1/2", DF Hydrant 
I Axe, Pickhead 
2 Block, Chock 
2 Cans, Fuel 
4 Cap, 2-1/2" Discharge 
I Chain, Tow 25', w/Grab Hooks 
I Clamp, Hose (Hebert) 
2 Clamp, Hose (Wildland 
5 Cones, Traffic wlreflective band 
2 Coupling, 2-1/2", DF 
2 Coupling, 2-112", DM 
2 Cover, Salvage (Canvas) 
1 Crank, Hose Reel 
1 Cutter, Bolt, 3~'' 
I Fire Extinguisher, 5# 
I First Aid Kit 
1 Portable Pump, Cal OES# 170048Serial# 1005444 
1 Backpack, Thenno-Gel 
I Thenno-Gel ~ Pick-up Tube 
1 Thermo-Gel- Eductor, Hose & Nozzle 
2 Thermo-Gel- Concentrate, 5 Gal. 

1433587 

1 Generator w/light, 2,000 W, Cal OES# 170050 Serial# 
2534223 
2 Hammer, Sledge, 8-10 lb. 
8 Hose, I" x 100', NPSH 
I Hose, IM1I2" x 35', Truck Protection Line 
12 Hose, IM1/2" x 50', NH 
10 Hose, IMl/2"x 100', NH Forestry 
24 Hose, 3" x 50', NH 
2 Hose, Booster I" x 100' NPSH 
1 Hose, Hard Suction 1 W' x 10' 
2 Hose, Hard Suction 6" x 10' 
1 Hose, Soft Suction 6" x 12' 
1 Increaser, I" NPSH F to 1~1!2" NH M 
I Intercom Set 
I Ladder, 10' Attic 
I Ladder, 14' Roof 
I Ladder, 24' Extension 
4 Lantern, Hand, 12 Volt 
5 Lights, for Traffic Cones, flashing amber 
I Log Book, w/Credit Card 
1 Mallet, Rubber 
2 McCleod I Thau Claw 
I Mount, Ground, Deluge 
4 Nozzle, 1", Combination 
5 Nozzle, I W', Combination (2 structural!3 wildland) 
I Nozzle, Deluge Set w/Stream Straightener and Tips 1-3/8", 

1-1/2", 1-3/4",2" 
1 Nozzle, Deluge Combo, 500 - 1,250 gpm 
I Nozzle, 1 Y~", Foam, Air Aspiration 
1 Nozzle, 2 W', Fog 
2 Nozzle,2 Y2", ShutoiTwffips 
1 Cal OES Operations/Maintenance Bulletins 
2 Pike Pole (6' & 8') 
2 Plug, 2-1/2" Suction 
1 Pulaski 
I Radio, Bendix-King, Handheld Serial# 1243007 

Cal OES# 170047 
DGS# 

Radio, Kenwood, Mobile Serial# 
Cal OES# 170046 
DGS# 

Reducer, 1-1/2" NH F to 1" NPSH M 

VIN 
NUMBER: 44KFT4282DWZ2241O 
I Reducer, 2-1/2" NH F to 1-112" NH M 
I Reflector Kit, 3-Unit 
2 Rope, 1/2" x 100', Utility 
1 Shovel, Long Handle, Round Point, Fiberglass Handle 
1 Siamese, 2-112" 
2 Soft Suction Hose, 3" x 12' 
I Strainer, Class A Foam (in fill tower) 
1 Strainer, 1 V~" Hard Suction Hose 
1 Strainer, 6" Hard Suction Hose 
4 Strap, Hose and Ladder 
3 Tee, Wildland I W' NH MIF x I" NPSH 
2 Wrench, Adjustable Hydrant 
2 Wrench, 1"/1-1/2", Forestry 
1 Wrench, Suction Hose Spanner 
4 Wrench, Hose Spanner 
1 Wye, Gated 2,112" NSF x 2,1 112" NSM 
***************US&R INVENTORY:*************** 
1 Axe, Flathead 
I Backboard, w/4 Straps 
1 Backboard, Head Immobilizer 
2 Bar, Claw, Wrecking, 3' 
4 Bar, Pinch Point, Pry, 60" 
3 Belt, Carpenter 
12 Blade, Hacksaw, Carbide 
2 Blanket, Disposable 
27 Carabiner, Locking, "0", II mm 
1 Chainsaw, wi carbide chain and tool kit, Cal OES# 170049 

Serial# 175451802 
2 Chisel, Cold, I" x 7-7/8" 
2 Chemical Light Kit 
2 Cribbing & Wedge Kits 
2 Edge Protectors 
I Emergency Signaling Device (Whistle) 
2 Friction Device, (Fig. 8 wi Brake Bar Rack) 
2 Hacksaw 
2 Handsaw, Crosscut, 26". 
3 Hammer, Framing, 24 oz 
4 Hammer, Sledge, 3-4 lb., Short 
2 Harness, Body, Commercial (Class 2 or better) 
2 Haul Bag 
2 Jack, Hydraulic wlHandle (8 ton) 
2 Kernmantle, Y:z" x 150', Static, NFPA Approved 
1 Knife, Utility 
3 Level, 6" 
1 Litter & Litter Cover 
I Litter Pre-rig 
2 Load Release 
6 pr Loop, Prusik 
I Marking Kit, Building 
2 Multipoint Collection Plate 
3 Nails, (25Ibs. Each: 16d, 8d) 
6 Picket, Steel, 1" x 4' 
3 Pulley, Rescue, Prusik Minding 
I San Francisco Hydrant Adaptor, 3" NHF to 2 W' NHM 
I Shovel, Scoop, "0" Handle, Fiberglass Handle 
1 Shovel, Long Handle, Square Point, Fiberglass Handle 
3 Square, (Tri or Speed) 
I Square, Framing, 24'" 
3 Tape Measure, 25' 
2 Tape, Barrier 
2 Tape, Duct 
I Took Kit 
I Trauma Kit 
I Webbing Kit, (6 ea: 1 "x5', 1 "x12', 1 "xIS', I "x20') 

REMARKS: ________________________________________________________ _ 

ACCEPTED BY: _______________________ __ TITLE: ____________________ _ 

DEPARTMENT: _______________________ _ DATE: __________________ _ 

A-I 4/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Transfer of Vehicular Equipment 



NO. 

I. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

State of California 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICE 

Fire and Rescue Division 

EXHIBIT "B" 
TEMPORARY CAL OES APPARATUS ASSIGNMENT RECORD 

ARTICLE CALOES 
DECAL 

1,250 gpm Triple Combination Fire Engine, complete CalOES 
with equipment per attached Exhibit "A" of Agreement for 377 
Temporary Transfer of Vehicular Equipment. 

License No: 1433587 

VlNNo: 44KFT4282DWZ22410 

Engine No: 377 

Proof of Insurance: 

Inventory Completed: 

REASON FOR TEMPORARY TRANSFER: New Assignee 

SIGNATURES: 

QUANTITY 

1 

Date ________ _ 
PERMANENT ASSIGNEE 

Date ________ _ 
TEMPORARY ASSIGNEE 

B-1 4/2012 
Agreement for Temporary Transfer ofVehicnlar Eqnipment 



State of California 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICE 

Fire and Rescue Division 

EXHmIT "C" 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Part of the Agreement through which the State makes a temporary transfer of vehicular equipment is the 
Agreement on the part of the ASSIGNEE to furnish certain evidence of insurance. Your organization, as 
an ASSIGNEE of equipment, will want to be mindful of these requirements and assure they are complied 
with. If self-insured, in lieu of a certificate of insurance, a written statement of self-insurance shall be 
furnished on official letterhead and agreeing to hold Cal OES harmless from any personal injury or 
property damage claims arising out of the maintenance, use or operation of the Apparatus. 

Liability Insurauce 

A certificate of insurance shall be furnished to the State providing minimum limits of insurance as 
follows: 

BODILY INJURY aud PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY $1,000,000.00 PER OCCURENCE 

A certificate of insurance will have the following provisions included: 

I. The State of California shall be named Additional Insured. 

2. The insurance company shall agree that in the event of cancellation, 15 days prior written 
notice will be given to the State. 

3. The State shall not be responsible for premium or assessments. 

4. Certificate ofinsurance must include the description of the Apparatus including identification 
number, State license number and Cal OES unit number. 

Physical Damage Insurance 

The transfer agreements place certain responsibilities upon your organization for the safekeeping of the 
vehicle and equipment. The State will look to your organization for reimbursement for repair or 
replacement cost in the event the vehicle or equipment is damaged by misuse or negligence or by other 
causes, except normal wear and tear, acts of God and conditions over which your organization has no 
control. 

Description of Apparatus 

VEHICLE 
2013 HME/Ahrens-Fox Model 18 

License Number: 1433587 
VINNumber: 44KFT4282DWZ224I 0 
Engine Number: 377 

EOUIPMENT 

Hose and Appliances 

C-l 

VALUE 
$345,000.00 

$38,000.00 

Agreement for Temporary Transfer ofVebicular Equipment 
4/2012 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

Mayor Villa Ita and Council Members 

Sonya Willia~nance Director 

August 6,2014 

SUBJECT: Taxicab License - Martinez Taxi 

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent Agenda 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the operation of a taxicab license for 
Mr. Arturo Martinez, a resident of Los Banos, and deems the operation a public 
convenience and necessity. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Martinez is a resident of Los Banos seeking additional income. He is a licensed taxi 
driver and has worked as a taxi driver in Los Banos for the past seven years. Mr. 
Martinez would like to open his own business to heighten his career path. 

The requested use will be operated out of Mr. Martinez's home located at 2041 Place 
Road; Mr. Martinez will be employing an additional driver pending City Council approval. 
He anticipates operating two vehicles, seven days a week. 

TAXICAB LICENSE ANALYSIS 
Pursuant to Section 4-4.02 of the Los Banos Municipal Code, "No taxicab license shall 
be granted to any person until a hearing has been held thereon, conducted in 
accordance with such rules and regulations as may from time to time be prescribed 
therefore by the Council, and until the Council shall have determined that the public 



convenience and necessity require the operation proposed by the applicant for such 
license." The Council shall take into consideration the following: 

1. Public demand for such service 
2. The adequacy or inadequacy of taxicab service being rendered by other persons 
3. The effect of such service upon traffic 
4. The financial responsibility of the applicant 
5. The amount of wages to be paid to employees 
6. The character of equipment proposed to be furnished 
7. Any and all other facts which the Council may deem relevant 

According to the City of Los Banos Business Licenses records there are currently five 
(5) taxicab companies operating in the City of Los Banos. The following is a breakdown 
of companies and drivers: 

Company 
Alianza Taxi 

Ali's Taxi 
City Taxi 

Corona Express 
Star Cab 

Code Requirements 

TOTAL 

Total Drivers 
3 
2 
2 
3 
1 

11 

According to Section 4-4.05 every driver operating a taxicab shall carry at all times an 
identification card (taxi driver permit) which shall be issued by the Los Banos Police 
Department and signed by the Police Chief. All taxi driver permits must be renewed 
annually. In addition, each permit application has to be accompanied by a current DMV 
printout and drug and alcohol test results. 

Any person driving or operating any taxicab within the City of Los Banos shall have a 
motor vehicle liability insurance policy pursuant to Section 4-4.06, which insures the City 
and owner/operator of any taxicab against loss in the following amounts: 

a) Fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00), exclusive of interest and costs, on 
account of injury to, or the death of, any person; and 

b) Thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00), exclusive of interest and costs, on 
account of anyone accident resulting in injury to, or death of, more than 
one person; and 

c) Five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), for damages to the property of others 
resulting from anyone accident. 

All taxicab drivers according to Section 4-4.09 must submit taxicab vehicles, vehicle 
registration, proof of insurance, schedule of rates, meter calibration results, driver 
permits and proof of alcohol and drug compliance records to the Chief of Police or any 



law enforcement upon request. The Municipal Code also prohibits the operation of the 
requested taxicab if it has been found to be in an unsafe condition. In addition the 
appearance and cleanliness of the taxicab is mandated by the Code, and failure to 
provide proof may lead to license revocation. 

Each taxicab service currently reports annually to the Los Banos Police Department for 
testing of controlled substance and alcohol. Each driver must perform a test prior to 
renewal of any license by the City of Los Banos. 

Reviewed By: 

Steve Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 

Resolution 
Letter from applicant 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LOS BANOS APPROVING THE 
OPERATION OF A TAXICAB LICENSE FOR 
MARTINEZ TAXI AND DEEMING THE 
OPERATION A PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Los Banos has received a request to 
obtain a taxicab license; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 4-4.02 of the Los Banos Municipal Code, the 
City Council has taken the following into consideration: 

1. Public demand for such service 
2. The adequacy or inadequacy of taxicab service being rendered by other 

persons 
3. The effect of such service upon traffic 
4. The financial responsibility of the applicant 
5. The amount of wages to be paid to employees 
6. The character of equipment proposed to be furnished 
7. Any and all other facts which the Council may deem relevant 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The City Council of the City of 
Los Banos does hereby approve the operation of a taxicab license for Martinez Taxi and 
deems the operation a public convenience and necessity. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Los Banos held on the 6th day of August, 2014 by Council Member 
:-:--_____ who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council 
Member and the Resolution adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 



~ ity &;un ttl, 
:r have J Il.tr/ I n Los f?:cvJ(E fuR 

6-euen ~rs, Mel tf7 d-h:::J time I hae;e 
()JO/Ll!ed for A-JIICLn-=ca Taxi. I- met been 
succ~Pu( as an empttqee and atY) 
()O~ r eod f:J tv mke -trl£ r1QXt steP . 
r wou / d I J /t.e 1{) kca fYLe lJ7cJapenC1eflf
an cI C.(J n 17 n u-e (YUj CfU}e-eJ2 pam 011 
my Own. -r LUI/I pr7Julde safe rruns-
prkfahon and f-rl1end t<j -hrYJel'j SerUJCe 

rJ7; my COI17r()Ul?lflj. r.. am well Known 
o.nd IlkeeI blj 1YW70 mem~5 6f our 
aommunihj.]: CUY1 COOt-Irq fvrUXJJd 
tv ~vlce the LfJ5 1?;a.ntJS ~ furL 

YTJOJ7t.) ~rs f?J ClJrYJe. RECEIVED 

f/IlT UIlO M 1/ ilT IN 11"(; 

JUN 2 5 2014 
CITY OF LOS BANOS 

FINANCE DEPT. 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

Mayor and City Council Members 

Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer C)!YJJ ~L 
August 6, 2014 

Old Landfill Closure Agreement 

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent Agenda 

Recommendation: 
That the City Council adopt the Resolution entering into an Agreement for Consulting 
Services with BSK Associates for the Clean Closure of the Old Los Banos Landfill, and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the contract agreement in the amount of 
$273,000. Staff is requesting a 15% contingency of $40,952. The administration of this 
contract agreement, including the 15% contingency, is to be performed by the Public 
Works Director/City Engineer. 

Background: 
The City of Los Banos (City) owned and operated a Solid Waste Disposal Site (Site) 
from 1955 to about 1973. After 1973, inert wastes were disposed of at the Site until 
1994. The Site has been inactive since 1994 when an earthen cover was placed over the 
waste units. In 1991 the services of BSK Associates (BSK) were retained to assist the 
City with a closure process to meet the requirements of all State regulatory agencies 
involved with Site's in California. Originally, BSK identified three closure options for the 
City on a time and materials basis. Within each of the three options, specific tasks were 
outlined. As each task became relevant, a contract agreement for the specific task was 
initiated with BSK, with a not-to-exceed cost. 

The Water Discharge Requirement (WDR) approved in June 2001 by the California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (CRWQCB) accepted the City's plan to close the 
Site using the final cover method. The final cover method required covering the waste 
units with three layers of dirt (2 feet of foundation layer, 1 foot of clay layer, and 1 foot of 
vegetation soil layer). The final cover method limits the uses of the land and requires 
subsequent regular monitoring of the aquifer, indefinitely. In 2008, a fourth option 



became economically viable for a "Clean Closure" of the Site. The Clean Closure method 
removes all of the waste, resulting in an unlimited use of the land and no post monitoring 
of the aquifer. BSK performed several tasks involved in the closure process, each with 
contractual agreements and a not-to-exceed lump sum. In January 2009, a Preliminary 
Clean Closure Plan was prepared and submitted to CRWQCB and other regulatory State 
agencies for acceptance. The CRWQCB approved the City's Clean Closure plan by 
amending the WDR. Under the amended WDR all waste and contaminated soils shall be 
removed by October 31, 2017. 

Discussion: 
Staff is recommending that the services of BSK be extended for tasks specifically related 
to the Clean Closure of the Old Los Banos Landfill. The BSK proposal (exhibit "A") 
includes a not-to-exceed lump sum cost for each of the remaining Clean Closure Tasks, 
including the final closure report (task 17) submitted to the CRWQCB. 

A contingency is requested to cover any modifications imposed by regulatory agencies to 
the proposed scope of work, changes in field conditions, and other unforeseeable 
variances. BSK continues to offer exceptional technical service, reasonable rates, solid 
resources with regulatory agencies, and a thorough knowledge of the project scope. BSK 
is currently under contract performing tasks 10 and 11 in the attached proposal (exhibit 
((All). 

Fiscal Impact: 
Expenses incurred for tasks 12 and 13 have been programmed in the 2014-15 Adopted 
Fiscal Budget. Future expenses for engineering services will need to be incorporated into 
future budgets. 

Reviewed by: 

YJ~v 
Steve Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 
Resolution 
BSK Proposal 
Waste Discharge Requirement Order R5-2012-0062 
2014-15 Fiscal Budget Sheet 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LOS BANOS AUTHORIZING A 
CONTRACT AGREEMENT WITH BSK 
ASSOCIATES FOR THE CLEAN CLOSURE OF 
THE OLD LOS BANOS LANDFILL 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos has owned and operated a Solid Waste 
Disposal Site; and 

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Disposal Site has been inactive since 1994, 
currently referred to as the Old Los Banos Landfill; and 

WHEREAS, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, as the lead 
State agency overseeing the disposition of the property, has approved the City's plan 
for a Clean Closure of the Old Los Banos Landfill; and 

WHEREAS, BSK Associates has effectively consulted with the City of Los Banos 
on a majority of tasks required by the State of California for meeting the Waste 
Discharge Requirements of the Old Los Banos Landfill, and is currently consulting with 
two specific reoccurring tasks; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has received a contract agreement 
from BSK Associates in the amount of $273,000 for the Clean Closure of the Old Los 
Banos Landfill; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department requests the City Council authorize a 
15% contingency in the amount of $40,952; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department requests the City Council authorize 
the City Manager to execute the contract agreement with BSK Associates, and 
authorize the Public Works Director/City Engineer to administrate the contract 
agreement including the 15% contingency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los 
Banos does hereby accept the contract agreement for the Clean Closure of the Old Los 
Banos Landfill, and authorizes the City Manager to execute the contract agreement with 
BSK Associates in the amount of $273,000, and authorizes the Public Works 
Director/City Engineer to administrate the contract agreement including the 15% 
contingency in the amount of $40,952. 

1 



The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Los Banos held on the 6th day of August 2014, by Council Member 
___ who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member 
___ and the Resolution adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 

2 



BSI( 
Associates 

Engineer~boratories 

550 West Locust Avenue 
Fresno CA 93650 
P 559.497.2880 
F 559.497.2886 
www.bskassociates.com 

TRANSMITTED VIA US MAIL 

May 21, 2014 

Mr. Greg Pimentel 
Interim Assistant Public Works Director 
City of Los Banos Public Works Department 
411 Madison Avenue 
Los Banos, California 93635 

BSK Proposal EF14-10058 

SUBJECT: Proposal for Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
Old Los Banos Landfill 
Los Banos, California 

Dear Mr. Pimentel: 

BSK Associates (BSK) has prepared this proposal to assist the City of Los Banos (City) with 
completing the final elements of the Closure Plan for the Old Los Banos Landfill (Site). This 
proposal supersedes the Proposal for Landfill Closure dated November 15, 200 I (BSK 01-40-0470-
03). The original closure plan for the Site, as proposed in the2001 Proposal, was to leave the waste 
in-place and develop the Site, either in part or whole, for recreational uses. However, due to Site 
conditions, the City has decided that clean closure was the suitable closure process for the Site. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
This proposal summarizes the status oftasks proposed in the 2001 Proposal, current tasks previously 
authorized, and future tasks for your review and formal authorization pertaining to the Clean Closure 
Plan. 

];\40\14\Proposals 14\10058-EF14 Los Banos Clean Closure\Landfili Closure Plan EF14-10058 0521 14.doc 

An Employee-Owned Company 1I Analytical Testing III Construction Observation €I Ecological Services 41 Engineering Geology 
Environmental Engineering. Geotechnical Engineering €I Maierials Testing Ii! Water Resources 



Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
May21,2014 

BSK Proposal EFI4-l 0058 
Page 2 

2001 TASK OVERVIEW 

2001 Tasks 
2001 Estimated Revised 

Budeet Budeet 
Task I - Waste Management Unit Boundary and Base 

$5,672 $57,300 
Determination 

Tasks 2-4 - WMU Cover Source Evaluation $13,329 
No Longer 
Required 

Task 5 - Surface Drainage and Stonn Water 
$2,912 

Completed by 
Containment Others 
Task 6 - Closure Plan $7,960 $9,210 

Task 7 - On-going Project Management $18,260 
Included with 
Other Tasks 

Task 8 - Water Quality Protection Standards & No Budget 
$24,900 

Additional Monitoring Well Installation Estimated 

Task 9 - Groundwater Monitoring Well Relocation 
No Budget No Longer 
Estimated Required 

The status of tasks proposed in the 2001 Proposal is summarized below. 

Task 1: Waste Management Unit Boundary and Base Determination 
Completion of this task was authorized by two proposals, Proposal EF06-0121 dated August 30, 
2006 for $6,300 and Proposal EF07-01l2 dated September 14,2007 for $51 ,000. The Workplanfor 
Characterization of Waste and Delineation of the Base of Burn Dump Waste was submitted to the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board on January 23,2007 and the field work was conducted in 
October and November 2007. The findings were summarized in the Report of Landfill Waste 
Characterization and Delineation of the Base of Burn Dump Waste dated April 29, 2008. 

Tasks 2-4: WMU Cover Source Evaluation 
Task was not completed and the evaluation of waste management unit (WMU) cover source will not 
be needed since the project has changed from capping the waste in-place to removing the waste 
completely. However, BSK did conduct soil sampling and testing of a stockpile generated during an 
excavation of the drainage basin. The soil will be used as backfill for the Clean Closure Project. 
The stockpile sampling and testing was authorized under Proposal EFII-5997 dated June IS, 20 II 
for $8,900. The results of the testing were summarized in the Results Analytical Testing - Stockpile 
Soil Sampling Talbott Park Area Soil Excavation dated September 9,2011. 

Task 5: Surface Drainage and Storm Water Containment 
This task was completed by Boyle Engineering. Boyle prepared and submitted the Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention Plan dated November 20, 2006. 

J:\40\14\Proposa]s 14\lO058-EF14 Los Banos Clean Closure\Landfill Closure Plan EF14-J0058 052114.doc 

BSI( 



Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
May21,2014 

BSK Proposal EF14-10058 
Page 3 

Task 6: Closure Plan 
This task was completed by BSK and AECOM. BSK prepared the quality assurance and quality 
control (QAlQC) plan under Proposal EF08-2492 dated June 13, 2008 for $5,000 and Proposal 
EFO I -3341 dated June 5, 2009 for $4,21 0 The draft Construction Quality Assurance and Sampling 
Analysis Plan dated September 12, 2008 was submitted as an appendix to the draft Clean Closure 
Plan prepared by AECOM. The Final Construction Quality Assurance and Sampling Analysis Plan 
was submitted to the City on June 30,2010. 

Task 7: On-going Project Management 
This task was completed and budgeted as part of the scope of the other tasks. 

Task 8: Water Qualitv Protection Standards 
This task was completed under a Work Order dated July 17,2006 for $5,000. The Water Quality 
Protection Standards (WQPS) was submitted to the RWQCB on August 15,2006. Based on the 
recommendations of the WQPS report, additional groundwater monitoring wells installation was 
authorized under Proposal EF07-0081 dated June 27,2007 for $19,900. A workplan, Monitoring 
Well Installation Workplan dated September 8, 2008 and an installation report, Groundwater 
Monitoring Well Installation Report dated March 5,2009, were submitted to the RWQCB. Revised 
WQPS are currently being prepared (See Task II). 

Task 9: Groundwater Monitoring Well Relocation 
This task pertains to groundwater monitoring well MW -I located in an area where residential 
development activities were underway. According to our records this task was not completed by 
BSK and is no longer required since the well location is no longer in conflict with the residential 
development. 

CURRENT TASKS PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED 
Tasks Budget 

Task 10 - Quarterly Groundwater Monitoring (On-Going) $48,400 
Task II - Water Quality Protect jon Standards Addendum $29,918 

Below are the tasks currently authorized by the City that is separate from the scope of the 2001 
Proposal. 

Task 10: Quarterlv Groundwater Monitoring (On-Going) 
The 20 14 quarterly groundwater monitoring events were by Proposal EF 1 4-10073 for $48,400. The 
results ofthe quarterly groundwater monitoring events are submitted to the RWQCB in the Quarterly 
Groundwater Monitoring Reports. 

J:\40\14\Proposals 14\IO058~EF14 Los Banos Clean Closure\Landfill Closure Plan EF14-10058 0521J4.doc 

BSI( 



Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
May 21,2014 

Task 11: Water Quality Protection Standards Addendum 

BSK Proposal EF14-I0058 
Page 4 

The Water Quality Protection Standards Addendum was approved under Proposal EF 13-8478 for 
$29,918 dated July 25, 2013. The Addendum is currently being prepared. 

CLEAN CLOSURE TASKS 
Proposed Tasks Estimate 

Task 12 - Prepare Grant AIJjJlication $5,000 
Task 13 - Selection of a Contractor $62,000 
Task 14 - Complete Clean Closure Plan $13,000 
Task 15 - Construction Activities Oversight $80,000 
Task 16 - Sampling and Analysis $80,000 
Task 17 - Clean Closure Completion Report $30,000 

Total $273,000 

Our proposed scope of services for Clean Closure activities are based on our review of Section 4.1 
of the Preliminary Clean Closure Plan for the City of Los Banos Landfill document dated July 
2010. As the Clean Closure Project progresses, a more defined scope of work and cost for Tasks 15 
and 16 will be prepared prior to executing each task. BSK proposes the following scope of services: 

Task 12: Prepare Grant Application (Or potential funding 
• Prepare and submit a grant application to the CalRecycle Legacy Disposal Site Abatement 

Partial Grant Program for the fiscal year (FY) 2015/2016. The grant cycle for the 2015/2016 
FY is not yet published on the Calrecyle website; however, according to past FY cycles the 
first grant cycle starts in August/September. 

Task 13: Selection ofa Contractor 
• Prepare Design Drawings & Specifications, 30%, 60% and Final Submittal 
• Assist in preparing Request for Proposal package 
• Assist in selection of Contractor 

Task 14: Complete Clean Closure Plan 
• Prepare and submit final clean closure plan with revised cost estimates and schedule after 

contractor is selected 
• Meetings and Coordination with Agencies 

Task 15: Construction Activities Oversight 
• Full-time observation of the Contractor activities including excavation, sorting, segregating, 

loading waste/soil 
• Maintenance of all documentation including weight tags and bills of lading, as required by 

Workplan 
• Air monitoring using a Flame Ionization Detector/ Photoionization Detector (FID/PID) and 

J:\40\14\Proposals 14', J0058-EFI4 Los Banos Clean Closure\l.andfill Closure Plan EF14-10058 052114.doc 

BSI( 



Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
May21,2014 

an explosive gas meter 

BSK Proposal EF 14-1 0058 
Page 5 

• The number of days in the field based on contractor's schedule will determine actual costs 

Task 16: Sampling and Field Analvsis 
• Coordinate sampling and compliance III conformance with the Construction Quality 

Assurance Plan (CQAP) 
• Field screen underlying native soils and waste stockpile with a field portable XRF meter or 

similar device to identifY the concentrations of metals identified as constituent of concern 
and with immunoassay kits to test for dioxins 

• Collect representative confirmation samples of underlying native soils for analytical testing 
• Collection of representative confirmation samples of waste stockpile for analytical testing 

for disposal 
• Soil compaction testing ofthe excavation backfill 
• The number of analytical tests will determine actual costs 

Task 17: Clean Closure Completion Report 
• Prepare and submit the Clean Closure Completion Report to regulatory and interested 

agencles. 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE OF FEES 
BSK estimates the fees to complete the clean closure activities listed as Tasks 12 tough 17 as 
$273,000. Modifications to the proposed scope of services, due to agency requirements, field 
conditions and other unforeseeable variances may affect our actual fees; however, we will not exceed 
the proposed amount without prior authorization. Our invoice will be based on the actual amount of 
work performed and will be billed on a monthly basis in accordance with our 2014 and future years 
Fee Schedules as applicable. 

SCHEDULE 
BSK understands that the construction of the Clean Closure Project is scheduled to begin in the 
summer of 2017. In order to try to secure grant funding for 2017, the grant application is 
recommended to be submitted to CalRecycle during the first grant cycle in August/September 2015. 
BSK estimates that the grant application will take approximately eight weeks to prepare. 

CONDITIONS AND AUTHORIZATION 
Enclosed are two copies ofBSK' s Agreement for Environmental Consulting. BSK's services will be 
performed subject to the terms and conditions ofthe attached General Conditions for Environmental 
Consulting Services. Please have an authorized representative sign and date both copies of the 
Agreement and return one copy of the Agreement as our authorization to perform the above scope of 
servIces. 

J:AO\14\Proposa]s 14\lO058-EF14 Los Banos Clean Closure\Landfill Closure Plan EF14-10058 052114.doc 

BSI( 



Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
May21,2014 

LIMITATIONS 

BSK Proposal EF 14-10058 
Page 6 

BSK's services will be perfonned consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by 
other environmental professionals practicing in the same locale and under similar circumstances at 
the time the services are perfonned. No other warranties, either express or implied, are made as to 
the professional advice provided under the tenns ofBSK's Agreement with City of Los Banos. 

We look forward to continuing to be of service to City of Los Banos. Please call Sarah Worcester at 
(559) 497-2880, if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 
BSK ASSOCIATES 

~lI\ 
Sarah G. Worcester, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
CE78087 

SGW/AAHlmlt 

Enclosures: Authorization and Acceptance 

Distribution: Mr. Greg Pimentel (1 original) 
BSK (eMail) 

Amer A. Hussain, P.E. 
Vice President of Engineering 
CE57343 

© BSK ASSOCIATES. All rights reserved_ Reproduction of any part of this document without the written permission of BSK is prohibited. 

J:140\14IProposals 14',lO058-EFI4 Los Banos Clean Closure\Landfill Closure Plan EF14-10058 052114.doc 

B51( 



Updating the Landfill Closure Plan 
May 21,2014 

BSK Proposal EF14-10058 
Page 7 

AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, effective as of this day of-c-___ 2014, is by and between 
the City of Los Banos ("Client") and BSK Associates ("Consultant"). 

THE PROJECT is generally described as Clean Closure of the Old Los Banos Landfill for the City 
of Los Banos in Los Banos, California ("Project Site"). 

THIS AGREEMENT consists of the following docwnents which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 

• General Conditions for Environmental Consulting Services; 

• Consultant's Scope of Services and Fee Estimate, presented in BSK proposal 
EFI4-J0058, and referred to as Exhibit A. 

Consultant agrees to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement and in accordance with its 
terms, including all attachments incorporated herein by reference. This Agreement may not be 
modified or altered, except in writing as specifically described in this Agreement. 

CLIENT 

Signature: 

Print Name: Mr. Steve Carrigan Amer A. Hussain, P.E. 

Title: City Manager Vice President of Engineering 

Company: City of Los Banos BSK ASSOCIATES 

Address: 411 Madison Avenue 550 West Locust Avenue 

Los Banos, California 93635 Fresno, California 93650 

Date: 

J:\40\l4'.Proposals 14\lO058-EFI4 Los Banos Clean Closure\Landfill Closure Plan EF14-10058 052114.doc 

BSI( 



GENERAL CONDITIONS FOH 

ENVlH.ONMENTAL CONSULTING SEHVICES 

1. DH1NITJONS 

i.i. Contract Documents. Plans, specifications, and 
agreements between Client and Contractors, including 
addenda, amendments, supplementary instmctions, and change 
orders. 

1.2. Contractor. The contractor or contractors, and 
including its/their subcontractors of every tier, retained to 
perfolTI1 remediation work on the Project for which Consultant 
is providing Services under this Agreement 

1.3. Day(s). Calendar day(s) unless otherwise stated. 

1.4. Hazardous Materials. Any toxic substances, chemicals, 
radioactivity, pollutants or other materials, in whatever fonn 
or state, known or suspected to impair the enviroruncnt in any 
way whatsoever. Hazardous Materials include, but are not 
limited to, those substances defined, designated or listed in 
any federal, state or local law, regulation or ordinance 
concerning hazardous wastes, toxic substances or pollution. 

1.5. Governmental Agencies. All federal, state and local 
agencies having jurisdiction over the Project. 

1.6. Services. The professional sen.rices provided by 
Consultant as set forth in this Agreement, the SCOPE OF 
SERVICES included in Exhibit A and any written amendment to 
this Agreement. 

1.7. Work. The labor, materials, equipment and services 
required to complete the work described in the Contract 
Documents. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVlCES 

Consultant will perfoJm the Sen.rices set forth in the attached 
SCOPE OF SERVICES, which may be amended by Client and 
Consultant in writing. 

2.1. Changes in Scope. Jf Consultant provides Client with a 
v.riting confinning a change in the SCOPE OF SERVICES, it will 
become an amendment to this Agreement unless Client objects 
ill wriling within 5 business days aftcr receipt. All Services 
performed by Consultant on the Project are subject to the 
teons and limitations of this Agreement. If Consultant 
provides Services, but thc pal1ies do not reach agreement 
concerning modifications to the SCOPE Of SERVICES or 
compensation, then the terms and limitations of this 
Agreemcnt apply to such Services, except for the payment 
teons. Thc parties agree to resolve disputes conceming 
modiilcations to scope or compensation pursuant to Section 
18, "Disputes." 

2.2. Licenses. Consultant will procure and maintain 
business and professional licenses and registrations necessary 
to provide its Services. 

GENERAL CONDlllONS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL CO\JSULTING SERVICES 
(g 2004 All Rights Reserved 

2.3. Excluded Services. Consultant's Services under this 
Agreement include only those Sen.rices specified in the SCOPE 
OF SERV1CES. 

2.3.1. General. Client expressly waives any claim 
against Consultant resulting from its failure to perform 
recommended additional Sen.rices that Client has not 
authorized Consultant to perfonn, and any claim that 
Consultant failed to perfonn sen.rices that Client instructs 
Consultant not to perfonn. 

2.3.2. Biological Pollutants. Consultant's SCOPE OF 
SERVlCES specifically excludes the investigation, detection, 
prevention or assessment of the presence of Biological 
Pollutants. The tenn "Biological Pollutants" includes, but is 
not limited to, molds, fungi, spores, bacteria, viruses, andlor 
any of their byproducts. Consultant's SCOPE OF SERVICES will 
not include any interpretations, recommendations, findings, or 
conclusions pertaining to Biological Pollutants. Client agrees 
that Consultant has no liability for any claims alleging a 
failure to investigate, detect, prevent, assess, or make 
recommendations for preventing, controlling, or abating 
Biological Pollutants. FW1hermore, Client agrees to defend, 
indenmify, and hoJd harmless Consultant from all claims by 
any third party conceming Biological Pollutants, except for 
damages caused by Consultant's sole negligence. 

3. PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT 

3.1. Basic Services. Consultant will perform all Services set 
forth in the SCOPE OF SERVICES AND SCHEDULE OF CHARGES for 
the amount(s) set forth therein. 

3.2. Additional Services. Any Sen.rices perfonned under this 
Agreement, except those Services expressly identified in the 
attached SCOPE OF SERVICES, will be provided on a lime and 
materials basis unless otherwise specifically agreed to in 
writing by both parties. 

3.3. Estimate of Fees. Consultant will, to the best of its 
ability, perform the Sen.rices and accomplish the objectives 
defined in this Agreement within any written cost estimate 
provided by Consultant. Client recognizes that changes in 
scope and schedule, and unforeseen circumstances can all 
influence the successful completion of Services within the 
estimated cost. The use of an estim3te of fees or of a "not to 
exceed" limitation is not a guarantee Ihat the Sen.rices will be 
completed for that amount; rather, il indicates Ihat Consultant 
will not incur fees and expenses in excess of the estimate or 
limitation amount without obtaining Client's agreement 10 do 
so. 

3.4. Rates. Client will pay Consultant at the rates set fOl1h 
in the SCHEDULE OF CHARGES. 

3.4.1. Changes to Rales. Client and Consultant agree 
that the Schedule of Charges is subject to periodic review and 

Revised Feb 2013 
Page GC-I of 5 

Duplication, copying, reproduction of any type, use of the languoge involved, or excerption requires the express v.·ritten pennission of 
both TERRA INSURANCE COMPANY (A k.JSK REn:NTION GROUP) and ASFEn'HE BEST PEOPLE ON EARTH 



amendment, as appropriate to reflect Consultant's then-current 
fee structure. Consultant will give Client at least 30 days 
advance notice of any changes. Unless Client objects in 
\vriting to the proposed amended fee struchlrc within 30 days 
of notification, the amended fee structure will be incorporated 
into this Agreement and will then supersede any prior fee 
structure. If Client timely objects to the amended fee structure, 
and Consultant and Client cannot agree upon a new fec 
structure within 30 days after notice, Consultant may 
terminate this Agreement and be compensated as sct forth 
under Section 17, ''Termination.'' 

3.4.2. Prevailing Wages. Unless Client specifically 
informs Consultant in writing that prevailing wage regulations 
cover the Project and the SCOPE OF SERVICES identifies it as 
covered by such regulations, Client VlTiII reimburse, defend, 
indenmify and hold harmless Consultant from and against any 
liability resulting from a subsequent detennination that 
prevailing wage regulations cover the Project, including all 
costs, fines and attorneys' fees. 

3.5. Payment Timing; Late Charge. All invoices are due 
upon receipt. An amounts unpaid 30 days after the invoice 
date will include a late payment charge from the date of the 
invoice, at the rate of 1-1/2% per month or the highest rate 
permitted by law. 

4. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE; DISCLAIMER OF 
WARRANTIES 

4.1. Professional Standards. Client acknowledges that 
Projects that include hazardous or toxic materials and/or 
investigations of chemicals in the environment involve 
inherent uncertainties, such as limitations on laboratory 
analytical methods and variations in subsurface conditions. 
Such uncertainties may adversely affect a Project's results, 
even though the Services are performed \vith skiJl and care. 

4.1./. Evolving Technologies. The investigation, 
characterization and remediation of hazardous wastes involve 
technologies which arc rapidly evolving. Existing state-of-the
art tecimologies are often new and untried, and future 
technologies may supersede current techniques. 1n addition, 
standards for remediation, including statutes and regulations, 
change with time. Client understands that Consultant's 
recommendations must be based upon current technologies 
and standards and may differ from the recommendations that 
might be made at a later time. 

4.1.2. Level of Service. Consultant offers different 
levels of Environmental Consulting Services to suit the desires 
and needs of different clients. Although the possibility of error 
can never be eliminated, more detailed and extensive Services 
yield more infonllation and reduce the probability of error, bUI 
at increased cost. Client must determine the level of service 
adequate for its purposes. Client has reviewed the SCOPE OF 
SERVICES and haS determined that it does not need or want a 
greater level of service than that being provided. 

4.1.3. Slal1dard of Care. Subject to the limitations 
inherent in the agreed SCOPE OF SERVICES as to the degree of 
care, the amount of time and expenses to be incurred, and 
subject to any other limitations contained in this Agreement, 
Consultant may perform its Services consistent with that level 

GENERAL CONDmONS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES 
© 2004 All Rights Reserved 

of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other consultnats 
practicing in the same discipline and locale under similar 
circumstances at the time the Services are perfomled. 

4.2. No WaTranty. No warranty, express or implied, is 
included or intended by this Agreement. 

5. CONTRACTOR'S PERFOHMANCE 

5.1. Contractor's Performance. Consultant is not 
responsible for the means, methods, techniques or sequences 
used by Contractor during the performance of the Work. 
Consultant will not supervise or direct Contractor's Work, nor 
be liable for any failure of Contractor to complete its Work in 
accordance with the Contrtlct Documents or \vith applicable 
laws and regulations. Client understands and agrees that 
Contractor, and not Consultant, has sole responsibility for the 
safety of persons and property at the Project Site during 
remediation. 

5.2. Tests. Tests performed by Consultant Oll finished Work 
or Work in progress are taken intermittently and indicate the 
general acceptability of the Work on a statistical basis. 
Consultant's tests and observation of the Work are not a 
guarantee of the quality of other parties' work and do not 
relieve other parties from their responsibiJity to perform their 
work in accordance with applicable plans, specifications and 
requirements. 

6. ESTIMATE OF REMEDIA nON COSTS 

Client acknowledges that environmental remediation costs are 
subject to many influences that are not subject to precise 
forecasting and are outside of Consultant's control. Client 
further acknowledges that actual costs incurred may vary 
substantiaJIy from the estimates prepared by Consultant and 
that Consultant does not warrant or guaranty the accuracy of 
environmental remediation cost estimates. 

7. CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

In addition to payment for the Services performed under this 
Agreement, Client agrees 10: 

7.1. Cooperation. Assist and cooperate with Consultant in 
any manner necessary and within its ability to facilitate 
Consultant's performance under tbis Agreement. 

7.2. Representative. Designate a representative with 
authority to receive ali notices and information pertaining 10 

this Agreement, communic(lte Client's policies and decisions, 
and assist as necessary in matters pertaining to the Project and 
this Agreement. Client's representative will be subject to 
change by written notice. 

7.3. Rights of Entry. Provide access to and/or obtain 
pennission for Consultant to enter upon all property, whether 
or not owned by Client, as required to perfonll and complele 
the Services. Consultant will operate with reasonable care to 
minimize damage to the Project Sile(s). However, Client 
recognizes that Consultant's operations and the use of 
investigative equipment may unavoidably alter conditions or 
affect the environment at the existing Project Site(s). The cost 
of repairing such damage will be borne by Client and is not 
included in the fee unless othelWise staled. 

Revised Feb 2013 
Page GC-2 of6 



7.4. Relevant lnformatioll. Supply Consultant with all 
infom1ation and documents in Client's possession or 
knowledge that are relevant to Consultant's Selvices. Client 
warrants the accuracy of any infonnation supplied by it to 
Consultant, and acknowledges that Consultant is entitled to 
rely upon such infonnation without verifying ils accuracy. 
Prior to the commencement of any Services in connection with 
a specific property, Client will notify Consultant of allY knOv,TI 

potential or possible health or safety hazard existing on or near 
the Project Site, with particular reference to Hazardous 
Materials or conditions. 

7.5. Subsurface Structures. Correctly designate the location 
of all subsurface structures on plans to be furnished to 
Consultant such as pipes, tanks, cables and utilities within the 
property lines of the Project Site(s) and be responsible for any 
damage inadvertently caused by Consultant to any such 
structure or utility not so designated. Consultant is not liable to 
Client for any losses, damages or claims arising from damage 
to subterranean structures or utilities that were not correctly 
shown on plans furnished by Client to Consultant. 

7.6. Manifests. Execute al1 manifests or other documents 
evidencing ownership, possession or control over Hazardous 
Materials. 

7.7. Notification to Authorities. Provide all required 
notifications to applicabJe Governmental Agencies, regulatory 
bodies or the public related to the existence, discharge, 
release, disposal, andlor transportation of Hazardous 
Materials. 

8. CHANGED CONDITIONS 

If Consultant discovers conditions or circumstances that it had 
not contemplated at the commencement of this Agreement 
("Changed Conditions"), Consultant will notify Client in 
writing of the Changed Conditions. Client and Consultant 
agree that they will then renegotiate in good faith the tenns 
and conditions of this Agreement. If Consultant and Client 
cannot agree upon amended tenns and conditions within 30 
days after notice, Consultant may temlinate this Agreement 
and be compensated as set forth in Section 17, "Tennination." 

9. CERTIFICATIONS 

Client agrees not to require Consultant to execute any 
certification with regard to Services performed or Work tested 
amVor observed under this Agreement unless: 1) Consultant 
believes that it has perfom1ed sufficient Services to provide a 
sufficient basis to issue the certification; 2) Consultant 
believes that 111e Services perfonned or Work tested andJor 
observed meet the crilelia of the certification; and 3) 
Consultant has reviewed and approved in writing the exact 
fonn of such certification prior to execution of this 
Agreement. Any certification by Consultant is limited to an 
expression of professional opinion based upon the Services 
perfomed by Consultant, and does not constitute a wammty 
or guaranty, either expressed or implied. 

10. ALLOCATION OF RISK 

10.1. Limitation of Liability. The total cumulative liability 
of Consultant, its subconsultants and subcontractors, and all of 

GENERAL CONOITlONS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERYJCES 

if) 2004 All Rights Reserved 

their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees 
and agents (collectively "Consultant Entities") to Client 
arising from Services under this Agreement, including 
attorney's fees due under this Agreement, will not exceed the 
gross compensation received by Consultant under this 
Agreement or $50,000, whichever is Jess; provided, however, 
that such liability is further limited as described below. This 
limitation applies to all lawsuits, claims or actions that aJJege 
errors or omissions in Consultant's Services, whether alleged 
to arise in tort, contract, warranty, or other legal theory. Upon 
Client's written request, Consultant and Client may agree to 
increase the limitation to a greater amount in exchange for a 
negotiated increase in Consultant's fee, provided that tIley 
amend this Agreement in writing as provided in Section 19. 

10.2. Indenmification. 

10.2.1. lndemnijication o/Client. Subject to the terms and 
limitations of this Agreement, Consultant will indemnify and 
hold hannless Client, its shareholders, officers, directors, 
employees, and agents from and against any and all claims, 
suits, liabilities, damages, expenses (including without 
limitation reasonable attorney's fees and defense costs) and 
other losses (coJlectively "Losses") to the extent caused by 
Consultant's negligence in perfonnance of this Agreement. 
Consultant's defense obligation under this indemnity 
paragraph is limited to the reimbursement of reasonable 
defense costs to the extent of the Consultant's actual 
indemnity obligation hereunder. 

10.2.2. indemnijication of Consultani. Client will 
indemnify and hold harmless Consultant Entities from and 
against any and all Losses to the extent caused by the 
negligence of Client, its employees, agents and contractors. In 
addition, except to the extent caused by Consultant's sole 
negligence, Client expressly agrees to defend, indemnify and 
hold hannless Consultant Entities from and against any and all 
Losses arising from or related to the existence, disposal, 
release, discharge, treatment or transportation of Hazardous 
Materials, or the exposure of any person to Hazardous 
Materials, or the degradation of the environment due to the 
presence, discharge, disposal, release of or exposure to 
Hazardous Material. 

10.3. Consequential Damages. Neither Client nor 
Consultant wlll be liable to the other for any special, 
consequential, incidental or penal losses or damages including 
but nOI limited to losses, damages or claims related to the 
unavailability of property or facilities, shutdO\vns or service 
intemlptjons, loss of use, profits, revenue, or inventory, or for 
use charges, cost of capital, or claims of the other party andJor 
il5 customers. 

10.4. Continuing Agret'menl. The indemnity obligations 
and the limitations of liability established under this 
Agreement will survive the expiration or temlination of this 
Agreement. If Consultant provides Services to Client that the 
parties do not con finn through execution of an amendment to 
this Agreement, the obligations of the parties to indemnifY 
each other and the limitations on liability established under 
this Agreement apply to such Services as if the parties had 
executed an amendment. 

Revised Feb 2013 
Page (;C-3 01'6 



11. 1NSURANCE 

J i.i. Consultant's lnsurance. Consultant will obtain, if 
reasonably available, the following coverages: 

I J.JJ Statutory Workers' CompensationlEmp]oyer's 
Liability Insurance; 

J 1.1.2. Commercial General Liability Jnsurance with a 
combined single limit 0[$1,000,000; 

1 J .1.3. Automobile Liability Insurance, including 
liability for all owned, hired and non-o\>med vehicles with 
minimum limits of $1,000,000 for bodily injury per person, 
$1,000,000 property damage, and $],000,000 combined single 
limit per occurrence; and, 

] 1.1.1. Professional Liability Insurance in amounts of 
$1,000,000 per claim and annual aggregate. 

11.2. Contractor's Insurance. Client will require that all 
Contractors and subcontractors for the Project name 
Consultant as an additional insured under their General 
Liability and Automobile Liability insurance policies. If Client 
is not the Project owner, Client will require the Project owner 
to require the owner's Contractor to purchase and maintain 
General Liability, Builder's Risk, Automobile LiabiJity, 
Workers' Compensation, and Employer's Liability insurance 
with limits no less than as set forth above, and to name 
Consultant and its subcontractors and subconsultants as 
additional insureds on the General Liability insurance. 

11.3. Certificates of insurance. Upon request, Consultant 
and Client will each provide the other with certificate(s) of 
insurance evidencing the existence of the policies required 
herein. Except for Professional Liability and Workers' 
Compensation Insurance, all policies required herein shall 
contain a waiver of subrogation. 

12. OWNERSIlIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS 

12.1. Client Documents. All documents provided by Client 
will remain the property of Client. Consultant will retum all 
such documents to Client upon request, but may retain file 
copies of such documents. 

12.2. Consultanl's Documents. Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing, all documents and infonnation prepared by Consultant 
or obtained by Consultant from any third party in connection 
with the perfonnance of the Services, including, but not 
limited to, Consultant's reports, bOling logs, maps, field data, 
field notes, drawings and specifications, laboratory test data 
and other similar documellts (collectively "Documents") are 
the property of Consultant. Consultant has lhe right, in its sole 
discretion, to dispose of or retain the Documents. 

12.3. Use of Documents. All Documents prepared by 
Consultant are solely for lise by Client and will not be 
provided by either party to any other person or entity without 
Consultant's prior \\'Title)) consent. Except as ~et forth herein, 
neither Consultant nor Client will disclose, disseminate or 
other,vise provide such rep0l1s or information except as 
required for the completion of Contractor's Work or the 
monitoring of the Project by Governmental Agencies. 

12.3.1. Use by Client. Client has the right to reuse the 
Documents for purposes reasonably connected with this 

GENERAL CONDITIONS fOR ENVIRONMENT AL CONSULTING SERVICES 

© 2004 All Rights Reserved 

Project for which the Services are provided, including without 
limitation design and licensing requirements orthe Project. 

} 2.3.2. Use by Consultant. Consuhant retains the right 
of Q\vnership with respect to any patentable concepts or 
copyrightable materials arising from SeJ\lices and the right to 
use the Documents for any purpose. 

12.4. Electronic Media. Consultant may agree at Client's 
request to provide Documents and information in an electronic 
fonnat. Client recognizes that Documents or other infonnation 
recorded on or transmitted as electronic media are subject to 
undetectable alteration due to (among other causes) 
transmission, conversion, media degradation. software error, 
or human alteration. Accordingly, all Documents and 
information provided by Consultant in electronic media are for 
jnformational purposes only and not as final documentation. 
Unless otherwise defined in the Scope of Services, 
Consultant's electronic Documents and media will conform to 
Consultant's standards. Consultant will provide any requested 
electronic Documents for a 3D-day acceptance period, and 
Consultant will correct any defects reported by Client to 
Consultant during this period. Consultant makes no 
warranties, either express or implied, regarding the fitness or 
suitability of any electronic Documents or media. 

12.5. Unauthorized Reuse. No party other than Client may 
rely, and Client will not represent to any other party that it 
may rely on Documents without Consultant's express plior 
written consent and receipt of additional compensation. Client 
will not permit disclosure, mention, or communication of, or 
reference to the Documents in any offering circular, securities 
offering, loan application, real estate sales documentation, or 
similar promotional material without Consultant's express 
prior \\iTitten consent. Client waives any and all claims against 
Consultant resulting in any way from the unauthorized reuse 
or alteration of Documents by itself or anyone obtaining them 
through Client. Client will defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless Consultant from and against any claim, action or 
proceeding brought by any party claiming to rely upon 
infonnation or opinions contained Documents provided to 
such person or entity, published, disclosed or referred to 
without Consultant's prior written consent. 

13. SAMPLES AND CUTTlNGS 

13.1. Sample Retention. If Consultant provides laboratory 
testing or analytic Services, Consultant will preserve such soil, 
rock, water, or other samples as it deems necessary for the 
Project, but no longer than 45 days after issuance of any 

Documents that include the data obtained from these samples. 
Client will promptly pay and be responsible for the removal 
and lawful disposal of all contaminated samples, cuttings, 
Hazardous Materials, and other hazardous substances. 

13.2. Monitoring Wel/s. Client will take custody of all 
monitOling wells and probes installed during an investigation 
by Consultant, and will take any and all necessary steps for the 
proper maintenance, rcpair or closure of such wells or probes 
at Client's expense. 

14. RELATlONSHlP OF THE PARnES 

Consultant will perioml Services under this Agreement as all 
independent contractor. 

Revised Feb 2013 
Pnge GC-4 of 6 



15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Neither party may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without the prior written consent of the other party, except for 
an assigrunent of proceeds for financing purposes. Consultant 
may subcontract for the services of others without obtaining 
Client's consent jf Consultant deems it necessary or desirabJe 
for other:; to perform certain Services. 

16. SUSPENSION AND DELA YS 

J6.1. Procedures. CJient may, at any time, by 10 days 
\"ritten notice suspend perfonnance of all or any part of the 
Services by Consultant. Consultant may terminate this 
Agreement if Client suspends Consultant's work for more than 
60 days and Client will pay Consultant as set forth under 
Section 17, "Tennination." If Client suspends Consultant's 
Services, or jf Client or others deJay Consultant's Services, 
Client and Consultant agree to equitably adjust: 0) the time 
for completion of the Services; and (2) Consultant's 
compensation in accordance with Consultant's then current 
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES for the additional Jabor, equipment, 
and other charges associated with maintaining its workforce 
for Client's benefit during the delay or suspension, or charges 
incun·ed by Consultant for demobilization aod subsequent 
rcmobilization. 

16.2. Liability. Consultant is not liable to Client for any 
failure to perfonn or delay in perfonnance due to 
circumstances beyond Consultant's control, including, but not 
limited \0, pollution, contamination or release of hazardous 
substances, strikes, lockouts, riots, wars, fires, flood, 
explosion, "acts of God," adverse weather conditions, acts of 
government, labor disputes, delays in transportation or 
inabiJity to obtain material and equipment in the open market. 

17. TERMINATION 

17.1. Termination for Convenience. Consultant and Client 
may temlinate this Agreement for convenience upon 30 days 
written nolice delivered or mailed to the other party. 

17.2. Termination for Cause. In the event of material 
breach of this Agreement, the party not breaching the 
Agreement may tenninate it upon 10 days vYTitten notice 
delivered or mailed to the other party. The termination notice 
must state the basis for the tennination. The Agreement may 
not be tenninated for cause jf the breaching party clIres the 
breach within the IO-day period. 

17.3. PaJ'ment on Termination. Following termination 
other than for a material breach of this Agreement by 
Consultant, Client will pay Consultant for the Services 
perfonned prior to the termination notice date, and for any 
necessary Services and expenses incurred in connection with 
the termination of the Project, including but not limited to, the 
costs of completing analysis, records and reports necessary to 
document job status. at the time of termination and costs 
associated with termination of subcontractor contracts 1Il 

accordance \-vith Consultant's thcn current SCHEDULE Of 

CHARGES. 

GENERAL CO)\OIT10NS fOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES 
© 2004 All Rights Reserved 

18.DISP1JTES 

lS.1. Mediation. All disputes betwecn Consultant and 
Client are subject to mediation. Either party may demand 
mediation by serving a written notice stating the essential 
nature of the dispute, the amount of time or money claimed, 
and requiring that the matter be mediated within 45 days of 
service of notice. 

IS.2. Precondition to Other Action. No action or suit may 
be commenced unless the mediation did not occur within 45 
days after service of notice; or mediation occurred but does 
not resolve the dispute; 0, a statute of limitation would elapse 
if suit was not filed prior to 45 days after service of notice. 

IS.3. Choice of Law; Venue. This Agreement will be 
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 
state in which the Project is located. Unless the parties agree 
otherwise, any mediation or other legal proceeding will occur 
in the state in which the Project is located. 

1S.4. Statutes of Limitations. Any applicable statute of 
limitations will be deemed to commence running on the earlier 
of the date of substantial completion of Consultant's Services 
under this Agreement or the date on which claimant knew, or 
should have known, of facts giving rise to its claims. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS 

19.1. Integration and Severability. 111is Agreement reflects 
the entire agreement of the parties w:ith respect to its terms and 
supersedes all prior agreements, whether \vritten or oral. If any 
portion of this Agreement is found to be void or voidable, such 
portion will be deemed stricken and the Agreement reformed 
to as closely approximate the stricken portions as the law 
allows. 

19.2. Modification of This Agreement. This Agreement 
may not be modified or altered, except by a written agreement 
signed by authorized representatives of both parties and 
referring specifically to this Agreement. 

19.3. Notices. Any and all notices, requests, instructions, or 
other communications given by either party to the other must 
be in writing and either hand delivered to the recipient or 
delivered by first-class mail (postage prepaid) or express mail 
(billed to sender) at the addresses given in this Agreement. 

19.4. Headings. The headings used in this Agreement are 
for convenience only and are not a part of this Agreement. 

19.5. Waiver. The waiver of any term, condition or breach 
of ihis Agreement will not operate as a subsequent waiver of 
the same term, condition, or breach. 

End of General Conditiolls 

Revised Feb 2013 
Page GC-5 of6 



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD 
CENTRAL VALLEY REGION 

ORDER R5-2012-0062 

MODIFYING WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS ORDER 5-01-163 
FOR 

CITY OF LOS BANOS 
FOR 

CLOSURE OF SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE 
MERCED COUNTY 

The Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (hereafter Central Valley 
Water Board) finds that: 

1. The City of Los Banos (hereafter Discharger) owns and maintains the Solid 
Waste Disposal Site (Site) located about 2.5 miles north of State Highway 
152 and east of State Highway 165 in the City of Los Banos. The Site operated 
as a burn dump from about 1955 to about 1973, and accepted inert wastes until 
1994. 

2. The 50-acre site is currently designated for land use as a park. The waste 
management unit occupies approximately 11.6 acres along the northern and 
western edge of the site. The southerly portions of the site are occupied by two 
stormwater detention basins, and the westerly portions are occupied by softball 
fields, a parking lot, and other recreational facilities. 

3. Waste Discharge Requirements Order 5-01-163, adopted by the Central Valley 
Water Board on 14 June 2001, prescribes requirements for closure and post
closure maintenance of the landfill. 

4. Order 5-01-163 requires the Discharger to close the landfill with a final cover 
system consisting, at a minimum, of: a two-foot thick foundation layer which may 
contain waste materials, overlain by a minimum one-foot thick clay layer with a 
hydraulic conductivity of 1 x 10-6 centimeters per second or less and compacted 
to a minimum relative compaction of 90%, and finally by a one-foot thick 
vegetative soil layer (commonly referred to as a Title 27 prescriptive cover). 

5. The construction of a Title 27 prescriptive cover would require the Discharger to 
conduct post-closure maintenance, groundwater monitoring, and impose 
restrictions on post-closure land use over the landfilled wastes. 

6. To alleviate these post-closure maintenance requirements and to provide full 
land use as a city park, the Discharger now proposes to clean-close the landfill 
as an alternative to the construction of a Title 27 prescriptive final cover system. 



Order No. R5-2012- 0062 
Modifying WDRs Order No. 5-01-163 
City of Los Banos 
Solid Waste Disposal Site 
Merced County 

-2-

7. Approximately 104,000 cubic yards of waste material and contaminated soil will 
be removed and discharged at the Billy Wright Landfill, west of Los Banos in 
Merced County. The proposed clean-closure of the landfill would be in 
accordance with Title 27 CCR sections 20950(a)(2)(B) and 21090(f). 

8. This order modifies Order 5-01-163 by adding additional construction 
specifications for the clean-closure of the landfill. Order 5-01-163 remains intact 
and applicable in all other aspects. 

CEQA 

9. The landfill was opened and operating in 1955 and is categorized as an "existing 
facility," and is therefore exempt from the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), (Pub Resources Code, section 21000, et 
seq.) in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 14, section 15301. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

10. The Central Valley Water Board notified the Discharger and interested agencies 
and persons of its intent to prescribe waste discharge requirements for the clean 
closure of the Solid Waste Disposal Site, and has provided them with an 
opportunity for a public hearing and an opportunity to submit their written views 
and recommendations. 

11. The Central Valley Water Board, in a public meeting, heard and considered all 
comments pertaining to the modification of Waste Discharge Requirements 
Order No. 5-01-163. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, pursuant to California Water Code sections 13263 and 
13267, that the requirements of Order 5-01-163 are modified as follows: 

Construction Specifications C.13 through C.16 are added to read as: 

C. CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

Landfill Clean-Closure Specifications 

13. At least 120 days prior to initiating clean-closure activities as an alternative to 
the construction of a final cover system, the Discharger shall submit for 



Order No. R5-2012- 0062 
Modifying WDRs Order No. 5-01-163 
City of Los Banos 
Solid Waste Disposal Site 
Merced County 

-3-

Executive Officer review and approval, a clean-closure plan pursuant to Title 
27, section 21 090(f). The clean-closure plan shall include specifications for the 
removal of all wastes, waste materials, and contaminated soils, and 
confirmation testing that includes a Sample Collection and Analysis Plan 
meeting the requirements of Title 27, section 21 090(f). 

14. By 31 October 2017, all wastes and waste materials at the Solid Waste 
Disposal Site shall be removed and discharged to the composite lined unit at 
the Billy Wright Landfill, or another landfill approved for the discharge of the 
wastes. 

15. By 31 January 2018, the final documentation demonstrating clean-closure has 
been completed in accordance with Title 27, section 21090(f) shall be 
submitted to the Executive Officer for review and approval. The report shall be 
certified by an appropriately registered civil engineer or a professional 
geologist. It shall contain sufficient information and test results to verify that all 
waste and waste constituents have been removed and that the landfill has 
been clean closed pursuant to Title 27. 

16. A third party independent of both the Discharger and the construction 
contractor shall perform the sample collection and analyses during clean 
closure. The sample collection and analyses program shall be supervised by 
an appropriately registered civil engineer or professional geologist. 

Any person aggrieved by this action of the Central Valley Water Board may petition the 
State Water Board to review the action in accordance with ewc section 13320 and 
California Code of Regulations, title 23, sections 2050 and following. The State Water 
Board must receive the petition by 5:00 p.m., 30 days after the date of this Order, 
except that if the thirtieth day following the date of this Order falls on a Saturday, 
Sunday, or State holiday (including mandatory furlough days), the petition must be 
received by the State Water Board by 5:00 p.m., on the next business day. Copies of 
the law and regulations applicable to the filing petitions may be found on the Internet at: 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/public notices/petitions/water quality 

or will be provided upon request. 



Order No. R5-2012- 0062 
Modifying WDRs Order No. 5-01-163 
City of Los Banos 
Solid Waste Disposal Site 
Merced County 

-4-

I, PAMELA C. CREEDON, Executive Officer, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
full, true, and correct copy of an Order adopted by the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Central Valley Region, on 8 June 2012. 

PAMELA C. CREEDON, Executive Officer 



City of Los Banos 
Solid Waste 
2014-2015 

Account Number Description 
2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 

Actual Actual Projected Proeosed 
510-490-100-101 Salaries 211,522 211,522 215,222 227,173 
510-490-100-102 Part Time 31,572 37,693 46,000 46,000 
510-490-100-103 Overtime 1,318 1,239 1,500 1,500 
510-490-100-120 Benefits 163,889 168,227 189,500 201,510 

Personnel Services 408,301 418,681 452,222 476,183 

510-490-100-201 Grounds Maintenance 998 1,953 1,500 1,500 
510-490-100-202 Fleet Repair & Maintenance 14,335 16,016 19,000 25,000 
510-490-100-203 Equipment Repair & Maint 991 956 2,000 2,000 
510-490-100-204 Fleet Services 6,687 6,763 7,000 16,412 
510-490-100-205 Facility Maintenance 1,894 1,986 2,500 4,500 
510-490-100-206 Property Lease 56,280 56,280 56,280 56,280 
510-490-100-208 Rental - Vehicles & Equip 10,370 9,506 6,800 23,000 
510-490-100-209 Alley MaintenancelRepair 1,996 2,842 3,000 3,000 
510-490-100-231 Professional Services 5,737 536 300 6,000 
510-490-100-236 Medical Services 579 421 800 1,000 
510-490-100-237 Recruitment 208 400 1,000 
510-490-100-238 Technical Services 2,820,067 3,028,320 3,405,000 3,650,000 
510-490-100-240 I.T. Services 2,720 3,967 4,991 6,932 
510-490-100-250 Insurance 2,136 4,960 7,604 9,027 
510-490-100-251 Memberships & Dues 50 500 
510-490-100-252 Communications 2,208 2,282 1,600 2,000 
510-490-100-253 Advertising 634 500 
510-490-100-255 Solid Waste Dumping Fees 742,394 752,872 740,000 750,000 
510-490-100-256 Permits, Fees & Charges 400 680 600 800 
510-490-100-257 Travel & Training 412 
510-490-100-259 Community Promotion 500 
510-490-100-260 Office Supplies 1,068 1,427 2,000 2,400 
510-490-100-262 Uniform Expenses 2,169 2,899 3,000 3,000 
510-490-100-264 Electricity & Gas 1,156 1,272 1,450 1,480 
510-490-100-265 Gasoline & Oil 12,543 28,276 36,000 33,000 
510-490-100-267 General Materials & Supplies 1,998 1,965 5,000 5,000 
510-490-100-273 Special Departmental Exp. 1,019 1,431 2,000 2,000 

Supplies & Services 3,690,378 3,928,230 4,308,875 4,606,831 

510-490-100-710 Land Purchase 10,000 
510-490-100-720 Building & Structures 13,396 

*510-490-100-734 Landfill Closure 59,034 52,053 50,000 135,000 
510-490-100-735 Master Plan 613 



LOS Banos 
,.'-\ t r 

Agenda Staff Report 

TO: Mayor and City Council Members . 

Mark Fachin, PE, Public Works Director/City Engineer (rr;0/J,~ Ctcl<')cIJ'iV' 
August 6, 2014 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: On-Call Engineering Services 

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent Agenda 

Recommendation: 
That the City Council adopt the Resolution entering into Agreements for On-Call Civil 
Engineering Services with Gouveia Engineering, O'Dell Engineering, and Provost & 
Pritchard Consulting Group for the design and/or construction of Public Works projects, 
and authorize the City Manager to execute the Professional Services Agreements. The 
administration of the Professional Services Requests are to be performed by the Public 
Works Director/City Engineer. 

Background: 
The City of Los Banos Public Works Department is charged with engineering services for 
all Public Works projects. To facilitate the engineering tasks in the Public Works 
Department, staff solicited proposals for services of qualified civil engineering firms to 
assist in the design, development, and/or construction of specialized projects. A Request 
for Proposal was issued on May 23, 2014. Proposals were received at the Public Works 
office until June 24, 2014 at 2:00 PM. Public Works received thirteen (13) proposals. The 
firms that responded to the City of Los Banos Request for Proposal were: 

Tri-City Engineering 
NVS 
Hatch Mott MacDonald 
Schaaf & Wheeler 
BKF 

FPP (Quad Knopf) 
Mid Valley Engineering 
Gouveia Engineering 
Northstar Engineering 

Omni Means 
O'Dell Engineering 
Provost & Pritchard 
Creegan & d'Angelo 

Each proposal was reviewed by Public Works staff using the prescribed selection 
process. The results produced three firms staff is confident will provide services meeting 
the expectations necessary for quality project outcomes. 



Discussion: 
Staff is recommending that the services of Gouveia Engineering, O'Dell Engineering, and 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group be retained for the preparation of design, plans, 
specifications, cost estimates, and contract documents for capital, as well as, federally 
funded projects that are categorized as street improvements, storm drain improvements, 
sewer improvements, and water improvements. Projects include street widening, street 
rehabilitation, storm drain lines, storm drain pump stations, sewer lines, sewer lift 
stations, water well/booster pump stations, and water main distribution or transmission 
improvements/replacement of pipelines. City Engineering technical assistance is also an 
element of this scope of work. 

All three firms have the ability to provide in-house services or capacity to sublet survey 
projects, traffic engineering, geotechnical engineering, landscape design and structural 
design. Each of the three has a history of producing plans that are successfully 
implemented. 

Staff is recommending that the Professional Services Agreements become effective 
upon execution and end June 30, 2017, subject to the City's discretion. The City may 
elect to extend the Agreements for two (2) additional one-year terms, on the same terms 
and conditions, upon providing written notice to each of the engineering firms thirty (30) 
days prior to the expiration of the Agreements. 

Upon execution of the Agreements, City may solicit individual Service Request proposals 
from one or all contracted engineering firms based upon the scope of services, work 
schedule, and fee schedule submitted from each firm. Individual projects will be 
awarded by Service Requests, concurrent with the term of the Agreements. Once the 
Service Request is fully executed, a Notice to Proceed will be issued with the specified 
work. The Service Requests will be authorized and administered by the Public Works 
Director/City Engineer. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Each of the proposed engineering firms has submitted a schedule of fees for their 
services. Service Requests will be generated for specific projects that are identified in 
the annual adopted City budget corresponding to the adopted City budget funding 
sources. 

Reviewed by: 

eve Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 
Resolution 
Copy of proposed Professional Services Agreements 
Copy of proposed Service Request Form 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCil OF THE 
CITY OF lOS BANOS AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENTS AND THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER TO 
EXECUTE INDIVIDUAL PROJECT SERVICE 
REQUESTS WITH GOUVEIA ENGINEERING, 
O'DEll ENGINEERING, AND PROVOST & 
PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP FOR ON
CAll ENGINEERING SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos Public Works Department is charged with 
managing engineering services for all Public Works projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Engineering Division of Public Works is not structured to meet the 
design needs of all Public Works projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department solicited proposals from qualified 
engineering firms to provide On-Call Engineering Services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los 
Banos does hereby authorize the City Manager to execute Professional Services 
Agreements and authorize the Public Works Director/City Engineer to execute individual 
project Service Requests with Gouveia Engineering, O'Dell Engineering, and Provost & 
Pritchard Consulting Group for On-Call Engineering Services. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Los Banos held on the 6th day of August 2014, by Council Member __ _ 
who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member __ _ 
and the Resolution adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villa Ita, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

AND 
GOUVEIA ENGINEERING 

FOR 
ON-CALL CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this_day of" __ -,-___ , 2014, by 
and between the City of Los Banos, California, a municipal corporation, ("City,") and 
Gouveia Engineering, a corporation, ("Consultant"). 

RECITALS 

A. City is a municipal corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws 
of the State of California with the power to carryon its business as it is now 
being conducted under the statutes of the State of California. 

B. City desires to engage Consultant as an independent contractor to provide 
professional engineering services for specific tasks/projects on short notice as 
needed to support the City's Public Works Department/City Engineer. 

C. Consultant possesses the skill, experience, ability, background, certification and 
knowledge to provide the services described in this Agreement. 

D. City desires to retain Consultant to render professional services under the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the undersigned parties 
as follows: 

I. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the above written date 
and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2017, unless terminated earlier as set forth herein. The 
City may elect to extend this Agreement for two (2) additional one-year terms, on the same 
terms and conditions, upon written notice to the Consultant thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement. 

2. Scope of Services, Services to be performed by Consultant may include the 
following on an on-call basis upon reasonable notice to Consultant: 

a. Provide consulting and professional services upon request of the City including project 
concept, design, engineering, land surveying, and drafting services. 

b. Provide professional services during the bid process, including preparation of cost 

I 



estimates and specifications, project construction, and project completion. 

c. Provide field surveys as requested. 

d. Review Tentative Subdivision Maps, Parcel Maps, Subdivision Maps and Lot Line 
Adjustments for compliance with Subdivision Map Act and the Los Banos Municipal Code. 

e. Review Subdivision Improvement Plans for compliance with the City of Los Banos 
Improvement Standards. 

f. Review developers' site plans and drainage plans. 

g. Update and correct City base maps for zoning, planning, sewer and storm drainage and 
water systems. 

h. Provide maps and mapping services as requested. 

i. Preparation and review of legal descriptions for easements, Rights-of-Way, Lot Line 
Adjustments, etc. 

J. Update and maintain City Improvement Standards and Specifications. 

k. Review the City's requested project and/or task to be accomplished and provide 
preliminary consultation, research and evaluation of same. 

\. Assist the City's Engineering Division with presentations and/or recommendations to 
City staff administration, or City Council. 

m. Third party review consultation related to documents prepared by the City's Engineering 
Division or other consultants retained by the City. 

n. Review and provide comments on environmental documents for proposed projects 
submitted to the City in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

o. Provide other engineering and design services as requested. 

2.1 Consultant shall provide such services on an as needed basis when given written 
instruction to do so by the Public Works Director, or his designee. Consultant shall diligently 
perform all the services described in the Scope of Services. 

2.2 All professional services shall be performed by Consultant or under Consultant's 
supervision. All professional services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be provided by personnel experienced in their respective fields and in a manner consistent 
with the standards of care, diligence and skill ordinarily exercised by professional Consultants 
in accordance with sound professional practices. 

2.3 Consultant acknowledges that City may enter into agreements with other 
consultants for services similar to the services that are subject to this Agreement or may have its 
own employees perform services similar to those services contemplated by this Agreement. 

3. Time of Performance. Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, 

2 



Consultant shall perfonn with due diligence the services requested by the city and agreed on by 
the Consultant. Time is of the essence in the perfonnance of services under this Agreement and 
the services shall be perfonned to completion in a diligent and timely manner. The failure by 
Consultant to perfonn the services in a diligent and timely manner may result in tennination of 
this Agreement by City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Consultant shall not be responsible for 
delays due to causes beyond Consultant's reasonable control. However, in the case of any such 
delay in the services to be provided for the Project, each party hereby agrees to provide notice to 
the other party so that all delays can be addressed. 

3.1 For all time periods not specifically set forth herein, Consultant shall respond in 
the most expedient and appropriate manner under the circumstances, by either telephone, 
electronic mail, fax, hand-delivery, or mail. 

4. Compensation. City shall pay Consultant for the services on a time and expense 
not-to-exceed basis on a per project basis pursuant to a written proposal for such project 
accepted in writing by the Public Works Director, or his designee and in accordance with the 
Project Budget set forth in each project assigned. Consultant's compensation for all work 
perfonned in accordance with this Agreement, including all reimbursable items and sub 
consultant fees, shall not exceed $150,000.00 per year during the tenn of this Agreement. 
Consultant shall be paid for services in accordance with Consultant's Schedule of Hourly Rates 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. The hourly rates in Exhibit A shall be in effect during the tenn of 
this Agreement. 

4.1 Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to City describing the work perfonned 
the preceding month. Consultant's bills shall include the name of the person who perfonned 
the work, a brief description of the services perfonned and/or the specific task in the 
Scope of Services to which it relates, the date the services were perfonned, the number of 
hours spent on all work billed on an hourly basis, and a description of any reimbursable 
expenditures. City shall pay Consultant no later than thirty (30) days after approval of the 
monthly invoice by City staff. 

4.2 City shall reimburse Consultant only for those costs or expenses specifically 
approved in this Agreement, or specifically approved in advance by City. Unless 
otherwise approved, such costs shall be limited and in accordance with Schedule of charges set 
forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

4.3 Consultant shall not receive any compensation for Extra Work without the prior 
written authorization of City. As used herein, "Extra Work" means any work that is 
determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which is not 
included within the Scope of Services and which the parties did not reasonably anticipate 
would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement. Compensation for any authorized Extra 
Work shall be billed in accordance with the Billing Rates as set forth in Exhibit A and on 
the tenns set forth in this Article 4. 

5. Administration. The Public Works Director shall administer this Agreement 
on behalf of the City. The Public Works Director or hislher authorized representative shall 
represent City in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered pursuant to this 

3 



Agreement. 

6. [THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY OMITTED] 

7. Indemnification. To the fullest extent pennitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend and hold hannless City, its City Council, boards and commissions, officers, 
agents and employees (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all 
claims (including, claims for bodily injury, death or damage to property), demands, obligations, 
damages, actions, causes of action, suits, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, costs and 
expenses (including, reasonable attorney's fees, disbursements and court costs) of every kind 
and nature that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the Consultant, its principals, officers, agents, employees, vendors, suppliers, 
consultants, subcontractors, anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them or for whose 
acts they may be liable or any or all of them in perfonnance, or non perfonnance, of services 
under this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shaH be construed to require Consultant 
to indemnify the Indemnified Parties from any Claim arising from the active negligence or 
willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties. Nothing in this indemnity shall be construed as 
authorizing any award of attorney's fees in any action on or to enforce the tenns of this 
Agreement. This indemnity shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of whether any 
insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the amount 
of indemnification to be provided by the Consultant. 

8. Insurance. Without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to 
commencement of work, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense 
during the tenn of this Agreement, a policy or policies of liability insurance of the type and 
amounts described below and in a fonn satisfactory to City. 

A. Certificates of Insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance 
with original endorsements to City as evidence of the insurance coverage required herein. 
Insurance certificates must be approved by the City Attorney prior to commencement of 
perfonnance or issuance of any pennit. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file 
with City at all times during the tenn of this Agreement. 

B. Signature. A person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf shall 
sign certification of all required policies. 

C. Acceptable Insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance 
company currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of 
insurance in the State of California, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A (or higher) 
and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of 
Best's Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved by the City Attorney. 

D. Coverage Requirements. 

i. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Consultant shall maintain Workers' 
Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for his or her employees in 

4 



accordance with the laws of the State of California. In addition, Consultant shall require each 
subcontractor to similarly maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's 
employees. Any notice of cancellation or non-renewal of all Workers' Compensation policies 
must be received by City at least thirty (30) calendar days (10 calendar days written notice of 
non-payment of premium) prior to such change. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of 
subrogation against City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
work performed by Consultant for City. 

ii. General Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain commercial general 
liability insurance in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including without limitation, 
contractual liability. If commercial general liability insurance or other form with a general 
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement, or the general aggregate limit shall be at least twice the 
required occurrence limit. 

111. Automobile Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance 
covering bodily injury and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or 
in connection with work to be performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any 
owned, hired, non-owned or rented vehicles, in an amount not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence. 

iv. Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance. Consultant shall maintain 
professional errors and omissions insurance, which covers the services to be performed in 
connection with this Agreement in the minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
per claim and in the annual aggregate. 

E. Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

1. The City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 
work performed by or on behalf of the Consultant. 

ii. This policy shall be considered primary insurance as respects to City, its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as respects to all claims, 
losses, or liability arising directly or indirectly from the Consultant's operations or services 
provided to City. Any insurance maintained by City, including any self-insured retention 
City may have, shall be considered excess insurance only and not contributory with the 
insurance provided hereunder. 

111. This insurance shall act for each insured and additional insured as though a 
separate policy had been written for each, except with respect to the limits of liability of 
the insuring company. 

iv. The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City, its elected or appointed 
officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. 

5 



v. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 
coverage provided to City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents 
or volunteers. 

v!. The insurance provided by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, or 
reduced in coverage or in limits, by either party except after thirty (30) calendar days 
(10 calendar days written notice of non-payment of premium) written notice has been 
received by City. 

8.1 Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting in any way, the 
indemnification provision contained in this Agreement, or the extent to which Consultant may 
be held responsible for payments of damages to persons or property. 

8.2 All subconsultants shall be included as additional insureds under the Consultant's 
policies, or the Consultant shall be responsible for causing sub consultants to purchase the 
appropriate insurance in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including adding the 
City as an Additional Insured to the sub consultant' s policies. 

9. Nondiscrimination. In the performing of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or sexual orientation race, religion, color, 
national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex or age. 

10. Independent Contractor. It is understood that City retains Consultant on an 
independent contractor basis and Consultant is not an agent or employee of City. The 
manner and means of conducting the work are under the control of Consultant, except to the 
extent they are limited by statute, rule or regulation and the expressed terms of this 
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute approval for 
Consultant or any of Consultant's employees or agents, to be the agents or employees of 
City. Consultant shall have the responsibility for and control over the means of performing the 
work, provided that Consultant is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Anything in 
this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct Consultant as to the details 
of the performance or to exercise a measure of control over Consultant shall mean only that 
Consultant shall follow the desires of City with respect to the results of the services. 

10.1 The Consultant shall at all times remain an independent Contractor with respect to 
the services to be performed under this Agreement and shall be responsible for the payment of 
Federal and State Employer Withholding Taxes, Unemployment Insurance Taxes, FICA Taxes, 
Retirement, Life and/or Medical Insurance, and Worker's Compensation Insurance for the 
employees of the Consultant or any other person performing services under this Agreement. 
Consultant and its employees are not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to City's 
employees, including disability or unemployment insurance, workers' compensation, medical 
insurance, sick leave, or any other employment benefit. Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold 
City harmless from any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties, interest, or damages suffered by City 
as a result of any claim by any person or entity contrary to the provisions of this Section 10. 

6 



11. Ownership of Documents. All documents, infonnation and materials of any and 
every type furnished or prepared by the Consultant or any of its subcontractors pursuant to and 
in the course of perfonnance of this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive 
property of the City. Such documents, infonnation and materials shall include but not be 
limited to all findings, reports, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, documents, 
infonnation and data including, but not limited to, electronic media, computer tapes or 
discs, files, and tapes furnished or prepared or accumulated by the Consultant in perfonning 
work under this Agreement, whether completed or in process. City shall have the sole right to 
use such documents, materials and infonnation in its discretion without further 
compensation to Consultant or any other party. Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, 
provide such documents, materials and infonnation to City upon prior written request. 

11.1 All Documents shall be considered works made for hire and all Documents and 
any and all intellectual property rights arising from their creation, including, but not limited 
to, all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and remain the property of the City 
without restriction or limitation upon their use, duplication or dissemination by the City. 
Consultant shall not obtain or attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any Documents. 

12. Confidentiality. All City infonnation disclosed to Consultant during the course of 
perfonnance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be 
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by City, excepting that infonnation 
which is public record and subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act, or otherwise 
required by law. All documents, including drafts, notes and communications that result from the 
services in this Agreement, shall be kept confidential unless City authorizes in writing the release 
of infonnation, excepting that infonnation which is public record and subject to disclosure 
pursuant to the Public Records Act, or otherwise required by law. 

13. Access to Records. Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents, 
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work perfonned for City under this 
Agreement on file for at least three (3) years following the date of final payment to 
Consultant by City. Any duly authorized representative(s) of City shall have access to such 
records for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during 
Consultant's usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper facilities to 
City's representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable 
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which 
shall be considered to be an additional service to the City, subject to the provisions of Section 
4 hereinabove. 

14. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant or its employees may be subject to the 
provisions of the California Political Refonn Act of 1974 (the "Act"), which (1) requires 
such persons to disclose any financial interest that may foreseeably be materially affected by 
the work perfonned under this Agreement, and (2) prohibits such persons from making, or 
participating in making, decisions that will foreseeably financially affect such interest. 

If subject to the Act, Consultant shall confonn to all requirements of the Act. Failure 
to do so constitutes a material breach and is grounds for immediate tennination of this 
Agreement by City. Consultant shall indemnifY and hold harmless City for any and all claims 

7 



for damages resulting from Consultant's violation of this Section. 

Consultant represents that neither Consultant, nor any of its employees, agents or 
subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be performed under 
this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this Agreement, acquire any 
interest, which would conflict in any manner with the performances of services hereunder. 

15. Assignment. This is a personal service contract, and the duties set forth herein 
shall not be delegated or assigned to any person or entity without the prior written consent of 
City. 

15.1 Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the work required by this 
Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of City. 
Consultant shall be fully responsible to City for all acts and omissions of the subconsultant. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between City and 
subconsultant nor shall it create any obligation on the part of City to payor to see to the 
payment of any monies due to any such subconsultant other than as otherwise required by law. 

16. Compliance with Laws. Rules. Regulations. Consultant shall perform the 
services required by this Agreement in compliance with all applicable Federal and 
California employment laws including, but not limited to, those laws related to minimum hours 
and wages; occupational health and safety; fair employment and employment practices; 
workers' compensation insurance and safety in employment; and all other Federal, State and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to the services required under this Agreement. 
Consultant shall indemnifY and hold harmless City from and against all claims, demands, 
payments, suits, actions, proceedings, and judgments of every nature and description including 
attorneys' fees and costs, presented, brought, or recovered against City for, or on account of 
any liability under any of the above-mentioned laws, which may be incurred by reason of 
Consultant's performance under this Agreement. 

16.1 Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code section 1720, et 
seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8, section 16000, et 
seq., ("Prevailing Wage Laws"), which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the 
performance of other requirements on "public works" and "maintenance" projects. If the 
Services are subject to the Prevailing Wage Laws, Consultant agrees to fully comply with 
such Prevailing Wage Laws. 

17. Integration; Amendment. This Agreement represents the entire understanding of 
City and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written understanding 
shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered in it. This Agreement may not 
be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by both parties. 

18. Seyerability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be in conflict with 
applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void insofar as it is in conflict with said 
laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to be in full force and effect. 

19. WaiverIYalidity. Consultant agrees that waiver by City of anyone or more of 
the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver of any 

8 



other condition of performance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the City of the 
performance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
term or condition of this Agreement. 

20. Jurisdiction. City and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement 
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other arising 
out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the County of 
Merced. 

21. Notice. Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal 
Service, addressed to the parties as follows: 

To City: 
Mark Fachin, P.E. 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
411 Madison Avenue 
Los Banos, California 93635 

To Consultant: 
Mario B. Gouveia, P.E. 
President 
GOUVEIA ENGINEERING, INC. 
456 Sixth Street 
Gustine, California 95322 

22. Termination. City may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement at any 
time and for any reason whatsoever by giving written notice of such termination to Consultant. 
In the event of such termination, Consultant shall immediately stop rendering services under 
this Agreement unless directed otherwise by the City. In the event of such termination, 
Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered and work performed for 
City to the date of such termination. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE] 

9 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set forth below. 

Date: 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Lucille L. Mallonee 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

William A. Vaughn 
City Attorney 

GOUVEIA ENGINEERING, INC., a 
corporation 

by: Mario B. Gouveia, P.E. 
President 

CITY OF LOS BANOS, a California 
municipal corporation 

by: Steve Carrigan 
City Manager 

10 



Exhibit A 
GOUVEIA ENGINEERING 

Charge Rate Schedule 



GOUVEIA ENGINEERING, INC. 
456 Sixth Street 

Gustine, CA 95322 

209-854-3300 

2014 CHARGE RATE SCHEDULE 

Title 

Principal Engineer 

Senior Engineer 

Associate Engineer 

Engineering Designer 

Engineering Technician 

Professional Land Surveyor 

Survey Technician 

Survey Crew - One Person 

Survey Crew - Two Persons 

Project Manager 

CAD Technician 

Clerical 

Inspector 

Inspector / Survey Crews 
(Under Prevailing Wage Rates set by the State Department of 
Industrial Relations) 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Travel Mileage 

Reimbursable Expenses 

General Project Expenses 
Computers, reproduction, mail and telephone 

Hourly Rate 

$135.00 

$120.00 

$100.00 

$90.00 

$70.00 

$100.00 

$60.00 

$110.00 

$170.00 

$90.00 

$70.00 

$50.00 

$60.00 

Quotation 

$ .55 per mile 

Cost plus 10% 

5% of Labor 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

AND 
O'DELL ENGINEERING 

FOR 
ON-CALL CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this_day of" __ --,-___ , 2014, by 
and between the City of Los Banos, California, a municipal corporation, ("City,") and 
O'Dell Engineering, a corporation, ("Consultant"). 

RECITALS 

A. City is a municipal corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws 
of the State of California with the power to carry on its business as it is now 
being conducted under the statutes of the State of California. 

B. City desires to engage Consultant as an independent contractor to provide 
professional engineering services for specific tasks/projects on short notice as 
needed to support the City's Public Works Department/City Engineer. 

C. Consultant possesses the skill, experience, ability, background, certification and 
knowledge to provide the services described in this Agreement. 

D. City desires to retain Consultant to render professional services under the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the undersigned parties 
as follows: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the above written date 
and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2017, unless terminated earlier as set forth herein. The 
City may elect to extend this Agreement for two (2) additional one-year terms, on the same 
terms and conditions, upon written notice to the Consultant thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement. 

2. Scope of Services. Services to be performed by Consultant may include the 
following on an on-call basis upon reasonable notice to Consultant: 

a. Provide consulting and professional services upon request of the City including project 
concept, design, engineering, land surveying, and drafting services. 

b. Provide professional services during the bid process, including preparation of cost 



estimates and specifications, project construction, and project completion. 

c. Provide field surveys as requested. 

d. Review Tentative Subdivision Maps, Parcel Maps, Subdivision Maps and Lot Line 
Adjustments for compliance with Subdivision Map Act and the Los Banos Municipal Code. 

e. Review Subdivision Improvement Plans for compliance with the City of Los Banos 
Improvement Standards. 

f. Review developers' site plans and drainage plans. 

g. Update and correct City base maps for zoning, planning, sewer and storm drainage and 
water systems. 

h. Provide maps and mapping services as requested. 

i. Preparation and review of legal descriptions for easements, Rights-of-Way, Lot Line 
Adjustments, etc. 

J. Update and maintain City Improvement Standards and Specifications. 

k. Review the City's requested project and/or task to be accomplished and provide 
preliminary consultation, research and evaluation of same. 

I. Assist the City's Engineering Division with presentations and/or recommendations to 
City staff administration, or City Council. 

m. Third party review consultation related to documents prepared by the City's Engineering 
Division or other consultants retained by the City. 

n. Review and provide comments on environmental documents for proposed projects 
submitted to the City in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

o. Provide other engineering and design services as requested. 

2.1 Consultant shall provide such services on an as needed basis when given written 
instruction to do so by the Public Works Director, or his designee. Consultant shall diligently 
perform all the services described in the Scope of Services. 

2.2 All professional services shall be performed by Consultant or under Consultant's 
supervision. All professional services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be provided by personnel experienced in their respective fields and in a manner consistent 
with the standards of care, diligence and skill ordinarily exercised by professional Consultants 
in accordance with sound professional practices. 

2.3 Consultant acknowledges that City may enter into agreements with other 
consultants for services similar to the services that are subject to this Agreement or may have its 
own employees perform services similar to those services contemplated by this Agreement. 

3. Time of Performance. Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, 

2 



Consultant shall perfonn with due diligence the services requested by the city and agreed on by 
the Consultant. Time is of the essence in the perfonnance of services under this Agreement and 
the services shall be perfonned to completion in a diligent and timely manner. The failure by 
Consultant to perfonn the services in a diligent and timely manner may result in termination of 
this Agreement by City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Consultant shall not be responsible for 
delays due to causes beyond Consultant's reasonable control. However, in the case of any such 
delay in the services to be provided for the Project, each party hereby agrees to provide notice to 
the other party so that all delays can be addressed. 

3.1 For all time periods not specifically set forth herein, Consultant shall respond in 
the most expedient and appropriate manner under the circumstances, by either telephone, 
electronic mail, fax, hand-delivery, or mail. 

4. Compensation. City shall pay Consultant for the services on a time and expense 
not-to-exceed basis on a per project basis pursuant to a written proposal for such project 
accepted in writing by the Public Works Director, or his designee and in accordance with the 
Project Budget set forth in each project assigned. Consultant's compensation for all work 
performed in accordance with this Agreement, including all reimbursable items and sub 
consultant fees, shall not exceed $150,000.00 per year during the term of this Agreement. 
Consultant shall be paid for services in accordance with Consultant's Schedule of Hourly Rates 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. The hourly rates in Exhibit A shall be in effect during the term of 
this Agreement. 

4.1 Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to City describing the work performed 
the preceding month. Consultant's bills shaH include the name of the person who performed 
the work, a brief description of the services perfonned and/or the specific task in the 
Scope of Services to which it relates, the date the services were performed, the number of 
hours spent on all work billed on an hourly basis, and a description of any reimbursable 
expenditures. City shall pay Consultant no later than thirty (30) days after approval of the 
monthly invoice by City staff. 

4.2 City shall reimburse Consultant only for those costs or expenses specifically 
approved in this Agreement, or specifically approved in advance by City. Unless 
otherwise approved, such costs shall be limited and in accordance with Schedule of charges set 
forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

4.3 Consultant shall not receive any compensation for Extra Work without the prior 
written authorization of City. As used herein, "Extra Work" means any work that is 
detennined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which is not 
included within the Scope of Services and which the parties did not reasonably anticipate 
would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement. Compensation for any authorized Extra 
Work shall be billed in accordance with the Billing Rates as set forth in Exhibit A and on 
the terms set forth in this Article 4. 

5. Administration. The Public Works Director shall administer this Agreement 
on behalf of the City. The Public Works Director or hislher authorized representative shall 
represent City in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered pursuant to this 

3 



Agreement. 

6. [THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY OMITTED] 

7. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnifY, defend and hold harmless City, its City Council, boards and commissions, officers, 
agents and employees (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all 
claims (including, claims for bodily injury, death or damage to property), demands, obligations, 
damages, actions, causes of action, suits, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, costs and 
expenses (including, reasonable attorney's fees, disbursements and court costs) of every kind 
and nature that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the Consultant, its principals, officers, agents, employees, vendors, suppliers, 
consultants, subcontractors, anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them or for whose 
acts they may be liable or any or all of them in performance, or non performance, of services 
under this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be construed to require Consultant 
to indemnifY the Indemnified Parties from any Claim arising from the active negligence or 
willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties. Nothing in this indemnity shall be construed as 
authorizing any award of attorney's fees in any action on or to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement. This indemnity shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of whether any 
insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the amount 
of indemnification to be provided by the Consultant. 

8. Insurance. Without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to 
commencement of work, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense 
during the term of this Agreement, a policy or policies of liability insurance of the type and 
amounts described below and in a form satisfactory to City. 

A. Certificates of Insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance 
with original endorsements to City as evidence of the insurance coverage required herein. 
Insurance certificates must be approved by the City Attorney prior to commencement of 
perfonnance or issuance of any permit. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file 
with City at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

B. Signature. A person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf shall 
sign certification of all required policies. 

C. Acceptable Insurers. All msurance policies shall be issued by an insurance 
company currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of 
insurance in the State of California, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A (or higher) 
and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of 
Best's Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved by the City Attorney. 

D. Coverage ReqUirements. 

i. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Consultant shall maintain Workers' 
Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for his or her employees in 

4 



accordance with the laws of the State of California. In addition, Consultant shall require each 
subcontractor to similarly maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's 
employees. Any notice of cancellation or non-renewal of all Workers' Compensation policies 
must be received by City at least thirty (30) calendar days (10 calendar days written notice of 
non-payment of premium) prior to such change. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of 
subrogation against City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
work performed by Consultant for City. 

ii. General Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain commercial general 
liability insurance in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including without limitation, 
contractual liability. If commercial general liability insurance or other form with a general 
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement, or the general aggregate limit shall be at least twice the 
required occurrence limit. 

111. Automobile Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance 
covering bodily injury and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or 
in connection with work to be performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any 
owned, hired, non-owned or rented vehicles, in an amonnt not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence. 

IV. Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance. Consultant shall maintain 
professional errors and omissions insurance, which covers the services to be performed in 
connection with this Agreement in the minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
per claim and in the armual aggregate. 

E. Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

1. The City, its ejected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 
work performed by or on behalf of the Consultant. 

ii. This policy shall be considered primary insurance as respects to City, its ejected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as respects to all claims, 
losses, or liability arising directly or indirectly from the Consultant's operations or services 
provided to City. Any insurance maintained by City, including any self-insured retention 
City may have, shall be considered excess insurance only and not contributory with the 
insurance provided hereunder. 

111. This insurance shall act for each insured and additional insured as though a 
separate policy had been written for each, except with respect to the limits of liability of 
the insuring company. 

iv. The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City, its elected or appointed 
officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. 

5 



v. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 
coverage provided to City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents 
or volunteers. 

VI. The insurance provided by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, or 
reduced in coverage or in limits, by either party except after thirty (30) calendar days 
(l0 calendar days written notice of non-payment of premium) written notice has been 
received by City. 

8.1 Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting in any way, the 
indemnification provision contained in this Agreement, or the extent to which Consultant may 
be held responsible for payments of damages to persons or property. 

8.2 All subconsultants shall be included as additional insureds under the Consultant's 
policies, or the Consultant shall be responsible for causing subconsultants to purchase the 
appropriate insurance in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including adding the 
City as an Additional Insured to the subconsultant's policies. 

9. Nondiscrimination. In the performing of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or sexual orientation race, religion, color, 
national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex or age. 

10. Independent Contractor. It is understood that City retains Consultant on an 
independent contractor basis and Consultant is not an agent or employee of City. The 
manner and means of conducting the work are under the control of Consultant, except to the 
extent they are limited by statute, rule or regulation and the expressed terms of this 
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute approval for 
Consultant or any of Consultant's employees or agents, to be the agents or employees of 
City. Consultant shall have the responsibility for and control over the means of performing the 
work, provided that Consultant is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Anything in 
this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct Consultant as to the details 
of the performance or to exercise a measure of control over Consultant shall mean only that 
Consultant shall follow the desires of City with respect to the results of the services. 

10.1 The Consultant shall at all times remain an independent Contractor with respect to 
the services to be performed under this Agreement and shall be responsible for the payment of 
Federal and State Employer Withholding Taxes, Unemployment Insurance Taxes, FICA Taxes, 
Retirement, Life and/or Medical Insurance, and Worker's Compensation Insurance for the 
employees of the Consultant or any other person performing services under this Agreement. 
Consultant and its employees are not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to City's 
employees, including disability or unemployment insurance, workers' compensation, medical 
insurance, sick leave, or any other employment benefit. Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold 
City harmless from any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties, interest, or damages suffered by City 
as a result of any claim by any person or entity contrary to the provisions of this Section 10. 

6 



11. Ownership of Documents. All documents, infonnation and materials of any and 
every type furnished or prepared by the Consultant or any of its subcontractors pursuant to and 
in the course of perfonnance of this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive 
property of the City. Such documents, infonnation and materials shall include but not be 
limited to all findings, reports, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, documents, 
infonnation and data including, but not limited to, electronic media, computer tapes or 
discs, files, and tapes furnished or prepared or accumulated by the Consultant in performing 
work under this Agreement, whether completed or in process. City shall have the sole right to 
use such documents, materials and infonnation in its discretion without further 
compensation to Consultant or any other party. Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, 
provide such documents, materials and infonnation to City upon prior written request. 

11.1 All Documents shall be considered works made for hire and all Documents and 
any and all intellectual property rights arising from their creation, including, but not limited 
to, all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and remain the property of the City 
without restriction or limitation upon their use, duplication or dissemination by the City. 
Consultant shall not obtain or attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any Documents. 

12. Confidentialitv. All City infonnation disclosed to Consultant during the course of 
perfonnance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be 
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by City, excepting that infonnation 
which is public record and subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act, or otherwise 
required by law. All documents, including drafts, notes and communications that result from the 
services in this Agreement, shall be kept confidential unless City authorizes in writing the release 
of infonnation, excepting that infonnation which is public record and subject to disclosure 
pursuant to the Public Records Act, or otherwise required by law. 

13. Access to Records. Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents, 
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work perfonned for City under this 
Agreement on file for at least three (3) years following the date of final payment to 
Consultant by City. Any duly authorized representative(s) of City shall have access to such 
records for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during 
Consultant's usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper facilities to 
City's representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable 
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which 
shall be considered to be an additional service to the City, subject to the provisions of Section 
4 hereinabove. 

14. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant or its employees may be subject to the 
provisions of the California Political Refonn Act of 1974 (the "Act"), which (I) requires 
such persons to disclose any financial interest that may foreseeably be materially affected by 
the work perfonned under this Agreement, and (2) prohibits such persons from making, or 
participating in making, decisions that will foreseeably financially affect such interest. 

If subject to the Act, Consultant shall confonn to all requirements of the Act. Failure 
to do so constitutes a material breach and is grounds for immediate tennination of this 
Agreement by City. Consultant shall indemnify and hold hannIess City for any and all claims 

7 



for damages resulting from Consultant's violation of this Section. 

Consultant represents that neither Consultant, nor any of its employees, agents or 
subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be performed under 
this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this Agreement, acquire any 
interest, which would conflict in any manner with the performances of services hereunder. 

15. Assignment. This is a personal service contract, and the duties set forth herein 
shall not be delegated or assigned to any person or entity without the prior written consent of 
City. 

15.1 Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the work required by this 
Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of City. 
Consultant shall be fully responsible to City for all acts and omissions of the subconsultant. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between City and 
subconsultant nor shall it create any obligation on the part of City to payor to see to the 
payment of any monies due to any such subconsultant other than as otherwise required by law. 

16. Compliance with Laws. Rules. Regulations. Consultant shall perform the 
services required by this Agreement in compliance with all applicable Federal and 
California employment laws including, but not limited to, those laws related to minimum hours 
and wages; occupational health and safety; fair employment and employment practices; 
workers' compensation insurance and safety in employment; and all other Federal, State and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to the services required under this Agreement. 
Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless City from and against all claims, demands, 
payments, suits, actions, proceedings, and judgments of every nature and description including 
attorneys' fees and costs, presented, brought, or recovered against City for, or on account of 
any liability under any of the above-mentioned laws, which may be incurred by reason of 
Consultant's performance under this Agreement. 

16.1 Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code section 1720, et 
seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8, section 16000, et 
seq., ("Prevailing Wage Laws"), which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the 
performance of other requirements on "public works" and "maintenance" projects. If the 
Services are subject to the Prevailing Wage Laws, Consultant agrees to fully comply with 
such Prevailing Wage Laws. 

17. Integration; Amendment. This Agreement represents the entire understanding of 
City and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written understanding 
shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered in it. This Agreement may not 
be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by both parties. 

18. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be in conflict with 
applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void insofar as it is in conflict with said 
laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to be in full force and effect. 

19. WajyerNalidity. Consultant agrees that waiver by City of anyone or more of 
the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver of any 

8 



other condition of perfonnance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the City of the 
perfonnance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
tenn or condition of this Agreement. 

20. Jurisdiction. City and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement 
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other arising 
out of the perfonnance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the County of 
Merced. 

21. Notice. Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal 
Service, addressed to the parties as follows: 

To City: 
Mark Fachin, P.E. 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
411 Madison Avenue 
Los Banos, California 93635 

To Consultant: 
Randall O'Dell, P.E. 
President 
O'DELL ENGINEERING 
1165 Scenic Drive 
Modesto, California 95350 

22. Termination. City may, in its sole discretion, tenninate this Agreement at any 
time and for any reason whatsoever by giving written notice of such tennination to Consultant. 
In the event of such tennination, Consultant shall immediately stop rendering services under 
this Agreement unless directed otherwise by the City. In the event of such tennination, 
Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered and work perfonned for 
City to the date of such tennination. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE] 

9 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set forth below. 

Date: 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Lucille L. Mallonee 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

William A. Vaughn 
City Attorney 

O'DELL ENGINEERING, a corporation 

by: Randall O'Dell, P.E. 
President 

CITY OF LOS BANOS, a California 
municipal corporation 

by: Steve Carrigan 
City Manager 

10 



Exhibit A 
O'DELL ENGINEERING 

Charge Rate Schedule 



Classification: 

Principal 

Senior Engineer 

Engineer 

Assistant Engineer 

Assistant Engineer 

Seoior Landscape Architect 

Landscape Architect 

Landscape Designer 

Planner 

Assistant Planner 

Utility Engineer 

CADD Operator 

Seoior Surveyor 

Surveyor 

Assistant Surveyor 

Survey Crew 2-manll-rnan 

Survey Crew 3D laser scanning 2-manll-man 

Survey Crew 2-manll-man (prevailing wage) 

O'Dell Engineering 
FEE SCHEDULE 

June 2014 

Survey Crew 3D laser scanning 2-manll-man (prevailing wage) 

Administrative 

Outside Services: 

Cost of services and expenses cbarged to O'DEll ENGINEERING 
by outside consultants, professional or technical finns engaged in 
connection with the project. 

Reproduction: 

Reproduction costs and services charged to O'DELL ENGINEERING 
by outside connnercial printers engaged in connection with the project. 

Mileage, per diem, and subsistence are not nonnally charged to the 
clieot unless specific prior authorization is negotiated between client 
and consultant. 

K:\CONTRACTS\Fee Schedules! Fee Schedute(June 2014).doc 

Regular Hourly Rate: 

$170.00 

$150.00 

$120.00 

$110.00 

$90.00 

$130.00 

$110.00 

$90.00 

$130.00 

$110.00 

$120.00 

$80.00 

$130.00 

$110.00 

$90.00 

$180/$130 

$230/$200 

$230/$160 

$260/$210 

$70.00 

Actual cost 
plus 10% 

Actual cost 
plus 10% 

Actual cost 
plus 10% 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

AND 
PROVOST & PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP 

FOR 
ON-CALL CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this __ day of . 2014, 
by and between the City of Los Banos, California, a municipal corporation, ("City,") and 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group, a professional civil engineering firm, ("Consultant"). 

RECITALS 

A. City is a municipal corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws 
of the State of California with the power to carry on its business as it is now 
being conducted under the statutes of the State of California. 

B. City desires to engage Consultant as an independent contractor to provide 
professional engineering services for specific tasks/projects on short notice as 
needed to support the City's Public Works Department/City Engineer. 

C. Consultant possesses the skill, experience, ability, background, certification and 
knowledge to provide the services described in this Agreement. 

D. City desires to retain Consultant to render professional services under the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the undersigned parties 
as follows: 

1. Ilil:m.. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the above written date 
and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2017, unless terminated earlier as set forth herein. The 
City may elect to extend this Agreement for two (2) additional one-year terms, on the same 
tenns and conditions, upon written notice to the Consultant thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement. 

2. Scope of Services. Services to be perfonned by Consultant may include the 
following on an on-call basis upon reasonable notice to Consultant: 

a. Provide consulting and professional services upon request of the City including project 
concept, design, engineering, land surveying, and drafting services. 

b. Provide professional services during the bid process, including preparation of cost 
estimates and specifications, project construction, and project completion. 

1 



c. Provide field surveys as requested. 

d. Review Tentative Subdivision Maps, Parcel Maps, Subdivision Maps and Lot Line 
Adjustments for compliance with Subdivision Map Act and the Los Banos Municipal Code. 

e. Review Subdivision Improvement Plans for compliance with the City of Los Banos 
Improvement Standards. 

f. Review developers' site plans and drainage plans. 

g. Update and correct City base maps for zoning, planning, sewer and storm drainage and 
water systems. 

h. Provide maps and mapping services as requested. 

i. Preparation and review of legal descriptions for easements, Rights-of-Way, Lot Line 
Adjustments, etc. 

j. Update and maintain City Improvement Standards and Specifications. 

k. Review the City's requested project and/or task to be accomplished and provide 
preliminary consultation, research and evaluation of same. 

I. Assist the City's Engineering Division with presentations and/or recommendations to 
City staff administration, or City Council. 

m. Third party review consultation related to documents prepared by the City's Engineering 
Division or other consultants retained by the City. 

n. Review and provide comments on environmental documents for proposed projects 
submitted to the City in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

o. Provide other engineering and design services as requested. 

2.1 Consultant shall provide such services on an as needed basis when given written 
instruction to do so by the Public Works Director, or his designee. Consultant shall diligently 
perfonn all the services described in the Scope of Services. 

2.2 All professional services shall be performed by Consultant or under Consultant's 
supervision. All professional services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be provided by personnel experienced in their respective fields and in a manner consistent 
with the standards of care, diligence and skill ordinarily exercised by professional Consultants 
in accordance with sound professional practices. 

2.3 Consultant acknowledges that City may enter into agreements with other 
consultants for services similar to the services that are subject to this Agreement or may have its 
own employees perform services similar to those services contemplated by this Agreement. 

3. Time of Performance. Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, 
Consultant shall perform with due diligence the services requested by the city and agreed on by 
the Consultant. Time is of the essence in the performance of services under this Agreement and 
the services shall be performed to completion in a diligent and timely manner. The failure by 

2 



Consultant to perform the services in a diligent and timely manner may result in termination of 
this Agreement by City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Consultant shall not be responsible for 
delays due to causes beyond Consultant's reasonable control. However, in the case of any such 
delay in the services to be provided for the Project, each party hereby agrees to provide notice to 
the other party so that all delays can be addressed. 

3.1 For all time periods not specifically set forth herein, Consultant shall respond in 
the most expedient and appropriate manner under the circumstances, by either telephone, 
electronic mail, fax, hand-delivery, or mail. 

4. Compensation. City shall pay Consultant for the services on a time and expense 
not-to-exceed basis on a per project basis pursuant to a written proposal for such project 
accepted in writing by the Public Works Director, or his designee and in accordance with the 
Project Budget set forth in each project assigned. Consultant's compensation for all work 
performed in accordance with this Agreement, including all reimbursable items and sub 
consultant fees, shall not exceed $150,000.00 per year during the term of this Agreement. 
Consultant shall be paid for services in accordance with Consultant's Schedule of Hourly Rates 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. The hourly rates in Exhibit A shall be in effect during the term of 
this Agreement. 

4.1 Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to City describing the work performed 
the preceding month. Consultant's bills shall include the name of the person who performed 
the work, a brief description of the services performed and/or the specific task in the 
Scope of Services to which it relates, the date the services were performed, the number of 
hours spent on all work billed on an hourly basis, and a description of any reimbursable 
expenditures. City shall pay Consultant no later than thirty (30) days after approval of the 
monthly invoice by City staff. 

4.2 City shall reimburse Consultant only for those costs or expenses specifically 
approved in this Agreement, or specifically approved in advance by City. Unless 
otherwise approved, such costs shall be limited and in accordance with Schedule of charges set 
forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

4.3 Consultant shall not receive any compensation for Extra Work without the prior 
written authorization of City. As used herein, "Extra Work" means any work that is 
determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which is not 
included within the Scope of Services and which the parties did not reasonably anticipate 
would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement. Compensation for any authorized Extra 
Work shall be billed in accordance with the Billing Rates as set forth in Exhibit A and on 
the terms set forth in this Article 4. 

5. Administratjon. The Public Works Director shall administer this Agreement 
on behalf of the City. The Public Works Director or hislher authorized representative shall 
represent City in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

6. [THIS SECTION INTENTlONALL Y OMITTED] 

3 



7. Indemnification. To the fullest extent pennitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnifY, defend and hold hannless City, its City Council, boards and commissions, officers, 
agents and employees (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all 
claims (including, claims for bodily injury, death or damage to property), demands, obligations, 
damages, actions, causes of action, suits, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, costs and 
expenses (including, reasonable attorney's fees, disbursements and court costs) of every kind 
and nature that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the Consultant, its principals, officers, agents, employees, vendors, suppliers, 
consultants, subcontractors, anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them or for whose 
acts they may be liable or any or all of them in perfonnance, or non perfonnance, of services 
under this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be construed to require Consultant 
to indemnifY the Indemnified Parties from any Claim arising from the active negligence or 
willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties. Nothing in this indemnity shall be construed as 
authorizing any award of attorney's fees in any action on or to enforce the tenns of this 
Agreement. TIlls indemnity shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of whether any 
insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the amount 
of indemnification to be provided by the Consultant. 

8. Insurance. Without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to 
commencement of work, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense 
during the tenn of this Agreement, a policy or policies of liability insurance of the type and 
amounts described below and in a fonn satisfactory to City. 

A. Certificates of Insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance 
with original endorsements to City as evidence of the insurance coverage required herein. 
Insurance certificates must be approved by the City Attorney prior to commencement of 
perfonnance or issuance of any pennit. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file 
with City at all times during the tenn of this Agreement. 

B. Signature. A person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf shall 
sign certification of all required policies. 

C. Acceptable Insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance 
company currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of 
insurance in the State of California, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A (or higher) 
and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of 
Best's Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved by the City Attorney. 

D. Coverage Requirements. 

i. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Consultant shall maintain Workers' 
Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for his or her employees in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. In addition, Consultant shall require each 
subcontractor to similarly maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's 
employees. Any notice of cancellation or non-renewal of all Workers' Compensation policies 
must be received by City at least thirty (30) calendar days (10 calendar days written notice of 

4 



non-payment of premium) prior to such change. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of 
subrogation against City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
work performed by Consultant for City. 

ii. General Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain commercial general 
liability insurance in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including without limitation, 
contractual liability. If commercial general liability insurance or other form with a general 
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to 
be performed under this Agreement, or the general aggregate limit shall be at least twice the 
required occurrence limit. 

Ill. Automobile Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance 
covering bodily injury and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or 
in connection with work to be performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any 
owned, hired, non-owned or rented vehicles, in an amount not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence. 

iv. Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance. Consultant shall maintain 
professional errors and omissions insurance, which covers the services to be performed in 
connection with this Agreement in the minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
per claim and in the annual aggregate. 

E. Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

i. The City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 
work performed by or on behalf of the Consultant. 

ii. This policy shall be considered primary insurance as respects to City, its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as respects to all claims, 
losses, or liability arising directly or indirectly from the Consultant's operations or services 
provided to City. Any insurance maintained by City, including any self-insured retention 
City may have, shall be considered excess insurance only and not contributory with the 
insurance provided hereunder. 

iii. This insurance shall act for each insured and additional insured as though a 
separate policy had been written for each, except with respect to the limits of liability of 
the insuring company. 

iv. The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City, its elected or appointed 
officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. 

v. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 
coverage provided to City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents 
or volunteers. 

vi. The insurance provided by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, or 

5 



reduced in coverage or in limits, by either party except after thirty (30) calendar days 
(10 calendar days written notice of non-payment of premium) written notice has been 
received by City. 

8.1 Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting in any way, the 
indemnification provision contained in this Agreement, or the extent to which Consultant may 
be held responsible for payments of damages to persons or property. 

8.2 All subconsultants shall be included as additional insureds under the Consultant's 
policies, or the Consultant shall be responsible for causing subconsultants to purchase the 
appropriate insurance in compHance with the terms of this Agreement, including adding the 
City as an Additional Insured to the subconsultant's policies. 

9. Nondiscrimination. In the performing of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or sexual orientation race, religion, color, 
national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex or age. 

10. Indenendent Contractur. It is understood that City retains Consultant on an 
independent contractor basis and Consultant is not an agent or employee of City. The 
manner and means of conducting the work are under the control of Consultant, except to the 
extent they are limited by statute, rule or regulation and the expressed terms of this 
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute approval for 
Consultant or any of Consultant's employees or agents, to be the agents or employees of 
City. Consultant shall have the responsibility for and control over the means of performing the 
work, provided that Consultant is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Anything in 
this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct Consultant as to the details 
of the performance or to exercise a measure of control over Consultant shall mean only that 
Consultant shall follow the desires of City with respect to the results of the services. 

10.1 The Consultant shall at all times remain an independent Contractor with respect to 
the services to be performed under this Agreement and shall be responsible for the payment of 
Federal and State Employer Withholding Taxes, Unemployment Insurance Taxes, FICA Taxes, 
Retirement, Life and/or Medical Insurance, and Worker's Compensation Insurance for the 
employees of the Consultant or any other person performing services under this Agreement. 
Consultant and its employees are not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to City's 
employees, including disability or unemployment insurance, workers' compensation, medical 
insurance, sick leave, or any other employment benefit. Consultant agrees to indemnifY and hold 
City harmless from any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties, interest, or damages suffered by City 
as a result of any claim by any person or entity contrary to the provisions of this Section 10. 

11. Ownership of Documents. All documents, information and materials of any and 
every type furnished or prepared by the Consultant or any of its subcontractors pursuant to and 
in the course of performance of this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive 
property of the City. Such documents, information and materials shall include but not be 
limited to all findings, reports, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, documents, 
information and data including, but not limited to, electronic media, computer tapes or 
discs, files, and tapes furnished or prepared or accumulated by the Consultant in performing 

6 



work under this Agreement, whether completed or in process. City shall have the sole right to 
use such documents, materials and information in its discretion without further 
compensation to Consultant or any other party. Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, 
provide such documents, materials and information to City upon prior written request. The 
Consultant shall assume no responsibility for the unintended use by others of any such 
documents, information, or materials on projects(s) which are not related to the scope of 
services described under this Agreement. 

11.1 All Documents shall be considered works made for hire and all Documents and 
any and all intellectual property rights arising from their creation, including, but not limited 
to, all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and remain the property of the City 
without restriction or limitation upon their use, duplication or dissemination by the City. 
Consultant shall not obtain or attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any Documents. 

12. Confidentiality. All City information disclosed to Consultant during the course of 
performance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be 
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by City, excepting that information 
which is public record and subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act, or otherwise 
required by law. All documents, including drafts, notes and communications that result from the 
services in this Agreement, shall be kept confidential unless City authorizes in writing the release 
of information, excepting that information which is public record and subject to disclosure 
pursuant to the Public Records Act, or otherwise required by law. 

13. Access to Records. Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents, 
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work performed for City under this 
Agreement on file for at least three (3) years following the date of final payment to 
Consultant by City. Any duly authorized representative(s) of City shall have access to such 
records for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during 
Consultant's usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper fucilities to 
City's representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable 
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which 
shall be considered to be an additional service to the City, subject to the provisions of Section 
4 hereinabove. 

14. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant or its employees may be subject to the 
provisions of the California Political Reform Act of 1974 (the "Act"), which (I) requires 
such persons to disclose any financial interest that may foreseeably be materially affected by 
the work performed under this Agreement, and (2) prohibits such persons from making, or 
participating in making, decisions that will foreseeably fmancially affect such interest. 

If subject to the Act, Consultant shall conform to all requirements of the Act. Failure 
to do so constitutes a material breach and is grounds for immediate termination of this 
Agreement by City. Consultant shall indemnifY and hold harmless City for any and all claims 
for damages resulting from Consultant's violation of this Section. 

Consultant represents that neither Consultant, nor any of its employees, agents or 
subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be performed under 
this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this Agreement, acquire any 
interest, which would conflict in any manner with the performances of services hereunder. 

7 



15. Assignment. This is a personal service contract, and the duties set forth herein 
shall not be delegated or assigned to any person or entity without the prior written consent of 
City. 

15.1 Consultant sball not subcontract any portion of the work required by this 
Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of City. 
Consultant shall be fully responsible to City for all acts and omissions of the subconsultant. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between City and 
subconsultant nor shall it create any obligation on the part of City to payor to see to the 
payment of any monies due to any such subconsultant other than as otherwise required by law. 

16. Compliance with Laws. Rules. Regnlations. Consnltant shall perform the 
services required by this Agreement in compliance with all applicable Federa! and 
California employment laws including, but not limited to, those laws related to minimum hours 
and wages; occupational health and safety; fair employment and employment practices; 
workers' compensation insurance and safety in employment; and all other Federal, State and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to the services required under this Agreement. 
Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless City from and against all claims, demands, 
payments, suits, actions, proceedings, and judgments of every nature and description including 
attorneys' fees and costs, presented, brought, or recovered against City for, or on account of 
any liability under any of the above-mentioned laws, which may be incurred by reason of 
Consultant's performance under this Agreement. 

16.1 Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code section 1720, et 
seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8, section 16000, et 
seq., ("Prevailing Wage Laws"), which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the 
performance of other requirements on "public works" and "maintenance" projects. If the 
Services are subject to the Prevailing Wage Laws, Consultant agrees to fully comply with 
such Prevailing Wage Laws. 

17. Integration; Amendment. This Agreement represents the entire understanding of 
City and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written understanding 
shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered in it. This Agreement may not 
be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by both parties. 

18. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be in conflict with 
applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void insofar as it is in conflict with said 
laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to be in full force and effect. 

19. IDiyerNalidity, Consultant agrees that waiver by City of anyone or more of 
the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver of any 
other condition of performance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the City of the 
performance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
term or condition of this Agreement. 

20. Jurisdiction. City and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement 
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other arising 
out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the County of 
Merced. 

8 



21. Notice. Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal 
Service, addressed to the parties as follows: 

To City: 
Mark Fachin, P.E. 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
411 Madison Avenue 
Los Banos, California 93635 

To Consultant: 
Kevin Johansen, P.E. 
Vice President 
PROVOST & PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP 
1120 West I Street, Suite C 
Los Banos, California 93635 

22. Termination. City may, in its sale discretion, terminate this Agreement at any 
time and for any reason whatsoever by giving written notice of such termination to Consultant. 
In the event of such termination, Consultant shall immediately stop rendering services under 
this Agreement unless directed otherwise by the City. In the event of such termination, 
Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered and work performed for 
City to the date of such termination. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE] 

9 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set forth below. 

Date: 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Lucille L. Mallonee 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

William A. Vaughn 
City Attorney 

PROVOST & PRITCHARD 
CONSULTING GROUP, a professional 
civil engineering firm 

by: Kevin Johansen, P.E. 
Vice President 

CITY OF LOS BANOS, a California 
municipal corporation 

by: Steve Carrigan 
City Manager 

10 



Exhibit A 
PROVOST & PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP 

Charge Rate Schedule 



2014 STANDARD FEE SCHEDULE 
1his schcduk wpcrscdes prcviously published fcc schedules as of the CffcctLVC date orNovemb~r 1.1013. MuJti-r~ar contracts are .mb.irct to o!ny 
subSCqUCIH ~'hangc~ in th,'sC fates. 

Staff Type 

Engineering Staff 
As~istanr Eng-lllI.'cl 

AS.~l)cia{t' Enginetl 
Senior Engll1t:t'f 

Prin.:ipal LllgiIH:C; 

Specialists 
ASS11L'i2te Environmental Speriali~t 

St'nior Em-irnnmental Spccialist 
Princip:11 Envirnnm,:nt:J.l :-)pt'ciali.,r 
GIS Spcdaji~t 
Assooatl.' GeojoglstlHydrogcoh)gi::.' 

St':nior Gcologist/Hydfi)gcl)J~lgist 

\Vater Ro.:s{)uw.'~ Srecialist 

Energy Spl~Ci,lli<;l 

Planning Staff 
A;;~i~tanl Planner 
A~~(Jcl;ile Planner 

Senior Planner 
Prim:ipal Planner 

Technical Staff 
A5"i~tant Tedllli;:iJ.ll 
A,SDCidh:: TedlTllLian 

SeniorTechllidan 

Construction Service':. 

Associatl.' COflStn.J(tion J\'ianaf!,cr 
Senior Constnlcti(m J\-1anagcr 
Prinicip::d CO:1struction :Vhnager 
C:OllSlTlictiolll'l.'ianagcl Prevaiiillg \Vag-e II) 

Support Staff 
AdministratIve A~si~r;,l't 
Prujccr Adrr;ifli.m<l.tor 

Surveying Services 

LSIT Surycyor 
Li<:cll~cd Sun'c!·or 

J . ~hn Survey Cre\\" 
2-1\"bn Survey Cre\\" 
2-I\'lall Survey Cn:w Illdutiillg L5 
1-_Man CORS Survt:y Crew 
2-!\."lan CORS Survey Crew 

bperl WiLness; A~ '1uoted. 

CIS Training: As <..juot .... d. 

Fee Range 

585.0U SlUO.OO 
SIOS.OO ~ SJ20.00 
5125.00 ~ $150.00 
51.55.00 51RO.OO 

5 lOO.OC ~ 5130.00 
S US.no S160.00 

SI6S.00 S iRS.OO 
595.00 5120.00 

5100.00 ~ S1.25.00 
5130.00 5155.00 

$90.00 ~ S110.00 

$115.00 $145.00 

SbO.OO SxS.OO 
590.00 - SllS.OO 

S120.00 S145.0() 
5150.00 - S175.00 

560.00 ~ $85.00 
S!;lOJ>O - S 105.00 

S110.{)O - $125.00 

SlOO.OU S]}S.OO 
SI20.00 - S U5.00 
S1-40.00 S170.00 
S 120.1.10 

£50.00 -
%0.00 -

5140.00 

%5.00 
S,'S()(l 

580.00 - S100.00 
5110.UO 

$150,00 
S2UO.l!(J 
S240.llll 
S170.00 
S220.00 

5135.00 
Prey \V3\!~ ;·L 

5165.00 
S2JO.O(j 
$245.00 

1 r (l\.'€,i lirne (for greu!er tiwn 1 hour [I Gill ~mp;oy('('\ /Jose oitier): 1 i2 fcgt:!.n hourly rate, with 550/l;r minimum 

Proj('(t Cos.b; Mili?(lge: il{S v<l.lut - 15% Ouuide(on)iJ:lw,{~: C05t, lS% Direct Cost~; Co>t ;·15% 



SERVICE REQUEST 

NO. __ _ 

CONSULTANT: 

PROJECT: 

THIS SERVICE REQUEST dated , is an addendum to the Professional 
Services Agreement ("AGREEMENT') for On-Call Engineering Services dated ________ _ 
between the City of Los Banos ("CITY") and ___________ _ 
("CONSULTANT"). 

WHEREAS, upon execution, this Service Request shall be considered a part of the 
AGREEMENT; and 

WHEREAS, this Service Request establishes the Scope of Work and compensation amounts for 
specific engineering and surveying services and authorizes CONSULT ANT to proceed with the 
project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

[Insert Scope of Work] 

CITY agrees to compensate CONSULT ANT for the required services in accordance with the 
tenus of payment stipulated in the AGREEMENT and this Service Request. An itemized list of 
tasks and a detailed cost for the completion of the required services is attached hereto as Exhibit 
A to this Service Request No. . The cost for completion of the items of 
services shall not exceed and 
noll OOths Dollars ($ ). 

All services associated with this Service Request shall confonu to the requirements of the 
AGREEMENT and this Service Request. The Service Request shall be completed to the 
satisfaction of CITY within days of the Notice to Proceed. 

Except as herein modified, all tenus and conditions in the AGREEMENT remain unchanged and 
are in full force and effect. 

CITY OF LOS BANOS, a municipal corporation CONSULTANT 

By: ~~~~~~ __________ ___ 
Mark Fachin, P.E. 

By: _____________ _ 

Public Works Director/City Engineer Title: ______________ _ 

Dme: ______________ _ Date: ______________ _ 



rosBanos 
Agenda Staff Report 

TO: Mayor Villa Ita and Council Members 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner II 'f!£ 
August 6,2014 

SUBJECT: Mi Barrio Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 for the Off-Sale of Beer and 
Wine in Conjunction with a Type 20 Alcohol License 

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council adopt a Resolution approving Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 
for the off-sale of beer and wine for Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart located at 403 N. 
Mercey Springs Road. 

Background: 

On July 9, 2014, the Los Banos Planning Commission held a Public Hearing to review a 
request for a Conditional Use Permit for the off-sale of beer and wine for Mi Barrio Food 
& Gas Mart located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road. At the Public Hearing, the 
Planning Commission considered the application including the report and presentation 
by staff and public comment, and as the recommending body, recommended approval 
of Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 to the Los Banos City Council. 

Discussion: 

The applicant, Jay Virk, is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the off-sale of beer 
and wine in conjunction with a Type 20 alcohol license to permit the off-sale of beer and 
wine for Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road. The 
applicant is proposing to operate a convenience store that will also provide grocery 



items for the neighborhood. The applicant has stated that hours of operation would be 
4am to 12:00am - Sunday thru Thursday; 5am to 1 am - Friday thru Saturday. 

The applicant has owned and operated over 15 stores in the valley and specializes in 
start-up businesses that are failing or shut down. 

The location of 403 N. Mercey Springs Road was most recently occupied by Circle K 
Stores, Inc. whose lease expired. Circle K has Site Plan approval for construction of a 
new convenience store across the street and a Conditional Use Permit for the use of a 
Type 21 alcohol for the off-sale of general alcohol. 

LOCATION AND ACCESS: 
The project site is located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road more specifically identified as 
Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-072-024. 



LAND USE: 

Property 
Project site 
North 
South 
East 
West 

Land Use 
Commercial 
Commercial 
ResidentialNacant 
Commercial 
Commercial 

H-C = Highway Commercial 
R-1 = Low Density Residential 
LOR = Low Density Residential 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

Zone 
H-C 
H-C 

R-1/C-N 
H-C 
H-C 

General Plan 
C 
C 

LORIMOR 
C 
C 

C = Commercial 
C-N = Neighborhood Commercial 
MDR = Medium Density Residential 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the City of Los Banos 
Environmental Quality Guidelines, it has been determined that this project is 
categorically exempt from the provisions of CEQA - Article 19, Section 15301. The 
applicant's request for the off-sale of beer and wine in conjunction involves the 
permitting and licensing of an existing private structure and involves no expansion of the 
previous use of a convenience store located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road. 

USE PERMIT ANALYSIS 

Code Requirements 
A Use Permit, pursuant to the Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.2322, is required 
for any establishment dispensing for sale or other consideration alcoholic beverages, 
including beer and wine, for on-sale or off-sale. A Use Permit may be granted if the 
proposal is conforming to the following criteria: 

General Use Permit Criteria: 

1. That the proposed use and project is consistent with the City of Los Banos 
General Plan, and Los Banos Municipal Code; 

2. That the proposed use or project will not be a nuisance or detrimental to the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare of the persons 
residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use; 

3. That the proposed use is compatible with the adjacent uses, properties and 
neighborhoods and will not be detrimental or injurious to property and 
improvement in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City. 

Specific On-Sale and Off-Sale Alcoholic Beverages Criteria: 

1. That the proposal will not contribute to undue proliferation of such uses in an 
area where additional ones would be undesirable with consideration given to the 
area's function and character, problems of crime and loitering, and traffic 
problems and capacity; 



2. That the proposal will not adversely affect adjacent or nearby churches, temples, 
or synagogues; public, parochial, or private elementary, junior high, or high 
schools; public parks or recreation centers; or public or parochial playgrounds; 

3. That the proposal will not interfere with the movement of people along an 
important pedestrian street; and 

4. That where the proposed use is in close proximity to residential uses, and 
especially to bedroom windows, the use will be limited in hours of operation, or 
designed operated so as to avoid the disruption of residents' sleep between the 
hours of 10:00pm and 7:00am. 

Staff has evaluated the proposal pursuant to the above criteria set forth in the Municipal 
Code and offers the following observations: 

The project will not contribute to the proliferation of alcohol in the area or cause an 
increase in crime in that the proposed use will be ancillary to the property which is 
primarily a fuel stations and general merchandise convenience store. The previous 
tenants of the property operated with a Type 21 license for the off-sale of general 
alcohol. The proposed use is in Census Tract 22.02 which currently has two active off
sale licenses (Dollar General on Mercey Springs Rd. and Buy & Save on ih St.) 

The proposal will not adversely affect adjacent or nearby churches, temples, or 
synagogues; public, parochial, or private elementary, junior high, or high schools; public 
parks or recreation centers; or public or parochial playgrounds. The proposed use is 
adjacent to an existing church to the west. The two parcels do not face one another 
and the church is secured by a chain link fence which surrounds the property. The two 
parcels do not share any common areas such as driveways or parking areas. 

The proposal will not have an affect with the movement of people in that no alcohol will 
be allowed to be consumed on-site at any time and it is not anticipated that persons will 
congregate on sidewalks or streets as a result of the proposed use. Security cameras 
will be placed within the interior of the building to notify store personnel of any unlawful 
activity 24 hours a day. Alcohol will not be allowed to be consumed on the premises. 
Signage will also be provided on the property and the building which prohibit loitering 
and open alcoholic containers. 

The beer and wine will be kept in a specific location as shown on the attached floor 
plan. The applicant has also provided a security plan showing the camera locations. 

The Los Banos Police Department has reviewed the location of security cameras shown 
on the application floor plan and has indicated that they are satisfied with the proposed 
plans subject to the proposed conditions of approval. 

Alcoholic Beverage Control 
The Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC) is the issuing authority for a Type 20 
alcohol license. The City's authority for the sale of alcohol is through its land use 
powers embodied within the Los Banos Zoning Code. 



ABC has the authority according to Section 23801 of the Business and Professions 
Code to exercise certain conditions under the license, the personal qualifications of the 
licensee, the conduct of the business or the condition of the premises, which will protect 
the public welfare and morals, including, but not limited to, the following: 

a) Restrictions as to hours of sale. 

b) Display of signs. 

c) Employment of designated persons. 

d) Types and strengths of alcoholic beverages to be served where such types or 

strengths are otherwise limited by law. 

e) The portion of the privileges to be exercised under the license. 

f) The personal conduct of the licensee. 

ABC may also refuse to issue a license to any person who has violated the Alcoholic 
Beverage Control Act, has a disqualifying criminal record, or is otherwise disqualified. 

Census Tract 

The project site is located in census tract 22.02. 



As of the date of this report there are two (2) on-sale licenses currently in use in this 
specific census tract. 

License 
Business Name Premises Address 

Typel 

21 Los Comperos (Buy and Save) 225 Seventh Street 
20 Dollar General 485 N. Mercey Springs Rd. 

Type 21 license = On-sale beer and wine 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
A public hearing notice was published in the Los Banos Enterprise and notices were 
provided to adjacent property owners within a 300 foot radius of the subject property on 
July 25, 2014. As of the date of this staff report, no comments have been received. 

APPLICABLE ORDINANCES/GUIDELINES: 

Los Banos General Plan 

Los Banos Municipal Code - Section 9-3.2322 

ABC Act, California Business and Professions Code 

Reviewed by: 

Steve Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 

2. Floor Plan 
3. Site Photos 

CEQA Findings 
Project Findings 
Conditions of Approval 

4. Public Hearing Notice 

1 California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
http://www.abc.ca.goy / datportl AH CityRep.asp 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LOS BANOS APPROVING 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2014-09 FOR THE 
OFF-SALE OF BEER AND WINE FOR MI BARRIO 
FOOD & GAS MART LOCATED AT 403 N. 
MERCEY SPRINGS ROAD 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Jay Virk, has requested that the City of Los Banos 
consider a Conditional Use Permit to allow the use of a Type 20 alcohol license for the 
off-sale of beer and wine for Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart located at 403 N. Mercey 
Springs Road, more specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-072-024; 
and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was published in the Los Banos Enterprise 
on July 25, 2014 and notices were mailed to property owners within a 300 foot radius of 
the project site as required by the Los Banos Municipal Code and Government Code 
Section 65091; and 

WHEREAS, it has been found that the proposal will not contribute to the undue 
proliferation of crime, loitering or create traffic problems or capacity issues; and 

WHEREAS, it has been found that the proposal will not adversely affect 
churches, schools or public areas; and 

WHEREAS, it has been found the proposal will not interfere with the movement 
of people along an important pedestrian street; and 

WHEREAS, the use is located and will be operated so as to avoid disruption of 
residents sleep; and 

WHEREAS, the Los Banos Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 
9, 2014 for the purpose of considering Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 and at the 
completion of the public hearing, duly considered the evidence presented and 
recommended approval of Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 to the Los Banos City 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Los Banos City Council has held a public hearing, reviewed said 
Conditional Use Permit request and staff report, has studied the compatibility of the 
applicant's request with adjacent land uses and has considered this request in 
accordance with the Use Permit criteria established in Section 9-3.2322 of the Los 
Banos Municipal Code; and 



WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
City of Los Banos Environmental Quality Guidelines, Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 
for Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart was determined to be categorically exempt from the 
provisions of CEQA per Article 19, Section 15301 as the project site is an existing 
facility; and 

BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE PUBLIC HEARING, the 
City Council of the City of Los Banos hereby makes the appropriate findings set forth in 
Exhibit A (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Findings), and Exhibit B 
(Findings for Approval), attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los 
Banos does hereby approve Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 to allow for the on-sale of 
beer and wine in conjunction with an ABC License, Type 20, off-sale beer and wine for 
Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart located 403 N. Mercey Springs Road, more specifically 
identified as Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-072-024, subject to the Conditions of 
Approval set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Los Banos held on the 6th day of August 2014, by Council Member __ _ 
who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member __ _ 
and the Resolution adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 

2 



EXHIBIT A 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2014-09 - MI BARRIO FOOD & GAS MART 

Pursuant to the requirements of California Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq. ("CEQA") and Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et 
seq. (the "CEQA Guidelines"), the City as Lead Agency under CEQA adopts the 
following findings required by CEQA, along with the facts and evidence upon 
which each finding is based. 

The City of Los Banos City Council hereby finds as follows: 

1. Pursuant to CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Los Banos 
Environmental Quality Guidelines, Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 was 
evaluated and determined to be categorically exempt per Article 19, 
Section 15301 as the request for the on-sale of beer and wine in 
conjunction with an eating place involves the permitting and licensing of 
an existing private structure and involves no expansion of the previous 
use of a convenience store located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road. 

2. Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 was adequately noticed on July 25, 
2014 for consideration at a public meeting on August 6, 2014. 

3. No further environmental documentation is required as the Conditional 
Use Permit was contemplated and adequately analyzed in the initial 
review. 

4. Prior to considering the proposed Project, the Planning Commission 
considered the Categorical Exemption. 



EXHIBIT B 

FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2014-09 - MI 
BARRIO FOOD & GAS MART 

A. General Findings 

1. That the proposed use and project is consistent with the City of Los 
Banos general plan, and the Los Banos Municipal Code. Evidence: 
The site is designated Commercial and zoned Highway 
Commercial. Commercial uses include retail convenience stores 
and fuel stations. 

2. That the proposed use or project will not be a nuisance or 
detrimental to the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and 
general welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such proposed use. Evidence: As reflected in the 
application and conditions of approval, the proposed use will be 
conducted in the Highway Commercial zoning district where similar 
uses are already being utilized in the area and also will not result in 
Significant operational changes to the existing commercial area. 

3. That the proposed use is compatible with the adjacent uses, 
properties, and neighborhoods and will not be detrimental or 
injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood or to 
the general welfare of the City. Evidence: The proposed use will be 
ancillary to the primary use of the property as a fuel and general 
merchandise convenience store. 

B. Specific Findings 

1. That the proposal will not contribute to undue proliferation of such 
uses in an area where additional ones would be undesirable with 
consideration given to the area's function and character, problems 
of crime and loitering, and traffic problems and capacity. Evidence: 
The project site has had the use of alcohol sales in the past which 
did not alter the area's function and character. As reflected in the 
staff report, the number of on-sale licenses in the Census Tract is 
currently two (2) and the addition of one more license will not 
contribute to the proliferation of alcohol sales. General alcohol will 
not be allowed to be sold on the premises. Furthermore, the sale of 
beer and wine will be ancillary to the primary use of the 
convenience store. 



2. That the proposal will not adversely affect adjacent or nearby 
churches, temples, or synagogues; public, parochial, or private 
elementary, junior high, or high schools; public parks or recreation 
centers; or public or parochial playgrounds. Evidence: There is no 
evidence of adverse impacts to adjacent or nearby churches, 
temples, or synagogues, nearby parks, recreation centers or 
playgrounds. Beer and wine will not be sold for consumption on the 
premises and provisions have been added to the Conditions of 
Approval (Exhibit C) to ensure that all nearby uses will not be 
adversely affected by the proposed use. 

3. That the proposal will not interfere with the movement of people 
along an important pedestrian street. Evidence: Consumption of 
alcohol will not be allowed on the premises and the use will be 
regulated by City, State and Federal regulations. 

4. That where the proposed use is in close proximity to residential 
uses, and especially to bedroom windows, the use will be limited in 
hours of operation, or designed operated so as to avoid the 
disruption of residents' sleep between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
7:00 a.m. Evidence: The regulated use involves the sale of alcohol. 
No alcohol consumption will be allowed on the premises at any time 
per the conditions of approval and City ordinance. The nearest 
residential window is located more than 100 feet away from the 
front entrance to the store. Based upon these considerations the 
Planning Commission finds that there is no evidence that the use 
will cause disruption of sleep. 

5. The proposed use has been deemed a public convenience or 
necessity by the Los Banos City Council. 



EXHIBITC 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2014-09-
MI BARRIO FOOD & GAS MART 

Planning: 

I. Conditional Use Permit 2014-09 is for Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart 
located at 403 N. Mercey Springs Road; more specifically identified as 
Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-072-024 and the requested use shall 
expire after one (1) year from date of approval by the Los Banos City 
Council unless implemented. The City for cause may revoke this 
Conditional Use Permit. 

2. The applicant/operator shall comply with all other requirements, laws 
and policies of other govemmental agencies in the conduct and 
operation of said business. 

3. The applicant/operator shall obtain and maintain an active Type 20 
"Off-Sale Beer and Wine" license as defined by the Department of 
Alcoholic Beverage Control and shall provide a copy of said license 
upon issuance by the Alcoholic Beverage Control to the Community 
Development Department prior to the sale of alcohol on the premises. 

4. A copy of these Conditions of Approval and the California Department 
of Alcoholic Beverage Control license are required to be kept on the 
premises and presented to any law enforcement officer or authorized 
City official upon request. 

5. The applicant/operator shall be responsible for maintaining the 
property free of litter at all times in the parking lot area and the areas 
adjacent to the premises over which they have control. 

6. The Planning Commission shall have the right to review and/or revoke 
this permit should the applicant not adhere to the Conditions of 
Approval. The City may amend or impose new conditions to mitigate 
adverse affects in the neighborhood resulting from the use of alcohol 
on the premises. 

7. The applicant/operator agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend 
the City of Los Banos, its officers, agents and employees from any and 
all liability or claims that may be brought against the City of Los Banos 
arising out of its approval of this permit, or the environmental 



determination rendered in connection with the permit approval, or 
arising out of the operation of the use or uses allowed under the 
permit, save and except that caused solely by the City's active 
negligence. 

8. The exterior of the premises, including adjacent public sidewalks and 
the parking lot areas, shall be illuminated during all hours of darkness 
when the premises are open for business in a manner so that persons 
standing in those areas at night are identifiable by law enforcement 
personnel. 

9. The premises shall be operated primarily as a convenience store and 
fuel station as described in the application prepared by the applicant 
and filed with the Community Development Department. Any 
substantial or significant changes in use or operation of the premises 
from the Operational Statement may cause a review, amendment or 
revocation of the Conditional Use Permit. 

10. The applicant/operator shall install and maintain operational monitoring 
cameras where the alcohol is located in the store at all times. All 
interior surveillance cameras shall be equipped with audio recording. 
The applicant/operator shall keep the video recordings for 30 days and 
make them available to law enforcement upon request within 24 hours. 

11. The use of the premises of the subject site shall be consistent with the 
Conditions of Approval and shall not be operated in a manner that 
deviates from the approved Conditional Use Permit filed application 
and operational statement, which shall constitute a violation and may 
result in the revocation or modification of the permit upon written notice 
to the owner of the subject site. 

12.Authorization of a Conditional Use Permit granted pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 9-3.2322 of the Los Banos Municipal Code shall 
run with the land and shall continue to be valid upon change of 
ownership of the site or structure which was the subject of the 
Conditional Use Permit application provided the use shall be subject to 
all provisions of the Municipal Code and all conditions placed on 
approval of the Conditional Use Permit are continually met. 

13.Alcoholic beverages shall be displayed in the areas shown on the 
approved floor plan attached herein and incorporated by reference. 

14.AII cooler doors which contain alcohol shall have a chime which rings 
and notifies store personnel when a customer opens the door(s). 

15. The applicant/operator shall provide sign age on the door of the coolers 
which contain alcohol that states the area is monitored by video 
surveillance at all times. 



16. The applicant/operator shall provide signs prohibiting loitering and 
open alcoholic containers on the premises and/or in the building as 
approved by the Community Development Department. 

17. The applicant/operator shall sell nothing smaller than a four pack of 
beer. This restriction shall not apply to wine, which may be sold in 
single bottles of not less than 750 ml. Wine-coolers (malt based 
products) in bottles smaller than 750 ml may be sold in the 
manufacturer's pre-packaged containers and shall not be sold as 
singles. 



. -' .) 

'J 

J 
T 

:-=:l 
. ,'. <~ \ 
, j 

? ;,: ~ 
" ".' .>:: $- ~-. ,. 

'-] 

" -~. J -' 
-l 

, 
« ''':'' . ,;, -c 

,"- -, 
-).- '::.{ 

-':l":: ~\ .-r: 

.~--'-- - --' ..... 
j (j l-.... 

, " 

. " 

. 

( 

,-I 
~, 

'>
,-:j 
c-
S 

1_-, 

U 
II 

o 

.-.'-.\---

...... -

~, 







LOS Banos 
COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

DEPARTMENT 

Date: July 25,2014 

Re: Notice of Public Hearing 

Proposal: Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 - Mi Barrio Food & Gas Mart 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los Banos City 
Council to consider Conditional Use Permit #2014-09 for the use of a Type 20 alcohol 
license for the off-sale of beer and wine. The requested Use Permit is for Mi Barrio Food 
& Gas Mart located within the Highway Commercial zoning district at 403 N. Mercey 
Springs Road, more specifically described as Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-072-024. 

The Los Banos Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 9, 2014 for the 
purpose of considering the above mentioned project. At the completion of the public 
hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval of Use Permit #2014-09 to 
the Los Banos City Council. 

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of the 
City Council on Wednesday, August 6, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 
Los Banos City Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions regarding the above
referenced item may be directed to Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner II at City Hall 
or at (209) 827-7000, Ext. 133. 

Persons wishing to provide oral comments on the proposed project may do so at this 
meeting or may provide written comments on this matter prior to the public meeting. 
Written comments may be sent by U.S. Mail or hand delievered to the City of Los Banos 
City Hall at 520 "J" Street, Los Banos, California 93635. Please be advised that should 
the action by the City Council be challenged in court, you may be limited to only those 
issues raised at the public hearings or by written comment per Government Code 
Section 65009. 

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

Stacy Souza Elms 
Assistant Planner II 



LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

TO: Mayor Villa Ita and Council Members 

FROM: Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner 11c§!£-

DATE: August 6, 2014 

SUBJECT: Appeal of Planning Commission Approval of Certification of Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and Tentative Tract Map 
#2013-01 for AMG & Associates 

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing 

Recommendation: 

1. Receive the staff report and presentation by staff including written staff report 
and attachments; and 

2. Open the public hearing; the applicant and the appellant to be given an 
opportunity to address the City Council; members of the public to be given an 
opportunity to speak either for or against the project; close public hearing; and 

3. The City Council considers the Staff Report and public input, discusses the 
issues, and either approves, amends, denies or continues the Tentative Tract 
Map and the environmental review. 

Background: 

On May 14, 2014, the Los Banos Planning Commission held a public hearing to review 
a request from AMG & Associates (Applicant) for the certification of Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for the subdivision 
of approximately 11.4 acres into 57 single-family residential lots, ranging from 6,000 
square feet to 11,741 square feet. 



During the public hearing, public comment was received and concerns regarding the 
project were expressed by representatives of the Los Banos Unified School District 
regarding the historical precedence set that developers pay fair share to mitigate school 
costs, concern that the developer has not been working with the School District, the 
District does not have room for additional students, SB 50 allows the School District to 
charge higher fees, concerned that they will have to pass a bond to educate children, 
wants to ensure there is a level playing field for all developers, requesting to impose a 
mitigation fee of $19,000 a unit, and requested the Commission table the item to 
become more familiar with SB 50. A copy of the minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting is attached. 

At the completion of the public hearing the Planning Commission considered the 
application and mitigated negative declaration including the report and presentation by 
staff and comment for and against by the representatives of the applicant by interested 
parties and adopted Planning Commission Resolution No. 2014-07 certifying Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and approved Tentative Tract Map #2013-
01. 

On May 29, 2014 the City of Los Banos received a timely appeal from Attorney Megan 
Macy from the Law Office of Lozano Smith representing the Los Banos Unified School 
District appealing the decision of the May 14, 2014 Planning Commission decision to 
certify the Mitigated Negative Declaration and approving the Tentative Tract Map for 
AMG & Associates. The reasons stated for appeal were that the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration failed to identify potential environmental impacts as required by CEQA, the 
Applicant did not adequately consult with the District in preparation of the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, the project's indirect impacts on the physical environment that are 
not school facilities were not considered and mitigated, the potential cumulative 
environmental impacts of the Project were not analyzed when combined with other 
proposed developments within the District, the Project is not consistent with the policies 
and goals of the General Plan, and the District cannot provide assurance that it will be 
in a position to serve students generated by the Project. A copy of the notice of appeal 
is attached. 

Applicable Municipal Code Sections: 

Sec. 9-2.806 Commission action. 
(a) The Commission shall act on any tentative map within the time limits 

specified within the Subdivision Map Act. In accordance with the Subdivision Map Act, 
failure to act within the time limits prescribed or an agreed upon extension shall be 
deemed approval of the tentative map. 

(b) The Commission shall determine whether the tentative map is in 
conformity with the provisions of law and of this chapter and, upon that basis, shall 
approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove such map. The Commission shall report 
such action directly to the subdivider and shall transmit to the Council a copy of the 



tentative map and a copy of the resolution setting forth the action of the Commission 
thereon. 

(c) The Commission may disapprove a tentative map because of flood and 
inundation hazards or slide areas and recommend protective improvements to be 
constructed as a condition precedent to the approval of the map. (§ 6.06, Ord. 341, as 
amended by § 34, Ord. 1102, eff. February 4,2012) 

Sec. 9-2.807 Appeals. 

(a) If the subdivider or other affected property owner is dissatisfied with any 
action of the Commission with respect to the tentative map or the nature and extent of 
improvements recommended, he or she may, within fifteen (15) days after such action, 
appeal to the Council for a public hearing thereon. The Council shall hear the appeal, 
upon notice to the subdivider and the Commission, unless the subdivider consents to a 
continuance at its next succeeding regular meeting. At the hearing the Council shall 
hear such testimony as the subdivider or Commission, or their respective witnesses or 
other competent persons, may present. 

(b) Upon the conclusion of the hearing, the Council shall, within thirty (30) 
days, declare its findings based upon the testimony produced before it. The Council 
may sustain, modify, reject, or overrule any recommendations or rulings of the 
Commission and may make such findings as are not inconsistent with the provisions of 
this chapter. (§ 6.07, Ord. 341) 

Location and Access: 

The Project site is located on the northeast corner of Willmott Avenue and North Street. 
Access to the project site will be from Rose Avenue and Friguglietti Avenue. The 
Project site is outlined in yellow on the area map below. 



Land Use: 

The subject property has two unoccupied residential structures with the remainder 
consisting of vacant former agricultural fields. The subject property is surrounded on all 
sides by residential development. 

Property Land Use Zone General Plan 
Project Site Vacant R-1 Low Density 
North Residential R-1 Low Density 
East Residential R-1 Low Density 
South Residential R-1 Low Density 
West Residential R-1 Low Density 

R-1 - Low Density Residential 

Environmental Assessment: 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the City of Los Banos 
Environmental Quality Guidelines, an Initial Study was prepared to identify and assess 
potential environmental impacts as a result of this project. Through the Initial Study, 
staff determined that the project would not result in any significant adverse affects with 
the incorporation of mitigation measures. 

Staff prepared a Notice of Intent for Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) 
which was posted at the Merced County Clerk's Office and sent to the State 
Clearinghouse for circulation and review by various agencies on January 24, 2014 and 
closed on February 24,2014. The Notice of Intent was also published in the Los Banos 
Enterprise on January 24, 2014 to allow the public to comment on the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration. One comment letter was received by the Los 
Banos Unified School District and revisions were made to the Initial Study. 

Staff revised the Notice of Intent and re-circulated the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014011068) with the State Clearinghouse and re-posted the document with the 
Merced County Clerk's Office on April 11 ,2014. 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration is appropriate when an initial study has been prepared 
and a determination can be made that no significant environmental effects will occur 
because mitigation measures will be implemented which will reduce all potentially 
significant impacts to less than significant levels. 

Applicable mitigation measures have been incorporated into the Mitigation Monitoring 
Program and have reduced any potential impacts to less than significant. 



Tentative Tract Map Analysis: 

In General 
Land cannot be divided in California without local government approval. Dividing land 
for sale, lease or financing is regulated by local ordinances based on the State 
Subdivision Map Act (commencing with Government Code Section 66410). The local 
General Plan, zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances govern the design of the 
subdivision, the size of lots, and the types of improvements (street construction, sewer 
lines, drainage facilities, etc.). 

There are essentially two types of subdivisions: parcel maps (minor subdivisions), which 
are limited to divisions resulting in fewer than five lots (with certain exceptions), and 
subdivision maps (also referred to as tract maps), which apply to divisions resulting in 
five or more lots. Applications for both types of land divisions must be submitted to the 
local government for consideration in accordance with the local subdivision ordinance 
and the Subdivision Map Act. 

Upon receiving an application for a subdivision map, staff examines the design of the 
subdivision to ensure that it meets the requirements of the General Plan, the Zoning 
Ordinance, the local Subdivision Ordinance, and the California Subdivision Mp Act. A 
public hearing must be held prior to approval of a Tentative Tract Map. 

Approval of a Tentative Tract Map generally means that the subdivider will be 
responsible for installing improvements such as streets, drainage facilities or sewer 
lines to serve the subdivision. These improvements must be installed or secured by 
bond before the City will grant final approval of the map (final map) and allow the 
subdivision to be recorded in the County Recorder's office. Lots within the subdivision 
cannot be sold until the final map has been officially recorded. The subdivider has at 
least two years and up to five years if extended, in which to comply with the 
improvement requirements, gain final administrative approval, and record the final map. 
If the tentative map expires, it cannot be revived. Instead, a new tentative map must be 
applied for, processed, and approved. 

Code Requirements 
Title 9, Chapter 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code regulates the processing and 
approval of all subdivisions within the City of Los Banos. In accordance with the 
Subdivision Code, the Tentative Map has been reviewed by the Project Review Board 
prior to its submission to the Planning Commission. Among other things the Project 
Review Board has reviewed the Tentative Map for: suitability of the land for subdivision; 
overall design of the subdivision; provisions for public improvements such as street 
improvements, utilities, storm drains, sidewalks, water supply, and sewage disposal; 
provisions for public areas such as parks and schools. The Project Review Board 
reviewed the Tentative Map on November 5, 2013 and their recommendations are 
incorporated into the Conditions of Approval for Planning Commission consideration. 

Pursuant to Section 9-2.806(b) of the Los Banos Municipal Code, the Planning 
Commission shall determine whether the tentative map is in conformity with the 



provisions of law and of the Municipal Code, and shall approve, conditionally approve, 
or disapprove such map. 

Project Design 
The proposed residential subdivision is a continuation of earlier Ranchwood 
subdivisions. The single-family residential development includes 57 single-family 
residential lots ranging in size from 6,000 square feet to 11,741 square feet, with an 
average lot size of 6,555 square feet. The proposed density is approximately 5 units 
per acre. The subdivision will be a standard R-1 development and will be built in 
accordance with the Municipal Code and all City Standards and Specifications will 
apply. 

Pursuant to the Zoning Code, the minimum lot size for single-family dwellings shall be 
6,000 square feet and the lot width shall be a minimum of 60 feet for interior lots and 65 
feet for corner lots. The project meets the requirements of the Zoning Code for 
minimum lot size. 

Architecture is not a required component of the Tentative Tract Map, but the proposed 
subdivision will be required to be designed in accordance with the Residential 
Community Design Guidelines and will be compatible with adjacent neighborhoods. The 
streets have been designed to connect to existing street connections to integrate the 
existing neighborhoods with the proposed neighborhood. 

Land Use 
The project site is designated as Low Density Residential according to the Los Banos 
General Plan and Low Density Residential (R-1) in accordance with the Zoning Map. 
The proposed project is proposing to subdivide 11.4 acres into 57 single-family 
residential lots. The proposed use is consistent with the Los Banos General Plan and 
Zoning Code. 

Landscape and Lighting 
Prior to issuance of any permits, the developer will be required to prepare a Landscape 
and Lighting Plan for the proposed subdivision in the public right of way. The landscape 
plan will be designed in accordance with the City's "Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance" and the lighting plan will include a Lumen Dispersion Map and comply with 
the City of Los Banos Standards and Specifications. Maintenance of the landscape and 
lighting areas will be financed through a Landscape and Lighting District. The 
developer will be required to form or annex to an existing Landscape and Lighting 
District. 

Circulation 
A traffic study was completed for the subject project by KD Anderson & Associates, Inc. 
The purpose of the study was to identify potential project specific and cumulative traffic 
impacts that could happen with build out of this project. The project was evaluated 
using existing traffic and existing plus approved projects scenario that assumes other 
approved but not constructed projects. The study also considered long term conditions 
occurring in year 2030 under the City of Los Banos General Plan. The cumulative 



analysis is based on the results of the City's Transportation Master Plan travel demand 
forecasting model. 

The project will result in additional traffic conditions. The residences in the proposed 
subdivision will contribute their fair share to the cost of future traffic improvements to the 
area by paying adopted City of Los Banos traffic impact fees and therefore will result in 
a less than significant impact. 

Based on staff's analysis of the project, the developer will be required to design and 
install a 4-way stop at the intersection of Mandarin Avenue and North Street. 

Infrastructure/Services 
Water: The City of Los Banos would provide domestic water services by connecting to 
an existing eight-inch water line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and 
Mandarin Avenue and installing an eight-inch and six-inch water line that would loop the 
project site and connect to the existing eight-inch water line located in Friguglietti 
Avenue. All existing groundwater wells within the boundary of the map have been 
conditioned to be abandoned to Merced County Standards. The project is subject to the 
provisions of the Los Banos Water Master Plan and will conform to its requirements 
including, but not limited to, payment of water impact fees. 

Sewer: The City of Los Banos would provide wastewater service to the project site by 
connect to an existing sewer line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and 
Mandarin Avenue, and installing a six-inch sanitary sewer line through the project site. 
Project build-out has been contemplated in the Wastewater Master Plans and will 
conform to its requirements including, but not limited to, payment of the wastewater 
impact fees. 

Drainage: The City of Los Banos would provide storm water drain services by 
connecting to an existing storm drain line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue 
and Mandarin Avenue, and installing an 18-inch line the proposed project. 

It should be noted that all City infrastructure has been sized to accommodate this use 
and will be built in accordance with the City's Utility Master Plans. 

Fire and Police Services: The proposed project would add an additional 57 single
family dwellings to the service demands of the Fire Department and Police Department. 
The project will be conditioned to annex into a Community Facilities District (CFD) to 
fund expansion of public safety services. 

School Facilities 
Senate Bill (SB) 50, which was signed into law in 1998, provides comprehensive school 
facilities financing and reform program, and enabled a $9,200,000,000 statewide bond 
measure to be placed on the ballot which passed in November 1998. The provisions of 
SB 50 allow the State to offer funding to school districts to acquire school sites, 
construct new school facilities, and modernize existing school facilities. SB 50 also 
establishes a process for determining the amount of fees developers may be charged to 



mitigate the impact of development on school facilities resulting from increased 
enrollment. Under this legislation, a school district could charge fees above the statutory 
cap only under specified conditions, and then only up to the amount of funds that the 
district would be eligible to receive from the State. According to Section 65996 of the 
California Government Code, development fees authorized by SB 50 are deemed to be 
"full and complete school facilities mitigation". 

SB 50 establishes three levels of developer fees that may be imposed upon new 
development by the governing board of a school district depending upon certain 
conditions within a district. These three levels are as follows: 

Level 1: Level 1 fees are the base statutory fees. These amounts are the maximum that 
can be legally imposed upon new construction projects by a school district unless the 
district qualifies for a higher level of funding. 

Level 2: Level 2 fees allow the school district to impose developer fees above the 
statutory level, up to 50 percent of new school construction costs. To implement Level 2 
fees, the governing board of the school district must adopt a School Facilities Needs 
Analysis (SFNA) and meet other pre-requisites in accordance with Section 65995.6 of 
the California Government Code. The purpose of an SFNA is to determine the need for 
new school facilities attributable to growth from new residential development (California 
Government Code §65995.6). An SFNA documents that the district has met prerequisite 
eligibility tests and calculates the fee per square foot of new development. If the school 
district is eligible for State new construction funding, the State will match the Level 2 
fees if funds are available. The LBUSD currently implements a Level 2 fee of $4.23 per 
square foot of new residential development. The SFNA was last updated in May 2014 
and Level 2 fees will be effective through May 2015. 

Level 3: Level 3 fees apply if the State runs out of bond funds, allowing the school 
district to impose 100 percent of the cost of the school facility or mitigation minus any 
local dedicated school monies. If the State runs out of bond funds, the LBUSD would be 
eligible to charge Level 3 fees of $8.46 per square foot. 

The LBUSD meets the eligibility requirements regarding the collection of Level 2 and 3 
fees. 

SB 50 specifically limits the cities and counties powers under CEQA to mitigate school 
facilities impacts applicable to both adjudicative and legislative decisions. State law is 
very clear. 

• A local agency is prohibited from imposing an exaction in excess of that provided 
by statute; 

• A local agency is prohibited from denying a land use approval on the basis of a 
developer's refusal to provide school facilities mitigation that exceeds the 
amounts authorized by statute; 

• A local agency is prohibited from using the inadequacy of school facilities as a 
basis for denying or conditioning a land use approval; and 



• Payment of development fees is considered full and complete mitigation of 
impacts on the provision of adequate school facilities. 

Staff Recommendation: 

In consideration of the appeal submitted by the Los Banos Unified School District, the 
Planning Commission acted reasonably in approving Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for 
the subdivision of approximately 11.4 acres into 57 single-family residential lots. The 
Tentative Tract Map was evaluated adequately in the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
and a Mitigation Monitoring Plan has been established to ensure that all significant 
effects be mitigated to a less than significant impact. The proposed subdivision meets 
all of the requirements of the Los Banos Municipal Code, Standards and Specifications, 
and the Subdivision Map Act. Therefore, staff recommends that the decision of the Los 
Banos Planning Commission be sustained and the appeal be denied. 

Public Comment: 

A public hearing notice was published in the Los Banos Enterprise and notices were 
mailed out to property owners within a 300' radius of the project site on July 25, 2014. 
As of the date of this staff report, no written comments have been received. 

~~ Steve arngan, City Manager 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
Exhibit A - CEQA Findings 
Exhibit B - Findings for Approval 
Exhibit C - Conditions of Approval 
Exhibit D - Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

2. Appeal from Los Banos Unified School District 
3. Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 
4. Planning Commission Staff Report - May 14, 2014 
5. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2014 
6. Initial Study - Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) 
7. Public Hearing Notice - July 25,2014 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LOS BANOS DENYING THE APPEAL 
FROM THE LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT AND UPHOLDING THE DECISION OF 
THE LOS BANOS PLANNING COMMISSION AND 
APPROVING MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION (SCH #2014011068) AND 
APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2013-01 
FOR AMG & ASSOCIATES 

WHEREAS, the Los Banos General Plan was adopted by the City of Los Banos 
City Council on July 15, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property has a land use designation of Low Density 
Residential pursuant to the Los Banos General Plan and is zoned Low Density 
Residential (R-1) by the Los Banos Zoning Map; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
City of Los Banos Environmental Quality Guidelines, Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 was 
adequately evaluated in Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH 
#201401168); and 

WHEREAS, Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 was reviewed by the Project Review 
Board on November 5, 2013 and was determined to be in compliance with State laws 
and the Los Banos Subdivision Code; and 

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2014, the Los Banos Planning Commission held a duly 
noticed public hearing on Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for the subdivision of 
approximately 11.4 acres into 57 single-family residential lots located at the northeast 
corner of Willmott Avenue and North Street, more specifically identified as Assessor's 
Parcel Number: 082-050-066; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and considered the subject 
application, the staff report thereon, the provisions of the Los Banos Municipal Code 
and related policies as applicable to the subject property, the testimony and evidence 
presented by all those wishing to be heard on the matter and on May 14, 2014 
approved Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and Tentative Tract Map 
#2013-01; and 

WHEREAS, on May 29, 2014, the Los Banos Unified School District, filed a 
timely appeal regarding the Planning Commission approval of Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and Tentative Tract Map #2013-01; and 

1 



WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed for August 6, 2014 in accordance 
with the California Government Code Section 65091 by advertisement in the Los Banos 
Enterprise and by mail to property owners within 300 feet of the project boundaries on 
July 25, 2014 to consider and take testimony regarding the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and subdivision map for AMG & Associates; and 

BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE PUBLIC HEARING, the 
City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby make the findings set forth in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los 
Banos does hereby deny the appeal from the Los Banos Unified School District and 
upholds the decision of the Los Banos Planning Commission approving Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) and approve Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 
subject to the findings and conditions of approval of Planning Commission Resolution 
No. 2014-07 incorporated herein by this reference. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Los Banos held on the __ day of 20_, by Council Member 
___ who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member 
___ and the Resolution adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 

2 



EXHIBIT A 

FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2013-01 - AMG & 
ASSOCIATES 

Based upon the entire record, the City of Los Banos City Council hereby finds as 
follows: 

1. None of the findings (a) through (g) in Section 66474 of the California 
Subdivision Map Act that require a City to deny approval of the proposed 
Tentative Tract Map apply to this project. 

2. As described in the project staff report the proposal is consistent with the 
Los Banos General Plan and Zoning Ordinance as it meets the use and 
development standards specified within. Evidence. Single-Family 
Residential dwelling units are permitted in the district per the text of the 
Zoning Code. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the Los Banos 
General Plan as the proposal is compatible in scale and character with 
existing uses and historic structures and neighborhoods. 

3. The proposal will not be detrimental to the health, safety, comfort, or 
general welfare of the persons residing or working in the City of Los 
Banos, or injurious to property or improvements in the surrounding 
neighborhoods or within the City. Evidence. The proposal will enhance 
the surrounding area and provide connectivity for the adjacent 
neighborhoods. The proposed project has been reviewed by the Planning 
Review Board for conformance to applicable policies and regulations. 
Comments and requirements have been addressed or incorporated as 
conditions of approval to ensure protection of public health, welfare, and 
safety. 

4. The proposed single-family residential lots are compatible with the 
adjacent uses, properties, and neighborhoods, and will not be detrimental 
or injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood or to the 
general welfare of the City. Evidence. The project density matches those 
of the surrounding subdivisions and the configuration of the residential lots 
is compatible with the surrounding neighborhoods. 

5. The Tentative Tract Map will provide for infrastructure services and will 
meet the requirements of the Los Banos Fire Department as the project is 
within the five-minute response area of the Main Fire Station. 



6. As described in the project staff report and with the recommended 
conditions of approval, the proposed subdivision design, lot sizes, lot 
configurations, and proposed infrastructure improvements are consistent 
with the Los Banos General Plan and Municipal Code, and are adequate 
to accommodate the density and intensity of the development proposed. 

7. The project site is physically suitable for residential development. 
Evidence. Access to the site is existing and available. Necessary 
services and facilities including water, sewer, and storm drain are 
available or can be provided. 

8. No conflicts with easements acquired by the public at large, for access 
through or use of the property within the proposed subdivision have been 
identified. 

9. That a Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared and all significant 
effects can be mitigated to less than significant levels and the decision 
making body reviewed and considered the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
prior to taking action on the project. 



Lozano Smith 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Megan E. Macy 
Al10rney at Law 

May 29, 2014 

By U.S. Mail & E-Mail: stacy.souza@losbanos.org 

Stacy Souza Elms, Secretary and Assistant Planner 
Planning Commission 
City of Los Banos 
520 J Street 
Los Banos, CA 93635 

Re: Appeal Regarding Approval of Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014011068) and Tentative Tract Map No. 2013-01 

Dear Ms. Elms: 

E·mail: mmacy@lozanosmith.com 

This office represents Los Banos Unified School District ("District"), a property owner whose 
atfected addresses are on file with the City of Los Banos ("City"), in relation to the AMG & 
Associates ("Project Applicant") Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH#2014011068) and 
Tentative Tract Map No. 2013-01 ("Project"). We understand that the Planning Commission 
("Commission") approved the Project at its meeting on Wednesday, May 14,2014, pursuant to 
Resolution No. 2014-07. We have previously sent you a letter, dated May 20, 2014, providing 
notice of the intention of the District to appeal the decision made by the Commission with 
respect to the Project. Additionally, reference is made to the letter sent to you by our office on 
February 24, 2014 ("Comment Letter"), wherein we expressed the District's position that the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project dated January 2014 ("Draft MND") fails to 
identifY potential environmental impacts on the District as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") and, as a result, the conclusions and proposed mitigation 
of the environmental impacts on schools are not accurate or sufficient. 

This letter constitutes a written appeal, in accordance with Los Banos Municipal Code section 9-
2.807, of the Commission's approval of the Project pursuant to Resolution No. 2014-07. Please 
note that the District is exempt, under Government Code section 6103, from the $150.00 tiling 
fee permitted to be charged by Los Banos Municipal Code 9-3.2326. The District hereby 
requests that the City Council ("City Council") hold a public hearing relating to the matter 
on or after July 30, 2014, so that further testimony may be heard for the City Council's 
reconsideration of the Project. For the reasons discussed below, it is the District's position that 
the Commission's decision to approve the Project is not proper. 

Limited Liabiiity Partnership 

One Capitol Mall, Suite 640 Sacramento. California 95814 TeI916·329·7433 Fax 916-329-9050 



Stacy Souza Elms 
May 29, 2014 
Page 2 

In the Comment Letter, we addressed the Draft MND, including providing the City with a copy 
of the District's School Facilities Needs Analysis dated March 2013 ("SFNA"). As a result of 
the Comment Letter, the City revised certain of the information contained in the Draft MND with 
respect to impacts on public services pursuant to the data and analysis contained in the SFNA, 
including reference to the most current student generation data. However, the revised Mitigated 
Negative Declaration dated April 2014 ("MND") still fails to identify potential environmental 
impacts on the District as required by CEQA. As a result, the conclusions and proposed 
mitigation of those impacts on schools are insufficient. 

This appeal reiterates the concerns expressed in the Comment Letter and by District 
administrators and Board Members before the Commission. The District respectfully asks that 
the City Council to consider this information when making its final determination regarding the 
Project. Further, this letter invites collaboration between the District and City to develop a plan 
that will ensure quality school facilities for the community as the City grows. 

The Project 

The proposed Project consists of 57 residential units on roughly 11 acres within the City. While 
the MND aclmowledges the Project will impact public services, it states that any impact on 
schools will be less than significant. The analysis upon which this conclusion is made is limited. 
The MND states: 

"The proposed project is located within the Los Banos Unified School District. 
According to the LBUSD School Facilities Needs Analysis and Justification 
Study, dated March 2013, the proposed project will generate seventy-three (73) 
students within the LBUSD." 

The MND identifies several of the District's current schools which would potentially be 
impacted by the additional student generation, but then summarily concludes that: (i) the 
direct impacts to school facilities associated with the Project will be mitigated via 
payment of the Level II impact fees adopted by the District and (ii) any indirect impact 
on school facilities associated with the Project are speculative and should not to be 
considered because the District has not adopted a School Facilities Master Plan. 

Consultation with the District 

As a preliminary matter, other than incorporation of minimal information from the District's 
SFNA - which was prOVided by the District only after the Draft MND had been circulated
neither the City nor the Project Applicant adequately consulted with the District in preparation of 
the MND. CEQA requires consultation with other public agencies, including school districts. 
(See, e.g. Pub. Res. Code, § 21080.3.) The information upon which the MND is based was 
primarily gathered from the City's 2030 General Plan EIR prepared nearly a decade ago. Even 
with the revised student generation assumptions contained in the MND (based on the SFNA), the 
conclusion that the Project will have less than significant impact is not based on thorough 
analysis required by CEQA. Please be advised: the District cUlTently has no available capacity 
at its elementary schools or middle schools to house the students projected to be generated by the 
Project. As such, any student generation by the Project will result in the Project having 

Appeal Letter - Final (SC053293-2) 



Stacy Souza Elms 
May 29, 2014 
Page 3 

foreseeable, potentially significant impacts that must be addressed under CEQA. Consultation 
with the District during preparation of the MND could have facilitated adequate analysis. 

Analysis of Environmental Impacts and Relationship to SB 50 

The MND concludes that because the Project will be required to pay the appropriate School 
Impact Fee (including Level II fees), no further analysis under CEQA is required. This is not 
accurate. In general, SB 50 provides, among other things, that payment of fees, charges, 
dedications, or other requirements which can be levied against new construction to fund 
construction or reconstruction of school facilities is deemed to provide full and complete 
mitigation of impacts of development on school facilities. (See, Chawanakee Unified School 
Districtv. County of Madera (2011) 196 Cal.App.4th 1016.) However, the Chawanakee court 
expressly found that the phrase "impacts on school facilities" does not cover all possible 
environmental impacts that have any type of connection or relationship to schools. (Id at 1028.) 
Therefore, impacts relating to schools that are not per se "impacts on school facilities" must be 
identified and analyzed. If those impacts are significant, they must be mitigated. Also, a 
project's indirect impacts on parts of the physical environment that are not school facilities are 
not excused from being considered and mitigated. (Id) For example, an impact on traffic is not 
excused under SB 50, nor are impacts of construction on the nonschool physical environment. 
These and other impacts must be considered and mitigated as part of the CEQA process. 

As a result of the Chawanakee case, the City is required to consider, address, and mitigate any 
significant impacts which its development is likely to have on schools. Since the City has not 
done so, the MND is deficient because it did not include a discussion of the significant impacts 
on schools, including a determination of how the Project will mitigate these impacts. 

Although the MND acknowledges the issue of interim housing for students which will be 
generated as a result of the Project, it dismisses the issue as speculative - because the issue is not 
addressed in a School Facilities Master Plan - and therefore need not be considered under CEQA. 
This is not a correct interpretation ofCEQA. Section IS064(d)(3) of the CEQA guidelines 
states: 

"An indirect physical change is to be considered only if that change is a reasonably 
foreseeable impact which may be caused by the project. A change which is speculative 
or unlikely to occur is not reasonably foreseeable." 

The Project will result in a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change to District facilities 
because the District must provide adequate housing for students within its jurisdictional 
boundaries, regardless of whether a School Facilities Master Plan has been adopted spccifying 
where those facilities are to be located or the exact means of delivery. The focus of CEQA 
Guideline IS064(d)(3) is properly placed on whether the indirect physical impact is likely to 
occur based on the proposed project. The exact means or placement of the impact may always be 
subject to change based on decisions made in the future by affected landowners, including the 
District, even if a "master plan" is in place. The lack of a School Facilities Master Plan does not 
excuse the City from performing proper CEQA analysis and mitigation. 

Appeal Letter - Final (SC053293-2) 



Stacy Souza Elms 
May 29, 2014 
Page 4 

The fact remains that since the District's schools are already at capacity, the District will have to 
add temporary buildings to house the 73 students. The addition of temporary buildings or 
classrooms at existing schools may result in multiple significant impacts which have not been 
considered in the initial study or adequately addressed in the MND. For example, the addition of 
classrooms would certainly result in impacts from construction relating to noise and air quality. 
Further, the addition of temporary buildings could lead to aesthetic issues including view 
impairment or degradation of the visual quality of the site and surroundings, including at the 
schools themselves. Additional structures will likely require changes to the soil upon which the 
structures are situated (excavation, grading, etc.) which may affect drainage at each school site 
where buildings are constructed, or on adjacent parcels. There could be sensitive trees or other 
plants needing to be removed to accommodate the new facilities, and, importantly, these changes 
could lead to further aesthetic impacts. The MND completely fails to consider the multitude of 
possible impacts, of which the foregoing are but examples, which could result from the addition 
of temporary structures or permanent additions. These potential impacts are not considered 
properly within the CEQA process. To the extent that identification ofthese issues should have 
either triggered mitigation measures identified in the MND, or a more expansive analysis, they 
nonetheless should have been identified and considered by the Project Applicant. 

As far as increased class size, the MND fails to acknowledge, consider, and address the likely 
impact on public services as increasing classes will handicap the District in its ability to provide 
a quality education to its students. Overcrowding is a very real problem faced by school 
districts. According to the United States Department of Education, a growing body of research 
has linked student achievement and behavior to the physical building conditions and 
overcrowding. (U.S. Dept. ofEduc., Impact a/Inadequate School Facilities on Student Learning 
(April 3, 2000) <http://www2.ed.gov/offices/OESE/archiveslinits/construction/impact2.html> 
[as of May 27, 2014].) Also, the MND fails to address any impacts on student and faculty safely 
that may occur from overloading students into schools which are already at or over maximum 
capacity. 

Cumulative Impacts 

CEQA also requires the City to consider any cumulative impacts related to schools resulting 
from additional development already approved or pending within the District. (Pub. Res. Code, 
§ 21083.) Cumulative impacts refer to two or more individual effects which, when considered 
together, are considerable or which compound or increase other environmental impacts. (CEQA 
Guidelines, § 15355.) The individual etfects may be changes resulting from a single project or a 
number of separate projects. (Id at 15355, subd. Ca).) The cumulative impact from several 
projects is the change in the environment which results from the incremental impact of the 
project when added to other closely related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable probable 
future projects. (Id. at 15355, subd. (b).) In this case, the MND fails to acknowledge, much less 
mitigate, any of the potential cumulative environmental impacts of the Project when combined 
with other proposed developments within the District (including but not limited to traffic, noise, 
public services and interim facilities impacts). 

Appeal Letter - Final (SC053293-2) 



Stacy Souza Elms 
May 29, 2014 
Page 5 

Harmonization with the City's 2030 General Plan 

For consistency with the City's 2030 General Plan ("General Plan"), the MND must also 
properly analyze the potential impacts under CEQA and provide for mitigation measures in 
coordination with the District as it relates to District schoolsites. The General Plan provides a 
scheme for development mitigation encompassing more than merely payment of School Impact 
Fees. The General Plan states that the City must "[r]equire new development to pay its 
proportionate share of the costs of public infrastructure, services and transportation facilities .... 
includ[ing] schools." (General Plan, September 15,2009, Policy LU-I-8, at p. 3-10.) Further, the 
guiding principal of the City's land use implementation policy is that it "[p]romote a sustainable, 
balanced land use pattern that satisfies existing needs and safeguards future needs of the City." 
(Id. at p. 3-9, LU-G-I.) The City cannot adequately safeguard its future needs for student 
housing and education where it does not perform proper CEQA analysis and provide mitigation 
sufficient for the District to provide services addressing those needs. Moreover, the General Plan 
requires the City to "Maintain a close, collaborative relationship on all matters of mutual 
interest." (Id. at p. 8-5, PFU-I-3.) Certainly, the provision of quality schools in the Los Banos 
community is such an interest. Finally, the City is required to coordinate activities with the 
District related to school sites. (Id. at p. 9-2.) As noted above, with respect to the Project at 
issue, the City has not had any meaningful contact with the District to ensure compliance with 
the General Plan. 

Effect on the District and the Project Applicant 

The lack of proper CEQA analysis and lack of mitigation measures does not allow the District to 
be able to provide assurance to the City that it will be in a position to serve the students 
generated by the Project, because, as discussed above, the District's facilities are at capacity and 
the City has not implemented adequate mitigation measures to address the issues impacting the 
District's facilities. Additionally, unless proper CEQA analysis and mitigation is performed, the 
District will not be in the position to issue the required statement to the effect that any particular 
District facility serves the Project's projected students. Such a statement is required to be made 
to the Project Applicant or any other local real estate agent proposing to sell residential units in 
the Project. (See, Bus. & Prof. Code § 11010, subd. (b)(12).) Again, this is so because the 
District's facilities are at capacity. 

Options 

The City has already acknowledged, in its own Municipal Code, that "[a]dequate school facilities 
should be available for children residing in new developments" and among other things, 
"financing for interim school facilities necessitated by new development is needed in the City." 
(Los Banos Mun. Code, § 9-2.1402.) The District offers a host of mitigation options in addition 
to School Impact Fees under SB 50 that may help ensure sufficient school facilities and lessen 
the impacts of development. Examples include: 

• Participation in a Mello-Roos Community Facilities District. As expressed in 
Government Code section 65995, subdivision (g)(2), a developer may "voluntarily elect[] 
to establish, or annex into, a community facilities district .... " 

Appeal Letter - Final (SC053293-2) 



Stacy Souza Elms 
May 29, 2014 
Page 6 

• The City can adopt an interim ordinance prohibiting uses in conflict with the General 
Plan because the approval results in a threat to the public welfare, as discussed above 
with respect to the lack of adequate school facilities to serve the Project. Such an 
ordinance is in accord with Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-2.1409. This would 
allow the City to delay development approval while it studies the school impact issues 
presented. Alternatively, the City could require phasing of the Project, so that the next 
phase may only proceed if there are adequate utilities and infrastructure available. 

• Revision ofthe City's mitigation program, whether through revisions to its General Plan 
or through changes to the school district's procedures under that plan. For example, the 
City could implement a system where it will only approve a certain amount of 
development within a specified time frame in order to avoid uncontrolled growth. In 
such connection, the City may consider a program in which development applications are 
approved based on a point system. For each commitment that the developer makes to the 
community - such as funding schools - the developer's point total is increased. 

• The City can impose conditions on development related to issues other than school 
overcrowding, such as the need to widen roads or put in other traffic controls to 
accommodate increased traffic (both from students and generally), safety measures to 
address pedestrian travel to school, and the need to add sound-proofing to offset noise 
increases from nearby development and resulting traffic. 

• The Subdivision Map Act states that "a city or county may adopt an ordinance requiring 
any [developer who develops in a school district] to dedicate to the school district ... 
such land as the local legislative body shall deem to be necessary for the purpose of 
constructing thereon such elementary schools as are necessary to assure the residents of 
the subdivision adequate public school service." (Gov. Code § 66478.) Thus, the 
Subdivision Map Act allows a city or county to require land dedication for an elementary 
school in order to help a school district address the educational needs of the children from 
a new development. 

Appeal Letter - Final (SC053293-2) 



Stacy Souza Elms 
May 29, 2014 
Page 7 

Based on the considerations identified above, the District requests that the CEQA process be 
completed in a manner that will address all of the potential impacts of the Project on schools and 
school facilities, and to properly mitigate those impacts which are significant. The District also 
invites the City to engage the District, as contemplated by the General Plan, in a close, 
collaborative relationship on this critical area of mutual interest - ensuring adequate school 
facilities as the City grows. To that end, the District urges the City to consider all avenues 
available to it for mitigation of the potentially devastating impacts of its Project on schools, 
rather than considering itself unnecessarily limited by SB 50. 

Sincerely, 

LOZANO SMITH, LLP 

~~~rl'P 
MEM/sbm 

cc: Dr. Steve Tietjen, Superintendent, Los Banos Unified School District 

Appeal Letter - Final (SC053293-2) 



GENERAL NOTES 
."""'",. ·."' ..... """""C""'_""'o-n."'"JS"'-"'rul 
''"' "'~' .. "",,,,,,,,,,,tc co"""'" rome",n ann ••• N", ",.~,,"'QN 
HAN"."'" 
"'mo~""~"w,,",,,~ ,.,~"""'" 
vIA"", ,ITfOl"I.O'.'NO-! 

DIlA,""C< 'NC"""",,","'ANCE WlTH my '" LO>T",~O' C-''''xM' OO-,,~" "A'v~' 
C~' "'-'''N''ANDEW."J1U'.-
£,,-<-~~'O """ca""""."cr>.Jc 
""'''''O',A"DU'' "ACAm 
"",,,,-,,mc,,,ouo>. l<"" """,,ty ''''00.0 '''''''-'' ",~<o.,.,nAl nR£"',="" N<:<1N"""'"'''-C;w"",o, .. ,"",,,,--,,,,p-r '''NO .. ", 

'''''-m>G'0"""" ,., 
"opOSED"~""'G '.L 
vEN''''''""ANr:>.''ON.""" tm"~"""'ty."'''''''''''' 
.,~.o,,'''''' 'OC~T1""'" ',,=>O'(J ,"'U("'n .... QN """'."" ..."'"0,,", 

",-,."",,.. ~'.'n'·'_ "~""""''''"''-''''''''''M''''=.c,''--'"", 
~!;.:-'.:~~;,":,~:z;r;,;~." 
"'" "!T~<E-""'''{ 

'" ",,:< '''''Ll:'' "."',r " ""''''1<0. v" . .-r'n~" ,".U 0" ".,M·W'.' W<t--." •• YT<' ""<PLm. ,,""''-~ 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
'N."" ........ "".· "" .... ""· ... "'-"""<XlO£"."""O ,"'''''.' 

'-'.A'-o-· FiLm '""'""""'~ to'" '~'owm'6""om"''''' .. ' """'".",, ~"" . "."',""o"",,,,"V,,,,,,",, 

RECORD OWNER/SUBDIVIDER: 
AM". A~""',"-'-_' '-" 

,,,,,,,<,-,,,,,.,,,,,,,,, 
"'",'.,., .. '_rAx 

BASIS OF BEARING: 
A "M'''O Of" ..,.' ..... , I'm ",.""""''''-.OI'WlU,><uf1' A'~," ,...",..,.,,,,, "'AT 
<D.T"," '"'''' ""'''''''''OODH''1'f'' NO S, """'), Atm H>R '"'001<1,,,, ''oW,"",''OF 
<>FA""C","," Af rAO •. " ~'Jl('l'.,,,;<,,-,"'\,",",,,,,,,,,, W", ""'" "'4' _""u" AlL 

":''''''"''''O~",'o,oJ tH" "AP 

EASEMENTS OF RECORD: 

@""'0'''' ""om''''''''''''A",,-", 
0=",.'''", ... ""'OF""''''"''C''m''\·'''.''''''0>'_ ..... '''''v'"o~1'''<N'' .. 
AO£A COO-'M""" Y "-"'''"'<,, Wr",,>-MT A''E>''"'''' ",.'U "FW' 

FLOOD ZONE 
m."""w",",,-,,,,,""T!"""''''''''''CCH'"C',,",,,-,,,'' __ ''''''''''''''''~' 

'''''''' ""'''IIL' """""""_-""""'" ",,..,,,nn,,,. 0." o<c ....... '. """ 

VrCINTYMAP 

~c:#-~~ 
""""<1. C ""'TTEN Jf' P,l>. 'B" ._- ""'" 

II A ACRES TOTAL 
CONTAINING 57 UNITS, MIN, LOT SIZE 6,000 SQ, FT, 

BEING A DIVISION OF A PORTION OF THE E ~ OF THE N J1 OF THE NE Yo OF SECTION 14, 
TOWNSHIP JOSOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST, AND A PORTlON OF THE EJ1 OF THE s )Iz OF THE SWY. OF SECTION 11, 
TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH. RANGE 10 EAST. MT, DIABLO MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF MERCED. STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

/ 

" 

--

-~ "L. .::.."""'=" ,="'="~~ 
,(,::;~t 

LEGEND 

,or aotnoOAAr 

FI:ICHT_or_w •• 

-~-
~~. -_ .. 
=~~ 

~ . -
IlO"ECIlOIW. FUM 
.... """'wl """'" 
~ 

= •• 
"~ 
'RON ."", ('P,) 

~COHrou" --, 
,~~ 

...... a ........ S£WO! ""'"""-" 

"""'" S!WER_E 
,<. ~-,--
-~ 
-~ 
_ . 

. { """"""'" tiiO:< C', ~ .. , •• ", .. " mNJ 
r,~ """",,--,, .. ,. .. ""'"""" oru 1>'3) 

,;.' .. --;-- "" )\J 
~-=r-':'-~-

f---~-.--j"i".@, .@,"I" ~ r, .ll,':!"f·:""~":" "ql~'~, 
SQ,n. I son.(~ S<)fT I SQ. fT. $<l.fT ,".r~. ::'h. ~":h. ~.r..:'}" .... , 

,';~ .. , .,' ;,,"\ _ n,:,~;, tif, .. i," ~ > ~ J.. ~ .~ I 6n ~ J~')r~ '/~_'-;------'-- -'"\... ' __ if', S<I.... I' SQ n- ~ SO '" I SO or SO fT. F e'lifl ':'. fT. 'ib~I---; __ 
_ ~_J_. ,:e:., ,:l'c-,---'-_--' -, L ./ I ~FT. '~~J.."';,=:- PECNlel 

.':;.~, ~;CCC- ":;{': '_, ,C_: _~;;;;;;.-;".-_ ,~.~, -- ,---: - '---1_~ .'il. f"'i "--~'~''--
'_---1,<--, ,~ - "',,,""'_" <0 .. Wl SQ. FT. r. (1 

1 '--," 1301 000' ~1' OOOt ""'" OOO~ 0"'" 000' ol>5\ Goo, 00"".:5zs SO. n. i Iii . ; ti, D, !) ,,\ .,' ® ~ 1'\@'0.<01.""",,,,, " ~ ~ ilI,:\ i -,-
, ~~_ SQ, fT. SO_ 'V ! SQ, n SO. ft. SO_ f1 SQ, '!', j SQ. FT. SO. n. so_ n. SO. n SO n SO n i f 

<::")~'~;)--'jj -1, '" ~,d;; " 
'" i' i. ®;. • @J _~ " @J " '" " "''' "III 

, , 

'--',.' I"""" "<S' ..... ..5:; ...,.. c~ ~ ~ .~ .~ ~ ~. o'ils . 

REFERlNCES 

(~1) ~~:~'Y~~- o,,;,;,,~;;..~...,":~';~ 2";_'::" (~·c:"'3"''')£<1 iN 

fRO) ::~,,: ~~&~S:~"i.~~- ,"j.':';" (~,,",;_jOl<"m .. 
(0') ~~~::c"";. -: ~~&T~·~~";~~-"~_~~~.~:"";'C<JF<OEO .... 

r<tC<JF<orn .ffi. _"H'OOOtI l'>tA1'FS "" .... PH'"5 ' . ..-R """" 

0, -1lIl {] 
~"' ... ~ 

~ 

~, 
u! 
0, 
i2>i ..,' ~~ 
t.'! 
~ 
~ .., 

f-< 

~ 

; 
~ 
'1 

jf 
01 
~ 

~ 
§ 

f-<_ 
",0 
>M 
~S 
<" 

~ 



10-£[00 
S3:.lVI:JOSSV ~ ~WV l::>V1!l ClAIl V lNtll 

.<>'" 

~ 

i 
l ®:;c: I ~~ 1 @" ! ~t;; 1 ~t:_ " " -, , 

----'i 

i ~t::_ , -, • •• 

>! .. ." -" .'. ." '. ",>t, , 
'., ....... - ,"'ill , - -· 

®¥~ 
, , , 

..... , 

~~ , 
• 

." @ , 

'" ®J~ 1 



LOS Banos 
C .:J SS () I 1 f a t , 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

TO: CHAIRMAN SPADA AND PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: STACY SOUZA ELMS, ASSISTANT PLANNER II 

FOR: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF MAY 14, 2014 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
(SCH#2014011068) AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2013-01 - AMG & 
ASSOCIATES 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. 2014-07 approving 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH#2014011068) and approving Tentative 
Tract Map #2013-01 for the subdivision of 11.4 acres into fifty-seven (57) single
family residential lots located at the northeast corner of Willmott Avenue and 
North Street; more specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-050-
066. 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 

On March 1, 1989, the Los Banos City Council approved the incorporation of the 
Ranchwood Friguglietti & Toscano Annexation into the City of Los Banos, which 
included the subject 11.4 acres. The subject property was zoned for Low-Density 
Residential (R-1) and was used primarily for agricultural purposes (row crops) with 
several residences and accessory structures pending development. The proposed 
project site is not currently in production and urban development (primarily single-family 
development) has occurred on all sides of the project site. 

The applicant is seeking approval of Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 to subdivide 
approximately 11.4 acres into 57 single-family residential lots, ranging from 6,000 
square feet to 11,741 square feet. The proposed subdivision meets the standards of 
the Los Banos Municipal Code and will be developed in accordance to Los Banos 
Standards and Specifications. 

At this hearing the Planning Commission will consider certification of a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and conditional approval of the Tentative Tract Map. 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

LOCATION AND ACCESS: 

2 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

The proposed project is located on the northeast corner of Willmott Avenue and North 
Street. Access to the project site will be from Rose Avenue and FriguglieUi Avenue. 
The project site is outlined in yellow on the area map below. 

LAND USE: 

The subject property has two unoccupied residential structures with the remainder 
consisting of vacant former agricultural fields. The subject property is surrounded on all 
sides by residential development. 

Property Land Use Zone General Plan 
Project Site Vacant R-1 Low Density 
North Residential R-1 Low Density 

East Residential R-1 Low Density 

South Residential R-1 Low Density 

West Residential R-1 Low Density 

R-1 = Low Density Residential 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

3 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the City of Los Banos 
Environmental Quality Guidelines, an Initial Study was prepared to identify and assess 
potential environmental impacts as a result of this project. Through the Initial Study, 
staff determined that the project would not result in any significant adverse affects with 
the incorporation of mitigation measures. 

Staff prepared a Notice of Intent for Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH #2014011068) 
which was posted at the Merced County Clerk's Office and sent to the State 
Clearinghouse for circulation and review by various agencies on January 24, 2014 and 
closed on February 24,2014. The Notice of Intent was also published in the Los Banos 
Enterprise on January 24, 2014 to allow the public to comment on the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration. One comment letter was received by the Los 
Banos Unified School District and revisions were made to the Initial Study. 

Staff revised the Notice of Intent and re-circulated the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014011068) with the State Clearinghouse and re-posted the document with the 
Merced County Clerk's Office on April 11, 2014. As of the date of this report, no 
comments have been received. 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration is appropriate when an initial study has been prepared 
and a determination can be made that no significant environmental effects will occur 
because mitigation measures will be implemented which will reduce all potentially 
significant impacts to less than significant levels. 

Applicable mitigation measures have been incorporated into the Mitigation Monitoring 
Program and have reduced any potential impacts to less than significant. 

TENTATIVE TRACT MAP ANALYSIS: 

In General 
Land cannot be divided in California without local government approval. Dividing land 
for sale, lease or financing is regulated by local ordinances based on the State 
Subdivision Map Act (commencing with Government Code Section 66410). The local 
General Plan, zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances govern the design of the 
subdivision, the size of lots, and the types of improvements (street construction, sewer 
lines, drainage facilities, etc.). 

There are essentially two types of subdivisions: parcel maps (minor subdivisions), which 
are limited to divisions resulting in fewer than five lots (with certain exceptions), and 
subdivision maps (also referred to as tract maps), which apply to divisions resulting in 
five or more lots. Applications for both types of land divisions must be submitted to the 
local government for consideration in accordance with the local subdivision ordinance 
and the Subdivision Map Act. 

Upon receiving an application for a subdivision map, staff examines the design of the 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

4 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

subdivision to ensure that it meets the requirements of the General Plan, the Zoning 
Ordinance, the local Subdivision Ordinance, and the California Subdivision Mp Act. A 
public hearing must be held prior to approval of a Tentative Tract Map. 

Approval of a Tentative Tract Map generally means that the subdivider will be 
responsible for installing improvements such as streets, drainage facilities or sewer 
lines to serve the subdivision. These improvements must be installed or secured by 
bond before the City will grant final approval of the map (final map) and allow the 
subdivision to be recorded in the County Recorder's office. Lots within the subdivision 
cannot be sold until the final map has been officially recorded. The subdivider has at 
least two years and up to five years if extended, in which to comply with the 
improvement requirements, gain final administrative approval, and record the final map. 
If the tentative map expires, it cannot be revived. Instead, a new tentative map must be 
applied for, processed, and approved. 

Code Requirements 
Title 9, Chapter 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code regulates the processing and 
approval of all subdivisions within the City of Los Banos. In accordance with the 
subdivision code, the Tentative Map has been reviewed by the Project Review Board 
prior to its submission to the Planning Commission. Among other things the Project 
Review Board has reviewed the Tentative Map for: suitability of the land for subdivision; 
overall design of the subdivision; provisions for public improvements such as street 
improvements, utilities, storm drains, sidewalks, water supply, and sewage disposal; 
provisions for public areas such as parks and schools. The Project Review Board 
reviewed the Tentative Map on November 5, 2013 and their recommendations are 
incorporated into the Conditions of Approval for Planning Commission consideration. 

Pursuant to Section 9-2.B06(b) of the Los Banos Municipal Code, the Planning 
Commission shall determine whether the tentative map is in conformity with the 
provisions of law and of the Municipal Code, and shall approve, conditionally approve, 
or disapprove such map. 

Project Design 
The proposed residential subdivision is a continuation of earlier Ranchwood 
subdivisions. The single-family residential development includes 57 single-family 
residential lots ranging in size from 6,000 square feet to 11,741 square feet, with an 
average lot size of 6,555 square feet. The proposed density is approximately 5 units 
per acre. The subdivision will be a standard R-1 development and will be built in 
accordance with the Municipal Code and all City Standards and Specifications will 
apply. 

Pursuant to the Zoning Code, the minimum lot size for single-family dwellings shall be 
6,000 square feet and the lot width shall be a minimum of 60 feet for interior lots and 65 
feet for corner lots. The project meets the requirements of the Zoning Code for 
minimum lot size. 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

5 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

Architecture is not a required component of the Tentative Tract Map, but the proposed 
subdivision will be required to be designed in accordance with the Residential 
Community Design Guidelines and will be compatible with adjacent neighborhoods. The 
streets have been designed to connect to existing street connections to integrate the 
existing neighborhoods with the proposed neighborhood. 

Land Use 
The project site is designated as Low Density Residential according to the Los Banos 
General Plan and Low Density Residential (R-1) in accordance with the Zoning Map. 
The proposed project is proposing to subdivide 11.4 acres into 57 single-family 
residential lots. The proposed use is consistent with the Los Banos General Plan and 
Zoning Code. 

Landscape and Lighting 
Prior to issuance of any permits, the developer will be required to prepare a Landscape 
and Lighting Plan for the proposed subdivision in the public right of way. The landscape 
plan will be designed in accordance with the City's "Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance" and the lighting plan will include a Lumen Dispersion Map and comply with 
the City of Los Banos Standards and Specifications. Maintenance of the landscape and 
lighting areas will be financed through a Landscape and Lighting District. The 
developer will be required to form or annex to an existing Landscape and Lighting 
District. 

Circulation 
A traffic study was completed for the subject project by KD Anderson & Associates, Inc. 
The purpose of the study was to identify potential project specific and cumulative traffic 
impacts that could happen with build out of this project. The project was evaluated 
using existing traffic and existing plus approved projects scenario that assumes other 
approved but not constructed projects. The study also considered long term conditions 
occurring in year 2030 under the City of Los Banos General Plan. The cumulative 
analysis is based on the results of the City's Transportation Master Plan travel demand 
forecasting model. 

The project will result in additional traffic conditions. The residences in the proposed 
subdivision will contribute their fair share to the cost of future traffic improvements to the 
area by paying adopted City of Los Banos traffic impact fees and therefore will result in 
a less than significant impact. 

Based on staff's analysis of the project, the developer will be required to design and 
install a 4-way stop at the intersection of Mandarin Avenue and North Street. 

Infrastructure/Services 
Water: The City of Los Banos would provide domestic water services by connecting to 
an existing eight-inch water line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and 
Mandarin Avenue and installing an eight-inch and six-inch water line that would loop the 
project site and connect to the existing eight-inch water line located in Friguglietti 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

6 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

Avenue. All existing groundwater wells within the boundary of the map have been 
conditioned to be abandoned to Merced County Standards. The project is subject to the 
provisions of the Los Banos Water Master Plan and will conform to its requirements 
including, but not limited to, payment of water impact fees. 

Sewer: The City of Los Banos would provide wastewater service to the project site by 
connect to an existing sewer line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and 
Mandarin Avenue, and installing a six-inch sanitary sewer line through the project site. 
Project build-out has been contemplated in the Wastewater Master Plans and will 
conform to its requirements including, but not limited to, payment of the wastewater 
impact fees. 

Drainage: The City of Los Banos would provide storm water drain services by 
connecting to an existing storm drain line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue 
and Mandarin Avenue, and installing an 18-inch line the proposed project. 

It should be noted that all City infrastructure has been sized to accommodate this use 
and will be built in accordance with the City's Utility Master Plans. 

Fire and Police Services: The proposed project would add an additional 57 single
family dwellings to the service demands of the Fire Department and Police Department. 
The project will be conditioned to annex into a Community Facilities District (CFD) to 
fund expansion of public safety services. 

School Facilities 
Senate Bill (SB) 50, which was signed into law in 1998, provides comprehensive school 
facilities financing and reform program, and enabled a $9,200,000,000 statewide bond 
measure to be placed on the ballot which passed in November 1998. The provisions of 
SB 50 allow the State to offer funding to school districts to acquire school sites, 
construct new school facilities, and modernize existing school facilities. SB 50 also 
establishes a process for determining the amount of fees developers may be charged to 
mitigate the impact of development on school facilities resulting from increased 
enrollment. Under this legislation, a school district could charge fees above the statutory 
cap only under specified conditions, and then only up to the amount of funds that the 
district would be eligible to receive from the State. According to Section 65996 of the 
California Government Code, development fees authorized by SB 50 are deemed to be 
"full and complete school facilities mitigation". 

SB 50 establishes three levels of developer fees that may be imposed upon new 
development by the governing board of a school district depending upon certain 
conditions within a district. These three levels are as follows: 

Level 1: Level 1 fees are the base statutory fees. These amounts are the maximum that 
can be legally imposed upon new construction projects by a school district unless the 
district qualifies for a higher level of funding. 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

7 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

Level 2: Level 2 fees allow the school district to impose developer fees above the 
statutory level, up to 50 percent of new school construction costs. To implement Level 2 
fees, the governing board of the school district must adopt a School Facilities Needs 
Analysis (SFNA) and meet other pre-requisites in accordance with Section 65995.6 of 
the California Government Code. The purpose of an SFNA is to determine the need for 
new school facilities attributable to growth from new residential development (California 
Government Code §65995.6). An SFNA documents that the district has met prerequisite 
eligibility tests and calculates the fee per square foot of new development. If the school 
district is eligible for State new construction funding, the State will match the Level 2 
fees if funds are available. The LBUSD currently implements a Level 2 fee of $7.35 per 
square foot of new residential development. The SFNA was last updated in May 2013 
and Level 2 fees will be effective through May 2014. 

Level 3: Level 3 fees apply if the State runs out of bond funds, allowing the school 
district to impose 100 percent of the cost of the school facility or mitigation minus any 
local dedicated school monies. If the State runs out of bond funds, the LBUSD would be 
eligible to charge Level 3 fees of $14.70 per square foot. 

The LBUSD meets the eligibility requirements regarding the collection of Level 2 and 3 
fees. 

SB 50 specifically limits the cities and counties powers under CEQA to mitigate school 
facilities impacts applicable to both adjudicative and legislative decisions. State law is 
very clear. 

• A local agency is prohibited from imposing an exaction in excess of that provided 
by statute; 

• A local agency is prohibited from denying a land use approval on the basis of a 
developer's refusal to provide school facilities mitigation that exceeds the 
amounts authorized by statute; 

• A local agency is prohibited from using the inadequacy of school facilities as a 
basis for denying or conditioning a land use approval; and 

• Payment of development fees is considered full and complete mitigation of 
impacts on the provision of adequate school facilities. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

A public hearing notice was published in the Los Banos Enterprise and Merced Sun
Star and notices were mailed out to property owners within a 300' radius of the project 
site on February 14, 2014 and May 2, 2014. As of the date of this staff report, no 
written comments have been received. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. The Tentative Tract Map as conditioned is consistent with the Los Banos General 
Plan and the applicable provisions of the Los Banos Municipal Code. 



Resolution #2014-07 
Mit Neg Dec & TIM #2013-01 

8 Planning Commission 
May 14, 2014 

2. That as mitigated there is no substantial evidence that the project may have a 
significant effect on the environment. 

Staff requests that the Planning Commission open the public hearing, receive 
public comment, and consider 

3. Adoption of Resolution No. 2014-07 approving Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014011068) and approving Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for the 
subdivision of 11.4 acres into fifty-seven (57) single-family residential lots located 
at the northeast corner of Willmott Avenue and North Street; more specifically 
identified as Assessor's Parcel Number: 082-050-066. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 2014-07 
Exhibit A: CEQA Findings 
Exhibit B: Findings for Approval 
Exhibit C: Conditions of Approval 
Exhibit D: Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

2. Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
3. Tentative Tract Map 
4. Public Hearing Notice 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 
APPROVING MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION (SCH#2014011068) AND 
APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 2013-
01 FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF APPROXIMATELY 
11.4 ACRES INTO 57 SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL LOTS LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF WILLMOTT AVENUE 
AND NORTH STREET; MORE SPECIFICALLY 
IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR'S PARCEL 
NUMBER: 082-050-066 

WHEREAS, the Los Banos General Plan was adopted by the City of Los Banos 
City Council on July 15, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property has a land use designation of Low Density 
Residential pursuant to the Los Banos General Plan and is zoned Low Density 
Residential (R-1) by the Los Banos Zoning Map; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
City of Los Banos Environmental Quality Guidelines, Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 was 
adequately evaluated in Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014011068); and 

WHEREAS, Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 was reviewed by the Project Review 
Board on November 5, 2013 and was determined to be in compliance with State laws 
and the Los Banos Subdivision Code; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed for February 26, 2014, in 
accordance with California Government Code Section 65091 by advertisement in the 
Los Banos Enterprise and by mail to property owners within 300 feet of the project 
boundaries on February 14, 2014 to consider and take testimony regarding Tentative 
Tract Map #2013-01; and 

WHEREAS, at the May 14, 2014 Planning Commission meeting the Los Banos 
Planning Commission, heard and considered testimony, if any, of all persons desiring to 
be heard; reviewed the Tentative Tract Map and staff report; studied the compatibility of 
the applicant's request with adjacent land uses; has considered the applicant's request 
in accordance with the Tentative Tract Map criteria established in Title 9, Chapter 2, 
Article 8 of the Los Banos Municipal Code; and 

1 



BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE PUBLIC HEARING, the 
Planning Commission of the City of Los Banos does hereby make the findings set forth 
in Exhibit A (CEQA Findings), and Exhibit B (Findings of Approval), attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the 
City of Los Banos does hereby approve Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014011068) and approve Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 subject to the 
conditions of approval attached hereto in Exhibit C for the subdivision of approximately 
11.4 acres into 57 single-family residential lots located at the northeast corner of 
Willmott Avenue and North Street, more specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel 
Number: 082-050-066. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Los Banos held on the 14th day of May 2014, by 
Commissioner who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by 
Commissioner and the Resolution recommended for approval by the following 
vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Tom Spada, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

Sandra Benetti, Planning Commission Secretary 

2 



EXHIBIT A 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS FOR 
TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2013-01 - AMG & ASSOCIATES 

Pursuant to the requirements of California Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq. ("CEQA") and Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et 
seq. (the "CEQA Guidelines"), the City as Lead Agency under CEQA adopts the 
following findings required by CEQA, along with the facts and evidence upon 
which each finding is based. 

The City of Los Banos Planning Commission hereby finds as follows: 

1. Pursuant to CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Los Banos 
Environmental Quality Guidelines, Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for AMG 
& Associates was evaluated in an Initial Study which determined that the 
project would not involve any significant environmental effects, provided 
that the mitigation measures described in the Initial Study were 
implemented and a Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH#2014011068) 
was made. 

2. The Mitigated Negative Declaration was adequately noticed and circulated 
for public review and no public comments on the proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration were received. The City distributed the Notice of 
Intent with copies of the Mitigated Negative Declaration, and posted the 
Notice of Intent at the Merced County Clerk's office on January 24,2014. 

3. On the basis of the whole record, including the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and public comment, the Planning Commission finds that 
there is no SUbstantial evidence that the Project may have a significant 
effect on the environment with proper mitigation. 

4. The Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared in compliance with 
CEQA and on the basis of the whole record, there is no substantial 
evidence of significant new information or changes in the environmental 
setting have occurred that would result in new or greater significant effects 
not studied in the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

5. The City of Los Banos Community Development Department, located at 
520 J Street in Los Banos, is the custodian of the documents that 
constitute the record of proceedings upon which the determination to 
adopt the mitigated negative declaration is based. 

6. Upon approval of the project analyzed in the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, the City of Los Banos will monitor the implementation of the 
mitigation measures in accordance with the Mitigation Monitoring 
Program. 



7. Prior to considering the proposed Project, the Planning Commission 
considered the Mitigated Negative Declaration. 



EXHIBIT B 

FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2013-04 - AMG & 
ASSOCIATES 

Based upon the entire record, the City of Los Banos Planning Commission 
hereby finds as follows: 

1. None of the findings (a) through (g) in Section 66474 of the California 
Subdivision Map Act that require a City to deny approval of the proposed 
Tentative Tract Map apply to this project. 

2. As described in the project staff report the proposal is consistent with the 
Los Banos General Plan and Zoning Ordinance as it meets the use and 
development standards specified within. Evidence. Single-Family 
Residential dwelling units are permitted in the district per the text of the 
Zoning Code. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the Los Banos 
General Plan as the proposal is compatible in scale and character with 
existing uses and historic structures and neighborhoods. 

3. The proposal will not be detrimental to the health, safety, comfort, or 
general welfare of the persons residing or working in the City of Los 
Banos, or injurious to property or improvements in the surrounding 
neighborhoods or within the City. Evidence. The proposal will enhance 
the surrounding area and provide connectivity for the adjacent 
neighborhoods. The proposed project has been reviewed by the Planning 
Review Board for conformance to applicable policies and regulations. 
Comments and requirements have been addressed or incorporated as 
conditions of approval to ensure protection of public health, welfare, and 
safety. 

4. The proposed single-family residential lots are compatible with the 
adjacent uses, properties, and neighborhoods, and will not be detrimental 
or injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood or to the 
general welfare of the City. Evidence. The project density matches those 
of the surrounding subdivisions and the configuration of the residential lots 
is compatible with the surrounding neighborhoods. 

5. The Tentative Tract Map will provide for infrastructure services and will 
meet the requirements of the Los Banos Fire Department as the project is 
within the five-minute response area of the Main Fire Station. 



6. As described in the project staff report and with the recommended 
conditions of approval, the proposed subdivision design, lot sizes, lot 
configurations, and proposed infrastructure improvements are consistent 
with the Los Banos General Plan and Municipal Code, and are adequate 
to accommodate the density and intensity of the development proposed. 

7. The project site is physically suitable for residential development. 
Evidence. Access to the site is existing and available. Necessary 
services and facilities including water, sewer, and storm drain are 
available or can be provided. 

8. No conflicts with easements acquired by the public at large, for access 
through or use of the property within the proposed subdivision have been 
identified. 

9. That a Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared and all significant 
effects can be mitigated to less than significant levels and the decision 
making body reviewed and considered the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
prior to taking action on the project. 



EXHIBITC 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2013-01 -
AMG & ASSOCIATES 

Planning: 

1. The applicant shall submit a final tentative tract map to the Community 
Development Department within 30 days from Planning Commission 
approval, reflecting any modifications or additions identified within the staff 
report and conditions of approval, or imposed by Planning Commission. The 
final tentative tract map shall be reviewed and signed by the Community 
Development Director or designatee for purposes of providing a clear record 
of the approved final tentative tract map. 

2. Prior to recordation of a Final Map, the developer shall form or annex the 
subject property to a Community Facilities District created for the purposes of 
funding public safety, as authorized by Government Code Section 53313(a) 
and (b). The form, terms and conditions, and the tax rate for the formation of 
the Mello-Roos district, or in the alternative the annexation of the subject 
property to an existing district, shall be as approved by the City Council, as 
determined in its sole and exclusive discretion. District formation or 
annexation shall be at the sole cost of the Developer. 

3. Prior to recordation of a Final Map, the developer shall form or annex the 
subject property to a Landscape and Lighting District created for the purposes 
of maintaining public landscape areas, signage, and public lighting including a 
share of traffic signal maintenance costs as authorized pursuant to the 
Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, Part of Division 15 of the California 
Streets and Highways Code, and Article XIIiD of the California Constitution. 
The form, terms and conditions, and tax rate for the formation of the 
Landscape and Lighting district, or in the alternative the annexation of the 
subject property to an existing district, shall be as approved by the City 
Council, as determined in its sole and exclusive discretion. District formation 
or annexation shall be at the sole cost of the Developer. 

3. The project shall be subject to and the Developer shall pay development 
impact fees enacted by the City, including scheduled or periodic increases as 
provided for in the adopting ordinances or resolutions, in effect at the time of 
the Developer's request for the issuance of building permits andlor as 
included in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 

4. Off-site public improvement plan(s) shall be submitted to the Public Works 
Department for approval prior tolor concurrent with the application for the 
Final Map. The developer shall not commence off-site improvements until 
approval is received by the Public Works Department. The developer shall 
enter into a subdivision improvement agreement with the City and provide 



labor and maintenance bonds in an amount of 100% of the Engineer's 
Estimate for public improvements to be completed following recordation of the 
Final Map. 

6. A Final Map shall be prepared by a professional land surveyor licensed in 
California or a professional engineer licensed in California and qualified to 
practice land surveying, according to the Subdivision Map Act, and local 
ordinances. 

7. At least two points on the Final Map shall be tied to the California State Plane 
Coordinate System (NAD 83) with ties shown and closure calculations 
depicting the tie bearings and distances. 

8. The developer shall be responsible for ensuring that the development 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements. 

Pre-Construction and Construction: 

9. All contractors performing work relative to this project shall obtain City of Los 
Banos Business Licenses, prior to start of work on the project. All work 
performed on the project shall comply with the requirements of the State 
Business and Professions Code. 

10. Construction shall be limited to those times allowed by City Ordinance: 
Monday through Friday from 7:00 am to 7:00 pm; Saturday from 8:00 am to 
7:00 pm; and Sunday from 9:00 am to 7:00 pm. Properly muffled equipment 
shall be used. 

11. During construction, and for safety purposes, the applicant and assigned 
contractors shall keep the public right-of-way clear of obstructions, and 
provide for clean up on a daily basis. 

12. Prior to the issuance of grading permits, the grading plan shall include the 
following language, "Large bulldozers, loaded trucks, or heavy equipment 
which causes significant ground vibration will not operate closer than 50 feet 
to an occupied residence without notifying the resident 48 hours in advance of 
construction work." 

13. The applicant shall convey copies of the conditions of approval to all 
contractors and subcontractors. 

14. Building permits shall be issued in accordance with the Los Banos Municipal 
Code and Standards and Specifications that identifies the improvements 
required in order for a building permit to be issued. 

15. The developer shall be responsible for obtaining encroachment permits from 
the City of Los Banos, County of Merced, Caltrans, or other jurisdictions prior 
to performing any work within that jurisdiction's right-of-way. 



16.AII structures, foundations, and footings for buildings on the project site shall 
be designed and constructed to conform to the current California Building 
Code, including amendments adopted by the City. 

17.An engineering soils report shall be prepared for all projects in order to 
identify soil characteristics requiring special structural design. On-site and 
off-site structural design shall conform to the findings and recommendation of 
the engineering soils report. The report shall be prepared prior to issuance of 
a grading permit, subject to review and approval of the City Engineer. 

18. The developer shall incorporate soil erosion control measures into grading 
and drainage plans that comply with NPDES storm water regulations. These 
measures shall be monitored for effectiveness by the City of Los Banos. 
Such measures may include, but not be limited to, the following: 

a. Limit disturbance of soils and vegetation disturbance removal to the 
minimum area necessary for access and construction; 

b. Confine all vehicular traffic associated with construction to the right
of-way of designated access roads; 

c. Adhere to construction schedules designed to avoid periods of 
heavy precipitation or high winds; 

d. Ensure that all exposed soil is provided with temporary drainage 
and soil protection when construction activity is shut down during 
the winter periods; 

e. Inform construction personnel prior to construction and periodically 
during construction activities of environmental concerns, pertinent 
laws and regulations, and elements of the proposed erosion control 
measures; 

f. Compliance with National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permits administered by the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board; and 

g. Development of a plan to employ best management practices that 
reduce the level of pollutants discharged into natural waterways 
and wetlands. 

19.5ilt fencing shall be installed in accordance with American Society for Testing 
and Materials standard 06462. 

20.A minimum 200-foot separation shall be maintained between residences and 
material stockpiles, debris piles, or containers and equipment storage during 
the construction process. If such storage must be located within 200 feet of a 
residence, a six-foot high opaque fence shall shield the storage area from 



view when the storage area is inactive for more than eight hours. This 
requirement shall be incorporated into the specifications for all construction 
plans, subject to review and approval by the Community Development 
Director and/or designatee. 

21. During construction activities, all food-related trash items shall be enclosed in 
sealed containers and regularly removed from the project site to avoid 
attracting wildlife to the project site, and pets shall not be allowed on the 
construction site. The proper location of the trash containers shall be subject 
to the review and approval of the Community Development Director and/or 
designatee. 

22. Prior to placement of combustible materials on the site, two points of all
weather access, at least one paved, shall be provided for each phase, to the 
satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

23. Temporary construction trailers shall be permitted only in areas immediately 
adjacent to or within that portion of the subdivision where active subdivision 
construction is taking place. Placement of said construction trailer is subject 
to approval of the Public Works Director and the Community Development 
Director and/or designatee. 

24. Temporary on-site and off-site subdivision signs shall conform to the use 
permit requirements of Los Banos Municipal Code section 9-3.1709 and be 
consistent with the development criteria of the Los Banos Municipal Code 
Sign Ordinance. Separate sign reviews and bonding may be required. 

25.lf parking for model homes is to be provided in a temporary parking lot, such 
lot shall be approved by the Community Development Director as a 
commercial lot conforming with Los Banos Municipal Code section 9-3.2009, 
and shall be removed within 60 days of the end of sales, if not intended to 
serve a permanent use. 

26. Prior to acceptance of public improvements, all streets shall be barricaded to 
prevent the public from entering the construction site. The developer and 
assigned contractors shall keep all streets clear of obstructions, whether not 
yet accepted or within the public right-of-way, and provide for clean up on a 
daily basis. Access to model homes may be provided on streets prior to 
acceptance of public improvements; such streets shall be marked as not 
publicly maintained. 

27. Undeveloped portions of development sites shall be controlled of weeds and 
free of debris and litter. The applicant shall provide protection against wind 
and water soil erosion on undeveloped portions of the project site. 
Temporary vegetation on undeveloped portions of the project site shall not be 
allowed to grow taller than eighteen inches. 

28. Prior to issuance of building permits for development on the project site, if the 



project site has remained fallow and reverted to grassland vegetation, the 
following measures shall be required, subject to the review and approval of 
the City of Los Banos Community Development Department: 

a) A pre-construction survey shall be conducted by a qualified 
biologist for burrowing owls within 30 days of the on-set of construction 
according to methods described in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl 
Mitigation (CDFG 1995). 

b) If pre-construction surveys undertaken during the breeding season 
(February through July) locate active nest burrows within or near 
construction zones, these nests, and an appropriate buffer around them 
(as determined by a qualified biologist) must remain off-limits to 
construction until the breeding season is over. The CDFG recommends 
setbacks from occupied nest burrows of 100 meters where construction 
will result in the loss of foraging habitat. 

c) During the non-breeding season (August through January), resident 
owls may be relocated to alternative habitat. The relocation of resident 
owls must be according to a relocation plan prepared by a qualified 
biologist in consultation with the California Department of Fish and Game. 
Passive relocation is the preferred method of relocation. This plan must 
provide for the owls relocation to nearby lands possessing available 
nesting and foraging habitat. 

29. Due to the possibility that significant buried cultural resources might be found 
during construction, the following language shall be included in any permits 
issued for the project site, including, but not limited to building permits for 
future development, subject to the review and approval of the Los Banos 
Community Development Department: 

"If archaeological resources or human remains are discovered during 
construction, work shall be halted at a minimum of 200 feet from the find 
and the area shall be staked off. The project developer shall notify a 
qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be 
significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated and 
implemented. " 

30. In the event of an accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains 
in any location other than a dedicated cemetery, the City shall ensure that this 
language is included in all permits in accordance with CEQA Guidelines 
section 15064.5(e): 

"If human remains are found during construction there shall be no further 
excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably 
suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until the Los Banos Police 
Department contacts the coroner of Merced County to determine that no 



investigation of the cause of death is required. If the coroner determines 
the remains to be Native American, the coroner shall contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission within 24 hours. The Native American 
Heritage Commission shall identify the person or persons it believes to be 
the most likely descendent from the deceased Native American. The most 
likely descendent may then make recommendations to the landowner or 
the person responsible for the excavation work, for means of treating or 
disposing of, with appropriate dignity, the human remains and associated 
grave goods as provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. The 
landowner or his authorized representative shall rebury the Native 
American human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate 
dignity on the property in a location not subject to further disturbance if: a) 
the Native American Heritage Commission is unable to identify a most 
likely descendent or the most likely descendent failed to make a 
recommendation within 24 hours after being notified by the commission; b) 
the descendent identified fails to make a recommendation; or c) the 
landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of 
the descendent, and the mediation by the Native American Heritage 
Commission fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner." 

31. Prior to issuance of a building permit, dust control requirements consistent 
with SJVAPCD District Rule VIII shall be included in all construction contract 
specifications to reduce significant levels of construction contract 
specifications to reduce significant levels of construction-related hazardous 
air emissions. 

a. All disturbed areas, including storage piles, which are not being 
actively utilized for construction purposes, shall be effectively 
stabilized of dust emissions using water, chemical 
stabilizerlsuppressant, or vegetative cover. 

b. All on-site unpaved roads and off-site unpaved access roads shall 
be effectively stabilized of dust emissions using water or chemical 
stabilizer/suppressant. 

c. All land clearing, grubbing, scraping, excavation, land leveling, 
grading, and cut and fill activities shall be effectively controlled of 
fugitive dust emissions utilizing application of water or by 
presoaking. 

d. When materials are transported off-site, all material shall be 
covered, effectively wetted to limit visible dust emissions, or at least 
six inches of freeboard space from the top of the container shall be 
maintained. 

e. All operations shall limit or expeditiously remove the accumulation 
of mud or dirt from adjacent public streets at least once every 24 



hours when operations are occurring. (The use of dry rotary 
brushes is expressly prohibited except where preceded or 
accompanied by sufficient wetting to limit the visible dust 
emissions. The use of blower devices is expressly forbidden.) 

f. Following the addition of materials to, or the removal of materials 
from, the surface of outdoor storage piles, said piles shall be 
effectively stabilized of fugitive dust emissions utilizing sufficient 
water or chemical stabilizer/suppressant. 

32. Prior to issuance of building permits, developers shall include the following 
requirements in all construction bids and documents including contracts (and 
implemented during construction activities) for the purpose of reducing diesel 
particulate and acrolein emissions during construction of the project: 

a. All pre-1994 model year and older diesel equipment shall be 
retrofitted with EPA-certified diesel oxidation catalyst filters; 

b. Contractor shall maintain records of all purchases of diesel 
oxidation catalyst filters or biodiesel fuel until construction is 
complete; and 

c. The SJVAPCD shall have the right to inspect all construction and 
demolition equipment, as well as the contractor's records at any 
time during demolition and construction. 

33. Prior to issuance of building permits for development of sensitive residential 
land uses (e.g. houses, schools, parks, day care), or other uses in which 
persons may contact soils), a Phase 1 environmental assessment shall be 
prepared to determine if soils contain hazardous materials. If necessary, a 
remediation plan shall be created and implemented. The assessment and 
any necessary remediation plans shall be subject to the approval of the 
Community Development Department. 

Access and Circulation: 

34. The developer shall submit public improvement plans to include curb, gutter, 
sidewalk, street lights, decorative masonry wall, underground utilities and a 
landscape plan for public areas. The developer shall be responsible for 
constructing public streets per the public improvement plans approved by the 
City Engineer in sUbstantial compliance with the Tentative Tract Map. 
Improvements to adjacent arterial streets and collector streets shall be 
completed prior to occupancy of any use within the current phase, and 
improvements to neighborhood streets shall be complete prior to occupancy 
of any house that requires the street for access. 

35. Where standard corner lot side yards abut a street, a minimum three-foot 
landscaping area shall be provided between the back of sidewalk and the 



fence. 

36. Restricted access rights shall be irrevocably offered for dedication to the City 
along the rear edge of private property where properties back onto arterial or 
collector streets, and shall be shown on final maps. 

37. Two points of all-weather access, at least one paved, shall be provided to all 
areas of the development during all phases of construction to the satisfaction 
of the fire Chief in areas where residential units are under construction. 

38. Parking shall be as provided in LBMC section 9-3.2004. 

39. Proposed street signage shall be approved by the Public Works Department 
and meet line-of-sight requirements. 

40. Prior to acceptance of subdivision improvements, the developer shall install 
all street and traffic control signs, pavement striping, and street name signs in 
accordance with the public improvement plans and City standards. 

Utilities: 

41. Existing utility easements shall be preserved. If existing utilities and/or 
easements are relocated for the benefit of a developer, that developer shall 
be fully responsible for the relocation including all expenses. 

42.ln conformance with the Subdivision Map Act, developer shall permit 
installation of underground cable television delivery systems within public 
utility easements. All dwellings shall be made cable ready. 

43. Prior to approval of Improvement Plans or Final Maps, the developer shall 
obtain any necessary easements for utilities that cross adjoining properties 
and signatures from the Irrigation District or other public agencies for 
relocated facilities. 

44.AII existing overhead utilities shall be placed underground. No new overhead 
utility lines and equipment shall be shown on Improvement Plans and Grading 
Plans. 

45. Where the invert is six feet or greater below finish grade, a minimum 
clearance of five feet from lip of gutter to the edge of pipe shall be provided 
for underground utility lines. 

Public Safety: 

46. Fire hydrants shall be in place and functioning prior to approval of the first 
residential building permit within each phase of the development. Fire 
hydrants shall be installed at locations as approved by the Fire Chief on the 
Improvement Plans and shall be installed based upon City standards. 



47.A plan and cross-section shall be provided for emergency vehicle accesses, 
and shall be approved by the Fire Chief and Police Chief. The emergency 
vehicle access shall be approved by the Fire Chief and Police Chief prior to 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for structures and uses requiring the 
access. 

48. The developer shall install "Blue Dot" fire hydrant locators, as specified by 
City development standards. 

49. The developer shall comply with the City Fire Codes and Regulations subject 
to Fire Department approval in regards to building requirements, fire hydrant 
placement, and sprinkler requirements. 

50. Paved surface streets shall be a minimum of 32-feet curb-to-curb. 

51. Street names shall be approved by the Fire Department. 

52. Minimum water lines shall be 8-inch. 

53. No combustible materials shall be on-site prior to the approval of the Fire 
Department. 

54. Each residence shall have 6-inch lighted address numbers of contrasting 
color installed on the front elevations. 

55. Driveways, parking lots, water lines, fire hydrants, and underground utilities 
shall be completed prior to issuance of building permits. 

56. Upon completion and approval of the project plans, a CD shall be submitted 
to the Fire Department providing information on street layout, hydrant 
locations, water mains, storm drain inlets (i.e. Fire Department pre-planning). 

Landscaping: 

57. The applicant shall submit landscape and irrigation plans with improvement 
plans for Public Works Department approval of streetscape landscaping as 
part of the public improvement plans. 

58.AII residential lots shall have fully landscaped front yards at time of sale. 

59. Landscape plans for single-family residences shall utilize drought tolerant 
plantings for no less than 75 percent of front yards. Turf varieties shall be 
chosen for drought tolerance. Irrigation systems shall be set to minimize 
water use and spillage onto paved areas. 

60. Landscape plans shall emphasize deciduous shade tree plantings to the 
south and west of buildings. 



61. Developer shall comply with the adopted street tree ordinance. 

62. Landscaping along streets shall utilize all drought tolerant plantings. Irrigation 
systems shall be designed and operated to minimize water use and spillage 
onto paved areas. The applicant shall submit an irrigation conservation plan 
for the approval of the Public Works Director. The irrigation conservation plan 
shall indicate the amount of water applied in each zone, frequency of 
irrigation, method of matching irrigation to soil moisture conditions, and for 
drought-tolerant plantings, an irrigation reduction or phase out plan when 
plantings are well-established. 

Signage 

63. The developer shall obtain City approval in advance for permanent on-site 
and off-site signs through separate sign reviews and bonding consistent with 
the development criteria of the Los Banos Municipal Code Sign Ordinance. 

Arch itectu re 

64.AII development shall conform to the City's applicable design guidelines and 
standards. 

65. The interface between the street and houses shall be designed to alleviate 
the monotony of straight building lines along the street frontage, and 
facilitation of a "pedestrian friendly" streetscape that encourages community 
interaction. Possible approaches include but are not limited to: varying the 
size of individual dwellings, staggering the front yard setbacks, varying 
exterior building materials and colors, articulating building facades, including 
enhanced fenestration and trim, trellis work, or large porches on front 
elevations, setting garages back from the living areas, and/or utilizing 
extensive landscaping. 

66. Development of the project is subject to approval by the Design Review 
Committee prior to issuance of any building permits. 

67. Prior to issuance of building permits the project shall be required to comply 
with design review in conformance with City Ordinances. 

Fencing: 

68. Where the project boundary abuts existing good-neighbor residential fences, 
the Developer shall replace with new fences in accordance with the 
requirements of the Los Banos Municipal Code .. 

Land Use: 

69. For all properties within 1,000 feet of agricultural operations, deed notices 
shall be recorded with the final map. The deed notice shall require property 



purchasers to acknowledge the existing and ongoing commercial and/or 
agricultural uses on adjacent and nearby properties, and the Merced County 
Right-to-farm Ordinance. 

Air Quality: 

70. Housing units shall be oriented to maximize passive solar cooling and heating 
when practicable. 

71. Gas fired appliances shall be low NOx emitting appliances complying with 
California NOx Emission Rule #1121. 

72. Developer shall comply with all applicable Indirect Source Rule requirements 
of the San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District. Developer 
shall prepare an air emissions reduction if required. 

Public Works 

73. A letter from the Tax Collector shall be submitted prior to the recording of the 
Final Map which indicates that taxes have been paid or a bond has been 
posted. 

74.A Final Map Guarantee shall be prepared and provided to the County 
Recorder. 

75. When the submittal has been technically approved, the original mylars and a 
conforming mylar will be signed and notarized (notary shall not be stamped 
on the map) and delivered to the Public Works Department. 

76. Developer shall include a Public Utility Easement of ten (10) feet along all 
road frontages. 

77.AII improvements shall conform to the latest addition of the Los Banos 
Municipal Code and the Standards and Specifications. 

7S.AII existing groundwater wells within the map boundary shall be abandoned to 
Merced County standards. The City will require copies of the well destruction 
permits. 

79. Developer shall comply with the adopted Street Tree Ordinance. 

SO. Streetlights are to be installed per the City Standards. They shall be "Cobra" 
style with LED lights. The streetlights shall meet the illumination standards in 
the City Street Light standards. 



81. Street shall be designed per the City's Improvement Standards and 
Specifications. The following Traffic Index's shall be used: clu-de-sac, 4.0; 
local streets, 5.0. 

82. The existing street widths for North Street and Willmott Road shall be 
maintained. 

83. Streetlight installation shall be included on North Street and Willmott Road per 
City Standards. 

84. The Developer shall prepare, prior to issuance of a permit, a Landscape and 
Lighting Plan. The Landscape and Lighting Plan shall be approved by the 
Community Development Department and Public Works Department prior to 
issuance of a permit, and shall include the size, type and fixtures to be used 
on site, and include a Lumen Dispersion Map and comply with the City of Los 
Banos Shade Tree Canopy Ordinance. The Landscape Plan shall be 
designed in accordance with the City's "Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance." 

85. Prior to the recordation of the Final Map, a Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement will be needed between the Developer and the City. The 
Agreement shall outline fees, performance dates, bonding and insurance 
requirements, and other pertinent requirements of the project. 

86.An Improvement Plan, reviewed and approved for conformance by the City 
Engineer, shall be designed and approved before the Final Map is recorded. 

87. Prior to the approval of the Improvement Plans, the street sections for all 
streets shall be approved by the City Engineer. 

88.An all way stop control shall be designed and installed by the Developer at 
the intersection of Mandarin Avenue and North Street. 

89. Construction shall be limited to those times allowed per City Ordinance. A 
note stating the hours shall be on the Improvement Plans. 

90.An engineering soils report shall be prepared for all projects in order to 
identify soil characteristics requiring special structural design, including 
pavement calculations. On-site and off-site structural design shall conform to 
the findings and recommendation of the engineering soils report. The report 
shall be prepared prior to issuance of a Grading Permit, subject to review and 
approval of the City Engineer. 



91. The Developer shall generate a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) for pre and post construction best management practices (BMPs). 
A Notice of Intent (NOI) shall be submitted and approved prior to construction 
by the State Department of Water Resources. 

92. Improvement Plans shall include mailbox locations, which shall be approved 
by the U.S. Postmaster and the City of Los Banos. 

Storm Drain: 

93. The Developer shall comply with the Storm Drainage Master Plan adopted by 
the City of Los Banos. 

94. The Developer shall comply with the City's MS4 Storm Water Permit. 

95. Final Improvement Plans for the storm drainage system shall utilize the TR
S5 analysis method. 

96. Final Improvement Plans for the storm drainage system shall be submitted to 
the City and reviewed and approved by the City Engineer prior to the 
issuance of a Grading Permit. 

Sewer: 

97. The Developer shall construct all on-site and off-site sewer facilities 
necessary to serve the project. 

98. The Developer shall comply with the Sewer Master Plan adopted by the City 
of Los Banos. 

99. Sewer Design shall be per the City's Standard and Specifications. 

Water: 

100. The Developer shall comply with the Water Master Plan adopted by the 
City of Los Banos. 

101. Water system design shall be per the City's Standards and Specifications. 

102. Domestic water services shall not be placed in driveways. 

Notice: This approval may contain fees, dedications, reservations or other 
exactions as defined by the Mitigation Fee Act (Government code sections 66000 
et seq.) This notice triggers the 90 day protest period as provided for by the 
Mitigation Fee Act. 



Environmental 
Issue 

Biological 
Resources 

Cultural 
Resources 

Exhibit 0 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map - #2013-01 

Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program 
SCH# 2014011068 

Mitigation Mitigation Reporting and/or 
Monitoring Monitoring Program 

Reporting 
Proposed Mitigation Responsibility 

and Timing 
Prior to the approval of the Project's Improvement Plans Community The Project Proponent shall retain a 
and Final Map, the project proponent shall prepare and Development qualified Biologist to prepare a Biological 
submit to the City a Biological Assessment to determine the Department, Assessment of the project site. Said 
presence of any special-status species or habitat within the Prior to Biological Assessment shall be submitted to 
project site. The findings and recommendations of the approval of the Community Development Department 
Biological Assessment shall be incorporated into project Improvement and Public Works Department for review 
through the Improvement Plan and Final Mapping process. Plans and Final and comment. 

Map 

In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of Public Works During project construction, the Project 
any human remains in any location other than a dedicated Department, Engineer and Construction Manager shall 
cemetery, the following steps shall be taken: During Project monitor construction activities for any 

Construction discovery of human remains. 
1. There shall be no further excavation or disturbance 

of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected 

to overlie adjacent human remains until; 

a) The coroner of the County in which the remains 

are discovered must be contacted to determine 

that no investigation of the cause of death is 



required; and, 

b) If the coroner determines the remains to be 

Native American: 

1. The coroner shall contact the Native 

American Heritage Commission within 24 

hours. 

2. The Native American Heritage Commission 

shall identify the person or persons it 

believes to be the most likely descended 

from the deceased Native American. 

3. The most likely descendent may make 

recommendations to the landowner or the 

person responsible for the excavation 

work, for means of treating or disposing of, 

with appropriate dignity, the human 

remains and any associated grave goods as 

provided in Public Resources Code Section 

5097.98. 

Hazards and Prior to the approval of the proposed project's Public Works Prior to approval of the Project's 

Hazardous Improvement Plans and Final Map, the applicant, or project Department, Improvement Plans and Final Map, the 

Materials proponent, shall prepare and submit to the City a Phase Prior to Project Proponent shall submit a Phase 

I/Environmental Site Assessment (ESA). The Approval of I/Environmental Site Assessment to the 

recommendations of the Phase I/ESA shall be incorporated Improvement City's Public Works Department. 
into the proposed project, as deemed necessary by City Plans and Final 
staff. Map 



CITY OF LOS BANOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 14, 2014 

ACTION MINUTES - These minutes are prepared to depict action 
taken for agenda items presented to the Planning Commission. For 
greater detail of this meeting refer to the electronic media (CD 
and/or audio) kept as a permanent record. 

CALL TO ORDER. Chair Spada called the Planning Commission Meeting to order at 
the hour of 7:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Baker. 

ROLL CALL - MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION PRESENT: Planning 
Commission Members Todd Baker, John Cates, Arkady Faktorovich, Stephen 
Hammond, Tom Mello, Tom Spada; Susan Toscano absent. 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: City Manager Steve Carrigan, Attorney William A. 
Vaughn, Assistant Planner II Stacy Elms, Planning Technician Sandra Benetti. 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA. Motion by Hammond, seconded by 
Mello to approve the agenda as submitted. The motion carried by the affirmative action 
of all Planning Commission Members present; Toscano absent. 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE ACTION MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR 
MEETING OF APRIL 23, 2014. Motion by Faktorovich, seconded by Baker to approve 
the minutes as submitted. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Planning 
Commission Members present; Toscano absent. 

PUBLIC FORUM: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBERS ON ANY ITEM OF PUBLIC INTEREST THAT IS WITHIN THE 
JURISDICTION OF THE CITY; INCLUDES AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS. 
NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE 
LIMITED TO A FIVE (5) MINUTE PRESENTATION. DETAILED GUIDELINES ARE 
POSTED ON THE COUNCIL CHAMBER INFORMATIONAL TABLE. Chair Spada 
opened the public forum. No one came forward to speak and the public forum was 
closed. 

PUBLIC HEARING - TO CONSIDER APPROVING MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION (SCH#2014011068) AND APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 
#2013-01 FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF APPROXIMATELY 11.4 ACRES INTO FIFTY
SEVEN (57) SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF WILLMOTT AVENUE AND NORTH STREET, MORE SPECIFICALLY 
IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER: 082-050-066 (CONTINUED 
FROM FEBRUARY 26, 2014). 



Assistant Planner II Elms presented the report, which included a PowerPoint 
presentation. 

Chair Spada opened the public hearing. 

DR. STEVE TIETJEN, 504 Adams Avenue and Superintendent of Los Banos Unified 
School District (LBUSD), spoke of the school district's position on this development, 
spoke of Senate Bill (SB) 50, how LBUSD was sued back in 2005 and the City was co
defendant, how LBUSD prevailed in court, SB 50 was a floor and not a ceiling, how the 
school district has a mitigation agreement with AMG on a different area in town and how 
the developer believes LBUSD isn't being fair, spoke a cost breakdown in which he 
provided copies for the Commissioners, spoke of having a signed and notarized copy of 
the agreement he had on file with the developer in which he also gave copy of 
agreement to Assistant Planner II Elms for record, and spoke of level II fees and how it 
is woefully inadequate to build a new school. 

JULIAN CHAPA, Sanger and representing AMG & Associates, spoke of behalf of the 
applicant and stated that the developer intends to be compliant with California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), all codes and ordinances, in agreement with 
conditions of approval, in agreement to pay fees per SB 50, and in agreement with 
staff's recommendation and analysis. 

ANDREE SOARES, President of LBUSD, spoke of being around in 2004-2006 when 
bulk of mitigation agreements were affected, how SB 50 allows for fees to be charged, 
allows the LBUSD to accept the fees, how it does not require that be the floor, how 
there is a bit of history to the process, how there was a collaboration between the City, 
LBUSD, and attorneys, there being a great need at elementary and junior high levels, 
how the process in place with mitigation agreements in place is good and would hate for 
this to be a step back, the need to take a step back and familiarize yourself on what 
went on between 2004-2006, and the need to be on the same page. 

No one further came forward to speak, and the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Mello spoke of how there has to be some middle ground in the amount of 
fees, how we can't charge 2004 fees in 2014, and his hope that both sides can come to 
a better agreement to get this settled. 

Chair Spada reminded the Commission that they are charged to take care of land use 
issues and not charged with mitigating or changing developer fees, how this would put 
the City in a bad situation, straying from SB 50 puts the City at risk, how this isn't as big 
as some other developments we have had, here is an applicant that has done 
everything right and what's needed, the need to stick with land use issues and SB 50, 
and his hope that the school district representatives understand that. 

Chair Spada reopened the public hearing. 



DENNIS AREIAS, LBUSD Board Member, spoke of how they have spent a lot of money 
putting this together, how the school district won a lawsuit that was upheld by three 
different court cases, how Greg Hostetler is paying money now based on a mitigation 
agreement as well as Larry Anderson, how they will have to have to pass a bond down 
the road because there won't be enough funds to build adequate schools, the need for 
developers to pay what is needed to keep pace, how their fees are adjusted every 
February to keep track of construction in California, community money put this 
agreement together, and how if they make an exception for one then it leaves a 
loophole for others to come through; DR. STEVE TIETJEN, 504 Adams Avenue and 
Superintendent of LBUSD, spoke of the appropriate level of fees and how they need the 
$19,900 amount to have a local match for the state match, how there is a need for the 
children in the community and doesn't want growth to be at the cost of our children, 
wants a community that supports children, these being true costs of what it takes to 
build a school; Commissioner Faktorovich inquired if the $19,900 amount was in 
violation of SB 50 to which Dr. Tietjen responded that it wasn't in violation of SB 50 and 
how it's an agreement to fully fund schools without having to come to the community to 
pass a bond; ANDREE SOARES, President of LBUSD, spoke of the need for a level 
playing field, how if they let one developer in under the wire then they will no longer 
have a level playing field with other developers, how this breaks things down, the need 
to use options available to political entities and slow the process, and urged the 
Planning Commission to table the item to get the information and history on the project; 
JULIAN CHAPA, Sanger and representing AMG & Associates, spoke of how it is not the 
intent of the developer to circumvent anything other than what we are required to do 
and suggested that the local attorneys spread that information out directly. 

No one further came forward to speak, and the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Cates spoke of how this is obviously a quandary, his main concern being 
the setting of a precedent, how this is making a decision that undermines a decision that 
was made a long time ago, how there were costs associated with taking care of this a 
while ago, how this is a business that wants to make money, how there are reasons 
why this developer chose this area, and the need for more time to review and get 
deeper into this. 

Commissioner Baker stated that he would like to hear from the attorneys. 

City Attorney Vaughn referred to page 7 of the staff report that addresses SB 50, spoke 
of how the City has never conditioned a land use approval on a basis of level fees on 
SB 50, how the City is not a party to these mitigation agreements, those being private 
agreements between developers and LBUSD and the City wasn't a part of negotiating 
terms of those agreements, how the City did assist in facilitating talks between LBUSD 
and developers but has no power or authority to exact fees in excess of the SB 50 
statutory amounts, and how the City cannot set conditions of approval on the basis of 
payment of fees in excess of what SB 50 sets forth in the levels I & II schedules. 



Bill Abbott, Abbott & Kindermann, LLP, spoke as the land use attorney regarding how 
the City can impose a wide spectrum of conditions reasonably relatable to the project 
but one big exception is in the area of school fees, how the legislature put forth SB 50, 
how it takes the decision of school impacts and mitigation requirements out of the hands 
of cities and counties, cannot impose a condition requiring the payment of fees in 
excess of the statutory amounts, how legislature has divested cities, counties, and 
Planning Commissions from imposing these fee conditions, how developers are free to 
pay fees in excess of statutory caps but City cannot impose condition which compels 
them to do so nor delay this proceeding on the basis of imposing a fee that's not 
authorize by law, and how the commission's charge is to look at the map and see if it 
conforms to City standards. 

Commissioner Hammond spoke of how he understands the Commission's role, how the 
staff report says this project meets requirements so he doesn't have a say in this issue, 
how this issue is dealing with our most precious assets our children, and his hope that 
developer sits down with the school district to work things out. 

Motion by Hammond, seconded by Cates to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 
No. 2014-07 - Approving Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH#2014011068) and 
Approving Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for the Subdivision of Approximately 11.4 
Acres into 57 Single-Family Residential Lots Located at the Northeast Corner of 
Willmott Avenue and North Street; More Specifically Identified as Assessor's Parcel 
Number: 082-050-066. The motion carried by the following roll call vote: AYES: Cates, 
Faktorovich, Hammond, Spada; NOES: Baker, Mello; ABSENT: Toscano. 

Chair Spada stated that Item 8 would be heard prior to Item 7b. 

CONSIDERATION OF SITE ACQUISITION BY THE LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRCT FOR A NEW MIDDLE SCHOOL LOCATED SOUTH OF PRAIRIE SPRINGS 
ROAD, EAST OF BADGER FLAT ROAD, AND WEST OF ORTIGALITA ROAD, 
MORE SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER: 430-010-
022. Assistant Planner II Elms presented the report. 

Commissioner Mello inquired if the Commission was going to be able to see a site plan 
to which Assistant Planner II Elms responded that they will but tonight they are only 
tasked with whether it's in accordance with the general plan designation, and how they 
are still reviewing the traffic study and environmental document. 

Commissioner Cates spoke of his concern about traffic and pedestrians. 

Chair Spada spoke of how Ortigalita Road may as well be called a highway, how 
Mercey Springs Road and Scripps Drive didn't get a traffic light for the elementary 
school due to Caltrans, and how this isn't a Caltrans road. 

Commissioner Hammond thanked the school district officials present and stated that 
there is a great need for a middle school. 



Motion by Hammond, seconded by Cates to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 
No. 2014-12 - Pursuant to Government Code Section 65402 and Public Resources 
Code Section 21151.2 Relative to the Los Banos Unified School District's Proposed 
Acquisition of the Property Located South of Prairie Springs Road, East of Badger Flat 
Road, and West of Ortigalita Road for the Construction and Operation of a Middle 
School. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Planning Commission 
Members present; Toscano absent. 

PUBLIC HEARING - TO CONSIDER A PROPOSED ORDINANCE FOR DESIGN AND 
SITE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TO ESTABLISH A PROCESS BY WHICH CERTAIN 
TYPES OF DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND STRUCTURES SHALL BE SUBJECT 
TO A COMPREHENSIVE DISCRETIONARY REVIEW APPROVAL PROCESS. 
(CONTINUED FROM APRIL 23,2014) Assistant Planner II Elms presented the report, 
noting previous concerns. 

Commissioner Faktorovich inquired if the 57 unit development is exempt to which 
Assistant Planner II Elms responded that it would be exempt because it is residential 
and more than 5 units and noted that custom built lots are exempt as well. 

City Attorney Vaughn spoke of how a study session idea would be a referral from the 
Community Development Department to the Planning Commission, an alternative that 
would have the Project Review Board doing technical review and aesthetic review 
comprising of the same people as one body, and how the third alternative would be 
entail a preliminary session to take place where Planning Commission can give 
feedback to the developer upon referral by the Community Development Department if 
project warranted that. 

Commissioner Cates thanked staff for putting the work into creating these alternatives 
and spoke of how this is what he was hoping to see come out of the conversations. 

Commissioner Faktorovich thanked staff for their work and favored alternative 3. 

Commissioner Hammond thanked staff for listening and working hard to bring forward 
what was discussed at length. 

Chair Spada spoke of how developers need to feel the City is partnering with them and 
how he feels that alternative 3 does that. 

Commissioner Mello agreed that alternative 3 was good and streamlines the process 
and thanked staff. 

Motion by Cates, seconded by Mello to adopt Planning Commission Resolution No. 
2014-11 - Recommending to the Los Banos City Council Adoption of an Ordinance of 
the City of Los Banos Amending Title 9, Chapter 3, Article 23 of the Los Banos 
Municipal Code to Amend and Revise the Site Plan Review Procedure; to Reorganize 



Article 23 of Title 9, Chapter 3 into six parts; and to Repeal Sections within Title 9, 
Chapter 3 Inconsistent with the Revised Site Plan Review Procedure and recommend 
Alternative 3 to the City Council. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all 
Planning Commission Members present; Toscano absent. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT REPORT. Assistant Planner II Elms 
spoke of an upcoming Planning Commission workshop scheduled for Friday in Visalia, 
her hope that more workshops become available in future, encouraged Planning 
Commission members to attend future workshops, spoke of how the Community 
Development Department is busy and how she has met with developers interested in 
purchasing the Lowes building, how Wal-Mart has been progressing and hopefully will 
open this summer, a new restaurant coming to town at 2160 E. Pacheco Boulevard 
(Restaurant Playa Azul) for fine Mexican dining, and an upcoming mobile vendor item 
for a taco truck that was already approved who ran into road blocks with property owner 
and is looking to relocate. 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS. 

BAKER: No report. 

CATES: Apologized for the last minute cancellation of attendance for the upcoming 
Planning Commissioner's Workshop, his interest in future workshops, and the 
importance of supporting the 4th of July fundraiser drive thru dinner for the Los Banos 
Chamber of Commerce fireworks show. 

FAKTOROVICH: No report. 

HAMMOND: Spoke of upcoming graduations and Baccalaureate services on June 1, 
2014 at 5:00 p.m. at Pacheco High School. 

MELLO: No report. 

SPADA: Thanked staff for their work. 

TOSCANO: Absent. 

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting was adjourned at the hour of 8:34 p.m. 

APPROVED: 

lsI Tom Spada 
Tom Spada, Chair 

ATTEST: 



lsI Sandra Benetti 
Sandra Benetti, Planning Technician 



City of Los Banos 

520 J Street 

Los Banos, CA 93635 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Tentative Tract Map Application No. 2013-01- AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Los Banos has prepared an Initial Study (is) of environmental 
effects, and intends to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND), for the AMG Tentative 
Subdivision Map, Application No. TIM 2013-01. The proposed project consists offifty-seven (57) single
family residential lots located at the northeast corner of the intersection of Willmott Avenue and North 
Street. The IS/MND has analyzed the potential environmental effects of the project in the range of 
environmental subject areas specified in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA 
Guidelines. On the basis of this analysis, the IS/MND finds that the project will not involve any 
significant environmental effects, provided that the mitigation measures described in the IS/MND are 
implemented. The City will consider the adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration, and proposed 
mitigation measures in a Mitigation Monitoring/Reporting Plan before approval of the proposed 
improvement project. 

In accordance with Sections 15072 and 15073 of the CEQA Guidelines, the IS/MND was released for a 
30-day public reviewed from April 11, 2014 to May 12, 2014. Based comments received during the 
public review period, revisions were made to the IS/MND, and it is being recirculated in accordance 

with Section 15073.5 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

Copies of the IS/MND are available for public review at the City of Los Banos City Hall at 520 J Street, 
Los Banos, California 93635. 

The City of Los Banos will accept public and agency comments on the IS/MND during a 30-day review 
period that will begin on April 11, 2014 and end on May 12, 2014. Comments may be sent to the City of 
Los Banos, 520 J Street, Los Banos, CA 93635, Attn: Stacy Souza Elm, Assistant Planner II. 

In addition, notice is hereby given that the Los Banos Planning Commission will consider adoption of the 
IS/MND and a Mitigation Monitoring/Reporting Plan for the project at a public meeting scheduled for 
May 14, 2014 at 7:00 PM in the Council Chambers at Los Banos City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, CA 
93635. 

April 11, 2014 



FINAL DRAFT 
INITIAL STUDY I 

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

for the 

AMG & ASSOCIATES TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 

TIM APPLICATION NO. 2013-01 

City of Los Banos 

May 2014 

Prepared for: 

City of Los Ba nos 

520 J. Street 
Los Banos, CA 93635 

Prepared by: 

III J.B. ANDERSON III .... 
LAND USE PLANNING 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

SECTION 1.0 INTRODUCTION 

SECTION 2.0 EVALUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

SECTION 3.0 INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST 

1. Aesthetics 
2. Agriculture and Forestry Resources 

3. Air Quality 
4. Biological Resources 
5. Cultural Resources 
6. Geology and Soils 
7. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
8. Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
9. Hydrology and Water Quality 
10. Land Use and Planning 

11. Mineral Resources 
12. Noise 
13. Population and Housing 
14. Public Services 
15. Recreation 
16. Transportation/Traffic 
17. Utilities and Service Systems 

18. Mandatory Findings of Significance 

SECTION 4.0 REFERENCES 

SECTION 5.0 APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A AMG AND ASSSOCIATES TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 

Page 

1 

5 

11 

13 

13 
15 
17 
21 
24 
26 
29 
31 
34 
37 
38 
39 
41 
42 
47 
48 
51 
53 

55 

56 

APPENDIX B PRELIMINARY GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION, DATED SEPTEMBER 4, 2013, PREPARED BY KRAZAN AND 

ASSOCIATES, INC. 

APPENDIX C 

APPENDIX D 

City of Los Banos 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY, DATED JANUARY 16, 2014, PREPARED BY KD ANDERSON AND ASSOCIATES 

LETTER FROM LOZANO SMITH, ATTORNEYS AT LAW, DATED FEBRUARY 24, 2014, SUBMITTED TO THE CITY 

DURING THE INITIAL 30-DAY PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD OF JANUARY 24, 2014 TO FEBRUARY 24, 2014 

AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

~ J.B. A.NOtRSON ~ - -IA~h "'f Plh~'t"(' 





PROJECT NAME: 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

lead Agency: 

City of los Banos 

520 J Street 

los Banos, California 93635 

AMG & Associates Tentative Tract Map Application No. TIM 2013-01. 

PROJECT PROPONENT AND LEAD AGENCY: 

Project Proponent: 

lead Agency: 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

AMG & Associates 

16633 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1014 

Encino, California 91436 

City of los Banos 

520 J Street 

Los Banos, California 93635 

The proposed project is located within the City of los Banos, County of Merced. Specifically, the 

proposed project is located on an l1.4-acre site (APN No. 082-050-066) and is bounded by the following: 

North: Mandarin Avenue and existing single-family residential development. 

South: Willmott Avenue and existing single-family residential development. 

East: Existing Single-family residential development. 

West: North Street and existing Single-family residential development. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

AMG & Associates (Applicant) is proposing to subdivide an l1.4-acre parcel into fifty-seven (57) single

family residential lots, ranging in size from 6,000 square feet to 11,741 square feet. The proposed lots 

will be subdivided and developed in accordance with Title IX, Chapter 3, Article 13, of the City's Zoning 

Ordinance. 

City of los Ba nos 
AMG and AssOCiates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

1 

~ J.B. ANOlRSO/li ~ 

I\III!Il I\III!Il 



Access to the proposed project (primary and secondary) and associated street improvements (i.e. curb, 

gutter, and sidewalk), consists of connecting to, and extending Friguglietti Avenue and Rose Avenue. 

Interior street improvements consist of a fifty-six (56) foot wide local residential street and cul-de-sacs. 

In addition, as part of the proposed project, the Applicant will be required to install a four (4) way stop 

at the intersection of Mandarin Avenue and North Street. 

A copy of the proposed project's Tentative Tract Map is included as part of this Initial Study as Appendix 

A. 

Domestic water services will be provided by the City of Los Banos by connecting to an existing eight (8) 

inch water line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and Mandarin Avenue and installing an eight 

(8) and six (6) inch water line that will loop the project site and connect to the existing 8-inch water line 

located in Friguglietti Avenue. Sanitary sewer services will be provided by the City of Los Banos by 

connecting to an existing sewer line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and Mandarin Avenue, 

and installing a 6-inch sanitary sewer line through the project site. Storm drain services will be provided 

by connecting to the City of Los Banos via an existing storm drain line located at the intersection of Rose 

Avenue and Mandarin Avenue, and installing an eighteen (18) inch line in the proposed project. Fire 

hydrants will also be installed in accordance with the City of Los Banos Fire Department standards and 

specifications. Dry utilities (i.e. gas and electric) will be provided via Pacific Gas and Electric. 

In addition, as noted previously, development of the proposed project will consist of the removal of 

structures located on-site, existing vegetation, as well as irrigation improvements not currently in use. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

The Lead Agency has prepared an Initial Study, following, which considers the potential environmental 

effects of the proposed project. The Initial Study shows that there is no substantial evidence, in light of 

the whole record before the Lead Agency, that the project may have a potentially significant effect on 

the environment, provided that the following mitigation measures are included in the project. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 

The following mitigation measures shall be incorporated into the proposed project: 

Mitigation Measure IV-l: 

Prior to the approval of the Project's Improvement Plans and Final Map, the project proponent shall 

prepare and submit to the City a Biological Assessment to determine the presence of any special-status 

species or habitat within the project site. The findings and recommendations of the Biological 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

2 
a 

l§; 1.B. ANDERSON Il& 

IiIIIl IiIIIl 



Assessment shall be incorporated into the project through the Improvement Plan and Final Mapping 

process. 

Mitigation Measure V-l: 

In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains in any location other than 

a dedicated cemetery, the following steps shall be taken: 

1. There shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably 

suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until; 

a) The coroner of the County in which the remains are discovered must be contacted to 

determine that no investigation of the cause of death is required; and, 

b) If the coroner determines the remains to be Native American: 

1. The coroner shall contact the Native American Heritage Commission within 24 hours. 

2. The Native American Heritage Commission shall identify the person or persons it 

believes to be the most likely descended from the deceased Native American. 

3. The most likely descendent may make recommendations to the landowner or the 

person responsible for the excavation work, for means of treating or disposing of, with 

appropriate dignity, the human remains and any associated grave goods as provided in 

Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. 

Mitigation Measure VIlI-l: 

Prior to the approval of the proposed project's Improvement Plans and Final Map, the applicant, or 

project proponent, shall prepare and submit to the City a Phase I/Environmental Site Assessment (ESA). 

The recommendations of the Phase I/ESA shall be incorporated into the proposed project, as deemed 

necessary by City staff. 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

3 
n 



Therefore, the Lead Agency proposes to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project, in 

accordance with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the State CEQA 

Guidelines. 

Ms. Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

Date 

4 



SECTION 1.0 INTRODUCTION 

PROJECT TITLE 
Tentative Tract Map Application No. TTM 2013-01 - AMG & Associates Tentative Tract Map 

LEAD AGENCY NAME AND ADDRESS 
City of Los Banos 
520 J Street 
Los Banos, California 93635 

CONTACT PERSON AND PHONE NUMBER 
Ms. Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner 
(209) 827-7000 
Stacy.elms@losbanos.org 

PROJECT SPONSOR'S NAME AND ADDRESS 
AMG & Associates 
16633 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1014 
Encino, California 91436 

PROJECT LOCATION AND SETTING 
The proposed project is located within the City of Los Banos, County of Merced. Specifically, the 
proposed project is located on an 11.4-acre site (APN No. 082-050-066) and is bounded by the following: 

North: Mandarin Avenue and existing single-family residential development. 

South: Willmott Avenue and existing single-family residential development. 

East: Existing Single-family residential development. 

West: North Street and existing single-family residential development. 

Figure 1, Location Map, provides an illustration of the proposed project's location. 

The proposed project site was historically utilized for agricultural purposes, but does not currently 

produce any agricultural crops. Urban development (primarily single-family development) has occurred 

on all sides of the project site, along with associated street and utility improvements. Topography of the 

site is relatively flat. There are trees located along an abandoned irrigation ditch as well as small 

vegetation located throughout the project site. These trees and other vegetation will be removed as 

part of the development of the proposed project. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

5 
7 



There are structures located on the project site, an abandoned home and associated out-building. 

These structures will be removed as part of the development of the proposed project. Additionally, an 

irrigation ditch, which is no longer in service, intersects the project site in an east/west direction, in 

addition to abandoned irrigation improvements. According to City staff, this irrigation ditch and 

associated improvements have been abandoned. 

GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING DESIGNATIONS 
General Plan: Low Density Residential (LOR) 

Zoning: R-l, Low Density Residential 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
AMG & Associates (Applicant) is proposing to subdivide an 11.4-acre parcel into fifty-seven (57) single

family residential lots, ranging in size from 6,000 square feet to 11,741 square feet. The proposed lots 

will be subdivided and developed in accordance with Title IX, Chapter 3, Article 13, of the City's Zoning 

Ordinance. 

Access to the proposed project (primary and secondary) and associated street improvements (i.e. curb, 

gutter, and Sidewalk), consists of connecting to, and extending Friguglietti Avenue and Rose Avenue. 

Interior street improvements consist of a fifty-six (56) foot wide local residential street and cul-de-sacs. 

In addition, as part of the proposed project, the Applicant will be required to install a four (4) way stop 

at the intersection of Mandarin Avenue and North Street. 

A copy of the proposed project's Tentative Tract Map is included as part of this Initial Study as Appendix 

A. 

Domestic water services will be provided by the City of Los Banos by connecting to an existing eight (8) 

inch water line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and Mandarin Avenue and installing an eight 

(8) and six (6) inch water line that will loop the project site and connect to the existing 8-inch water line 

located in Friguglietti Avenue. Sanitary sewer services will be provided by the City of Los Banos by 

connecting to an existing sewer line located at the intersection of Rose Avenue and Mandarin Avenue, 

and installing a 6-inch sanitary sewer line through the project site. Storm drain services will be provided 

by connecting to the City of Los Banos via an existing storm drain line located at the intersection of Rose 

Avenue and Mandarin Avenue, and installing an eighteen (18) inch line in the proposed project. Fire 

hydrants will also be installed in accordance with the City of Los Banos Fire Department standards and 

specifications. Dry utilities (i.e. gas and electric) will be provided via Pacific Gas and Electric. 

In addition, as noted previously, development of the proposed project will consist of the removal of 

structures located on-site, existing vegetation, as well as irrigation improvements not currently in use. 

City of los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

6 
2 

I!§ J.B. ANDERSON ~ 

II!IIIiI IIIIlII 



Figure 1 - Location Map 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

8 



City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

7 



OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES WHOSE ApPROVAL IS REQUIRED (E.G., PERMITS, FINANCING APPROVAL, 

OR PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT.) 

There are no other Public Agencies whose approval is required for the proposed project. 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

9 



ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 
The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at 
least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following 
pages. 

Aesthetics 

Biological Resources 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Land Use and Planning 

Population and Housing 

Transportation/Traffic 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

Agriculture and Forestry Air Quality 

Resources 

Cultural Resources Geology and Soils 

Hazards and Hazardous Hydrology and Water 

Materials Quality 

Mineral Resources Noise 

Public Services Recreation 

Utilities and Service Systems Mandatory Findings of 

Significance 

10 

I'\"D "t I'IA'IN,\,; 
"-.--.--.--~-------. 



LEAD AGENCY DETERMINATION: 
On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will 

X not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to 

by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant 

unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed 

in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation 

measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because 

all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 

DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to 

that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are 

imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

Ms. Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner Date 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

11 

!§' J.B. ANDt:RSON !iili 

IIIl!IIlI!l IIIl!IIlI!l 
I 1\ r.. 11 L ~ I I'!'\" ~ I , (, 
---.-.-~-.,.---.- .. -.---



SECTION 2.0 EVALUATION INSTRUCTIONS: 

1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately 

supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each 

question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources 

show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project 

falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based 

on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive 

receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, 

cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as 

operational impacts. 

3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 

checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially Significant, less than 

significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate 

if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more 

"Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4) "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the 

incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" 

to a "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, 

and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation 

measures from Section XVII, "Earlier Analyses," may be cross-referenced). 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA 

process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. 

Section lS063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 

a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were 

within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to 

applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation 

measures based on the earlier analysis. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

12 
Q 

ti@ J.B. A.NDERSON ~ 

IilIIIIl IilIIIIl 
1l\~lJ I.~I PI.\~NI\(, 
.-.-.--~--.. ---.. --.----



c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation 

Measures Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures, which were incorporated or 

refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific 

conditions for the project. 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information 

sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously 

prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or 

pages where the statement is substantiated. 

7) Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 

individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead 

agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a 

project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a) The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

13 
T 

t&: J.B. ANOERSON fM: 

!Il.\1I !Il.\1I 
I ,\ ~ IJ , ~ I !' I A"" I , (, ----- -,-.-.-.--,.-.-.---~-



SECTION 3.0 INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST 

This section of the Initial Study incorporates the most current Appendix "G" Environmental Checklist 
Form, contained in the CEQA Guidelines. 

I. AESTHETICS -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

aJ Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista? 

bJ Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

cJ Substantially degrade the existing visual 
character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

dJ Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

x 

x 

I-a) According to the City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan and Environmental Impact Report (EIR), 

the proposed project area is not considered a scenic vista. Therefore, the proposed project will 

have a less than significant impact. 

I-b) The proposed project is located within the City of Los Banos, and is not located on a state 

designated highway. Based on a review of the California Department of Transportation website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/scenic/schwy.htm). the nearest state scenic highway is 

Interstate 5, between the Merced County line and San Joaquin County line. The proposed 

project is not located on or adjacent to Interstate 5, and therefore will have no impact to a state 

scenic highway. 

I-C) The proposed project is located on an ll.4-acre vacant site within the City of Los Banos and is 

currently surrounded by urban development. The existing visual character of the proposed 

project and its surroundings consists of single-family residential development. In addition, the 

City of Los Banos, through its General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, has designated and zoned the 

proposed project site for low density residential development. The proposed project is 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

14 
7 

~ J.B. ANDERSOIlo: [% - -IA1\1l l"t PI!\~~'I\<, .,-, ... __ ._.-._. __ ._._-----_._--



consistent with the City's General Plan and Zoning Ordinance and therefore will have a less than 

significant impact to the project site's visual character and its surroundings. 

I-d) Development of the proposed project will include the installation of street lighting and lighting 

associated with residential development. As such, the proposed project will result in a new 

source of light. However, any street lighting installed will be installed in accordance with the 

City of Los Banos standards and specifications. In addition, the project site is surrounding by 

existing development and associated lighting (i.e. street lighting, residential lighting, etc.). 

Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact to lighting and glare. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

15 
7 

~ J.B. ANDERSON ~ 

fI'iI fI'iI 
lA~1J l"~ !'IIl~.~I'(' .. _----"-"."------"---



II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES: WOULD THE PROJECT: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), 
as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of 
the California Resources Agency, to non
agricultural use? 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland 
(as defined by Public Resources Code section 
4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by Government Code 
section 51104 (g))? 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion 
of forest land to non-forest use? 

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, 
to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest 
land to non-forest use? 

DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

II-a) According to a review of the State of California Department of Conservation Farmland Mapping 

and Monitoring Program, the proposed project is not located on soils classified as Prime 

Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance. Therefore, the proposed 

project will have a less than significant impact. 

II-b,c) The proposed project is zoned for R-l, Low Density Residential, land uses according to the City 

of Los Banos Zoning Ordinance, and therefore, is not zoned for agricultural or forest land uses. 

In addition, a Williamson Act Contract does not exist for the project site. Therefore, the 

proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

II-d) The proposed project is located on existing fallow agricultural land, and is bounded by existing 

residential land uses to the north, south, east, and west. The project site is not situated on lands 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

16 
T 

~ J.B. ANDERSON !% 

l1li l1li 
IA.\lJ 1.~1 I'IA~~I\" 
~--------.. -... ,.-.-.--~--.--



considered to be forest land. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant 

impact. 

II-e) As noted above, the proposed project is located on existing fallow agricultural land that is not 

currently in production for agricultural crops. The project site is bounded by existing residential 

land uses to the north, south, east, and west, and it is designated and zoned for residential land 

uses by the City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. Therefore, the proposed 

project will have a less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
The following mitigation measure(s) shall be incorporated into the proposed project: 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

17 

@} J.D. ANDfRSON llif 

!III! !III! 
IAr-1) I" l>IA~~I\" 
--------



III. AIR QUALITY -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

="""" 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan? 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation? 

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which 
exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a 
substantial number of people? 

BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

The proposed project is located in west Merced County, which is a portion of the San Joaquin Valley Air 

Basin (SNAB). Air quality management under the federal and state Clean Air Acts is the responsibility of 

the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SNAPCD). 

The federal and state governments have adopted ambient air quality standards (AAQS) for the primary 

air pollutants of concern, known as "criteria" air pollutants. Air quality is managed by the SNAPCD to 

attain these standards. Primary standards are established to protect the public health; secondary 

standards are established to protect the public welfare. The attainment status of the SNAB for Merced 

County with respect to the applicable AAQS are shown in the following table. 

The SNAB is considered non-attainment for ozone and particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), because 

the AAQS for the pollutants are sometimes exceeded. The SNAB is Attainment/Unclassified for carbon 

monoxide, but select areas, not including the City of Los Banos, are required to abide by adopted carbon 

monoxide maintenance plans. 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) through the Air Toxics Program is responsible for the 

identification and control of exposure to air toxics, and notification of people that are subject to 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

18 

f\& J.8. ANOf:RSOl'lo ~ 

lIE lIE 



significant air toxic exposure. A principal air toxic is diesel particulate matter, which is a component of 

diesel engine exhaust. 

The SNAPCD has adopted regulations establishing control over air pollutant emissions associated with 

land development and related activities. These regulations include: 

Regulation VIII (Fugitive Dust Rules) 

Rule 4101 (Visible Emissions) 

Rule 9510 (Indirect Source Review) 

SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY FEDERAL AND STATE 

AAQS ATIAINMENT STATUS 

Pollutant 

Ozone, i-hour 

Ozone, 8-hour 

PM10 

PM2.5 

Carbon Monoxide 

Nitrogen Dioxide 

Sulfur Dioxide 

Lead (particulate) 

Hydrogen Sulfide 

Sulfates 

Visibility-Reducing Particles 

Vinyl Chloride 

·See 40 CFR Part 81 

bSee (CR Title 17 Sections 60200-60210 

Designation / Classification 

Federal Standards' 

No federal standard' 

Nonattainment / Extreme' 

Attainment' 

Nonattainmentd 

Attainment / Unclassified 

Attainment / Unclassified 

Attainment / Unclassified 

No designation 

No federal standard 

No federal standard 

No federal standard 

No federal standard 

State Standards· 

Nonattainment / Severe 

Nonattainment 

Nonattainment 

Nonattainment 

Attainment / Unclassified 

Attainment 

Attainment 

Attainment 

Unclassified 

Attainment 

Unclassified 

Attainment 

'On September 25, 2008, EPA redesignated the San Joaquin Valley to Attainment for the PMIO National AAQS and approvd the PMIO 

Maintenance Plan 

dThe SJV is designated nonattainment for the 1997 PM2.5 NAAOS. EPA designated the 5JV as non attainment for the 2006 PM2.S on 

November 13, 2009 (effective December 14, 2009). 

~Though the 5JV was initially classified as serious nonattainment for the 1997 8-hour ozone standard, EPA approved reclassification of 

the SJV to extreme nonattainment in the Federal Register on May, 2010 {effective June 4, 2010. 

'Effective June 15, 2005, the EPA revoked the federal I-hour ozone standard, including associated designations and classifications. EPA 

has previously classified the SJV as extreme nonattainment for this standard. EPA approved the 2004 Extreme Ozone Attainment 

Demonstration Plan on March 8, 2010 (effective April 7, 2010). Many applicable requirements for extreme 1-hour ozone non attainment 

areas continue to apply to the SJVAB. 

City of los Ba nos 

AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

19 



The SJVAPCD has adopted a CEQA impact analysis guideline titled Guide for Assessing and Mitigating Air 
Quality Impacts (GAMAQI). The GAMAQI is utilized in the following air quality impact analysis where 

applicable. The GAMAQI establishes impact significance thresholds for the non-attainment pollutant 

PM10 and precursors to the non-attainment pollutant ozone: reactive organic gases (ROG) and oxides 

of nitrogen (NOx). 

ROG 10 tons/year 

NOx 10 tons/year 

PM10 15 tons/year 

Projects that do not generate emissions in excess of these thresholds are considered to have less than 

significant air quality impacts. In accordance with Table 5-3(a) of GMAQI, the proposed project is 

considered a Small Project Analysis Level (SPALl, as it contains less than 152 single-family residential 

units. Because the proposed project qualifies as SPAL, GMAQI notes that it has no possibility of 

exceeding emission thresholds. 

Project construction will be subject to SJVAPCD rules related to control of construction emissions, 

including the various rules comprising Regulation VIII. The application of these rules to the project will 

further limit the potential air quality effects of the project. 

The project will generate small amounts of new on-road traffic and associated ROG, NOx and PM 

emissions during project operation. Operation of the project site will not generate any substantial air 

emissions. As shown in the table below, potential emissions from project operation will be incidental 

and will not approach the GAMAQI significance thresholds. 

Potentially significant emissions related to the construction and operation of land development projects 

are subject to regulation under SJVAPCD Rule 9510 Indirect Sources. Development associated with the 

proposed project will exceed the thresholds triggering the requirements of Rule 9510. Therefore, the 

project proponent will be required to comply with Rule 9510 and conduct an Indirect Source Review 

(lSR) process with the SJVAPCD. 

DISCUSSION: 

III-a) The proposed project will not involve any conflict with, or potential to obstruct, implementation 

of, applicable Air Quality Attainment Plans. As discussed above, project related air emissions 

will be minor and below the threshold identified in GMAQI. Therefore, the proposed project will 

have a less than significant impact. 

III-b) Proposed project construction emissions will be minor and short-term, and will not contribute 

to or cause violation to any air quality standards. The proposed project will not involve any 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

20 
--------------

7 
!&: l.B. ANDERSON !@; - -1.\\1) (,I I'IA"~I\{; _ .. _--_._._-----_. 



substantial operational emissions. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than 

significant impact. 

III-c) The proposed project will result in minor ROG, NOx, and particulate matter emissions during 

project construction, which will contribute to existing non-attainment status of the SNAB for 

ozone and particulate matter. However, in accordance with GMAQI, these emissions are 

considered to be below the threshold and therefore be less than significant. The proposed 

project will be required to comply with Rule 9510, and conduct an ISR process with the 

SNAPeD. The ISR process will determine the proposed project's actual emission and 

subsequently, allow for mitigation under Rule 9510. Therefore, the proposed project will have a 

less than significant impact. 

III-d) Sensitive receptors are defined as facilities that house or attract children, the elderly, people 

with illnesses, or others who are especially sensitive to the effects of air pollutants. Hospitals, 

schools, convalescent facilities, and residential areas are examples of sensitive receptors. 

The proposed project is located in the vicinity of a school; Lorena Falasco Elementary School, 

and is surrounded by existing residential development. However, because the proposed project 

is considered a Small Project Analysis Level (SPAL) under GMAQI, the proposed project has no 

possibility of exceeding the emission thresholds and therefore, will have a less than significant 

impact. 

III-e) The proposed project does not involve any features that will generate odors. Therefore, the 

proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

21 
Q 

~ J.B. ANDERSON 1* 

II1II II1II 
I "~Il I.' ~ I' I ,\ ~ '\ I , (, 
----~ .. ~-.--.-.. ~--.... -



IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or 
special status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional plans, 
policies, regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally 
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of 
the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited 
to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through 
direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, 
or other means? 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, 
regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

lV-a) As noted previously, the proposed project is located on vacant, raw land, and is surrounded by 

urban development on the north, south, east, and west sides. However, based on a review of 

the City's 2030 General Plan EIR, and most notably, Figure 3.8-1, the proposed project is located 

within an area known for the potential of containing the American badger, giant garter snake, 

and yellow rail. The giant garter snake is listed as a federally Threatened and California 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

22 
T 

ff§. J.D. ANOf'RSOl'o ~; 

l1li l1li 
I II ~ n I ,~ l'!'; '< ~ I \ (, 
~-~-.--, .. -.-----



Threatened species. The American badger is a State Species of Concern. The yellow rail is a 

California Species of Concern. 

The City's 2030 General Plan EIR recognized the potential for these species to be identified 

within the proposed project site, and therefore adopted mitigation measures to reduce any 

potentially significant impacts to a level of significant impact. 

Mitigation Measure POSR-I-23 states, "Require assessments of biological resources prior to 

approval of ony development within 300 feet of any creeks, sensitive habitat areas, or areas of 

potential sensitive status species, and protection of sensitive habitat areas and special status 

species in new development in the fol/owing order: 1) avoidance; 2) onsite mitigation, and 3) 

offsite mitigation." 

Because the proposed project is located within an area identified as containing special status 

species, Mitigation Measure POSR-I-23 shall be incorporated into the proposed project, and the 

Applicant shall be required to prepare a Biological Assessment of the project site, and 

incorporate the determinations and recommendations made by the qualified Biologist. 

Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact with mitigation 

incorporated. The Biological Assessment shall be prepared prior to the approval of the 

proposed project's Improvement Plans and Final Map. 

IV-b) Based on a review of the City's 2030 General Plan and EIR, the proposed project is not located 

within an area known to contain riparian habitat. Most, if not all, of the riparian habitat located 

within the City is located along Los Banos Creek. The proposed project is not located within, or 

adjacent to, Los Banos Creek. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant 

impact. 

IV-c) Based on a review of the City's 2030 General Plan and EIR, there are no identified wetlands 

within the project site. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

IV-d) Based on a review of the City's 2030 General Plan and EIR, Significant impacts to wildlife 

corridors, as a result of the build out of the General Plan Planning Area, occur with construction 

of the Highway 152 bypass. It is also noted that new development would cause an increase in 

both vehicular traffic levels and nighttime light levels, which would serve to deter wildlife 

movement. However, the proposed project is not located within the Highway 152 bypass area. 

Additionally, the proposed project is surrounded by existing development on the north, south, 

east, and west sides. Therefore, new development created as a result of the proposed project 

would have minimal impacts to wildlife corridors as surrounding urban development already 

exist. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

23 
7 



IV-e) As noted previously, the proposed project is consistent with the City's 2030 General Plan and 

Zoning Ordinance. Additionally, while development of the proposed project will require the 

removal of trees, the City does not have an adopted Tree Preservation Ordinance that would 

apply. Therefore, the proposed project will have no impact. 

IV-f) The City of Los Banos, including the proposed project, is not located within an adopted Habitat 

Conservation Plan or Natural Community Plan. Therefore, the proposed project will have no 

impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 

The following mitigation measure shall be incorporated into the proposed project: 

Mitigation Measure IV-l: 

Prior to the approval of the Project's Improvement Plans and Final Map, the project proponent shall 

prepare and submit to the City a Biological Assessment to determine the presence of any special-status 

species or habitat within the project site. The findings and recommendations of the Biological 

Assessment shall be incorporated into the project through the Improvement Plan and Final Mapping 

process. 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

24 

~ J.8. ANDf-RSON ['if 

II1II II1II 



V. CUL rURAL RESOURCES -- Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as defined in 
'15064.5? 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to '15064.5? 

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

x 

x 

V-a) Based on a review of the City's 2030 General Plan EIR, there are thirteen (13) historic resource 

sites within the City's Planning Area, primarily in the downtown area. None of these sites 

include the proposed project. As such, there are no historic resources or sites as defined by 

Section 15064.5 of the Government Code within the proposed project area. Therefore, the 

proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

V-b) Based on a review of the City's 2030 General Plan and EIR, "there are seventeen recorded 

prehistoric archaeological sites and two historic archaeological sites within the Planning Area. 

Features of the prehistoric archaeological sites include prehistoric villages, occupational sites 

containing tools and milling equipment, burial grounds, and human skull fragments. The 

General Plan identifies the Los Banos Creek area as a highly sensitive area for potential 

archaeological sites." 

The proposed project is not located within the Los Banos Creek area, and therefore, potential 

impacts to archaeological resources are considered to be minimal. Therefore, the proposed 

project will have a less than significant impact. 

V-c) The City's 2030 General Plan and EIR does not identify any unique paleontological resources or 

sites or unique geologic features within the proposed project area. As noted in the 2030 

General Plan, paleontological resources have been typically identified within the Los Banos 

Creek area. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

25 
m 

t@ J.B. ANOERSO,.,' ~ 

II\Ill II\Ill 
IA~IJ ( It Plf,~~I'(; 
~-.-.~ ... -.. -.-.. --.--- .. 



V-d) It is not anticipated that the proposed project will disturb any human remains. However, 

through development and construction of the proposed project, human remains may be 

identified, particularly during activities requiring ground disturbance (i.e. grading, trench 

digging, etc.). As such, the proposed project shall incorporate Mitigation Measure No. V-l, 

specified below, in accordance with Section 15064.5(e) of the CEQA Guidelines, to reduce any 

potentially significant impacts to a level of less than significant. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 

The following mitigation measure shall be incorporated into the proposed project: 

Mitigation Measure V-l: 

In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains in any location other than 

a dedicated cemetery, the following steps shall be taken: 

2. There shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably 

suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until; 

c) The coroner of the County in which the remains are discovered must be contacted to 

determine that no investigation of the cause of death is required; and, 

d) If the coroner determines the remains to be Native American: 

4. The coroner shall contact the Native American Heritage Commission within 24 hours. 

5. The Native American Heritage Commission shall identify the person or persons it 

believes to be the most likely descended from the deceased Native American. 

6. The most likely descendent may make recommendations to the landowner or the 

person responsible for the excavation work, for means of treating or disposing of, with 

appropriate dignity, the human remains and any associated grave goods as provided in 

Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

26 



VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 
loss, injury, or death involving: 

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the 
State Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a known fault? 
Refer to Division of Mines and Geology 
Special Publication 42. 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? 

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction? 

iv) Landslides? 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 
topsoil? 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on
or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(1994). creating substantial risks to life or 
property? 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 
the use of septic tanks or alternative waste 
water disposal systems where sewers are not 
available for the disposal of waste water? 

DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

VI-a) As part of the proposed project, the Applicant commissioned a Preliminary Geotechnical 

Investigation, dated September 4, 2013, prepared by Krazan and Associates, Inc. This report is 

included in this Initial Study as Appendix B. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

27 



Based on a review of the proposed project's Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, there are 

no active fault traces within the proposed project's vicinity. Additionally, the proposed project 

is not located within an Earthquake Fault Zone (Special Studies Zone) and is located within 

Seismic Zone 3. Future residents within the proposed project may feel the impact of a large 

seismic event on one of the nearby active or potentially active fault zones (i.e. Owens Valley 

Fault Zone). Historically, the city of Los Banos has experienced groundshaking from earthquakes 

in the past. According to the Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, groundshaking was felt in 

Los Banos from the 1872 Owens Valley Earthquake. This is the largest known earthquake event 

affecting the Los Banos area. 

Based on the results of the proposed project's Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, impacts 

from a seismic event (i.e. landslides, strong seismic groundshaking, liquefaction) are minimal. 

Additionally, the proposed project is not located within an Earthquake Fault Zone. Therefore, 

the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

VI-b) Development of the proposed project will include grading of the site to allow for the installation 

of residential building pads and associated street improvements. Thus, said grading would 

result in the loss of topsoil. However, through the preparation of Improvement Plans, the 

proposed project will be required to obtain a Grading Permit from the City of Los Banos. The 

Grading Permit process will ensure the proposed project is graded in accordance with City of Los 

Banos standards and specifications, as well as the conclusions and recommendations identified 

in the proposed project's Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation. Therefore, the proposed 

project will have a less than significant impact. 

VI-c) Based on a review of the proposed project's Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, the 

potential for soil liquefaction during a seismic event was evaluated using the LlQUEFYPRO 

computer program (version 5). For the analysis, a maximum earthquake magnitude of 6.6 was 

used. The computer analysis determined that soils above a depth of 4-feet are non-liquefiable 

due to the absence of groundwater. The soils below a depth of 4-feet have a slight to moderate 

potential for liquefaction under seismic shaking due to the loose and medium dense silty and 

clayey sand soils and the anticipated low to moderate seismicity in the region. Based on the 

determinations in the Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, the proposed project will have a 

less than significant impact. 

VI-d) Page 7 of the proposed project's Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation states, "The upper on

site native and fill soils are identified as sandy clays, sandy clayey silts, and sandy silts. The 

clayey soils appear to have a moderate swell potential. The estimated swell pressure of the 

clayey material may cause movement-affecting slabs and brittle exterior finishes. To reduce the 

potential soil movement, it is recommended that the upper 18 inches of soil within slab-on-grade 

and exterior flatwork areas be non-expansive fill. The fill material should be well-graded silty 

sand or sandy silt soil." Through the proposed project's Improvement Plan process, the City will 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

28 



ensure the recommendations of the Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation are incorporated 

into the project's design, particularly in the Grading plan prepared as part of the proposed 

project's Improvement Plans. 

Based on the evaluation and recommendations identified in the Preliminary Geotechnical 

Investigation, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

VI-e) The proposed project consists of the mapping and development of single-family residential 

units, which will be served by City of Los Banos sanitary sewer services and system. The use of 

septic tanks, or alternative waste water systems are not part of the proposed project. 

Therefore, the proposed project will have no impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

29 
z 

IE' J.B. ANDfRSON ~ 

IiiIlIl1l IiiIlIl1l 
IA~n 1.'1 PIA""I\(' 
--~.~--------



VII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or in directly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 

x 

x 

Human-generated emissions greenhouse gases (GHGs) are understood to be an important cause of 

global climate change, which is a subject of increasing scientific, public concern, and government action. 

Atmospheric concentrations of GHGs that trap heat in the earth's atmosphere and lead to a variety of 

effects, including increasing temperature, changes in patterns and intensity of weather and various 

secondary effects resulting from those changes, including potential effects on public health and safety. 

California AB 32 identifies global climate change as a "serious threat to the economic well-being, public 

health, natural resources and the environment of California." As a result, global climate change is an 

issue that needs to be considered under CEQA. 

GHGs include carbon dioxide (C02), the most abundant GHG, as well as methane, nitrous oxide and 

other gases, each of which have GHG potential that is several times that of C02. GHG emissions result 

from combustion of carbon-based fuels; major GHG sources in California include transportation (40.7%), 

electric power generation (20.5%), industrial (20.5%), agriculture and forestry (8.3%) and others (8.3%). 

The State of California is actively engaged in developing and implementing strategies for reducing GHG 

emissions. State programs for GHG reduction include a regional cap-and-trade program, new industrial 

and emission control technologies, alternative energy generation technologies, advanced energy 

conservation in lighting, heating, cooling and ventilation, reduced-carbon fuels, hybrid and electric 

vehicles, and other methods of improving vehicle mileage reduction programs. Using these and other 

strategies, the State's Global Climate Change Scoping Plan, adopted in December 2008, proposes to 

achieve a 29% reduction in projected business-as-usual emission levels for 2020. 

The City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan and EIR includes poliCies and mitigation measures that reduce 

the impact level that is less than significant. Policies POSR-I-46, 52, 53, and C-I-4 of the City's 2030 

General Plan include measures, that upon implementation, helps reduce the amount of greenhouse 

gases generated per capita in the City. It is important to note that the proposed project is consistent 

with the City's 2030 General Plan. 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

30 



The SJVAPCD adopted a Climate Change Action Plan in 2008, and issued guidance for development 

project compliance with the plan in 2009. The guidance adopted an approach that relies on the use of 

Best Performance Standards to reduce GHG emissions. Projects implementing Best Performance 

Standards would be determined to have a less than cumulatively significant impact. For projects not 

implementing Best Performance Standards, demonstration of a 29% reduction in GHG emissions from 

business-as-usual conditions is required to determine that a project would have a less than cumulatively 

significant impact. 

DISCUSSION: 
VII-a) The proposed project will generate relatively small greenhouse gas emissions during project 

construction. Based on methodology provided by the SJVAPCD, these emissions, estimated at 

335.02 metric tons of C02 equivalent, would be minor, and temporary. Therefore, the 

proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

The proposed project would not generate any substantial greenhouse gas emissions beyond 

what has previously been identified in the City's 2030 General Plan and EIR. The proposed 

project is consistent with the 2030 General Plan, and will comply with the Policies noted in the 

discussion above. 

VII-b) The proposed project will not involve any known conflict with any adopted plan, policy, or 

regulation for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Therefore, the proposed project will have a 

less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

31 
D 

~ J.B. A~mERSOI'II ~ 

IIi1I IIi1I 



VIII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MA TERIALS -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, use, 
or disposal of hazardous materials? 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of 
an existing or proposed school? 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 
of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant 
to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project result in a 
safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area? 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the 
project area? 

g) Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency response 
plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant 
risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland 
fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

x 

32 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

2 
&? J.B. A.NDERSON ~ 

II1II II1II 
I ,\~I) I ,[ PI"~~I\(, 
--~-----.--.-.--.-----



DISCUSSION: 
VIII-a) The mapping and development of residential subdivisions do not typically involve the transport, 

use, or disposal of hazardous materials. However, the project site has historically been utilized 

for agricultural purposes, and as such, there may be hazardous materials within the soil. 

Therefore, prior to the approval of the proposed project's Improvement Plans and Final Map, 

the applicant, or project proponent, shall prepare and submit to the City a Phase 

I/Environmental Site Assessment (ESA). The recommendations of the Phase I/ESA shall be 

incorporated into the proposed project, as necessary. Therefore, the proposed project will have 

a less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated. Refer to Mitigation Measure VIlI-l, 

below. 

VIII-b) It is not anticipated that through the mapping and development of the proposed project, 

foreseeable upset and accident conditions will occur. Development of the proposed project will 

comply with all Federal, State, and local policies and regulations related to the construction of 

the proposed project. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

VIII-c) The proposed project is located within one-quarter mile of Lorena Falasco Elementary School, 

which is located at 310 Overland Road, northwest of the project site. However, as noted above 

in VIII-a, the mapping and development of residential subdivisions do not typically involve the 

emission or handling of hazardous materials. If, through construction of the proposed project, 

hazardous materials are identified, all Federal. State, and local policies and regulations related 

to hazardous materials shall be complied with. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less 

than significant impact. 

VIII-d) Appendix A of the City's 2030 General Plan provides a list of hazardous sites within the City of 

Los Banos. Based on a review of Appendix A, the proposed project is not located on a site 

identified as hazardous. Therefore, the proposed project will have no impact. 

VIII-e) The Los Banos Municipal Airport is located within the City of Los Banos. The Los Banos 

Municipal Airport is a general aviation facility with a single paved runway 3,800 feet in length. 

According to the Merced County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan, adopted June 21, 2012, 

the proposed project is located outside of the airport's "Airport Influence Area." Therefore, the 

proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

VIII-f) The proposed project is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. Therefore, the 

proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

VIII-g) The Los Banos Fire Department has reviewed the proposed project, and provided feedback to 

ensure the proposed project complies with any emergency response plan or emergency 

City of los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

33 

~ J.B. A.ND[RSON [®; 

lIl!I lIl!I 
11\,,1) '-'>1 PIA~"I,h ---_ ... _-------_ ... _._" .-.. -.. _ .. 



evacuation plan. To ensure this compliance, the project proponent will be required to submit 

for approval to the Los Banos Fire Department the proposed project's Improvement Plans. This 

approval shall occur prior to the approval and recordation of the proposed project's Final Map. 

Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

VIII-h) The proposed project is located within an urban area and within the City of Los Banos, and is 

surrounded by existing development on the north, south, east, and west sides. As such, no 

wildlands exist within or adjacent to the proposed project. Therefore, the proposed project will 

have a less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
The following mitigation measure shall be incorporated into the proposed project: 

Mitigation Measure VIlI-l: 

Prior to the approval of the proposed project's Improvement Plans and Final Map, the applicant, or 

project proponent, shall prepare and submit to the City a Phase I/Environmental Site Assessment (ESA). 

The recommendations of the Phase I/ESA shall be incorporated into the proposed project, as deemed 

necessary by City staff. 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

34 



IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements? 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net deficit 
in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production 
rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a 
level which would not support existing land uses 
or planned uses for which permits have been 
granted)? 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a 
manner which would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or 

substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner which would result in 
flooding on- or off-site? 

e) Create or contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
storm water drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted 
runoff? 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water 
quality? 

g) Place housing within a lOO-year flood hazard 
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map? 

h) Place within a lOO-year flood hazard area 
structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

Potentially 
Less Thon 

Significant with 
Significant 

Mitigation 
Impoct 

Incorporation 

35 

Less Than 
Significant No Impact 

Impact 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

x 

X 

X 



i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a 

x 

levee or dam? 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? X 

DISCUSSION: 
IX-a) The proposed project will not violate any Federal, State, or local water quality standards or 

waste discharge requirements. Prior to the approval and recordation of the proposed project's 

Final Map, the Applicant will be required to obtain approval from the City of Los Banos for the 

project's Improvement Plans. These Improvement Plans include the design of infrastructure (i.e. 

water, sanitary sewer, storm drainage) required for the proposed project. Review and approval 

by City staff will ensure the proposed project complies with any applicable water quality 

standards and waste discharge requirements. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less 

than significant impact. 

IX-b) The domestic water infrastructure proposed as part of the proposed project consists of 

connecting to the City of Los Banos existing domestic water system, and installing a series of 

domestic water lines through the proposed project. The development of single-family 

residential units is also consistent with the City's 2030 General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

According to Section 8.2 of the City's 2030 General Plan, "the 2008 Urban Water Management 

Plan estimates that this supply is sufficient to meet city needs through 2030." Therefore, it is 

anticipated that the City has sufficient supply to meet the demands of the proposed project. As 

such, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

IX-C) The proposed project will alter the existing drainage pattern of the site by way of construction 

and converting the site from raw ground to urban development. However, the proposed 

project, and its storm drainage deSign, will comply with the City's Drainage Design Manual and 

City standards and specifications. Compliance will be ensured through the proposed project's 

Improvement Plan process. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant 

impact. 

IX-d) The proposed project will contribute runoff water by adding 57 single-family residential units 

and associated improvements (i.e. streets, water, sanitary sewer, storm drainage, etc.). 

However, through the design of the proposed project's storm drainage system, the project 

proponent will be required to comply with the City's Drainage Design Manual and standards and 

specifications. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

36 



IX-e) The proposed project will not degrade water quality within the vicinity of the project site. 

Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

IX-f) Please refer to the discussion and determination above, for IX-a. 

IX-g,h) Based on a review of the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) No. 06047C0850G, dated December 

12, 2008, which includes the proposed project, the proposed project is not located within a 100-

year flood plain. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

IX-i) The proposed project is located within the Planning Area as it defined in the 2030 General Plan. 

According to Section 7.2 of the City's 2030 General Plan, "three dams close to Los Banos have 

the potential of inundating portions or the whole of the Planning Area. Flood zone mapping by 

the u.s. Army Corps of Engineers indicates that all of the Planning Area is located within the San 

Luis Reservoir dam inundation area. Northern portions of the Planning Area are also located 

within the Los Banos Detention Reservoir and the Little Panache Reservoir Dam inundation 

area." All three dams are owned by the Bureau of Reclamation, and are inspected regularly for 

their structural integrity. In response to the potential of inundation by a result of dam failure, 

the City has adopted General Plan policies, which include coordination with the u.s. Army Corps 

of Engineers on potential flooding risks, and ensuring that City staff and Emergency Response 

Services are trained to respond to catastrophic dam failure. Therefore, the proposed project 

will have a less than significant impact. 

IX-j) The City of Los Banos, including the proposed project, is located approximately Sixty-six (66) 

miles east of the Pacific Ocean. Exposure of future residents within the proposed project to the 

risk of seiches, tsunami, or mudflows is minimal. Therefore, the proposed project will have a 

less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

37 
7 

!if J.B. ANOERSON !lit 

III III 
1~~1l l<or PIA"~I\(, 
-~,.-,~,~.-.. -----~--.--



X. LAND USE AND PLANNING - Would the project: 

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Physically divide an established community? X 

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, 
policy, or regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including, but not 
limited to the general plan, specific plan, local X 

coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted 
for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat 
conservation plan or natural community X 

conservation plan? 

DISCUSSION: 
X-a) The proposed project is located within the City of Los Banos, which is an urbanized City located 

along the Interstate 5 corridor. Specifically, the proposed project is surrounded by existing 

residential development on the north, south, east, and west sides of the project site. Street 

circulation included as part of the proposed project shall connect to existing streets and 

services. Therefore, the proposed project would not physically divide the established 

community, and would have a less than significant impact. 

X-b) As noted previously, the proposed project is designated for Low Density Residential land uses by 

the City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan, and is zoned R-l, Low Density Residential, by the City's 

Zoning Ordinance. The proposed project is consistent with both the City's 2030 General Plan 

and Zoning Ordinance, and will therefore have a less than Significant impact. 

X-c) The proposed project is not located within an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural 

Community Conservation Plan. Therefore, the proposed project will have no impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

38 

~ J.B. ANO[RSOl'lo' W. 

Ii1IliI\i Ii1IliI\i 
1""1) t~t PIA'~I," 
--~-~~-.------'"-.--



XI. MINERAL RESOURCES -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the x 
region and the residents of the state? 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan 

x 

or other land use plan? 

DISCUSSION: 
XI-a,b) Section 5.6 of the City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan, dated July 15, 2009, states, "according 

to the Department of Conservation: Mines and Geology, there are no known significant mineral 

resources located within the Planning Area. The Planning Area contains parts of San Luis Ranch alluvium 

and Modesto alluvium, knawn mineral occurences of underdetermined mineral resources significance. 

According to the State Office of Mine Reclamation, sand and gravel is currently mined within portions of 

the Los Banos Creek Fan, located southwest of the Planning Area. Although further exploration of the 

Planning Area could result in the reclassification of specific localities, no mineral resources have been 

historically exploited or are being currently exploited commercially within the Planning Area." 

The proposed project is located within the Planning Area as it is defined in the 2030 General Plan, and is 

consistent with the land use designation prescribed by the General Plan. Therefore, as determined in 

the 2030 General Plan, the proposed project will have no impact to mineral resources of Statewide or 

local importance. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

39 

till J.B. ANOlRSOflj lli': 

IIIIl IIIIl 
I 1\ ~!) t.' I PI 1\" ~ I , (, 
----~------



XII. NOISE -- WOULD THE PROJECT RESULT IN: 

Potentially Less Than 
Less Than 

Significant 
Significant with 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Mitigation 
Impact 

Incorporation 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise 
levels in excess of standards established in the 

X 
local general plan or noise ordinance, or 
applicable standards of other agencies? 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne X 

noise levels? 

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient 
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels X 

existing without the project? 
I 

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase 
in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity X 

above levels existing without the project? 

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 

X 
public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project expose people 

X 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

DISCUSSION: 
XII-a) Within the City of Los Banos, a primary source of noise is vehicle traffic. Under the City of Los 

Banos 2030 General Plan noise standards, the maximum allowable noise exposure to ground 

transportation is 60 dB CNEL for outdoor activity areas in residential, transient lodging, medical 

facilities, and church land uses. These land uses, which include the proposed project 

(residential), require a maximum allowable noise level of 45 dB CNEL for interior spaces. The 

proposed project will increase the number of vehicle trips within the project area. However, 

based on a review of Figure 3.11-3 of the City's 2030 General Plan EIR, the proposed project is 

not located within an area identified as exceeding the City's General Plan noise standard upon 

build-out of the City's "Planning Area." As noted previously, the proposed project is consistent 

with the land use designations provided by the City's 2030 General Plan. Therefore, the 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

40 

~ J.B. ANDfRSON ~ 

IIiII IIiII 
1.\\1) t_" PIA~"I\(, -------_. 



proposed project will not exceed the 2030 General Plan noise standards, and will have a less 

than significant impact. 

XII-b) Construction of the proposed project will expose residents within the surrounding area to 

ground borne vibration and noise levels. However, that exposure will be temporary, and the 

project proponent will be required to comply with the City's Noise Control Ordinance, Article 27. 

Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

XII-c,d) The City's 2030 General Plan EIR states, "the future noise contours suggest that even at build-out 

there is virtually no land, other than directly an the roadways, being exposed to noise levels 

abave 60dB." Figure 3.11-3 of the 2030 General Plan EIR further illustrates areas within the City 

that would be exposed to noise levels above the City's standard. Development of the proposed 

project will increase noise levels in the project area. However, the proposed project is not 

located within an area anticipated to generate noise levels above the standard identified in the 

City's 2030 General Plan. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant 

impact. 

XII-e,f) According to the Merced County Airport Land Use Commission Plan, dated June 21, 2012, the 

proposed project is not located within the vicinity of the Los Banos Municipal Airport or a 

private airstrip. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

41 



XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING -- Would the project: 

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an 
area, either directly (for example, by proposing 
new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for X 

example, through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
housing, necessitating the construction of X 

replacement housing elsewhere? 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 
necessitating the construction of replacement X 

housing elsewhere? 

DISCUSSION: 
Xiii-a) As noted previously, the proposed project consists of the mapping and development of fifty

seven (57) single-family residential units, which will induce population growth in the City of Los 

Banos. However, this population growth has previously been contemplated within the City's 

2030 General Plan and EIR, and the proposed project is consistent with the land uses prescribed 

by the 2030 General Plan and the City's Zoning Ordinance. Therefore, the proposed project will 

have a less than significant impact. 

Xiii-b) The proposed project will not require the displacement of existing housing which would 

necessitate the construction of replacement housing. Therefore, the proposed project will have 

no impact. 

Xiii-c) The proposed project site is currently vacant, and at build-out, will not displace substantial 

number of existing housing. Therefore, the proposed project will have no impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

42 

~ J.8. ANOfRSON i@) 

I!I!I I!IIII 



XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES 

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Would the project result in substantial 
adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could significant 

X 
cause 

environmental impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, response times or 
other performance objectives for any of the 
public services: 

Fire protection? X 

Police protection? X 

Schools? X 

Parks? X 

other public facilities? X 

DISCUSSION: 

XlV-a) The proposed project consists of the mapping and development of 57 single-family residential 

units. The addition of these units and future residents will impact public services such as fire protection, 

police protection, schools, and parks. 

Fire and police protection are provided by the City of Los Banos via the Los Banos Fire Department and 

Los Banos Police Department. To offset any potential impacts to fire and police services as a result of 

the proposed project, the proposed project will be required to pay the appropriate Capital Facilities Fees 

at the time a Building Permit is issued. In addition, as a Condition of Approval for the proposed project, 

the project will be required to annex into Community Facilities District (CFD) No. 2002-01 (Public Safety 

Services), which is an annual tax assessed to each new parcel within the proposed project. Therefore, 

potential impacts to fire and police protection services will be offset by payment of the applicable 

Capital Facilities Fees and annexing into CFD 2002-01. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less 

than significant impact. 

The proposed project is located within the Los Banos Unified School District (LBUSD). According to 

LBUSD School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study, dated March 2013, the proposed project 

will generated seventy-three (73) students within the LBUSD. 2030 General Plan Policy LU-I-8 states, 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

43 

11§ J.B. ANOlRSON ~ 

II1II IIiII 
I " 1\ J) I. ~ t PI.,,, ~ I \ (; 



"Require new development to pay its proportionate shore of the costs of public infrastructure, services 

and transportation facilities. This shall include parks, fire, and police stations, schools, utilities, roads, 

and other needed infrastructure." 

Specifically, based on the Table 1-1, Student Generation Rates, of the LBUSD School Facilities Needs 

Analysis, the proposed project will generate the following students per grade group: 

Grade Group Single-Family Student Number of Students Generated 

Generation Rate by Proposed Project 

K-6 0.641 37 

7-8 0.261 15 

9-12 0.370 21 

Total 73 

According to the LBUSD Boundary Map, dated August 23, 2013, these students generated by the 

proposed will likely attend the following schools: 

• Lorena Falasco Elementary School, which would see an increase of 37 students generated by the 

proposed project; 

• Los Banos Junior High School, which would see an increase of 15 students generated by the 

proposed project; and, 

• Pacheco High School, which would see an increase of 21 students generated by the proposed 

project. 

The LBUSD School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study, dated March 2013, states, "The District 

has zero excess pupil capacity at the K-6 and 7-8 grade level available for pupils generated by future 

residential development, based on its 2012/2013 enrallment, the District's capacity as calculated on its 

SAB 50-02, Existing School Building Capacity form, and pupil capacity added by the District's Lorena 

Falasco Elementary, Los Banos High School Addition and Pacheco High School projects." 

In addition, as noted above, the Los Banos Unified School District ("District") has prepared and adopted 

a School Facility Needs Analysis, and in accordance with Senate Bill SO, has adopted Level II and III 

impact fees. Resolution No. 12-13, adopted by the District Board on May 9,2013, established a Level II 

Fee of $7.35 per square foot for new residential development, and a Level III Fee of $14.70 per square 

foot. For the proposed project, the District's Level II Fees shall be applied in accordance with Resolution 

No. 12-13. 

Page 17 of Resolution No. 12-13 states, "Additional Mitigation Methods. The fees set forth in this 

Resolution are not exclusive, and the Board reserves the authority to undertake any and all additional 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

44 

tlR J.8. ANOfRSON ~ 

m m 
!".0..~~~.L,j PI,\~f>.I~,~~ 



methods to finance school facilities. The Board recognizes that the fees established herein represent the 

full and complete mitigation an school facilities of impacts related to actions by local government, 

including but not limited to, the planning, use or development of real property. The Board also reserves 

the authority to substitute the dedication of land or other property, or other form of a requirement in lieu 

of the fees levied by this Resolution." 

In accordance with Resolution No. 12-13, as well as General Plan Policy LU-I-8, , the direct impacts to 

school facilities associated with the proposed project will be mitigated via payment of the Level II impact 

fees adopted by the LBUSD Board of Education. 

It is also important to note that the LBUSD has recently acquired two properties for the future 

development of an elementary school and a junior high school. These properties are as follows: 

New Elementary School: 

APN No. 430-010-022 

15.42 acres 

Located: East B Street/Place Road 

New Junior High School Site: 

APN's 428-280-007, 008, and 009 

16 acres 

Location: Prairie Springs/Badger Flat Road 

However, based on discussions with LBUSD staff on March 18, 2014 (Mr. Tom Worthy, Director of 

Facilities-Maintenance-Operations). the LBUSD does not have an adopted School Facilities Master Plan, 

which could potentially assist the City in determining the LBUSD long-term plans in accommodating 

students generated by new residential development within the City of Los Banos, in addition to 

determining if the new students generated by the proposed project could potentially attend the schools 

that will ultimately be developed on these sites. 

The most recent school within the LBUSD is Mercy Springs Elementary School, located on Pacheco 

Boulevard/SR 165, which opened in 2013. It is important to note that the LBUSD adopted (Per 

Resolution No. 34-12) a Mitigated Negative Declaration and written Findings and Determinations in 

accordance with CEQA. This Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) concluded that the new elementary 

school would not have any significant and/or adverse impacts on the environment; including direct, 

indirect, and cumulative impacts. The MND included mitigation measures associated with Air Quality, 

Biological Resources, Cultural Resources, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Noise, and Transportation 

/Traffic. 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

45 
G 

W1 J.B. ANDERSON ~ - -I "" J) I.' r PI.\" ~ I '" 
~-~.-.-.. ,,~,-.-.-~-~ .. ,. 



The MND adopted by the LBUSD for the Mercy Springs Elementary School can be found at the following: 

City of Los Banos, City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, California 93635. 

It is recognized that the proposed project may result in indirect impacts to school facilities. These 

indirect impacts are associated with the fact that capacity at the LBUSD schools mentioned above have 

zero excess to accommodate students generated by the proposed project. It is noted by the City that 

the proposed project may require the LBUSD to develop interim housing for these students. However, 

because the LBUSD does not have an adopted Facilities Master Plan, as noted above, it is speculative to 

determine where or how the LBUSD will develop interim housing for these students. Additionally, this 

Facilities Master Plan would include an associated CEQA compliance document, of which the City could 

review and reference in terms of evaluating new residential projects' impacts on school facilities. The 

most applicable reference, in terms of CEQA, is the MND adopted for the Mercy Springs Elementary 

School, also noted above. 

Section 15064(d)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines states, "An indirect physical change is to be considered only 
if that change is a reasonably foreseeable impact which may be caused by the project. A change which is 
speculative or unlikely to occur is not reasonably foreseeable." Without a Facilities Master Plan adopted 

by the LBUSD Board of Education, it is speculative for the City to determine the proposed project's 

indirect physical change to school facilities. Therefore, without an adopted long-term planning 

document and its associated CEQA compliance document, the City can only speculate the indirect 

impacts associated with the proposed project. And, as noted in Section 15064(d)(3) of the CEQA 

Guidelines, this speculation is not reasonably foreseeable and therefore, not considered to be an 

indirect physical change. 

In addition, based on the City's review of the LBUSD Board of Education Resolution No. 34-12, dated 

November 8, 2012, the LBUSD has previously determined that the construction of a new Elementary 

School is capable of resulting in less than significant impacts; including direct impacts, indirect impacts, 

and cumulative impacts. As such, it is likely that the proposed project would also result in less than 

significant indirect and cumulative impacts. For more clarification, refer to Section XVIII of the MND, 

which determines the Mercy Springs Elementary School's Mandatory Findings of Significance. As noted 

above, this document is on file and available for review at Los Banos City Hall. 

Therefore, the proposed project would have a less than significant impact. 

The proposed project will impact parks and recreational facilities by adding additional residential units 

and residents within the City. However, to offset any potential impacts, the developer of the proposed 

project shall pay the applicable Capital Facilities Fees at the time of building permit issuance. Therefore, 

the proposed project will have a less than Significant impact. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

46 

~ J.B. A.NDERSON l% 

IlI\I IlI\I 
~~~~.;' 



MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

47 

IA~IJ l.~1 PIIl\I>.I\(, 
----~--



XV. RECREATION 

Potentially 
Less Thon 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant Nolmpad 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Would the project increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or other 
recreational facilities such that substantial X 

physical deterioration of the facility would occur 
or be accelerated? 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities 
or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have 

X 
an 

adverse physical effect on the environment? 

DISCUSSION: 
XV-a) The proposed project will increase the use of existing park facilities in the City. However, as 

noted previously in this Initial Study, the developer of the proposed project will be required to 

pay the applicable Capital Facilities Fees, which include park facilities, at the time of building 

permit issuance. This Capital Facilities Fee is intended to offset impacts of new development to 

public services, including parks and park facilities. Therefore, the proposed project will have a 

less than significant impact. 

XV-b) The proposed project does not consist of the development of new recreational facilities, nor will 

it necessitate the construction or expansion of existing recreational facilities. As noted above, 

the developer of the proposed project will be required to pay the applicable Capital Facilities 

Fee at the time of building permit issuance. The intent of the Capital Facilities Fee is to offset 

any potential impacts to public services and facilities, including parks and recreational facilities, 

as a result of new development. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than 

significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

48 
r 

~ J.B. A.NDERSON ~ 

IIiiIl IIiiIl 
I"I\D I'd Plfl~\I,h 
~.--.---, .. ----'""-.-~~ .. -.~-



XVI. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Thon 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or 
policy establishing measures of effectiveness for 
the performance of the circulation system, 
taking into account tali modes of transportation 
including mass transit and non-motorized travel X 

and relevant components of the circulation 
system, including but not limited to 
intersections, streets, highways and freeways, 
pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including, but not limited 
to level of service standards and travel demand 

X 
measures, or other standards establishes by the 
county congestion management agency for 
designated roads or highways? 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, 
including either an increase in traffic levels or a 

X 
change in location that results in substantial 
safety risks? 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design 
feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm 

X 

equipment)? 

e) Result in inadequate emergency access? X 

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or 
programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or 

X 
pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the 
performance or safety of such facilities: 

DISCUSSION: 

As part of this Initial Study, a Traffic Impact Analysis, dated December 17, 2013, was prepared by KD 

Anderson and Associates, Inc. The discussion below summarizes the findings provided in this Traffic 

Impact Analysis. The Traffic Impact Analysis is included in this Initial Study as Appendix C. 

XVI-a) The City's 2030 General Plan Circulation Element provides the guiding policies and implementing 

actions associated with transportation in the City. Specifically, Implementing Action C-I-I0 of 

the 2030 General Plan states, "Develop and manage the roadway system to obtain segments as 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

49 



LOS C and intersections at LOS D or better for two haur peak periads (AM and PM) on all majar 

raadways and intersections in Los Banos. This policy daes not extend ta residential streets (i.e. 

streets with direct driveway access ta homes) or state highways and their intersections, where 

Caltrans policies apply." 

The proposed project's Traffic Impact Study evaluated four (4) intersections along Wilmott 

Avenue: Willmott Avenue/2"d Street; Willmott Avenue/North Street; Willmott Avenue/Friggs 

Avenue; and, Willmott Avenue/7 th Street. 

Under the "Existing Plus Project" scenario, the proposed project would result in a Level of 

Service (LOS) D, which satisfies the City's minimum LOS standard in accordance with the 2030 

General Plan. For further reference, refer to Table 7 of the Traffic Impact Study. Under the 

"Existing Plus Approved Project Plus Project" scenario, the LOS at the evaluated intersections 

would remain at an LOS D or better. For further reference, refer to Table 9 of the Traffic Impact 

Study. 

The Traffic Impact Study also noted that the proposed project would add a small amount of 

traffic to the local neighborhood streets adjoining the project. However, the relative traffic 

increases (i.e. 10 to 20 vehicles per day) on these streets would not result in conditions that 

would typically be judged to be unacceptable on local streets. The Traffic Impact Study also 

determined that impacts to pedestrian facilities, bicycle facilities, and transit service would be 

less than significant. 

Therefore, the proposed project will comply with the policies of the 2030 General Plan and have 

a less than significant impact. 

XVI-b) As noted above, the proposed project will result in an LOS D or better for the intersections 

evaluated under the proposed project's Traffic Impact Study. Therefore, the proposed project 

will have a less than significant impact. 

XVI-c) The proposed project will not result in the change of air patterns, most notably from the Los 

Banos Municipal Airport. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant 

impact. 

XVI-d) Street improvements installed as part of the proposed project will be done in accordance with 

the City's standards and specifications. As such, hazards due to a design feature are not 

anticipated to occur. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

50 

lli: J.B. ANDERSON tl@ 

f!li1I1 f!li1I1 
II\~I) "r PlA~"'\(, 
-----~ 



XVI-e) The proposed project provides two points of access; Friguglietti Avenue, and Rose Avenue. 

Having two points of access allows sufficient emergency access to future residents within the 

proposed project. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

XVI-f) The proposed project's Traffic Impact Study determined that impacts to pedestrian facilities, 

bicycle facilities, and transit service would be less than significant. Standard frontage 

improvements (i.e. sidewalks) and connectivity to existing streets will allow for non-motorized 

transportation and access to the project. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than 

significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

51 
z 

~ J.B. ANOJ:RSON f~ 

IIIl'iII IIIl'iII 
IA\lJ I.~I PIA'\NI\(, --.--.-... -.. --.----~.-,- ... -.--



XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS -- WOULD THE PROJECT: 

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements 
of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control X 

Board? 

b) Require or result in the construction of new 
water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction X 

of which could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

c) Require or result in the construction of new 
storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 

X 
existing facilities, the construction of which 
could cause significant environmental effects? 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project from existing entitlements and 

X 
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements 
needed? 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to serve X 

the projects projected demand in addition to the 
providers existing commitments? 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient 
permitted capacity to accommodate the projects X 

solid waste disposal needs? 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes 
X 

and regulations related to solid waste? 

DISCUSSION: 

XVII-a) The proposed project will connect to the City's existing sanitary sewer system. According to City 

Public Works staff, the City has sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed project and 

will not exceed any treatment requirements imposed by the Regional Water Quality Control 

Board. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

XVII-b) The proposed project will connect to the City's existing water and sanitary sewer system. As 

part of this connection, the proposed project will not be required to increase the size of existing 

City of Los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

52 



water and sanitary sewer lines in order to serve the project. According to City Public Works 

staff, the City has sufficient capacity in its domestic water and sanitary sewer systems to 

accommodate development within the proposed project. In addition, the proposed project will 

be required to pay the applicable Capital Facilities Fees, which include water and sanitary sewer 

fees, at the time of Building Permit issuance. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less 

than significant impact. 

XVII-c) The proposed project will connect to the City's existing storm drainage system via connecting to 

an existing storm drain line located in Mandarin Avenue. The design and installation of the 

proposed project's storm drainage system will be done in accordance with the City's Drainage 

Design Manual, and does not require the construction or expansion of new/existing facilities. 

Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

XVII-d,e) The proposed project has been reviewed by City Public Works staff, and it has been 

determined that there is sufficient water supply and wastewater capacity available to 

serve the proposed project. The proposed project does not require the construction of 

new or expansion of existing facilities. 

XVII-f) Solid waste in the City of Los Banos is managed by the Merced County Association of 

Governments. The majority of the City's solid waste is taken to Billy Wright Landfill and 

additional waste is taken to Highway 59 Landfill. The City's 2030 General Plan EIR determined 

that there are sufficient options for expansion or relocation of services to meet the demand 

created by future growth in Los Banos. As noted previously, the proposed project is consistent 

with the 2030 General Plan, and as a result, consistent with the determinations made in the 

2030 General Plan EIR. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

XVII-g) The proposed project will comply with all Federal, State, and local statutes and regulations 

related to solid waste. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less than significant impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
Mitigation is not required for this topic. 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

53 



XVIII. MANDA TORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE --

Potentially 
Less Than 

Less Than 
Significant with 

Significant 
Mitigation 

Significant No Impact 
Impact 

Incorporation 
Impact 

a) Does the project have the potential to 
degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or 
wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, 

X 
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, reduce the number or restrict the 
range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory? 

b) Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? ("Cumulatively considerableu 

means that the incremental effects of a project 
X 

are considerable when viewed in connection 
with the effects of past projects, the effects of 
other current projects, and the effects of 
probable future projects)? 

c) Does the project have environmental effects 
which will cause substantial adverse effects on X 

human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

DISCUSSION: 

XVIII-a) Finding (a) is checked as "Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated" on 

the basis of the proposed project's potential impacts on biological resources, as 

described in Section 3.0-IV of this Initial Study. Potentially significant impacts were 

identified in this issue area, and as such, mitigation has been incorporated into the 

proposed project to reduce said impacts to a level of less than significant. 

XVIII-b) 

City of los Banos 

As described in this Initial Study, the potential environmental effects of the proposed 

project will either be less than significant, or will have no impact at all. Where the 

proposed project involves potentially significant impacts, these impacts would have a 

less than significant impact with mitigation measures incorporated. 

The potential environmental impacts identified in this Initial Study have been 

considered in conjunction with each other as to their potential to generate other 

potentially significant impacts. The various potential environmental impacts of the 

54 

AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 



XVIII-c) 

City of los Banos 

proposed project will not combine to generate any potentially significant cumulative 

impacts. 

The City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan and EIR comprehensively account for ongoing 

and foreseeable urban development within the City's "Planning Area" and the 

cumulative environmental impacts of planned development. Future urban development 

in the Los Banos includes the provision of roads, utilities, schools, and recreational 

facilities needed to serve City residents and visitors as their demands for urban services 

increase over time. 

The proposed project will contribute to planned urban development in the City of Los 

Banos, by adding 57 single-family residential units. The potential environmental impacts 

associated with the proposed project represent a portion of the environmental 

consequences of the planned growth and development permitted by the 2030 General 

Plan. The proposed project may involve a minor addition to the potential 

environmental impacts identified in the 2030 General Plan EIR, but the proposed project 

will not result in any substantial contribution to any of the significant cumulative 

impacts identified in the 2030 General Plan EIR. 

This Initial Study has considered the potential environmental impacts of the proposed 

project in the discrete issue areas outlined in the CEQA Environmental Checklist. During 

the environmental analysis, the potential for the proposed project to result in 

substantial impacts on human beings in these issue areas, as well as the potential for 

substantial impacts on human beings to occur outside of these issue areas, was 

considered, and no other such impacts were identified. 

55 

AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

~ J.B. ANDERSON ~ 

I!II! I!II! 
11\\1) l~1 PI,\~~I\(, 
-~--~------.---., .. --



SECTION 4.0 REFERENCES 

In accordance with Section 15063(a)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, the following expert opinion, technical 

studies, and substantial evidence has been referenced and/or cited in the discussion included in Section 

3.0, Initial Study Checklist: 

1. City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan, dated July 2009. 

2. City of Los Banos 2030 General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR), dated July 2009. 

3. City of Los Banos Zoning Ordinance. 

4. City of Los Banos Noise Control Ordinance, Article 27. 

S. Merced County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan, adopted June 21, 2012, prepared by the Merced 
County Airport Land Use Commission. 

6. California Department of Transportation Online Database of State Scenic Highways 
(www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/scenic/cahisys.htm). 

7. California Department of Conservation Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program, published 
October 2007. 

8. Guide for Assessing and Mitigating Air Quality Impacts, adopted August 20, 1998, and as revised 
January 10, 2002, prepared by the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. 

9. Guidance for Valley Land-use Agencies in Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for New Projects under 
CEQA, dated December 17, 2009, prepared by the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. 

10. Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, dated September 4,2013, prepared by Krazan and Associates. 

11. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) No. 06047C08S0G, dated December 12, 2008, prepared by the 
Federal Emergency Management Association (FEMA). 

12. Traffic Impact Study, dated December 17, 2013, by KD Anderson and Associates, Inc. 

13. School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study, dated March 2013, Los Banos Unified School 
District. 

14. Phone Communication with Mr. Tom Worthy, Director of Facilities-Maintenance-Operation, Los 
Banos Unified School District, March 18, 2014. 

15. Los Banos Unified School District Board of Education Resolution No. 34-12, dated November 8,2012 

16. Los Banos Unified School District Boundary Map, dated August 23, 2013 

City of Los Sa nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
May 2014 

56 
r 

&.'. J.O. ANOfRSON W 

lIlIIi lIlIIi 
IA~!) I ~r PIA\'i'h 
-~-~------ ... 



SECTION 5.0 ApPENDICES 

City of Los Ba nos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

May 2014 

57 
r 

@i: J.B. A.NDERSON ti§ 

IIilII IIilII 
I .\ ~ Il j ~ I 1'1.\ ~ f'< I \ <, 
-.-.-~"".-~~.--~----



PRELIMINARY 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING L'IVESTIGATION 

PROPOSED REsroENTIALDEVELOl'MENT 
NORTH STREET AND WlLLM:OTT AVENUE 

LOs BANOS, CALIFOR.~ 

KA PROJItCF NO. OU.1301lO 
SIlPTEMBER 4. 2013 

Prepared for: 

M:a. ALExIs GEVORGIAN 
AMG & ASSOCIATES, LLC 
16633 VENTlJRA BLVD., 11104 
ENCINO,CAI..IFORNIA 91436 

Prepared by: 

K1IAZAN & ASSOCIATES,INC. 
GIOTECBNlCAL ENGJNEI.IlING DIVISION 

215 W. DAKOTAAVENUI! 
CLoVIS, CAUFoRNIA 93612 

(559) 348·2200 



(t~Krazan &ASSOCIATES.INC. 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING. ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 

CONSTRUCTION TESTING & INSPECTION 

September4,2013 

Mr. Alexis Oevorgian 
AMG & Anodates, LLC 
16633 Ventura Boulevard, #104 
Encino, California 91436 

RE: Pre6minary Geoteclm1ea1 EngineeriAg In...,.tlgation 
Proposed ResIdential Development 
North Street and Willmott Avenne 
Los Banos, CalifOrnia 

Dear Mr. Oevorgian: 

KA Project No. 012-13090 

In accon!ance with your request, we hlIve completed a Geotechnical Engineering Investigation for the 
above-referenced site. The results of our investigation are preseoted in the attached report. 

If you have any questions, or if we IIIlIY be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact our 
office at (559) 348-2200. 

DR1:ht 

With Tell 0fIicc0 ServiDg Th. W .. tern United Slam 
21S W. 1loIaJ .. Ave .• Clovis CA 93611. (559) 348-2200 • Pax: (559) 348-:zlOO 

01213090 ItIport cr~1m.) 



CilKrazan & ASSOCIATES. INC. 

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEE~ING • ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
CONSTRUCTION TESTING & INSPECTION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

IN"I"RODUcrION •..... ___ ._ ..... __ ............................. __ ._ ...... __ .......... _ .......... _. __ ............... _ ....... _ ........ _1 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE_ ....... H ................................... _ .... _ ......... __ .......... _ ......... _ ........... _ ........ __ ..... 1 

PROPOSED CONSTRUCI'lON _._ ••••• __ . __ .......... _. ___ .. ___ ._ ..... _._ ..... _______ ......... _. __ ..... ___ ... 2 

SITE LOCATION, SITE HISTORY, AND SITE DESCRIPTION ..... "_ •• "" .. ______ .. "" ... ___ ...... ,,,,_ ... :1 

GEOLOGIC SETTING _._ .... ___ ....... _._" ......... __ .. ______ ._" ... __ ._ ...... ____ ._ ....... _. __ ......... ___ .3 

FIELD AND LABORATORY INVESTlGATIONIi " •• __ • __ ._"""_ ........ __ ••• __ " ••• __ ._ ... ,,,,_ ....... _.3 

SOIL PROFILE AND SUBSURFACE CONDmONS __ .. __ ........... __ ..... _____ ...... ___ .. " .. __ •• __ .. _.4 

GROUNDWATER .... _ .. _ ..... _ .... " .......... _._ ......... _ .... _ .................. __ ..... ___ .... _ ............ _ .... _ ....... 5 

SOIL LIQUEFACI'lON ....... _ ........ _" ... ,, _____ ..... _ ... _ ........ ____ ..... _ .. __ ..... ____ ...... _ ....... _ .. __ ... 5 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS_ ......... _ .. __ ._. __ .... ___ .... _. __ ... _. ___ .... __ .......... __ 6 

Administrative Summary ......................................................................................................................................... 6 
Groundwater Influence on StlUctureslConstruc:tion. .............................................................................. _ ................ 8 
Site Preparation ....................................................................................................................................................... 8 
Engineered Fill ..................................................................................................................................................... 10 
Dtainage 8IId Landsalplng. .................................................................................................................................... 11 
Utility Trench Backfill ........................................................................................................................................... 11 
FolllldatiODS - Conventionai .................................................................................................................................. 12 
FOIllldatiODS - Post Tensioo or StlUctwal Slab ...................................................................................................... 13 
Floor Slabs and Exterior Flalwork ......................................................................................................................... 14 
La1in1 Earth Pressures and Retaining Walls ......................................................................................................... IS 
R .. Vdue Test RcsuI1s and Pavement Design. ......................................................................................................... 16 
Seismic Parameters - 2010 cac ........................................................................................................................... 18 
Soil Cemonl Reactivity .......................................................................................................................................... 18 
Compa<:ted Material AccepI8DCC ........................................................................................................................... 19 
Testing andlDspectioo ........................................................................................................................................... 19 

LIMITA TIONS ......... _ ............ __ .. __ ...... __ ._ ... __ ••• __ • _____ ........................... _ ........ _ ..... _. __ ... _19 

SITE PLAN ....... _ .. _ ............. _ ............................ _ ... _ .................................... _ ..... _ ........................... _ ........... 21 

WGS OF BORIN"GS (1 TO 6) .............. - ................................................... __ .................... AppeDdiI A 

GENERAL EARTHWORK SPECIFICATlONS .................. _ ........................ __ ..................... Appelldb. B 

GENERAL PA VEldENT SPEClFlCATIONS.-. .............................. __ ... ,_._ .. _ .................. AppettdiJ: C 

Willi TOIl Oftlces ServbIg The weitera Ulllted Slaw 
21S W. Dakota Ave •• Clovis CA 931\12. (S59) 348-:1200 • Fax: (5.59) 348·2201 

OI2l3~Jt.4uC (l'adIdMTnd) 



GKrazaIl. &ASSOCIATES, INC. 

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING. ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
CONSTRUCTION TESTING 8< INSPECTION 

September 4,2013 KAProjectNo.012-13090 

PRELIMINARY GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING INVESTIGATION 
PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 
NORTRSTREET AND W1LLMOTI AVENUE 

LOS BANOS, CALIFORNIA 

INTRODUCTION 

This report presents the results of our Preliminaly Geotec:hnical Engineering Investigation for the 
proposed Residential Development to be located in Los Banos, California. Discussions regarding site 
conditions are presented herein, together with conclusions and recommendations pertaining to site 
preparation, Engineered Fill, utility trench backfill, drainage and landscaping, foundations. concrete 
floor slabs and exterior flatwork, retaining walls, and pavement design. 

A site plan showing the approximate boring locations is presented following dle text of this report. A 
description of the field investigation. boring logs. and the boring logs legend are presented in Appendix 
A. Appendix A also contains a description of dle Jaboratory-testing phase of this study; along with dle 
laboratory test results. Appendices B and C contain guides to earthwork and pavement specifications. 
Wben conflicts in the text of the report occur with the general specifications in the appendices, the 
recommendations in dle text of dle repDrt have precedence. 

PVRPQSE AND SCOPE 

This investigation was conducted to evaluste the soil and groundwater conditiotlS at dle site. to make 
geotechnical engineering recommendations for use in design of specific construction elements, and to 
provide criterin for site preparation and Engineered Fill construction. 

Our scope of services was outlined in our proposal dated July 26, 2013 (KA Proposal No. P291-13) and 
included the following: 

• A site reconnaissance by a member of our engineering staff to evaluate dle surface conditions at 
the project site. 

• A field investigation consisting of drilling 6 borings to depths ranging from approximately 10 to 
SO feet for evaluation ofdle subsurface conditions at the project site. 

• Perfuming laboratory tests on representative Boil samples obtained from the borings to evaluate 
the physical and index properties of the subsurface soUs. 

Willi Te. Ollicu ServIDg ne W ........ Uaitetl States 
215 W. Dakota AYe .• Clovia CA 9361l. (559) 348-:1200 • Fax: (559) 348-2201 

01213090)epott (T1IIUIi"" TIKI) 



KA No. 012·13090 
Peg. No. 2 

• Evaluation of the data obtained from the investigation and an engineering analysis to provide 
recommendations for use in the project design and preparation of construction specifications. 

• Preparation of this report summarizing the results, conclusions, recommendations, and findings 
of our investigation. 

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION 

We understand that design of the proposed development is currently underway; structural load 
information and other fmal details pertoining to the struetores are unavailable. On a preliminaIy basis, 
it is understood that the development will include the construction of approximately 57 single-family 
residential lots. It is anticipated the buildings will be a single- or two·story structures utilizing concrete 
slab-on-grade construction. Footing loads are anticipated 10 be light to moderate. On-site paved areas 
and landscaping are also planned 10 be associated with the development 

In the event, these structural or grading details are inconsistent with the final design criteria, the Soils 
Engineer should be notified so that we may update this writing as applicable. 

SITE LOCATION. SITE HISTORY. AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

The site is irregular in shape and encompasses approximately 11.4 acres. The site is located at the 
northeast comer of North Street and Willmott Avenue in Los Banos, CaIifornia. The site is 
predominately slIlTOunded by single-family residential developmeots. 

Site history was obtained by reviewing historical aerial photographs taken in 1998 and 2010. Review of 
the 1998 aerial photograph indicates that the project site predominately consisted of agricuJtural land 
with two rum! residential developments. Aasociated with these developments were several trees, sheds, 
and barns. The site was surrounded by residential developmeots. 

Review of the 2010 aerial pholOgraph indicates that the project site conditions appeared to be relatively 
similar to that noted in the 1998 aerial photograph. 

Presently, the site predominately consists of fallow agricultural land. The rum! residential 
developments previously noted in the aerial photographs were still present at the site. Several of the 
barns and sheds had been removed. Remnants of an irrigation ditch trended east·west through !be 
central portion of the site. Buried utility lines may be located throughout the site associated with the 
existing development. The site is covered by a moderate weed growth and the surface soils have a loose 
consistency. Several small to large size trees are located throughout the site. With the exception of the 
3 10 5 foot deep irrigation ditch, the site is relatively level with no major changes in grade. 

KnzoD & Aaedateo, In .. 
WIIh Ten Offices SeMng The Westem. UDited States 

01:1.13090 ItIpOIt (T1abtlw1bot) 



GEQWGIC SETfING 

KA No. 012-13090 
Pag.No.3 

The San Joaquin Valley, which includes the Los Banos area, is a topographic and structural basin that is 
bounded on Ibe east by the Sierra Nevada Mollll1ains and on Ibe west by lb. Coast Ranges. The Sierra 
Nevada, a fault block dipping gently southwestward, is made up of igneous and metamorphic rocks of 
pre-Tertiary age that comprise the basement complex beneath the Valley. The Coast Ranges contain 
folded and faulted sedimentary rocka of Mesozoic and Cenozoic age, Which are similar to 1hose rocks 
that underlie Ibe Valley at depth and non-conformably overlie the basement complex; gently dipping to 
nearly horizontal sedimentary rocka of Tertiary and Quaterruuy age overlie Ibe older rocka. These 
younger rocks are mostly of continental origin and in Ibe Los Banos area, they were derived from the 
Sierra Nevada. 

The Coast Ranges evolved as a result of folding, faulting, and accretion of diverse geologic 1errains. 
They are composed chiefly of sedimentary and metamorphic rocks that are sharply deformed into 
complex stnJCtures. They are broken by numerous faults, Ibe San Andreas Fault being the most notable 
structural feature. 

Both the Sierra Nevada and Coast Range are geologically young mountain ranges and possess active 
and potentially active fault zones. MaJor active faults and fault zones occur at some distance to the east, 
west, and soulb oflbe Los Banos area. The Owens Valley Fault Zone bounds the eastern edge of the 
Siena Nevada block and contains both active and potentially active faults. 

There are no active fault treces in the project vicinity. Accordingly, the project area is not wilbin an 
Earthquake Fault Zone (Special Studies Zone) and will not require a special site investigation by an 
Engineering Geologist. The site is located within Seismic Zone 3. 

Los Banos residents could feel the affects of a large seismic event on one of the nearby active or 
potentially active fault zones. Los Banos has experienced groundshaking ftom earthquakes in the 
historical past According to the Five County Seismic Safety Element, groundsbaking of VII intensity 
(Modified Merca\i Scale) was felt in Los Banos from the 1872 Owens Valley Earthquake. This is Ibe 
largest known earthquake event affecting the Los Banos area. 

FIELD AND LABQRATORXINyESTIGATIONS 

Subsurface soil conditions were explored by drilling 6 borings to depths ranging from approximately 10 
to SO fect below existing site grade, using a truck-mounted drill rig. In addition, 2 bulk subgrade soil 
samples were obtained from the site for laboratory R-value testing. The approximate boring and bulk 
semple locations are shown on the site plan. During drilling operations, penetration tests were 
performed at regular intervals to evaluate the soil consistency and to obtain information regarding Ibe 
engineering properties of the subsoils. Soil samples were rctsined for laboratory testing. The soils 
encountered were continuously examined and visually classified in accordance with the Unified Soil 
Classification System. A more detailed description of the field investigation is presented in Appendix 
A. 

Kruan " Aasoclatos, In .. 
With Ten Offices ~ The Wes1em United S!8tes 



KA No. 012-13090 
Pog.No.4 

LaboratOlY tests were performed on selected soil samples to evaluate their physical characteristics and 
engineering properties. The laboratory-testing program was formulated with empbasis on the evaluation 
of natural moisture, density, gradation, expansion potential, atterberg limits, consolidation potential, R
value, and moisture-density relationships of the materials encountered. Details of the laboratory test· 
program and results of the laboratory tests are summarized in Appendix A. This information, along 
with the field observations, was used to prepare the fina1 boring logs in Appendix A. 

SOILPROm.E AND SUBSURFACE CONPmONS 

Based on our findings, the subsurface conditions encountered appear typical of those found in the 
geologic region of the site. In general, approximstely 6 to 12 inches of fill material was encountered 
along the edges of the site, around the structures, and in the vicinity of the canal. The fill material 
predominstely consisted of sandy clay and sandy clayey silt. The thickness and extent of fill material 
was determined based on limited test borings and visual observation. Thicker fill may be present at the 
site. Limited testing was performed on the fill soils during the time of our field and laboratory 
investigations. The limited testing indicates the fiU soils had varying strength characteristics ranging 
from loosely placed to compacted. 

Within areas not covered by fill, the upper soils consisted of approximstely 6 to 12 incbes of loose/soft 
sandy clay or sandy clayey sill These soils are disturbed, have low strength characteristics, and are 
highly compressible when satnrsted. 

Below the loose/soft surface soils and fill material, approximstely 3 to S feet of loose/stiff to medium 
dcnselhard sandy silty clay, sandy clayey silt or sandy silt were encountered. Field and laboratory tests 
suggest that these soils are moderately strong and slightly to moderately compressible. Th. clayey soils 
bave: a moderate potential for expansion. Penetration resistance ranged from 11 to 43 blows per foot. 
Dry densities ranged from 98 to 124 pef. Representative soil samples consolidated approximately I to 4 
percent under a 2 ksf load when satnratcd. A representative soil sample had an angle of intemal friction 
of23 degrees. Representative samples of the clayey soils bad an Expansion Indices of26 and 64. 

Below 4 to 5 feet, alternating layers of predominately silty sand, sandy silt, sandy clayey silt, sand, and 
clayey sand were encountered. Field and laborstory tests S1I8gest that these soils are moderately streng 
and slightly compressible. Penetration resistance ranged from 6 to 57 blows per fool Dry densities 
ranged from 89 to 114 pcf. These soils had similar strength charscteristics as the upper soils IUId 
extended to termination depth of our borings. 

For additional information about the soils encountered, please refer to the logs of borings in Appendix 
A. 

KnzaD " AIIodatu, bOo 
With Ten Offices Serving TIle Western United s-.. 



GROUNDWATER 

KA No. 012-13090 
PIg.No.S 

Test boring locations were checked for the presence of groundwater during and immediately following 
the dnlling operations. Free groundwater was encountered in Boring B I at approximately 32 feet below 
existing site grade. Information obtained from the Department of Water Resources indicates that 
groundwater has been as shallow as 4 feet below existing site grade within the Vicinity of the site. 
Groundwater information was obtained from 10 wells located within I mile of the site. 

It should be recognized that water table elevations may fluctuate with time, being dependent upon 
seasonal precipitation, irrigation, land usc, and climatic conditions, as well as other factors. Therefore, 
water level observations at the time of the field investigation may vary from those encountered during 
the conslrUClion pbase of the proj ect. The evaluation of such factors is beyond the scope of this report. 

spn. LIOUEFACTION 

Soil liquefaction is a state of soil particle suspension, caused by a complete loss of strenglh when the 
effective stress drops to zero. Liquefaction normally occurs in soils, such as sands, in which the 
strength is purely frictional. However, liquefaction has occurred in soils other than clean sands. 
Liquefaction usually occurs under vibratory conditions, such as those induced by seismic events. 

To evaluate the liquefaction potential of the site, the following items were evaluated: 

\) Soil type 

2) Groundwater depth 

3) Relative density 

4) Initial confining pressure 

5) Intensity and duration of groundshaking 

The predominant soils within the project site consist of clayey sand and sandy clay. F_ groundwater 
was encountered within a depth of 32 feet below existing site grade during our exploratory drilling. 
Infonnation obtained from the Department of Water Resources indicated that water wells at the general 
vicinity had historic groundwater elevations recorded from a period of 1940 to 2011 to be as shallow as 
4 feet below site grade. 

The potential for soil liquefaction during a seismic event was evaluated using the LIQUEFYPRO 
computer program (version S) developed by CivilTech Software. For the analysis, a maximum 
earthquake magnitnde of 6.6 was used. A peak horizontal ground surface acceleration of 0.38g was 
considered conservative and appropriate fur the liquefaction analysis. An estimated high groundwater 
depth of 4 feet was used for our analysis. The computer analysis indicates that soils above a depth of 4 
feet are non·liqueflllble due to the absence of groundwater. The soils below a depth of 4 feet have a 

Krna1l " Alsociitea, Inc. 
With Ton Offices Serving The W....." UnilOd State, 



KA No. 012-\3090 
Page No. 6 

slight to moderate potential for liquefaction under seismic shaking due to the loose to medium dense 
silty and clayey sand soils and the anticipated low to moderate seismicity in the region. The analysis 
also indicates that the estimated total seismic induced settIement is not anticipated to exceed 6 inches. 
Differential settlement caused by a seimnic event is estimated to be less than 4 inches. The anticipated 
differential settlement is estimated over the width of a building. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the findings of our field and IaboratolY investigstions, along with previous geotechnical 
experience in the project .,..,.., the fullowing is a summllY of our evaluations, conclusions, and 
recommendetions. 

Administrative Summary 

In brie!; the subject site and soil conditions, with the exception of the moistwe-sensitive upper soils, the 
expansive nature of tho clayey sou., the potential seismic settlement, and existing development, appear 
to be conducive to the development of the project. Presently, the surface soils have a loose consistency. 
These sou. are disturbed. have low strength characteristics, and are highly compressible when saturated. 
Accordingly, it is recommended that the sll!faoo soiIs be recompacted. This compaction effort should 
stabilize the surface soils and locate any unsuitsble or pliant areas not found during our field 
investigation. 

Approximately 6 to 12 inches of fill material was encountered throughout portions of the site. The fill 
material predominately consisted of sandy clay and sandy clayey silt. The thickness and extent of fill 
material was determined based on limited test borings and visual observation. Thicker fill may be 
present at the site. Limited testing was performed on the fill sou. during the time of our field and 
laboratory investigations. The limited testing indicates the fill sou. bad varying strength characteristics 
ranging from loosely placed to compacted. Therefore, it is recommended that fiJI soils which have not 
have been properly compacted and certified be excavated and stockpiled so that the native soils can be 
prepared properly. These soils will be suitable for reuse as General Engineered Fill provided they arc 
cleansed of excessive organics, debris, and fragments greater than 4 inches in maximmn dimension. 
Prior to backfilling Krazan & Associates, Inc. should inspect the bottom of the excavation to verify no 
edditional removal will be required. 

Of primllY importance in the development of this site is the removal of upper moisture-sensitive and 
compressible soils from the proposed development. The upper soils within the project site an: 
moderately to highly compressible under saturated conditions. Accordingly, mitigation measures are 
recommended to reduce the potential of excessive soil settlement. It is recommended that the upper 2 
feet of native soils within the proposed building areas be excavated, worlced until unifurm and free from 
large clods, moisture-conditioned to a minimum of 2 percent above optimum moisture-content, and 
recompacted to a minimum of 90 percent of maximum density based on ASlM rest Method D1557. In 
addition, it is recommended that proposed structural elements within the proposed building areas be 
supported by a minimum of 18 inches of Engineered Fill. Over-excavation should extend to a minimum 

Kruaa 6; Assad.tes,lDe. 
With Ten Olfk:e8 Serviag The Westem UDired S ..... 



-'_.-. 

KA No. 012-13090 
FageNo.7 

of 5 feet beyond proposed footing lines. The exposed subgnule soils should be scarified to a depth of 6 
inches, moisture-conditioned to a minimum of 2 percent above optimum moisturc-oontent, and 
recompacted to a minimum of 90 percent of lIlBJdmum density based on ASTM Test Method DI557 
prior to placetnent of Engineered Fill. During grading, it is recommended that Krazen and Associates, 
Inc. be present at the site to delineate the extent of the loose and compressible soils, and to inspect the 
bottom of the excavation to verifY no additional removal will be required. 

It is anticipated that the structural elements within the paved areas will settle if the subgrade soils 
become saturated. The settlement of the paved areas is related to the subsurface soil CODrlitions. 
Therefore, it is anticipated that the paved areas will require higher maintenance. Utilities placed within 
the site should incorporate flexible connectors. 

The upper on-site native and fill soils are identified as sandy clays, sandy clayey silts, and sandy silts. 
The clayey soils appear to have a moderate swell potential. The estimated swell pressure of the clayey 
material may cause movement-affecting slabs and brittle exterior finishes. To reduce the potential soil 
movement, it, is recommended that the uppor 18 inches of soil within slaboOn-grade and exterior 
flatwork areas be non-expansive fill. The fill material should be a well-graded silty sand or sandy silt 
soil A clean sand or very sandy soil is not acceptable for this purpose. A sandy soil will allow the 
surface water to dratn into the expansive clayey soils below, which may result in swelling. The 
replacement soil anellor the upper 18 inches of Imported Fill soils sbould meet the specifications as 
described under the subheading Engineered Fill. The placement soils should extend 5 feet beyond the 
perimeter of lhe building. The non-expansive replacement soil should be compacted to at least 90 
percent relative compaction based on ASTM Test Method Dl551. The exposed native soils in lhe 
excavation should not be allowed to dry out IUld should be kept continnonsly moist prior to baclcfiJling. 
In addition, it is recommended that slab-on-grade continuous footings be nominally reinforced to reduce 
cracking and vertical off-set. 

As IUl alternative to lhe use of non-expansive soils, the upper 18 inches of soil supporting lhe slab areas 
can consist of limo-treated clayey soils. The limo-treated soils should be recompacted to a minimum of 
90 percent of maximum densitY. Preliminary application rate of lime should be 5 percent by dry weight. 
The lime material should be calcium oxide, commonly known as quick-lime. The clayey soils should be 
at or near optimum moistcre during the mixing operations. 

Based on lh" soil liquefaction analysis performed within lhe site, the estimated total seismiC-induced 
settlement is on the order of 6 inches. Differential settlement caused by a seismic event is estimated to 
be less 1han 4 inches. The anticipated differential settlement is estimated over the width of a residential 
building. The seismic settlements would develop if lique!ilction of tho underlying saturated subsoils 
were to occur during a seismic event. If these potential movements are not tolerable, then mitigation 
measures are recommended to reduce struclU1'81 damage due to soil liquefaction. The project Structural 
Engineer should evaluate lhe structcre's ability to wilhstand these potential movements associated with 
soil liquefaction. 

KnLzaD '" ARoda"', IDe. 
With Ten Offices ServIng The Wesrcm United Stales 



KA No. 012-13090 
PsgeNo.8 

Sandy soil conditions were encountered at the site. These cohesionless soils have a Ioodency to eave in 
trench wall excavations. Shoring or sloping back trench sidewalls may be required within these sandy 
soils. 

The site is presently utilized as agricultural land. In addition, the site is occupied by two run!l 
residential developments. Associated with these developments are buried structures such as irrigation 
lines and utility lines. Any surface or buried structures encountered during construction should be 
properly removed and the resulting excavations backfilled. It is suspected that demolition activities of 
any structures will disturb the upper soils. After demolition activities, it is recommended that these 
disturbed soils be removed and/or recompacted. This compaction effort should stabilize the upper soils 
and locate any unsuitable or pliant areas not found during our field investigation. If not utilized for 1be 
new development, the water well should be abandoned in accordance with the county standards. 

After completion of the recommended site preparation, the site should be suitable for shallow footing 
support. The proposed structure footings may be designed utilizing an allowable bearing pressure of 
2,000 psffor dead-plus-live loads. Footings should bave a minimum embedment of 12 inches. 

GrollDdwater Wnenre on StrnctnresiCmytruction 

Based on our fmdings and historical records, it is not anticipated that groundwater will rise within the 
zone of structural influence or affect the construction of foundations and pavements for the project. 
However, if earthwork is performed during or soon after periods of precipitation, the subgrade soils may 
become saturated, "pump," or not respond to densification techniques. Typical remedial measures 
include: discing and aerating the soil during dry weather; mixing 1be soil with dryer materials; removing 
and replacing the soil with an approved fill material; or mixing the soil with an approved lime or cement 
product. Our firm should be consulted prior to implementing remedial measures to observe the unstable 
subgrade conditions and provide appropriate retOl11lDatdations. 

Site PreparatioD 

General site clearing should include removal of vegetation; existing utilities; structures including 
foundations; basement walls and floors; existing stockpiled soil; trees and associated root systems; 
rubble; rubbish; and any loose and/or saturated materials. Site stripping should extend to a minimum 
depth of 2 to 4 inches, or until all organics in excess of 3 percent by volume are removed. Deeper 
stripping may be required in localized areas. These materials will not be suitable for use as Engineered 
Fill. However, stripped topsoil may be stockpiled and reused in landscape or non-structural areas. 

The site is presently utilized as agricultural land and occupied by two run!l residential developments. 
Associated with these developments are buried structures such as utility lines, irrigation lines, and an 
inigation ditch that extend throughout the site. Any surliu:e or buried structures encountered during 
construction should be properly removed and the resulting excavations backfilled. All deleterious 
materiaJ should be removed from the ditch prior to backfilling. It is suspected that demolition activities 
of existing atructures will disturb the upper soils. After demolition activities, it is recommended that 

KrIzan" Aasacialu, Iae. 
With Teo Offices Serving The Westetn United SIlIW& 



KA No. 012-13090 
PugeNo.9 

these disturbed soils be removed and/or recompacted. Excavations, depressions, or soft and pliant are .. 
extending below planned finish subgrade level should be cleaned to firm undisturbed soil, and 
backfilled with Engineered Fill. In general, any septic tanks, debris pits, ces5lJQols, or similar structures 
should be entirely removed. Concrete footings should be removed to an equivalent depth of at least 3 
feet below proposed footing elevations or as recommended by the Soils Engineer. If not utilized for the 
new development. the water well should be abandoned in accordanoe with the couoty standards. Any 
other buried structures should be removed in accordance with the recommendations of the Soils 
Engineer. The resulting excavations should be backfilled with Engineered Fill. 

Moderately compressible soils were encountered at the site. Accordingly, mitigation measures arc 
recommended to reduce the IJQteDtial of excessive soil settlement. It is recommended that the site of the 
pro!JQSed buildings and other associated structures be excavated to a minimum depth of 2 feet. In 
addition, it is recommended that the site of the pro!JQSed structures (slabs and footings) be sUplJQrted by 
a minimum of 18 incbes of Engineered Fill. The ovcr-excavation should extend to a minimum distance 
of 5 feet beyond foundation lines. The excavation should be backfilled with Engineered Fill compacted 
to a minimum of 90 percent of maximum density based on ASTM Test Method D1557. Prior to 
backfilling, the exposed subgrade sbould be excavated/scarified to a minimum depth of 6 inches, 
moisnJre.<:onditioned to a minimum of 2 percent above optimum moisture-Content, and recompacted to 
a minimum of 90 percent of maximum density basedon ASTM Test Method DIS 57. 

Within pro!JQsed pavement and exterior flatworl< areas, it is recommended that following stripping and 
demolition activities, the upper 18 inches of subgrade soils be excsvated, worked until uniform and free 
from large clods, moisture-conditioned to a minimum of 2 porcent above optimum moisture«>ntent, and 
recompacted to a minimum of90 percent of maxlmum density based on ASTM Test Method DIS 57. 

It is recommended that the upper 18 inches of soil within prDlJQsed conventional slabs-on-grede and 
exterior flatwork areas consist of non-expansive Enginaered Fill or lime-treated Engineered Fill. The 
intent is to support slab-on-grade and exterior tlatwork areas with 18 inches of non .... xpansivc or lime
treated fill. The fill placement serves two functions: 1) it provides a uniform amount of soil which will 
more evenly distribute the soil PlCSSUlCS and 2) it reduces moisture content fluctuation in the clayey 
material beneath the building area. The non-expansive fill material should be a well-graded silty sand 
or sandy silt soil. A clean sand or very sandy soil is not acceptable for ibis purpose. A sandy soil will 
allow the surface water to drain into the expansive clayey soil below, wbich may result in soil swelling. 
ImlJQrted Fill should be approved by the Soils Engineer prior to placement. The fill should be placed as 
specified as Engineered Fill. 

The upper soils, during wet winter months become very moist due to the absorptive characteristics of 
the soil. Earthwork operations performed during winter months may encounter very moist Wlstable 
soils, wbich may require removal to grade a stable building foundation. Project site winterization 
consisting of placement of aggregate base and protecting exposed soils during the construction phase 
should be performed. 

K ....... '" Asa.da .... ln .. 
With Ten Offices Servins '\be Western United States 



KA No. 012-13090 
Pag.No.IO 

A representative of our finn should be present during all site clearing and grading operations to test and 
observe ell11hwork construction. This testing and observation is an integral part of our service as 
acceptance of earthwork construction is dependent upon compaction of the material and the stability of 
the matcrial. The Soils Engineer may reject any material that does not meet compaotion and stability 
requiremenls. Further recommendations of this report are predicated upon the assumption that 
earthwork construction will conform to recommendations set forth in this section and the Engineered 
Fill section. 

Engineered FiU 

The organic-free, on-site, upper soils are predominately sandy clay, sandy clayey silt, sandy silty clay, 
and sandy silt The clayey soils will not be suitable for reuse as Don-expansive Engineered Fill. The 
clayey soils will be suitable fur te\lse for fill placement within the upper 18 inches of slab-on-grade and 
exterior flatwork areas, provided they are iime-1reated. The preliminary application rate of lime should 
be 5 percent by city weight The lime material should be calcium oxide, commonly known as qUick
lime. The clayey soils should be at or near optimum moisture-condition during mixing operations. 
Additional testing is recommended to determine the appropriate application rate of lime prior to 

placement. These soils will be suitable fur reuse as General Engineered Fill, within pavement areas and 
below 18 inc:hes from finished pad grade in building areas, provided they are moisture-conditioned to a 
minimum of 2 percent above optimum moisture. The OD. silty sand and sandy sih soils that do not 
contain clay will be suitable for reuse as non-expansive Engineered Fill, provided they an: cleansed of 
excessive organics and debris. 

The preferred materials specified for EngiDeered Fill are suitable for most applications with the 
exception of exposure to erosion. Project site winterization and protectinn of exposed soils during the 
construction pbase should be the sole responsibility of the Contrsctor, since he has complete conlrol of 
the project site at that time. 

Imported non-expansive Fill should consist of a well-graded, slightly cohesive, fme silty sand or sandy 
silt, with relatively impervious characteristics when compacted. This material should be approved by 
the Soils Engineer prior to use and should typically possess the following characteristics: 

Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve 2010 50 

Plasticity Index 12 maximum 

UBC Standard 29-2 Expansion Index 15nwdmum 

Fill soils should be placed in lifts approximately 6 inches thick, moistunH:onditioned to a minimum of 2 
percent above optimum moisture-contcDt, and compacted to achieve at least 90 percent of the maximum 
density based on ASlM Test Method DISS7. Additional lifts should not be placed if the previous lift 
did not meet the required deDsity or if soil oonditions are not stable. 

Kn7aJl " Auociatu, IDe. 
Wi1h Ten Offices ServilIg The Wes1em Unik:d States 



DniPPle and Ie!Ddseaping 

KA No. 012·13090 
Page No. 11 

The ground surface should slope away from building pad and pavement areas toward -wropriate drop 
inlets or other surface drainage devices. In accordance with Section 1804 of the 2010 Califumia 
Building Code, it is recommended that the ground surface adjacent to foundations be sloped a minimum 
of 5 percent for a minimum distance of 10 feet away from strucWres, or to an approved alternative 
means of drainage conveyance. Swales used for conveyance of drainage and located within 10 feet of 
foundations should be sloped a minimum of 2 percent. Impervious surfaces, such as pavement and 
exterior concrete flatwork, within 10 feet of building foundations should be sloped a minimum of I 
percent away from the structure. Drainage gradients should be maintained to carry all surface water to 
collection tlicilities and off-site. These grades should be maintained for the life of the project. 

Slots or weep holes should be placed in drop inlets or other surface drainage devices in pavement BJe8S 

to allow free drainage of ac\ioining base course materials. Cutoff walls should be installed at pavement 
edges adjaoant to vehicular traffic areas; these walls should extend to a minimum depth of 12 inches 
below pavement subgrades to limit the amount of seepage water that can infiltrate the pavements. 
Where cutoff wall. are W1desirable subgrade drains can be constructed to transport excess water away 
from planters to drainage interceptors. If cutoff walls can be successfully used at the site, construction 
of subgrade drains is considered unnecessary. 

UtjIIty Trench BackfiU 

Utility trenches should be excavated according to accepted engineering practice following OSHA 
(Occupational Safety and Health Adminislnltion) standards by .. Contractor experienced in such work. 
The responsibility for the safety of open trenches should be borne by the Contractor. Traffic and 
vibration adjacent to trench walls should be reduced; cyclic wetting and drying of excavation side 
slopes should be avoided. Depending upon the location and depth of some utility trenches, groundwater 
flow into open excavations could be experienced, especially during or shortly following periods of 
precipitation. 

Utility trench backfill placed in or adjaoant to bui/dingll and exterior slabs should be compacted to at 
least 90 percent of the maximum density based on AS'IM Test Method 01557. The uti1ity trench 
backfill placed in pavement areas should be compacted to at least 90 percent of the maximum density 
based on ASTM Test Method 01557. Pipe bedding should be in accordance with pipe manufacturer's 
recommendations. 

Sandy soil conditinns were encountered at the site. These cohesionless soils have a tendency to cave in 
trench wall excavations. Shoring or sloping back trench sidewalls may be requited within these sandy 
soils. 

The Contractor is responsible for removing all water-sensitive soils from the trench regsnlless of the 
backfillloca1:ion and compaction requirements. The Contractor should use appropriate equipment and 
methods to avoid damage to the utilities andlor structures during fill placement and compaction. 

Knull &: Assodates, "' .. 
With Ten Office. Serving The WesICm United s-. 

OI2I)OS1(lbpcd(T~TncQ 



Fo'PdatiODS .. Conveptional 

KA No. 012-13090 
Page No. 12 

After completion of the recommended site preparation, the site should be suitable for shallow footing 
support. The proposed structures may be supported on a shallow foundation system bearing on a 
minimum of 18 inches of Engineered Fill. Spread and continuous footings can be designed for the 
following maximum allowable soil bearing pressures: 

Load 
.. 

Allowable LoadlDl! 
Dead Load Only 1,500psf 

Dead-Plus-Live Load 2,OOOpsf 

Total Load, including wind or seismic loads 2,650 psf 

The footings should have a minimum depth of 12 inches below pad subgrade (soil grade) or adjacent 
exterior grade, whichever is lower. Footings should have a minimum width of 12 inches, regardless of 
loed. 

The tota1 soil movement is not expected to exceed 1 inch. Differentisl soil movement should be less 
than I inch. Most of the movement is expected to occur during construction as the loads are applied. 
However, additional post-construction movement may occur if the foundation soils are flooded or 
saturated. 

The footing excltVations should not be allowed to dry out any time prior to pouring concrete. It is 
recommended that footings be reinforced by atlcast one No.4 reinforcing bar in both top and bottom. 

Based on the soil liquefaction analysis performed within the site, the estimated total seismic-induced 
settlement is not anticipated to exceed 6 inches. Differential settlemcmt caused by a seismic event is 
estimated to be less than 4 inches. The anticipsted differential settlement is estimated over the width of 
the building. The seismic sett1ements would develop ifiiquefaction of the underlying satorated subsoils 
were to occur during a seismic event. If these potential movements are not tolerable, then mitigation 
measures are recommended to reduce structoral damage due to soil liquefaction. The project Struc1llral 
Engineer should evaluate the structure's abilily to withstand these potential movements associated with 
soil liquefaction. 

Resistance to lateral footing displacement can be computed using an allowable :friction factor of 0.3 
acting between the base of foundations and the supporting subgrade. Lateral resistance for footings can 
alternatively be developed using an allowable equivalent fluid passive pressure of 275 pounds per cubic 
foot acting against the appropriate vertical footing faces. The frictional and passive resistance of the 
soil may be combined without reduction in determining the tota1lateral resistance. A 1~ increase in the 
above value may be used for short duration, wind, or seismic loads. All of the above earth pressures arc 
unfactored and are, therefore, nnt inclusive of factors of safety. 

Krlza ... AssocIaleo, I ... 
With Ten Offices ServIng The Western United _ 



FOlllldations -Post·TeusiOD or Structural Slab 

KA No. 012-13090 
Page No. 13 

The buiJdmgs may be supponed on e post-tension slab or structural slablfoundation system. A 
structural slab system will help reduce structural damage caused by the potential soil movement of the 
clayey soils. In addition, utilization of a post-tensioned slab will eliminate the requirement for 18 
inches of non-expansive or lime-treated Engineered Fill below slab-on·grade. However, the previously 
recommended densification of the upper native soils and fill material at the site should still be 
performed. 

The thickness of the slaJ>.on-grade and locations and sizing of stiffening beams (if used) shOUld be 
determined by the structural consultant during a subsequent structural analysis, which incorporates our 
design recommendations, including a deepened perimeter Or edge section. Post-tensioned slab-on·grade 
foundations should be structuraJly designed to resist or distribute the stresses that are anticipated to 
develup as the result of supporting soil movement The following preliminary parameters arc 
recommended for use in the structural design of the post-tensioned s1ab-on-grade foundations in 
accordance with Design oj Post-Tensioned Slabs-on-Ground, 3rd Edition, by the Post-Tensioning 
Institute. In addition, the computer software program Volflo 1.5, by Geostructural Tool Kit, Inc. was 
also utilized in the anslyses. A preliminary allowable bearing pressure of 2,000 pounds per square foot 
due to dead plus live loads may be considered in design of 1IIe slab. The recommended edge moisture 
variation (em) and differential swell (yaJ values for usc in preliminary design of post-tensioned slabs 
are as follows: 

Edge Moisture Variation Distance: 

Center lift, em = 9 feet 

Edge lift, em = 4.8 feet 

Estimated Differential Swell: 

Center lift, Ym = % inch 

Edge lift, Ym = 1 ¥.. inch 

To aid in reducing the potential for differential soil movement associated wi1ll shrinkage and swelling of 
the fine-grained soils due to changes in moisture contents with changing seasons and landscaping, we 
recommend 1IIat the exterior edge of the slab be deepened to provide a moistore cut-off around the 
perimeter of the building. The deepened edge should extend at least 12 inches below the top of the pad 
grade, where the top of pad grade is defined as the grade beneath 1IIe bottom of the capillary moisture 
break gravel course or the adjacent exterior suhgrade, whichever is deeper. 

Based on the soil liquefilction analysis performed wi1ltin the site, the estimated total seismic-induced 
settlement is not anticipated to exceed 6 inches. Differential settlemeot caused by a seismic event is 
estimated to be less than 4 inches. The anticipated differential settlement is estimated over 1IIe width of 
the building. The seismic settlements would develop if liquefaction of the underlying saturated subsoils 
were to occur during a seismic event If these potential movements are not tolerable, then mitigation 
measures are recommended to reduce structural damage due to soil liquefaction. The project Structural 
Engineer should evaluate the structure's ability to withstand these potential movements associated wi1ll 
soilliquefilction. 

Kruaa .. Assodatu, IDe. 
With Ten Offi<:es Serving The W"""'" UnUM States 



KA No. 012-13090 
Page No. 14 

Slabs adjacent to landscape areas may be subject to additional distress due to increased soil moisture 
level fluctuations from flowerbed watering, as wen as drying from tree root moisture removal. 
Therefore. we rewmmend that property owners be notified of the DOtentjaI for soil movement and 
resulting .IAh djstress which maY 0C&!l!' in thesc instances of landscape neglect In addition, property 
owners should be instructed to maintain consistent moisture levels and avoid extreme fluctuations in 
any flowerbeds adjacent to structures. and to avoid plAnting trees with inYasiye root systems within 10 
feet of the structnres. 

The thickness of the sl8.lHm-grade and locations and sizing of stiffening beams (if used) should be 
determined by the project Structural Engineer. Post-tensioned concrete slabs designed to be ofnniform 
thickuess without interior stiffening beams should be designed io accordance with the procedures 
presented in Design of Post-Tensioned SIobs-t»J-Grormd. Perimeter columns located outside of the 
main structure, such as those required for covered terraces or second floor areas projecting out beyond 
the building footprint should not be founded on isolated spread footings s1ructurally sepuated from the 
slab foundetion. 

The post-tensioned sl8.lHm-grade foundetion system will DOt prevent the structure from undergoing 
vertical displacement as a result of shrinkage and swelling of the underlying expansive soils. However, 
the use of a post-tensioned slalHm-grade foundetion system, as opposed to a conventionally reioforced 
non-structura1 slab-on-grade, will reduce the IIIDOunt of objcctionsble slab cracks and vertical off-set of 
adjacent concrete panels. The use of post-tension reioforcement does not necessarily eliminate the 
development of bending stresses in the slab due to differential movement of the supporting soils. This 
type of slab essentially distributes the differential movement of the supported structure over a longer 
span through controlled bending of the slab. 

Resistance to lateral displacement can be computed using an allowable friction factor of 0.3 acting 
between the base of foundetioDS and the supporting subgrade. Lateral resistance for footings can 
alternatively be developed using an allowable equivalent fluid passive pressure of 275 pounds per cubic 
foot acting against the appropriate vertical footing fiwes. The frictional and passive resistance of the 
soil may 00 combined without reduction in determioiog the total lateral resistance. A 'hi increase in the 
above value may be used for short duration, wiod, or seismic loads. AIl of the above earth presslll'CS are 
unfIIctored and are, therefore, not inclusive of factolS of safet)'. 

Floor Sla'" and Exterior Flatwork 

In areas thet will include moisture-sensitive floor coverings. concrete slab-on-grade floors should be 
underlain by a water vapor retarder. The water vapor retarder should be installed in accordance with 
accepted engineeriog practice. The water vapor retarder should consist of a vapor retarder sheeting 
underlain by a mioimum of 3 inches of compacted, clean, gravel of Y.-ioch maximum size. To aid in 
concrete curing an optional 2 to 4 inches of granular fill may be placed on top of the vapor retarder. 
The granular fiU should consist of demp clean sand with at least 10 to 30 percent of the sand passing the 

Kr ..... " Assodates, Ill .. 
With Ten Offu:eo Serving The Western United States 



KA No. 012-13090 
FageNo. IS 

100 sieve. The sand should be free of clay, silt or organic material. Rock dust which is manufactured 
sand from rock crushing operations is typically suitable for the granular fill. This granular rul material 
should be compacted. 

It is recommended that the concrete slabs be reinforced at a minimum with f/3 bars at 18 inches on 
center to reduce crack separation and possible vertical offset at the cracks. Thicker floor slabs with 
increased concrete strength and reinforcement should be designed wherever heavy concentrated loads, 
heavy equipment, or machinery is anticipated. 

The exterior floors should be poured separately in order to act independently of the walls and 
foundation system. All fills required to bring the building pads to grade should be Engineered Fills. 

Moisture within the structure may be derived from water vapors, which were trsnsformed from the 
moisture within the soils. This moisture vapor can travel through the vapor membrane and penetrate the 
sla!H>n-grade. This moisture vapor penetrstion can affect floor coverings and produce mold and 
tnI1dew in the structure. To reduce moisture vapor intrusion, it is recommended that a vapor retarder be 
installed. It is recommended that the utility trenches within the structure be compacted, as specified in 
our report, to reduce the trsnsmission of moisture through the utility trench backfill. Special atlention to 
the immediate drainage and Urigation around the building is recommended. Positive drainage should be 
estsblished away from the strueture and should be maintained throughout the life of the structure. 
Ponding of water should not be allowed adjacent to the structure. Over-irrigation within landscaped 
areas adjacent to the structure should not be performed. In addition, ventilation of the structure (i.e. 
ventilation fans) is recommended to reduce the accumulation of interior moisture. 

Leten! Earth Pmsure! and Rehoioillg Walls 

Walls retaining horizontal backfJlI and capable of deflecting a minimum of 0.1 pen:ent of its height at 
the top may be designed using an equivalent fluid active pressure of 50 pounds per square foot per foot 
of depth. Walls incapable of this deflection or are fully constrained walls against deflection may be 
designed for an eqUivalent fluid at-rest pressure of 70 pounds per square foot per foot of depth. 
Expansive soils should Dot be used for backfill against walls. The wedge of non-expansive backfill 
material should extend from the bottom of each retaining wall outward and upward at a slope of 2: ! 
(horizontal to vertical) or flatter. The stated lalersl earth pressures do Dot include the effects of 
hydrostatic water pressures generated by infiltratiog surface water thet may accumulate behind the 
retaining walls; or loads imposed by construction equipment, foundations, or roadways. All of the 
above earth pressures ate unfactored and are, therefore, not inclusive of factors of safety. 

During grading and backfilling operations adjacent to any walls, heavy equipment should not be 
allowed to opernte within a lateral distance of 5 feet from the wall, or within a lateral distance equal to 
the wall height, whichever is greater, to avoid developing eJalCSsive lateral pressures. Within this zone, 
only hand-operated equipment ("whaci<ers," vibrntory platA>s, or pneumatic compactors) should be used 
to compact the backfill soils. 

KtuaD '" AlIIoclalel, 1110. 
With Ten 0fIice0 S .... ilIg The Wes1em Unitod Slate< 

0121lQ!ilOllepm{TIlIIIdi\ltTracI) 



KA No. 012-13090 
Page No. 16 

Retaining and/or below grade walls should be drained with either perforated pipe encased in free
draining gravel or a prefabricated drainage sys1cm. The gravel zone should have a minimmn width of 
12 inches wide and should extend upward to within 12 inches of the top of the walt. The upper 12 
inehes of backfill should consist of native soils, concrete, asphaltic concrete or other suitable backfill to 
reduce surface drainage into the wall drsin sys1cm. The aggregate should conform to Class IT permeable 
materials graded in accordance with Section 68-1.025 of the CalTrans Standard Specifications (January 
1988). Prefabricated drainage systems, such as Miradrain®, Bnkadrain@, or an equivalent substiture, 
are acceptable alternatives in lieu of gravel provided they are installed in accordance with the 
manufecturer's recommendatioDS. If. prefabricated drainage 1ys1cm is proposed, our firm should 
review the system for final ~tance prior to installation. 

Drainage pipes should be placed with perforations down aod should discharge in a non-erosive manner 
away from foundations and other improvements. The pipes should be placed no higher than 6 inches 
above the heel of the waI~ in the centerline of the drainage blanket and should have a minimum 
diameter of four inches. Collector pipes may be either slotted or perforated. Slots should be no wider 
than 1AI-inch in diameter, while perforations should be no more than 'I,·inch in diameter. If retaining 
walls are less than 6 feet in height, the perforated pipe may be omitted in lieu of weep holes on 4 feet 
maximmn spacing. The weep boles should consist of 4-inch diameter hol.s (concrete walls) or 
unmortared head joints (masonry walls) and not be higher than 18 inches above the lowest adjacent 
grade. Two 8·ineh square overlapping patches of geotcxtile fshric (conforming to Section 88-1.D3 of 
the CalTrans Standard Specifications for "cdge drains") should be affixed to the rear wall opening of 
each weep hole to retard soil piping. 

R-Valge Tgt Results aDd Pavement Design 

Two subgrade soil samples were obtained from the project site for R·Value testing at the locations 
shown on the attsched site plan. The samples were tested in accordance with the State of California 
Materials Manual Test Designation 301. The results of the tests are as follows: 

SamPle I)eptb . R-Valne atEliniUbriam 

I 12.24" Sandy Clay (CL) 11 

2 12·24" Sandy Silty (ML) with Clay 16 

The test results are low and indicate poor subgradc support characteristics under dynamic traffic loads. 
The following table shows the recommended pavement sections for various traffic indices. 

Kr .... '" Ass_leo, lao. 
With Ten Offices Sening The Western United States 



Tramc AaPllaltic Ch!s~n' '('Jass m 
IDdft Concnu. ate Base' • "SublIMe 

4.0 2.0" 8.0" -
4.0 2.0" 4.5t1 3.S" 

4.5 2.5" 8.0" -
4:5 2.5" 4.0" 4.5" 

5.0 2.5" 10.0" -
S.O 2.5" 5.0" 5.0" 

5.5 3.0" 10.0" -
5.5 3.0· 5.0" 5.5" 

6.0 3.0" 12.5" -
6.0 3.0' 6.5" 6.5" 

6.5 3.5" 13.0· -
6.5 3.5· 6.0" 7.5" 

7.0 4.0" 14.0" .. 
7.0 4.0" 6.5" 8.0" 

1.S 4.011 ISS" .. 
7.5 4.0" 7.5" 9.0" 

• 95% NlI"IpGdIqnlHrsttl ... ASTM rlllMtlItH DIS$1., C(L 216 
•• 90" NmpcdI.,. _ ... ASTM Till Mdllotl D1557 .,. C(L 216 

KA No, 012-13090 
Psg.No,17 

Compaetejj 
Sub.ou~·· 

12.0' 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

12.0" 

If traffic indices are not available, an estimated (typical value) index of 4.5 may be lIlied for light 
automobile traffic, and an index of 7.0 may be Wied for light truck 1rIIffic. 

The following recommendations are for Iight·duty and heavy-duty Portland Cement Concrete Pavement 
Sections based on the design procedures developed by the Portland Cement Association. 

'fraftIe Inde:.: ' 

4.5 

Traftic Index 
7.0 

PORTLAND CEMENT PAVEMENT 
LIGHT DUTY 

Portland Cement Concrete*·· ' (:w.n teBase' 
6.0" 5.0" 

BEAVYDUIY 
Portland Cement Concrete·'· c..1aun A,_ ··teBase* 

7.0· 6.0" 

Compacted Snberade·· 
12.0" 

ComPllcted SnbRrade·· 
12.0" 

• 95" """"rcdoa bAfttl ... ASTM Tar MdllotlDI557.,. C(L 116 
•• ,." tlIJJIf'IIdIDll _ ... ASTM Tar MrtlU>d D1551.r C(L '16 

···Mhlbmuttcomp""'" ~ ./31JOO pi 

XruaD " Aswodat .. , Inc. 
Wilb Ten Olfi<:et Servins The W~ Unitcc1 States 

0111'090 J.eport (Tflll»lMtlJd) 



~-.. - . , 

KA No. 012-13090 
FagoNo.IS 

As indicated previously, fill material is located wilhin portions of the site. It is recommended that any 
uncertified fill material encountered within pavement areas, be removed and/or recompacted. The fill 
material should be moisture-oonditioned to near optimum moisture and recompacted to a minimum of 
90 percent of maximum density based on ASTM Test Method D 1557. As an alternative, the Owner 
may elect not to recompact the existing fill within paved areas. However, the Owner should be aware 
that the paved areas may settle which may require annual maintenance. At a minimum, it is 
recommended that the upper 12 inches of subgrade soil be moisture-conditioned as necessary and 
recompacted to a minimum of90 pen:ent ofmaxinmn density based on ASTM Test Method Dl557. 

Seismic Parameter! -1010 Califomla 1!pilding Code 

The Site Class per Table 1613.5.2, of the 2010 California Building Code (2010 CBC) is based upon the 
site soil conditions. It is our opinion that Site Class D is most consistent with the subject site soil 
conditions. For seismic design of the structures based on the seismic provisions of the 2010 CBC, we 

recommend the following parameters: 

Seismic Item Value CDC Reference 
Site Class D Table 1613.52 

Site Coeffieient P. 1.000 Table 1613.5.3 (1) 

S. 1.416 Figure 1613.5 (3) 

8MB 1.416 Section 1613.S.3 

Sos 0.944 Section 1613.5.4 

Site Coeffieient Fv 1.538 Table 1613.5.3 (2) 

S, 0.462 Figure 1613.5 (4) 

S1" 0.710 Section 1613.5.3 

SOl 0.474 Section 1613.5.4 

Soil Cement Reou:tiyity 

Excessive sulfate in either the soil or native water may result in an adverse reaetion between the cement 
in conerete (or stucco) and the soil. HUDIFHA and CBC have developed criteria for evaluation of 
sulfate levels and how they relate to cement renctivity with soil and/or water. 

Soil samples were obtained from the site and tested in accordance with State of California Materials 
Manual Test Designation 417. The sulfate concentrations detected fi"orn these soil samples were greater 
than ISO ppm and are above the maximum allowable values established by HUDIFHA and CBC. 
Therefore, it is recommended a Type IT cement be utilized \0 compensate for sulfate reactivity with the 
cement. 

Kruan .. AIIIociata, IDe. 
Wilh Ten Offioes Serving The Western UDillod Staleo 



KA No. 012-13090 
Page No. 19 

Chemical tests were perfonned on a near-sur&ce soil sample. The test results indicate thet the soils are 
slightly to moderately corrosive to buried metal objects. Therefore, buried metal should be protected 
using either non-wrrosive backfill, protective coatings, wrappings, sacrificial anodes, or a combination 
of these methods in accordance with the manufacmrer's recommendations. 

Compacted Material AcceotaDCe 

Compaction specifications are not the only criteria for acceptance of the site grading or other sw;h 
activities. However, the compaction test is the most universally reeogniud test method for assessing 
the performance of the Grading Contractor. The nUlllerical test n:sults ftotn the compaction test cannot 
be used to predict the engineering perfonnance of the compacted material. Therefore, the acceptance of 
compacted materials will also be dependent on the stability of that material. The Soils Engin_ has the 
option of rejecting any compacted mall>rial regardless of the degree of compaction if that material is 
considered to be unstable or if future instabili1y is suspected. A specifio example of rejection of fiU 
material passing the required percent compaction is a fill which has been compacted with an in-sitn 
moisture content significantly less than optimum moisture. This type of dry fill (brittle fill) is 
susceptible to future settlement if it becomes saturated or flooded. 

MDg and InspeeUoo 

A representative of Krazan & Associates, Inc. should be present at the site during the earthwork 
activities to confmn that actual subsurface conditions are consistent with the exploratory fieldwork. 
This activity is an integral part of our service, as acceptance of earthwork consttuction is dependent 
upon compaction testing and stability of the material. This representative can also verify thet the intent 
of these recommendations is incorporated into the project design and oonsIruction. Ktazan & 
Associates, inc. will not be responsible fur grades or staking, since this is the responsibility of the Prime 
Contractor. 

LIMITATIONS 

Soils Engineering is one of the newest divisions of Civil Engineering. This branch of Civil Enginoer'.ug 
is constantly improving as new technologies end understanding of earth sciences advance. Although 
your site was analyzed using the most appropriate and most current techniques and methods, 
undoubtedly there will be substaotial fu1llre improvCOlents in this bnmch of engineering. in addition to 

advancements in the field of Soils Engineering, physical ohanges in the site, either due to excavation or 
fill placelnent, new agency regulations, or possible ohanges in the proposed structure after the soils 
report is completed may Tequire the soils report to be professionally reviewed. In light of this, the 
Owner should be aware that there is II practical limit to the usefulness of this report without critical 
review. Although the time limit for this review is strictly arbitrary, it is suggested that 2 yeArS be 
considered a reasonable time for the usefulness of this report. 

Kraza. '" Alaodateo,llle. 
Wi1h Ten Oflicts Serving The WcsIem UDited S-. 



KA No. 012·13090 
Page No. 20 

Foundation and earthwork construction is characterized by the presence of a calculated risk that soil and 
groundwater conditions have been fuDy revealed by the original foundation investigation. This risk is 
derived from the practical necessity of basing interpretations and design conclusions on limited 
sampling of the earth. The recommendations made in this report are based on the assumption that soil 
conditions do not vary significantly from those disclosed during our field investigation. If any 
variations or undesirable conditions are encountered during construction, the Soils Engineer should be 
notified so that supplementel recommendations may be made. 

The conclusions of this report are based on the information provided regarding the proposed 
construction. If the proposed constrnction is relocated or redesigned, the conclusions in this report may 
not be valid. The Soils Engineer should be notified of any changes so the recommendations may be 
reviewed and re-evaluated. 

This report is a Geotechnical Engineering Investigation with the purpose of evaluating the soil 
conditions in teJms of foundation design. The scope of our services did not include any Environmenta1 
Site Assessment for the presence or absence of hazardous andIor toxic matlOrials in the soi~ 

groundwater, or atmosphere; or the presence of wetlands. Any statements, or absence of stetements, in 
this report or on any boring log regarding odors, unusual or suspicious items, or conditions observed, 
are strictly for descriptive purposes and are not intended to convey engineering judgment regarding 
potential hazardous andIor toxic assessment 

The geotechnical engineering ioformation presented herein is based upon professional interpretation 
utilizing standard engineering practices and a degree of conservatism deemed proper for this project. It 
is not wammted that such ioformation and intelPletation cannot be superseded by future geotechnical 
engineering developments. We emphasize that this report is valid for the project outlined above and 
should not be used for any other sites. 

If you have any questions, or if we may be of further assistance, please do not besitete to contact our 
office at (559) 348·2200. 

Respectfully submitted, 
KRAZAN & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

SNIDRJ:ht 

Kr ..... & Assodatos, Inc. 
With Ten omoe. Serving The Westem UnW:d States 



8 9 

8 

• e 

J 

.. II e .. • 

.. .. • .. It 

4& APPROXIMATE BORING LOCATION 

A APPROXIMATE R-V ALUE LOCATION 

SITE MAP 

Tentative T .... ct 
Nortb of WDimott Avenue, East of North Avenue 

Los Baaos, California 

9 ., 
4) ., 

9 8 

e 4) 

9 

0 D II 0 9 

e 0 8 

8 

@ 

0 0 

8 8 ., 

8 

@ 

It 

It 

4) 

• 
8 

@ 

9 

8 

I 
I 
I 
I , 
I 
I 
I , 

/ -~~- ~ , 
AmP I ! 

Seale: 
NTS 

:ur.WD by: 
lIT 

ProJed/'IO. 
012-13090 

Date.: 
9-4-13 

Appntved by: 

OJ 
FigureND. 

1 

--, 
} 



AfPENDIXA 

FIELD AND LABORATORY lNYESTIGATIONS 

Fle!d IDyestigation 

Appendix A 
Pag.A.! 

The field investigation consisted of a surface reconnaissance and a subsurface exploratory program. Six 
4~inch expJoratmy boringB were advanced. The boring locations are shown on the site plan. 

The soils eocountered were logged in the field during the exploration and, with supplementary 
Jabocatory test dala, are described in acrordance with the Unified Soil Classification System. 

Modified stAndard penetration tests were performed at selected depths. This test represents the 
resislBnce to driving a 2Y..-inch diameter core barrel. The driving energy was provided by a hammer 
weighing 140 pounds falling 30 inches. Relatively nndisturbed soil samples were obtsined while 
performing this test Bag samples of the disturbed soil were obtsined from the auger cuttings. All 
samples were retnrned to our Fresno laboratory for evaluation. 

Laboratory IIlv!!!ligation 

The Iiboratory investigation was programmed to determine the physical and mechanical properties of 
the foundation soil underlying the site. Test results were used as criteria for determining the 
engineering suitability of the surface and subsurface materials encountered. 

1n situ moisture content, density, consolidation, expansion index, and direct sieve analysis tests were 
determined for the undisturbed samples representative of the subsurliwe material These tests, 
supplemented by visual observation, comprised the basis for our evaluation of the site material. 

The logs of the exploratory borings and laboratory determinations are presented in this Appendix. 

Knzau & As_lei, IDe. 
WiIh Ten Ofil<a SeMDg The Wcstem \lJIited States 



or_" 
ML 

i,r--.·,·· 

UNIFIED SOn.. CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM 

or 
orlllty .... , 

~:. 

< 
5-15 
H;-4() 
41 -65 

76.2 104.76 
76.2 10 19.1 

19.11O~.76 

No. 410 No. 10 
No. 10 II> No. 4C 

No. 40 10 No. 200 

4.7611l0.D74 

4.76102.00 
UIO 10 1.,G47, 

0JI421D 0.0'14 

v 
CIt /'" 

./ ~=; ill V ,&II< 

~ 
V 

I- I"-
Go \0 lZO ID *' 40 • '10 10 10 UIO 

LIQUID LIllI\' ILLl ",I 



Log of Boring B1 
ProJect: Residential Development 

Client: AMG & Associates, LLC 

Location: North Street & Willmott Avenue, los Banos, CA 

Dept/'l to Water> 

Description 

SANDY CLAYEI'Slt.T (ML) 
Very loose, fine-grained; light brown, 
damp, drills easHy 
Very stiff below 12 inches 

Medium dense, to· coarse-g<ained 
with traos GRAVEL; light brown, damp, 
drill. easily 

With deerea1led GRAVEL and Increesed 
coarse-grained SAND below 14 feet 

damp, 

Initial: 34 Feet 

SAMPLE 

ti 
.e 

~ ~ !! 
8 .a 

8. ~ 
.J/! 

0 ~ ~ 

111,9 7.1 

96.3 4.8 

114.1 2.1 

102.6·11.1 

E! 

i 

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drill Rig: CME45C-l 

Driller: Chris Wyneken 

Krazan and Associates 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No.: A-1 

Loggad By: wayne Andrade 

At Completion: 32 Feet 

Penetration Test 
blOW!1lll 

• 

water Content (%) 

• 

I 

Drill Data: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 4 Yo Inches 

Elevatlon: 50 Feet 
Sheet; 1 of3 



Log of Boring B1 
Project: Residential Development 

Client: AMG & Associates, LLC 

Location: North Street & Willmott Avenue, Los Banos, CA 

Depth to Water> Initial; 34 Feet 

SUBSURFACE~~'~E 
.-~ .. 

~ 
~ Description ~ 

g 
:8 

II! ~ ! " ~ Cl 8-E ~ .~ .. ~ >. 0 0 ::;; r 

1105.2 21.2 ~ 

Moist below 23 feet 

1102.0 24.2 ~~ 

Finn below 28 feet 

98.0 25.9 ~.i.. 
5L 

Saturated below 32 feet 

.. L 

89.9 29.7 ~~ 

sliTi' SAND (SM) 
Loo .... fine- to- medium-gralned; light 
brown. saturated, driUs easily 

Drill Method: Solid FHght 

Drill Rig: CME 45C-1 

Driller: Chris Wyneken 

Krazan and Associates 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No.: A-1 

Logged By: Wayne Andrade 

At Completion; 32 Feet 

Penetration Test 
blowalfl 

Water COntent (%} 

2.0 4,0 ep 1,0 2,G 3,G 4,0 

i 
, , 

I ~ 
, , 

--:-.-
I 
I 
I ! i 

1·-- j.-

• 
i--
I 

1-

I-- !.,---

.i 

I·· 
, 

I-r 
: 

! 

i , 

j i 
, , , 

I 
i 

i 

Drill Date: 8-9·13 

Hole Size: 4Y.O Inches 

Elevation: 50 Feet 

I 

T 

Sheat: 2 013 

-

--
.-

: 

i-···'· 

-. 



Log of Boring B1 
Project: Residential Development 

Client: AMG & Associates, LLC 

Location: North Street & Willmott Avenue, Los Banos, CA 

Depth to Water> IniUal: 34 Feet 

"' . ~~~~" ~ SAMPLE 

E 
~ 

~ 
Descrtption ~ e.- :8 '" S 1 ,s " 0 " it E 

d 
... !!; ?i 0 

0 :E .... iii 

SS.O 23.9 ~~ 
42 

SANDYliL-Ar",. .. , .. , I"'''} 44-
Very stiff, fine-grained: fight brown, 
saturated, drlns easily 

46-

48 

60-
End of Borehole 

52-

54-

56-

58-

60-

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drill Rig: CME 45C-1 

Driller: Chris \'\'yneken 

116.6 26.3 ~~ 

Krazan and Associates 

~ 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No.: A-1 

Logged By: wayne Andrade 

At Completion: 32 Feet 

Penetration Test 
blcwslft 

Water Content (%) 

20 40 60 10 2,0 30 4.0 

I 
! 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
i I 

i • l- I 

i 
; , 

.. ---

• 
..• 

i 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

, , 
I 

1-·· .. · 1-·-

i 
f-

i 
! 1--' 
I 

I 
I , 
] 
I 

Drill Date: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 4% Inches 

Elevation: 50 Feet 

Sheet: 3 of3 

f·_· 

1-· 

.. 
j 

I --

L .... 

.. -
--



Log of Boring B2 
Project: ResidenUal Development 

Client: AMG & Associates, LLC 

Location: North Street & Willmott Avenue, Los Banos, CA 

Depth to Water> .. Initial: None 

SUBSURFACE PROFILE -SAMPLE 

E 
~ Description ~ g c lil e E 
" % ! 0 
~ ! ! ~ ~ 

0 :; 

~.;.;. 
SANDY -.-viiiV ;.(iiiJ 

Very looseC;~I~:: . damp, drills 
Lco ... below 12 

8_2~ Medium dense below 2 feel 1.01.4 

SANDYSILT(frIj.i , 
Medium dense, with trace 5,3:E CLAY; light brown:-d~;;;p:· drills easly 1104,5 

With Increased SAND below 8 feet 

1.0-
End of Borehole 

12-

14-

16-

18-

2.0-

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drill Rig: CME 45C·1 

Driller: Chris Wyneken 

Krazan and Associates 

Project No: 012-13090 

FIgure No,: 1'r2 

Logged By: Wayne Andrade 

At Completion: None 

Penetration Test 
blowslft 

Water Content (%) 

29 4p fl!l 1,0 2p 3D 4.0 

I 

II 
I 
I 
! 

i 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
• 
• 

I 
I , , 
r 

I 
I 

· 

I 

, 

, 
, I-
• • 
I 
I 
I 
I • I 
• 

i I-

, . 
• , 

I 
, 

I I 

I 
I I I -- _. ._.-
I 

i 

I . I 
I , 
I , i 

I 

Drill Date: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 411> InChes 

Elevation: 10 Feet 
Sheet: 1 of 1 

• 

• 

'----

f -

f-·-

._-

i---

----



Log of Boring B3 
Project: Residential Development 

Client: AMG & Associates, LLC 

Location: North Street & Willmott Avenue, Los Banos, CA 

Depth to Water> 

DescrIption 

Very loose, damp, 
drills easily 
Loose below 12 Inches 
Medium dense and light brown below 2 
feet 

Dense with increased SILT and 
decreased CLAY and SAND below 5 
feet 

Inltlat: None 

89,9 10,4 

102.8 22.8 

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drill Rig: CME 45C-1 

Driller: Chris I/\/yneken 

Krazan and Associates 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No_: A-3 

Logged By: Wayne Andrade 

At Completion: None 

Penetration Teil 
blows/ft 

Water Content (%) 

-.~-

Drill Date: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 4% Inches 

Elevation: 20 Feet 
Sheet: 1 of 1 



Log of Boring B4 
Project: Residentlal Development 

Client; AMG & Associates, LLC 

location: North Street & Wiltmotl Avenue, Los Banos, CA 

Depth to Water> Initial: None 

SUBSURFACEPqO~LE ~ .. "" ~ 
E 

~ Description ~ g 
:& ~ 

I! I % i ! e 
~ " ~ 0 0 ::IE <II 

~ANf)1 c~;;,:,~ 
Very loose, damp, 
driHs •• sily 
Loose below 12 Inches 

9_1~ Medlu", dense below 2 feet 124.4 

With Increased SILT below 4 feet 

1 
end of Borehole 

12-

14-

16-

18-

2.0-

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drlll Rig: CME 45C-1 

Driller: Chris Wyneken 

111,.0 9'2~ 

Krazan and Associates 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No,: A-4 

logged By: Wayne Andrade 

At Completion: None 

Penetration Test 
blows/ft 

water Content (%) 

2.0 4.0 60 1.0 2,.0 3,0 4,.0 

i 

1 i 
i 
! 

i , 
I , 
I 

, 
i 
i 
i 
i 

i I 
I 

I i 
! I 

I 
I 

I 
I , I 
J i I I 
i I 

, 
; 

• , , 

I ! 

I , 

---
1----

, 

1-- .-- . ---t--
! 

--+ --
c-, ---

i ---

I -- I--

I 

---
1----, ;-- -

I 1--- t-

i : ! 

i I i 

I 1 

-j--t:_ I 
I 

• 

Drill Dale: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 4 y" Inches 

Elevation: 10 Feet 
Sheet: 1 of 1 



Log of Boring B5 
ProJect: Residential Development 

Client: AMG & Associates. LLC 

Location: North Street & Willmott Avenue. Los Banos. CA 

Depth to Water> Initial: None 

~".,~, lI"a('~ Dl>n~1I ~ "'O"D' '" 

:g 
~ 

~ 
Description ~ e- o r:: 12 i "" " 2 

15. ! 0 .. m 

" i!- '0 ~ 0 0 :; til 

Ground Surface 

~r~~'~{ i>l .. TJ~lJ.. 
drins easily • a' 

damp. 

2- Loose below 12 inches 

6.7~ With deer •• sad CLAY and incraasad 98.3 
SILT below 2% feet 

99.8 7.0~ 
Dense and drills firmly below 7 feet 

8 
13.9~ 125.5 

12- With Inereasad SAND below 12 feet 

14-

End of Borehole 
16-

18-

20-

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drill Rig: CME 45C-1 

Driller: Chris Wfneken 

Krazan and Associates 

~.-. 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No.: A-5 

Logged By: Wayne Andrade 

At Completion: None 

Penetration Test 
blowslft 

Water COntent ('II) 

2.0 4.D 6.0 1!J ~O 3.0 ,".0 

! 

;' 
I 

! , 
I , 

1\ 
I 

i 
I , 
! 
I , 

i-
• I 

I I 
r- ,. . I ! "" -

• , 

1\ ! ! 
! 

-.- --
• , 

, 
I 

, 
, 

I 

._. 

! 
I : 
i i --
i 

. --',-, . , , 
1-._-
i ! 

" ---!-
i I 

i , 
f I 

-- -

:--. 

Drill Date: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 4% Inches 

Elevation: 15 Feet 

Sheet: 1 of 1 

I 



Log of Boring 86 
Project: Residential Development 

Client: AMG & Associates, LLC 

location: North Street & INilimott Avenue, Los Banos, CA 

Depth to Water> Initial: None 

'" "'~I II>F ACF D"{)~II ~ " .... ", " 

E 
~ Description ~ g 

'6 r! e ~ t .a .!!l i II E l:' ~ ~ .. Ii c c ::< iii 

Ground Surface 

~~!~~~~!Y C~ ~:~rown, damp, 
easily 

2 \1.oo&e below 12 inchao / 

7.5~ ~,fi;;;;ra,,;;;,f.SILT ,CLAY; 
100.1 

light brown, damp, drills easily 
SANDY SILT (ML) 
Medium dense, fine-grainad; light brown, 

9.1~ damp. driB. easily 111.1 
6 

8 

End of BorehOle 

12-

14-

16 

18-

20-

Drill Method: Solid Flight 

Drill Rig: CME 45C-1 

Driller: Chris Wyneken 

Krazan and Associates 

Project No: 012-13090 

Figure No.: A-6 

Logged By: wayne Andrade 

At Completion: None 

Penetration Test 
bloWsfll 

Waler Coolent (%) 

2p 4,0 6fl 'p 2p 3p 4p 

i 

,I 
I 

i I 

! 
! 

, , 

i , , 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

1 
, I 

I 
I 

• --.... .- ._- ,--- ._-

i , 
I 
I 

I , , --- i-- I 

I . - . -.-. .. -.. 
I I , , , 

, , 
i--' ---

I 

! i I , 
.1 __ 1 , , , I 

I -.o. 

. --

-' ! , 
, c-

Drill Date: 8-9-13 

Hole Size: 4% Inches 

Elevation: 10 Feet 
Sheet: 1 of 1 

,--
i 

j 

i 
~--.. 

i 

i--
1-



(" r' 
i 

Consolidation Test 

Pro'eel No Bori No. & 0 th Date Soil Classification 
1213090 63 2·3' 812612013 CL 

0.1 10 100 
~r-----~--~~~,~,~~,~----~~-p--------~ ______________________ ~ 

II ! ! I % Consolidation @ :<Ksf: -0.9 % 

Iii i I 
, 
\. i ! i 

" I, ,I I i , I ! j i I ! i I ' I I, -,_. ----,;-. --t-- -t- --, +-, 
i· ; I i 11 ! 

... I J J I' ' 
.. I· ! ! i 1 

1. i ; 'I 
; .. . : : 
I .. i : i! 
. j. ii' i 

, ". . I I 
: 0. III ' i 
I " I i I 
1 '"I I ' I 

I I 

, , 
! I 

I· , , I, 
I ! Iii , ~ , J j 

i j [! j i I 
1 I \: ! 1 -.1--'-'-1' .. _._; ___ :..+_L.I_~_ 
; .: . j , I 
! ! i I 11 I 

I • 
\ 1 

i' 
! ! 

i : r-! , ! ! 

o r---o..;,--.;,.-"-"t"'--_"_';-"_J_LJ -l,Jj.1·L---l--..J __ ! ' i It.. i 

" I i [I "" 

1 •• _,' _. 

! I" I 
I, I I, ' • I . t I 

I I : ! i 
: I 1'1 I I , 
'I i 

t 1 , 
I 
i j ., 

; 
. -_ .. ---- -~ --1 

, 
I 
I 
I 
I I ' , I 

: ! 

I I 
1 I 

i i , 
! I 
J: 

I
i ; I 

- -'-'~"l'-~"-' 
. ill 

I : l, 
! 1 [ : 

I I ; 

Krazan Testj,ng Laboratory 



Consolidation Test 

Pro' No Borin No. & Date Soil Classification 
1213090 B6 2-3' 8126/2013 SM-ML 

Lood In Klpo per Sq ..... Foot 
0.1 IV 100 

0.00 .... =---T--,-~--r'i'".,...,.~--t'--.--------------; 
I' 
! 

2.00 

10.00 ---_., I 

12.00 
II i 

% Consolidation @ 2Ksf: 3.9 % 

I I 

i 
i 
I I 
1 I 

i 1 , , , 
I 

, : 

: i 
! I , , 
. I 
I, 
! I , , 

i i 
I 

, , 
. I 

! j I I i 
, , I ' I 

---- I----t- -i-'j-- '-rt-:-
, I ' II , . , 

! ' ' 'I I 1 I' 

I ' , \' , ' 

! II 
I , 

! , i 1 ; ~ 

--·:·-~l .,++--:--l 
!, i i 
I i 
! , 

! 
I i: , , 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Grain Size Analysis 

SIeYa Openings in Inc:hes U.S. Standard Sieve Number& HI'd_r 
3 , 112 114 Ill! #18 '30 #50 #100 iI200 

1-112 "'. 31B 

! ' I: ! : IT' ' ' 'i ' I ' ' I 1 r ,.., " Ii, ' ' ! Ii: , :; 1 I ,tf+..1 i!: I I I! I , I' " 'I 1
'00

.

0 

l
i',!'il I il+TI' I: 'i ~'I iii! i i I I I " I' ! ' , ' . , ' i ' 

9M 

i Iii' I liil II iii' ! l"Ci ' ! , ! 'II! r 
'; I '!' if . I ,I I, ! I ' I' I! " : " '! !' I I ! i , ii, ,i : I Ii: I I " I ,I I il'! I, I I !; " I I !il I I' I" ' iii': Ii' I' TaM 
i ," . I ' -I I' , ' I"" i ' i ' . I , iii' , ! II: ' I i [I I 'I: I :' ,':' Ii: 

I

!! 1 !: i i! iii i: I, iii i [ ! I Ii,' ii I ' 70.0 

I' ',' I I' I 1'1' ! I I· ,l ,:1 •• . , . ' I I ' ' ' ~ I" , : ! I I I ' I!, , ' ;' Z '"lI; I ' IIII! II, lil'ill' I, 11 I I eo,o;;; 
'rl'T' ' "", '" I: .. lli , ' I I I'! i : ! I' ! j' I I I : I I I I < 
,! • ,I' I ' ! I ' ! ' ,,' ' D-",' II' il,!! I, i II i : I: I 50.01-

i' 'I ii' " : , , , ' III IL I, , ! I I' U !' . I Z 
i!iii:111 1 j 11111[ 'i:1 ' , 4(I,ojfi 
liilli 11'l;i! 11111 ,I i iii II. 

L, .' I,! iii Iii I I! I', I I I ! jl: ,30.0 

I" I' . , I !,' 'II' I' ! " ' '! Iii I': 1 
!;, ,I 'I 1 ,I; "I 

'I:: ! ~ i i J i i II I I I ! i ! i j I I 'I I i I I' 'l20.0 

i
ll I i II I! 1111! ' . I I.!;' ,I ' I ' : i: . :!II! Iii iii II I I I ! Ii I I ~ +0.0 

I J , 
0.0 

100 1. III 

Grain Size In Mlillmemra 
0.01 0,001 

[ Gra'l~, ..-=r='- -S;;;d .... _- u~_ Silt or c'ayU---l 
L Ctlarse L __ F.~~.-l~....l..I ___ ...:Med=I=urn::"'-_L __ FI_n· __ -...JL"-_______________ ...J_ 

ProjecI Name 
ProjecI Number 
Soil Classlflcation 
Sample Number 

Tentative Tract 
1213090 
Cl 
B3@2-3' 

(Unified SOils Classification) 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 

""\ 
/ 



Grain Size Analysis 

SieVe Openings irllnches U.S. SlandOld Slew Numbenl --3 1 112 #4 #8 #16 #30 #~o #100 #200 
1-1/2 3/4 318 

II i I -, I I' ,. , H---L" I' I" Ii" I' : ! ! iii i I'! i' Iii : i Ii ; [' i II I : I ! ! I' , 
,! I 11. '. t· ,1 I. . I 

I I :1";: :I'I'~ I II 111!j I I'll" 
! ! i ; I !: , iii I . i I I i'\ I ,! L 1 J i .1 ; J I 
i '! ' I!' i I \1 I : I Ii'., I' I':, I' I' ! I I ' ! ii' iii: I ::[1; ; I ,Ii i ~ Ii: I I Ii I I I : 
+tl , I ' . I I I' , ' , \!' I' I ." 'I II i !, iii Iii iii iii I' iii' I ! I' i; !, , 

I I ' Ii. i! i, I' , , i " Ii' 

WI 'i I Ii. Ii, 1'\'; iii \!I Ii II' I! I ! 
iii i' Ii, I ,1, I Iii .i I [ ! I ! 

100,D 

90.0 

80.0 

ro,o 
CI 

60.0 
;;;; 

'" '" <II( 

"-50.0 ... 
Z 
W 

I' "1 ! j I , ; 1 , ; : I I I T-i I' I II i I ! . ; 
II ! ! i: I i l , i I Iii Iii I Iii [ ! : I 

I II Ii: II; II i I j i! ii' I 1 III i I I iii i i 
0 

~.O D! 

I : I, Wi! I I!,' IIII1 I 'I Iii j I 

I . 'i: Ii:: I' I I ,I I iii I : I 
, ! : I " J I ! j I T I' ! . 1 I 

! , '. "I 'I' : II ',' , I:' I' I ii' 1 I I i I !, I . i, ! 'I'! I, ! .' ! 
I! " Iii Iii ! 1 i i :' ii, i! I I: 

30,0 

20.0 

10.0 
r 1 '; I I IJ I I :, i I I I ; II i i ! I II [' , ! I 

1I1II1 I liil!: : i Ii I: iili l I I ,! i_LL_ 
0.0 

0.001 100 

~ravel 

I ~~~~ 
Project Name 
Project Number 
~I~smk:ation 
Sample Number 

I 

lD 

Fine Coarse ," 

Tentative Tract 
1213090 
SM-ML 
B6@2-3' 

1 0.1 0.01 

Grain Size in Millimeters 

Sand Silt or Clay 
Medium I Fino 

(Unified Soils Classification) 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 

w 
"-

'~'l 



Shear Strength Diagram (Direct Shear) 
ASTM D· 3080 I AASHTO T· 236 

1-_..!P~ect~N~u!gm~be!!!..r -'--I-..EBo!!!n~·n~No. & De th 
1213090 B4 2·3' L-__ ~~~ __ ~ __ ~ 

, , 
.. J.j .j .. 

'-I-- .~~ I·· 
3.00 

I- .. ' 

2.00 

-j .+. 
, 

.~ 

1.00 
l- f-

I- 1·-f-. 

I , 

0,00 
0,0 0.5 

-1-. 

ba 

, 

1.0 

1·-

j , 

.. -" , 

...• ' -

1.5 

SoiIT e 
ML 

Cohesion: 
+- Anale of Internal Friction: 

I 

I I 

I···· 

, .+. , 

2.0 2.5 

Date 
812612013 

0.4 Ksf 
23 • 

-_.,j._--, 

.--

._--- f- -. f·· f-

r-

.'-f-

... ++-1= 
·f-

'"". 
_. l-
, .. I-

3.0 3.5 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Expansion Index Test 
ASTM D ·48291 UBC Std. 18·2 

Project Number 
Project Name 
Date 
Sample locationl Depth 
Sample Number 
Soil Classification 

Trial # 
Weight of Soil & Mold, gms 
Weight of Mold, gms 
Weight of Soil, gms 
Wet Density, Lbslcu.ft. 
Weight of Moisture Sample (Wet), gms 
Weight of Moisture Sample (Dry), gms 
Moisture Content, % 
Dry Density, Lbs/cu.ft. 
Specific Gravity of Soil 
Degree of Saturation, % 

Time fnital 30 min 
Dial Reading 0 --

: 1213090 
: Tentative Tract 
: 9/4/2013 
: 1-3' 
: RV#1 
: CL 

1 hr 

-

Expansion Index measured = 63.6 

Expansion Index = I 64 

1 
582.4 
183.5 
398.9 
120.3 
300.0 
271.5 
10.5 
108.9 
2.7 
51.8 

6hrs 

--

2 3 

12 hrs 24 hrs 
-- 0.0636 

Expansion Potential Table 

Exp. Index Potential Exp. 

0-20 Very Low 
21 - 50 Low 
51 - 90 Medium 

91 - 130 High 
>130 Very High 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Expansion Index Test 
ASTM 0 - 48291 UBC Std. 18·2 

Project Number 
Project Name 
Date 
Sample location! Depth 
Sample Number 
Soil Classification 

Trial # 

Weicht of Soil & Mold, cms 
Weioht of Mold, oms 
Weicht of Soil, oms 
Wet Densitv, Lbslcu.ft. 
Welaht of Moisture Sample 
Weloht of Moisture Sample 
Moisture Content, % 
Drv DensitY, Lbslcu.ft. 
Specific Gravitv of Soil 
Dearee of Saturation, % 

Time Inital 
Dial Readina 0 

Expansion Index mea.ured 

ExpanSion Index -

Wet), Ilms 
Drv), ems 

30 min 
--

: 1213090 
: Tentative Tract 
: 9'4/2013 
: 1-3' 
: RV#2 
: ML wi clay 

1 hr 
-

:::: 26.2 

26 

1 

591.0 
183.2 
407.8 
123.0 
300.0 
274.7 
9.2 

112.6 
2.7 

50.1 

6hrs 
--

2 3 

12 hrs 24 hrs 
-- 0.0262 

Expansion Potential Table 

Exp. Index Potential EY.p. 

0-20 Very Low 
21·50 Low 
51 - 90 Medium 

91 - 130 High 
>130 Verv Hich 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Project Number: 
Project Name: 
Date: 
Sample Number: 

Plastic Limit 

N.A 

r-'-· 
f ' 

Atterberg Limits Determination 
ASTM D-4318 

01213090 

Tentative Tract 

/JI2M013 
BI@20-21' 

Liquid limit 

N.A 

Plasticity Index 

Non-Plastic 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Project Number : 
Project Name: 
Date: 
Sample Number: 

Plastic LImit 

N.A. 

Atterberg Limits Determination 
ASTM 0-4318 

01213090 
Tentative Tract 

8I26!2013 
B1@30-31' 

Liquid Limit 

N.A. 

Plasticity Index 

Non-Plastic 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Project Number: 
Project Name: 
Date: 
Sample Number: 

Plastic Limit 

N.A. 

Atterberg Limits Determination 
ASTM 0-4318 

01213090 

Tentative Tfllct 

812612013 
B1@35-36' 

liquid Limit 

N.A. 

Plasticlfi Index 

Non-Plastic 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Project Number: 
Project Name: 
Date: 
Sample Number: 

Plastic Limit 

N.A. 

Atterberq Umits Determination 
ASTM 0-4318 

01213090 
Tentative Tract 

8/26/2013 

B1@45-46' 

Liquid Limit 

N.A. 

Plasticitv Index 

Non-Plastic 

Krazan Testing Laboratory 



Appendix C 

Traffic Impact Study, dated December 17, 2013 

Prepared by: KD Anderson and Associates 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 
April 2014 

60 
s 

mi J.B. ANDERSON II - -lA"D 1.,[ Plt,~NI~(' 



TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

For 

AMG SUBDIVISION PROJECT 
Los Banos, CA 

Prepared for: 

J.B. ANDERSON LAND PLANNING 
139 S. Stockton Avenue 

Ripon, CA 95366 

Prepared by: 

KDAnderson & Associates, Inc. 
3853 Taylor Road, Suite G 

Loomis, CA 95650 
(916) 660-1555 

January 16, 2014 

0475-05 

AMG SubdivisiOlupt 

Transportation Engineers 



TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR 
AMG SUBDIVISION 

Los Banos, CA 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................. 1 
Study Scope ............................................................................................................................................ I 

EXISTING SETTING ....................................................................................................................................... 4 
Existing Street System ........................................................................................................................... 4 
Existing Study Intersections ................................................................................................................... 5 
Transit Service ........................................................................................................................................ 6 
Pedestrian I Bicycle Facilities ................................................................................................................ 6 
Existing Traffic Volumes ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Level of Service Calculation .................................................................................................................. 8 
Daily Traffic Volumes ......................................................................................................................... 10 
Current Peak Hour Traffic Conditions ................................................................................................. 10 

STANDARDS OF SIGNIFICANCE ............................................................................................................. 12 
Regulatory Framework ......................................................................................................................... 12 

PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS ................................................................................................................ 15 
Trip Generation .................................................................................................................................... 15 
Trip Distribution and Assigmnent.. ...................................................................................................... 15 
Traffic Volumes Generated by the Project .......................................................................................... 16 

EXISTING PLUS PROJECT CONDITIONS ............................................................................................. 18 
Traffic Volume Forecasts ..................................................................................................................... 18 
Existing Plus Project Intersection Levels of Service ........................................................................... 18 
Existing Plus Project Roadway Segment Levels of Service ................................................................ 18 
hnpacts to Alternative Transportation Modes ..................................................................................... 21 

EXISTING PLUS APPROVED PROJECTS PLUS PROJECT CONDITIONS .................................... 22 
Background Characteristics ................................................................................................................. 22 
Background Circulation System hnprovements .................................................................................. 22 
Existing Plus Approved Projects - No Project Traffic Conditions ..................................................... 22 

EP AP PLUS PROJECT ................................................................................................................................. 25 
Traffic Volume Forecast and Level of Service .................................................................................... 25 

CUMULATIVE TRAFFIC IMPACTS ........................................................................................................ 27 
Methodology I Assumptions ................................................................................................................ 27 

APPENDIX ...................................................................................................................................................... 31 



INTRODUCTION 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR 
AMG SUBDIVISION 

Los Banos, CA 

This report summarizes KDAnderson & Associates' analysis of the potential traffic impacts 
associated with development of the AMG Subdivision. The proposed project is a 57 unit 
residential subdivision to be constructed on a site at the northeast comer of the intersection of 
Willmott Avenue and North Street within the City of Los Banos. The subdivision's plan includes 
residences that will front on North Street and on local streets that connect to Mandarin Avenue 
and to Friguglietti A venue. Figure 1 identifies the project's location in northern Los Banos. 
Figure 2 is the project site plan. 

Study Scope 

The purpose of this analysis is to identify potential project specific and cumulative traffic 
impacts that could accompany implementation of the project. The analysis includes an 
evaluation of existing circulation conditions in the area based on recent data. Project impacts 
have been evaluated within the context of existing background traffic and under a short-term 
"Existing Plus Approved Projects" scenario that assumes other approved but as yet 
unconstructed projects. To assess traffic impacts, the characteristics of the proposed project have 
been determined, including estimated trip generation, and the directional distribution / 
assignment of the project traffic. "Existing Plus Project" and "Existing Plus Approved Projects 
(EP AP) Plus Project" conditions were then evaluated. 

To address cumulative impacts this study considers long term conditions occurring in year 2030 
under the City of Los Banos General Plan. The City of Los Banos General Plan envisions the 
development of a SR 152 Los Banos Bypass and this improvement is reasonably certain by 2030. 
The cumulative analysis is based on the results of the City'S Transportation Master Plan (TMP) 
travel demand forecasting model. 

The study area includes four intersections along Willmott Avenue: 

1. Willmott Avenue / 2nd Street 
2. Willmott Avenue / North Street 
3. Willmott Avenue / Friggs Avenue 
4. Willmott Avenue / 7th Street 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Pagel 



'1()D )lmferson & )lssociat~ Inc, 
1 rar.sportatior, Er.!lineere. 
O"15-(I~ II 12,1]7/2013 

VICINITY MAP 

figure 1 
A.....1JH 



, ; 

.' " ~. 
~ -.. ' 
.. , .... . " ,< : 

:n 
I', : "/" I " 1'--. , 

)1 

. ~ 

, 

\ 
"'-. .. ~ 

'. • ~; • -

".*' .• ,~, 

sn'1~V~OI'V 

• 
i' 

¢£: 

.~ 
: 

I 

r 
~. ~ 
I 

• • 
: 

; ~ 
• : , 

" .' :'X' 

LWH.I ;IAIlVJX3,1.[ ! 

• 
j 

.;f; J • *i; 
~: 

• cei~ 1, • 
.;f~ -- ! ;-j Is 
~: • • 

..,;:n. • , q: I -
.1; i ~: 

• .i~ j 
~f~ • 

~l~ r ~1: 

eol; j ei; I 
.. 

Ii; (\!~ : ~ 
9" 1J , 

, ....... _..,r::: , , • 



EXISTING SETTING 

Existing Street System 

Regional access to Los Banos is provided by State Route 152 (Pacheco Boulevard) and State 
Route 165 (Mercey Springs Road) and to a lesser extent by Pioneer Road and Ingomar Grade 
Road. Primary local access to the AMG subdivision will be City of Los Banos arterial and 
collector streets, such as Willmott Avenue, 2nd Street and 7th Street. Locally, project residences 
have access to North Street and to neighborhood streets like Mandarin Avenue and Friguglietti 
A venue that will be extended through the site. 

The text that follows describes these existing and proposed facilities. Functionally, the Los 
Banos General Plan Circulation Element classifies study area streets as Arterials, Collectors or 
Local Streets. 

Two state highways serve Los Banos: 

Pacheco Boulevard (SR 152). SR 152 is a major roadway providing important east/west 
circulation through Los Banos. This highway also provides regional access to the community, as 
the highway extends from an intersection with Highway I in Watsonville on the Pacific Coast 
easterly to an interchange on Highway 99 near Chowchilla. In between, the highway connects 
Los Banos residents with Interstate 5, which lies about 6 miles west of the City. Through Los 
Banos, Pacheco Boulevard is a four lane Arterial Street controlled by traffic signals at major 
intersections. In the area west and east of Los Banos, SR 152 becomes a divided four-lane 
expressway with limited access. The most recent daily traffic counts reported by Caltrans (2012) 
indicate that SR 152 carried an Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) volume of 28,000 to 
31,500 vehicles per day through the City. 

Mercey Springs Road (SR 165). SR 165 is an Arterial road providing north/south circulation to 
the eastern portion of Los Banos. The highway also provides regional access to the north to SR 
99 and the City of Turlock and to the south to an interchange on Interstate 5. The width of SR 
165 varies, as the portions near its intersection with SR 152 have been widened to their ultimate 
4 lane width, while other areas remain a two lane facility. The most recent daily traffic counts 
reported by Caltrans (2012) indicate that SR 165 carried 13,500 AADT in the area ofthe project 
between B Street and Overland Avenue. 

The study area includes important city streets: 

Willmott Avenue is an east-west Collector street that extends from an intersection on Johnson 
Road in western Los Banos easterly by the project site to an intersection on SR 165. Willmott 
Avenue is a two lane facility, with class II bicycle lanes on each side of the road. Some portions 
of Willmott Avenue are wide enough to accommodate on-street parking. New daily traffic 
counts conducted for this study in November 2013 indicated that Willmott Avenue carried 3,300 
ADT in the area just east of North Street. 

North Street is a north-south Collector that links the north end of the Merced County 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page 4 



fairgrounds with the residential areas of northern Los Banos. North Street intersects D Street in 
the area south of Willmott Avenue and continues northerly to its terminus on Overland Avenue. 
North Street is a two lane road, and on-street parking is permitted on both sides of the street. The 
posted speed limit on North Street is 35 mph. New traffic counts made for this study in 
November 2013 indicated 1,335 ADT on North Street north of its intersection with Willmott 
Avenue. 

2nd Street is a north-south Collector which links downtown Los Banos with northwestern 
residential areas. 2nd Street originates at an intersection on West I Street and continues northerly 
to an intersection on Overland Avenue. The route continues northerly as Cabernet Street to the 
northern city limits. 2nd Street is a two lane facility with on-street parking. 

7th Street is a north-south Arterial street that links central and northern Los Banos. 7th Street 
originates at an intersection on Page Street and continues northerly across SR 152 through 
downtown Los Banos to Willmott Avenue. North of Willmott Avenue the route continues as 
Stonewood Drive to the northern city limits. The width of 7th Street varies, as the portion in 
downtown Los Banos has a wide cross section used to provide auxiliary lanes. Near Willmott 
A venue, 7th Street is a wide two lane facility accommodating both on-street parking and class II 
bike lanes. 

Mandarin Avenue, Rose Avenue, Friguglietti Avenue and Friggs Avenue are local 
neighborhood streets that provide access to the existing neighborhoods north and east of the 
project site. All are two lane streets with sidewalks and on-street parking. 

Existing Stndy Intersections 

The geometric configuration and traffic controls at study intersections are discussed in the text 
which follows. 

The Willmott Avenue I N. 2nd Street intersection is controlled by an all-way stop. The 
intersection has single lanes on each approach. There are handicap accessible ramps on each 
comer and the intersection is illuminated. 

The Willmott Avenue I North Street intersection is controlled by an all-way stop. The 
intersection has single lanes on each approach. There is a handicap accessible ramp on one 
corner and the intersection is illuminated. 

The Willmott Avenue I Friggs A venue intersection is controlled by stop signs on the 
northbound and southbound approaches (Friggs Avenue I Friggs Court). Each approach is a 
single lane. Handicap accessible ramps exist on each comer and the intersection is illuminated. 

The Willmott Avenue 17th Street I Stonewood Drive intersection is controlled by an all-way 
stop. The intersection has single lanes on each approach. There is a handicap accessible ramp 
on one corner and the intersection is illuminated. 

Transit Service 

Traffic Impact Analysisfor AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 5 



Merced County Transit (MCT) operates both regularly scheduled Fixed Route and Dial-A
Ride (door-to-door) transit services throughout aJl of Merced County. Transportation centers 
include the park-n-ride lot, the Greyhound Bus Station and the Los Banos Airport. The transit 
service, called "The Bus" operates 15 route lines and demand response services with two fixed 
city routes as weJl as a connector route to the City of Merced. The Bus offers service within the 
City of Los Banos via three routes. One route (Route LB2) passes along the south side of the 
fairgrounds. The Los Banos Downtown Road (LB3) passes the project site on Willmott Avenue 
and has a designated stop at the North Street intersection. 

The Bus service generaJly runs from Monday through Friday, 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. and on Saturday 
from 9:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. There is no service on Sunday. The frequency between buses during 
both peak and off-peak hours of operation is 30 minutes. The MCT equipped aJl fixed route 
transit buses with bike racks that provide bicycle riders with greater transit access and 
connectivity. Many of the outlying residential areas are not served by transit. 

Pedestrian I Bicycle Facilities 

Today pedestrian and bicycle facilities are readily available on the roads abutting the project. 
Sidewalks exist in the newly developed residential areas. However, there are no sidewalks along 
the northeast corner of the Willmott Avenue I North Street intersection. 

There are three Bikeway classifications in Los Banos. A "Class I" bikeway, also referred to as a 
bike path or multi-use trail, is a right-of-way that is completely separated from any street. A 
"Class II" bikeway, or bike lane, is a one-way, striped, and signed lane on a street or highway. A 
"Class III" bike route shares the road with pedestrians and motor vehicle traffic and is marked 
only by signs. 

In Los Banos, existing and planned bikeways and bike parking facilities are identified in the 
Regional Bike Plan 2006. The General Plan also contains the goals and policies for providing 
bicycle facilities in Los Banos. The General Plan identifies 7 miles of existing bikeways and 65 
miles of proposed bikeways in Los Banos. There are existing bicycle lanes in the immediate 
vicinity of the project, as lanes are on Willmott Avenue and North Street. 

Existing Traffic Volumes 

To quantify existing traffic conditions, weekday a.m. and p.m. peak hour intersection turoing 
movement counts were coJlected on October 31, 2013. These peak hours were selected as being 
representative of "Worst Case" background traffic conditions, based on review of daily traffic 
counts in the City of Los Banos and based on the highest hour of project trip generation. Figure 
3 displays the weekday a.m. and p.m. peak hour counts at the study intersection. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 6 



1 
__ 0_ 9R14 
-0--- .... --- +15(16) -'" -",0", 101 (72) 

~+ 58 (38) 

(14) a t + .Jl.. 
1t1·1 

(102) 55 .,. .,. N 

(13) 25 - "><,, ---
Rl.,p 

... -... .- Ul ..... 
2;"-

2'" SlreSl1 Willmott Avenue 

'K!D Jlnd"ersott & )Issodale~ Inc. 
Transportation Er,q;neers 
041S-050 IT .... V:I 12/17(lD13 

~ 

'" " " 
~I r= 

&.)1 Mandal"it"l Ave 

"EI 
<">, 

iill zl 
-I 

CNer1and Ave 

TuskvAve 

:::::::::::.~:) 

o 
0: 
m' 
~, 

«i 

Luigi Zv 
Rhotla Ave 

JI 

~ 0< I 
,.0 ,;,!~llli 1:; .... "'" 

a; 
~ 

13 

~, 

Li.rr-a: I Ave_ 
<;, 
~i 
z 

'::::::::=: 
": . .; ",:,"'" Willr'1Ott A~ 

1 2 t5 ul3 4 

2 

o 

'" .g ... 

3300 

c 
&;1 il 
€ 0.. 

~ ~J 
L 

I 

3 4 

-- 9"'" ~_ 9c!~·1 - "'- - '" '" "'''" .... "'- .... --- 20 (ll) ~..9~ - ",- 33 (27) -...... +3 IS) -co ... 
", ... 0 t 149 (99) WO,A . 121 (117) 

w'" _ t 130 (aO) 
R:1·1 + 8 (5) ~+ 2 (6) ~+ 115 (38) 
-U-

(15) ~-t.. + .A. 
(4)2 t + .Jl.. (25) 10 t ~ .A. 

RM ~1·1 ~M 
(151) 100 • (164) 132 (101) 86 -- '" NO", "'- ... (19) 17 N .,._ 

(3) 1 E§B (33) 51 ~:::J':: ---RI.,p ........ '" • •.• p "'-'-" ... "'- N .... '" -- -~-

NOI1h Street I WUlmott Avenue Frlggs Court I Wmmott Avenue 7" StMe! I Willmott Menue 

EXISTING TRAFfiC VOLUMES 
AND LANE CONFIGURATIONS 

• ..o~~ .. -KTS 

~ 

.xx ~ P.E'!e-k H¢tJr Volume 

+1XX1 PM Pc-at( Hou!'" Volu~ 

9RH Stop SI~J1t 

XX Average Dally Traffic 

figure 3 



Level of Service Calculation 

To quantitatively evaluate traffic conditions and to provide a basis for comparison of operating 
conditions with and without project generated traffic, "Levels of Service" were determined at 
study area intersections. 

"Level-of-Service" (LOS) is a quantitative measure of traffic operating conditions whereby a 
letter grade "A" through "F" is assigned to an intersection. LOS "A" through "F" represents 
progressively worsening traffic conditions. The characteristics associated with the various LOS 
for intersections are presented in Table 1. LOS "E" and "F" are associated with severe 
congestion and delay and are unacceptable to most motorists. 

TABLE! 
LEVEL OF SERVICE DEFINmONS 

Level of 
Service Si2llalized Intersection Unsi2llalized Intersection 

"A" Uncongested operations, all queues Little or no delay. 
clear in a single-signal cycle. Delay Delay::: 10 sec/veh 
< 10.0 sec 

"B" Uncongested operations, all queues Short traffic delays. 
clear in a single cycle. Delay> 10.0 Delay> 10 sec/veh and 
sec and < 20.0 sec < 15 sec/veh 

"e" Light congestion, occasional backups Average traffic delays. 
on critical approaches. Delay> 15 sec/veh and 
Delay> 20.0 sec and < 35.0 sec < 25 sec/veh 

"D" Significant congestions of critical Long traffic delays. 
approaches but intersection Delay> 25 sec/veh and 
fimctional. Cars required to wait ::: 35 sec/veh 
through more than one cycle during 
short peaks. No long queues formed. 
Delay> 35.0 sec and < 55.0 sec 

"E" Severe congestion with some long Very long traffic delays, failure, 
standing queues on critical extreme congestion. 
approaches. Blockage of intersection Delay> 35 sec/veh and 
may occur if traffic signal does not ::: 50 sec/veh 
provide for protected turning 
movements. Traffic queue may 
block nearby intersection(s) upstream 
of critical approach(es). 
Delay> 55.0 sec and < 80.0 sec 

"F" Total breakdown, stop-and-go Intersection blocked by external 
operation. Delay> 80.0 sec causes. Delay> 50 sec/veh 

Sources: 2000 Highway CaQacilY Manlll!!. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Roadway (Daily) 

Completely free flow. 

Free flow, presence of 
other vehicles noticeable. 

Ability to maneuver and 
select operating speed 
affected. 
Unstable flow, speeds and 
ability to maneuver 
restricted. 

At or near capacity, flow 
quite unstable. 

Forced flow, breakdown. 

Page 8 



Levels of Service were calculated for different intersection control types and roadway segments 
using the respective methods in the following sources: 

• Signalized and Unsignalized Intersections. 2000 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM). 

• Roadway Segments. Daily traffic volume thresholds presented in the City of Los Banos 
General Plan Update and Merced County General Plan Update 2007 Background Report. 

In addition, another measure of performance not directly related to formal Level of Service has 
been employed: 

• Individual Segments of City Streets. Daily traffic volume thresholds as defined in the 
City of Los Banos Improvement Standards. 

Level of Service Thresholds for Segments. The City of Los Banos General Plan presents daily 
traffic volume for various Levels of Service on Arterial streets, as shown in Table 2. 

TABLE 2 
DAILY TRAFFIC LEVEL OF SERVICE THRESHOLDS 

Dally Traffic Volume 
A B C D E 

Description Lanes <0.60 0.6-0.7 0.7-0.8 0.8-0.9 <1.00 

Rural Highway 4 21,500 25,000 28,500 32,500 N/A 

Major Arterial 6 26,000 30,000 34,500 39,000 43,000 

Major Arterial 4 17,500 20,000 23,000 26,000 28,500 

Minor Arterial 4 15,000 17,500 20,000 22,500 25,000 

Minor Arterial 2 7,500 8,500 10,000 11,500 12,500 

Collector 2 6,500 7,500 8,500 9,500 10,500 

Source: City of Los Bauos General Piau EIR 

Local/Collector Street Segments. The City of Los Banos Improvement Standards suggest 
approximate daily traffic volume thresholds that are theoretically associated with satisfactory 
traffic operations. These thresholds are presented in Table 3. 

Traffic Impact Analysis/or AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 9 



TABLE 3 
CITY OF LOS BANOS STREET STANDARDS 

Width Design Speed Daily Traffic 

Street Classification ROW Pavement Standard Configuration (in MPH) Volume Range 

Private Residential 2 lanes 25 0 500 

Local Residential 52 32 2 lanes 30 0 4,000 

Minor Collector 60 40 2 lanes with parking 35 500 4,000 

Minor Collector 60 34 2 lanes without parking 35 500 4,000 

Major Collector 72 56 2 lanes with left tum lanes 40 4,000 7,500 
and parking 

Major Collector 80 50 2 lanes without parking 40 4,000 7,500 
with walls 

Industrial (local) 66 48 2 lanes 40 0 14,000 

Minor Arterial 84 62 4 lanes no parking 50 7,500 ---
Minor Arterial 100 62 4 lanes with no parking 50 7,500 ---

and walls 

Major Arterial 106 80 4 lanes wi left tum lane I 55 --- 25,000 
median and no parking 

Major Arterial 122 80 4 lanes with no parking 55 --- 25,000 
with walls 

Daily Traffic Volumes 

Existing Levels of Service and the ability of existing roads to meet General Plan Levels of 
Service standards based on daily traffic volume thresholds has been reviewed using current daily 
traffic volumes on individual segments of study area streets. These volumes and the current 
Level of Service based on applicable daily traffic volume threshold identified for each street 
were identified. 

As indicated, the daily volume of traffic on Willmott Avenue near the project east of North 
Street is indicative of LOS A conditions for a 2 lane Collector street based on the City's General 
Plan volume thresholds. Currently, Willmott Avenue carries 3,300 ADT. The volume of traffic 
on North Street is much lower (i.e., 1,330 ADT) and is also indicative of LOS A conditions. 

Current Peak Hour Traffic Conditions at Intersections 

Levels of Service (LOS) were calculated at existing study intersections (Refer to Appendix for 
calculation worksheets) under "Existing" conditions. Current LOS at the study intersections are 
presented on Table 4. As shown, the three intersections controlled by All-Way stops currently 
operate with Level of Service that meets the City of Los Banos LOS D minimum standard. At 
that time the 2nd Street and North Street intersections operate at LOS A or B. The 7th Street 
intersection carries more traffic and operates at LOS C. While the overall volume of traffic 

Traffic Impact Analysis/or AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page 10 



occurring during the p.m. peak hour is similar to that counted in the a.m. peak hour, because 
traffic is spread over a broader peak at that time the Level of Service is better during the p.m. 
peak hour. 

The significance of Levels of Service at unsignalized intersections is also determined based on 
the extent to which existing or projected traffic volumes satisfy traffic signal warrant 
requirements. Today the volume of traffic at the study intersections falls well below the level that 
might justify signalization. 

TABLE 4 
EXISTING PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 
Average Average 

Delay Delay Traffic Signal 
Location Control (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS Warrants Met? 

Willmott Ave I 2nd Street All-Way Stop 10.2 B 9.3 A No 

Willmott Ave I North Street All-Way Stop 9.1 A 8.4 A No 

Willmott Ave I Friggs Ave NB/SB Stop 10.5 B 9.7 A No 

Willmott Ave I 7"' Street All-Way Stop 242 C 11.7 B No 

Level of Service at unsignalized intersections controlled by side street stop signs is indicative of "worst case" 
conditions on side street approach 

Bold values indicate conditions in excess of the City's LOS D minimum. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9.2014) 

Page 11 



STANDARDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Regulatory Framework 

The text which follows summarizes the circulation policies which govem the study area. 

State 

California Department of Transportation 

In its Guide for the Preparation of Traffic Impact Studies, Caltrans establishes an operational 
objective of the transition from LOS C to LOS D. In instances where a facility is operating below 
LOS C, Caltrans seeks to maintain the existing measure of effectiveness. 

Caltrans plans / polices for its state highways are also presented in the SR 152 Transportation 
Concept Report (SR 152 TCR) and the State Route 165 Transportation Concept Report. 
(SR 165 TCR). The concept LOS on SR 152 for the 20-year planning horizon is "D" from 
Santa Clara-Merced County line (PM 0.00) to Santa Fe Grade (PM R24.00). This includes the 
area ofthe City of Los Banos. The concept LOS is "Coo on SR 152 from Santa Fe Grade to SR-
59 (PM 40.95) Merced-Madera County line. 

The 20 year concept LOS for that portion of SR 165 south of Overland Avenue is LOS D. The 
20 year concept LOS for the segment from Overland Avenue north to SR 152 is LOS D on a five 
lane conventional highway. The 20 year concept LOS for the area north of SR 152 to Henry 
Miller Road is LOS D on a five lane conventional highway. 

In November 2003, the MCAG, the City of Los Banos, and Caltrans District 10 prepared, in a 
cooperative effort, Los Banos Access Management Plan (LBAMP). This Plan lays out land
use and transportation strategies that control the flow of traffic along SR-152 and SR-165. The 
LBAMP provides a foundation for local development and Caltrans through the 
Intergovernmental Review (IGR) and permit processes. 

Local 

Merced County Association of Governments 

The 2011 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) for Merced County is a federally mandated, 
long-range transportation plan for the six incorporated cities of Atwater, Dos Palos, Gustine, 
Livingston, Los Banos, and Merced. The RTP specifies the policies, projects, and programs 
necessary over a 20-plus year period to maintain, manage, and improve the region's 
transportation systems. It establishes goals and objectives for the future system. It identifies the 
actions necessary to achieve these goals and describes a funding strategy and options for 
implementing the actions. The RTP is updated every 3 years. The present 2011 update concerns 
the period from 2011 to 2035. 

Traffic Impact AnalysiS for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 12 



To coordinate local planning efforts with other regional, state, and federal agencies, and to 
monitor and respond to policies that will affect the development and implementation of the RTP, 
the Merced County Association of Governments prioritizes transportation projects in a Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program for federal and state funding. The process is based on each 
project for need, feasibility, and adherence to federal transportation policies. 

The RTP's Regional Road Network includes SR 152, SR 165, the Los Banos Bypass and Henry 
Miler A venue north of Los Banos. The Los Banos Bypass is identified as a Tier 1 project in the 
RTP. Initial work for widening SR 165 through Los Banos is an unfunded Tier 2 project. 

MCAG also administers the Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) program. A portion of 
the cost of the Los Banos Bypass will be funded through the RTIF. 

City of Los Banos 

General Plan 

The General Plan establishes the following guiding policies and implementing actions associated 
with transportation that are applicable to the proposed project: 

• Guiding Policy C-G-l: Promote safe and efficient vehicular circulation. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-2: Provide a wide variety of transportation alternatives and modes to 
serve all residents and businesses to enhance the quality oflife. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-3: Make efficient use of existing transportation facilities and, through 
coordinated land use planning, strive to improve accessibility to shops, schools, parks and 
employment centers and reduce total vehicle miles traveled per household to minimize 
vehicle emissions and save energy. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-4: Protect neighborhoods by discouraging through-traffic on local 
streets. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-5: Improve the scenic character of transportation corridors in the city. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-6: Maintain acceptable levels of service (LOS) C at street segments and 
LOS D at intersections and ensure that future development and the circulation system are in 
balance. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-7: Continue to pursue creative sources of funding for transportation 
improvements. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-8: Ensure that new development pays its proportionate share of the costs 
of transportation facilities. 

Traffic Impact Analysis/or AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page I3 

/:JJ,tJ 



• Implementing Action C-I-3: Require all new developments to provide right-of-way and 
improvements consistent with the General Plan street designations and City cross-street 
section standards. 

• Implementing Action C-I-S: Develop a multi-modal transit system map integrating bicycle, 
public transportation, pedestrian and vehicle linkages within the city to ensure circulation 
gaps are being met. 

• Implementing Action C-I-IO: Develop and manage the roadway system to obtain segments 
at LOS C and intersections at LOS D or better for two hour peak periods (AM and PM.) on all 
major roadways and intersections in Los Banos. This policy does not extend to residential 
streets (i.e., streets with direct driveway access to homes) or state highways and their 
intersections, where Caltrans policies apply. Exceptions to LOS D policy may be allowed by 
the City Council in areas, such as Downtown, where allowing a lower LOS would result in 
clear public benefits. 

• Implementing Action C-I-12: Require traffic impact studies for all proposed new 
developments that will generate significant amounts of traffic (lOa or more peak hour trips). 

• Implementing Action C-I-I4: Continue to require that new development pays a 
proportionate share of the costs of street and other traffic and local transportation 
improvements based on traffic generated and impacts on traffic service levels, consistent with 
State laws. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-9: Promote the use of public transit for daily trips to schools, work and 
doctors appointments. 

• Implementing Action C-I-I6: Work with Merced County Transit to situate transit stops and 
hubs at locations that are convenient for transit users, and promote increased transit ridership 
through the provision of shelters, benches, bike racks on buses, and other amenities. 

• Implementing Action C-I-I7: Ensure that new development is designed to make transit a 
viable choice for residents. Design options include: 

-- Have neighborhood focal points with sheltered bus stops; 
-- Locate medium-high density development whenever feasible near streets served by transit; 

and 
-- Link neighborhoods to bus stops by continuous sidewalks or pedestrian paths. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-II: Promote bicycling and walking as alternatives to the automobile. 

• Implementing Action C-I-23: Promote the requirement of bicycle facilities at large 
commercial and industrial employer sites. 

• Implementing Action C-I-24: Develop a series of continuous walkways within new office 
parks, commercial districts, and residential neighborhoods so they connect to one another. 

Traffic Impact AnalysiS for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 14 



• Implementing Action C-I-26: Establish specific standards for pedestrian facilities to be 
accessible to physically disabled persons, and ensure that roadway improvement projects 
address mobility or accessibility for bicyclists or pedestrians. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-12: Foster practical parking solutions. 

• Implementing Action C-I-33: Designate truck and tractor vehicle overnight parking at key 
freeway-oriented locations to avoid truck parking in residential neighborhoods. 

• Guiding Policy C-G-IS: Improve commercial goods movement. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page 15 



PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 

The characteristics of the project with regards to trip generation and distribution are discussed in 
this report section. 

Trip Generation 

Approach. To quantify the amount of vehicular traffic generated by the project, daily and a.m. / 
p.m. peak hour trip generation rates presented in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 
publication Trip Generation, 9th Edition, were employed. These rates are presented in Table 5. 
In general, each new single family residence generates slightly less than 10 vehicles trips per day 
(i.e., 5 inbound trips and 5 outbound trips). 

The proposed project is projected to generate 543 daily trips, with 43 trips originating in the a.m. 
peak hour and 57 trips occurring in the p.m. peak hour. 

TABLES 
TRIP GENERATION RATES 

Trips per Unit 

ITE AM Peak Honr PM Peak Hour 

Code Description Unit Daily In Ont Total In Out Total 

210 Single Family dwelliug 
9.52 25% 75% 0.75 64% 36% 1.00 

Residence 

AMG Subdivision 57 du's 543 11 32 43 36 21 57 

Trip Distribution and Assignment 

The distribution of project trips will reflect the project's location in northern Los Banos and the 
location of schools, retail areas and employment centers in the community. The trip distribution 
assumptions made herein have been based on review of the general plan land use diagram and 
consideration of current travel patterns at study intersections. 

As presented in Table 6, this analysis assumes that about 112 of the new trips generated by the 
project will be destined to the east using Willmott Avenue to the 7th Street intersection. About 
113 will be directed to the west to 2nd Street or further on Willmott Avenue. 

Traffic Impact Analysis Jor AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 16 



Direction 

Norlh 

South 

East 

West 

TABLE 6 
DIRECTIONAL TRIP DISTRIBUTION 

Route AM Peak 

Norlh Street beyond Mandarin Avenue 10% 

Stonewood Drive 5% 

2nd Street 20% 

Norlh Street 10% 

7th Street 25% 

WilhnottAvenue beyond 7th Street 20% 

Wi1hnott Avenue beyond 2nd Street 10% 

Total 100% 

Traffic Volumes Generated by the Project 

Percentage of 
New Trips 

PM Peak Daily 

5%- 10% 

5% 10% 

25% 20% 

5% 5% 

20% 20% 

25% 20% 

15% 15% 

100% 100% 

Using the trip generation and distribution assumptions described above, the trips generated by 
the proposed project were assigned to the study area street system. Figure 4 presents peak hour 
volumes accompanying development of the project. As noted, the project is likely to add about 
11 0 daily vehicles onto Mandarin Avenue west of North Street and 170 daily vehicles onto 
Friggs Avenue north of Willmott Avenue. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(AprlI9,2014) 

Page 17 



1 

9"'·' 
§:§§ 0(0) 
000 3 (3) 

~+ 6 (5) 

(0)0 t + -'L 

(5) 1 
R1-1 

OON 

(0) 0 :§:§3 
R1-1~ 

2"' Street I Willmott Iwenue 

1\9J}lmk ..... & )/.<$OCiatt~ [IlL 
Transportation EnoineefS. 

0475-05 LT.'Ild 11,'17/2(113 

I 

1 

2 

R1·1 ....,.. 

O\lefland Ave 

-, 
~ 

<t: Tuskv A\!8 01 ~i 
C' <: ~ ·c 

g. 
{'. 

54 

ii51 Mandarin Aw I~ 

I"'''' II"'"'''''''' ./ ::::::H~H;. 

iiU: :::::::' 
2 ij ij 3 

c ~ 

~ ~ 
~ 

'" 
~ ... 

" 0. 
0 z 

28 192 

3 
9R1 •1 

~3~ 1- 2 (5) 

__ m 
~o-

"'''' ... --~ 5 (4) '"-ION 

+ 2 (1) Rf·f ....,.. 
(7) 2 + -'L 

(7) 2 
Rt·' (9)2 t 

o~~ (3) 4 
(0) 0 ---g~~ (0) 0 

",.,p 

~Iluigi 
<: Ave 

t 4 
(14) 

1 (5) 
0(0) 

~ 
...<L ,u·, 

000 

§§§ 

.' ~. 
UJ 
Z 

!~=""-i~ l// 
~/ 
l3 

~I 
U); 
z 

4 

9"·' 
Es§ t 0(0) ~oo 2 (9) ;:+ 0(0) 

(1) 2 t + ..!L 
~101 

(5) 6 woo 
(4) 8 3§§ 

Ju.tP 

Nonh Street I WPlmott Avenue Ftlggs Court I Wilmott Awmue 7'" Street I Willmott Avenue 

PROJECT ONLY TRAFFIC VOLUMES 
AND LANE CONFIGURATIONS 

• Il0l0111: I W -~J.T.S. 
Le<!end 

.XX AM P~;tk Hour VohlrriP 

.f1XXI Pf.l, Pt!'ai< Haul'" Volul"t"lr.' 

~R1-1 Stop Sign. 

XX hvcmg(! Daily Traffk 

figure 4 



EXISTING PLUS PROJECT TRAFFIC CONDITIONS 

Traffic Volume Forecasts 

Project trips were superimposed onto current background traffic volumes to create the "Existing 
Plus Project" traffic peak hour volumes presented in Figure 5. 

Existing Plus Project Intersection Levels of Service 

Table 7 summarizes the results of Level of Service calculations for study intersections under 
"Existing Plus Project" conditions. As noted, the addition of project trips will increase the length 
of average delays at study intersections slightly, and the Willmott Avenue I 7th Street intersection 
may operate at LOS D during the a.m. peak hour. However, all study intersections will operate 
at LOS D or better, which satisfies the City of LOS Banos' minimum standard. 

Existing Plus Project traffic volumes were compared to traffic sigoal warrants to determine 
whether project traffic might result in peak hour volumes that justify a traffic sigoal. Projected 
traffic volumes remain well below the thresholds that would typically justify a traffic sigoal. 

Existing Plus Project Roadway Segment Levels of Service 

The project will add roughly 200 vehicles per day to Willmott Avenue and North Street in the 
area of the project. However, the reSUlting volume will remain well within the thresholds 
established by the City of Los Banos to determine adequate traffic flow on collector streets. The 
daily volume on Willmott Avenue east of North Street is forecast to approach 3,500 vehicles per 
day. In comparison, the City typically desigos minor collector street to carry 4,000 vehicles per 
day, and the General Plan notes that such streets could carry 9,500 vehicles per day at the limit of 
LOS D. Thus the additional traffic accompanying the prosed project does not create a significant 
impact based on roadway capacity. 

The project may add a small amount of traffic to the local neighborhood streets adjoining the 
project. The highest increases would be on those streets that provide access to the interior of the 
project, such as Mandarin Avenue and Friggs Avenue. The volumes on these short segments 
could increase by 110 to 170 vehicles per day. Less amounts of traffic might be added to streets 
such as Friguglietti Avenue and Tusky A venue, as project residents travel to other northern Los 
Banos destinations. However, the relative traffic increases (i.e., 10 to 20 vehicles per day) on 
these streets would not result in conditions that would typically be judged to be unacceptable on 
local streets. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 19 



1 
~ 9R1 -1 _0_ 

-o~ -- ... 
-~- 1+ 15 (16) ~w~ 

w 0", 104 (75) 

~+ 64 (43) 

(14) 8 t -+ ...c... 
R1·1 1107) 57 

'" DO w 
(13) 25 _o0 

-'~- ....-

R1-1p 
J>~UO 

--- VI 0-
~-

2"' Slteell Willmoll Avenue 

'l(SD )ltukt:rO" & )lssociate~ 111c. 
Transporta,tion Engineers 
04-75·05lT. ... Y.I 12/17/.<:013 

wi 

~ 
.g 
0>' 

~ V,i, Ma'l'1dal'it"l Ave 

)l 
z 

~ Avo 

1527 

1 

2 
~NN 
.!:;;~£ 

!t~~ 
R1-1 ~ ..",.. 

Lim<> I Avo 

~",., 
22 (28) t 154 (103) 
10 (6) 

ii5 
"" " 'i. 

(22)9 t + ...c... 
RM 

(158) 102 
~ ~ "" 

(19) 17 """'---~ .,.,F> ..... IV J> 
"'<>----

Norff1 Street !W~lmott Avenue 

Overland Ave 

51 !I r 

S 

Tu~Ave 

"""H ~, 
QJi ... ~ z: 

~:::'" j' ": -~ V 
year:" -

;!~~~,:ii ~ ~_ ; 
WillmoltAve 

'" z 

2 ~I 
3: 

013 
1; 

4 

~ 
.g 
u. 

3492 

3 

- -""_0 -0-
+7(19) ~-~ 

000- 113 (122) 

~+ 2 (6] 

(13)4 t + ...c... 
IU·, 

(167) 136 
NO~ 

13) 1 ---!:!8~ 

Frlggs Court! Willmott Avenu. 

eo/ 
t') 

4 

"'-.-.0-",,", 
00- ... -'....,-
~ ""o.' ,.,," ~ 

R1-t 
..",.. + 

(26) 12 t 
(106) 92 

(37) 59 

., . .p 

~ ... , 
33 (27) J.- 132 (89) 

.. 115 (38) 

~". ...c... 
RM 

'w-"'.,b.. 

.!:::1':: 
w_. U1 

'" N <>-
-~-

7'" Street! Willmott Aveoue 

EXISTING PLUS PROJECT 
TRAFFIC VOLUMES AND LANE CONFIGURATIONS 

• NOIllI lit -N.T.S. 

~ 

.-XX AM f'E:!ak Hour Vo"Jme 

.,XX) PM P~ak. Hou~ Volul1"l(> 

9RH Stop Si5;.tn 

.. XX hverngc Dally Tr2Jffk 

figure 5 



TABLE 7 
EXISTING PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 
Existing Existing Plus Project Existing Existiug Plus Project 

Average Average Average Average 
Delay Delay Delay Delay 

Location Control (sec 1 veh) LOS (sec 1 veh) LOS (sec 1 veh) LOS (sec 1 veh) LOS 

Willmott Ave 1 2nd Street All-Way Stop 10.2 B 10.4 B 9.3 A 9.5 A 

Willmott Ave I North Street All-Way Stop 9.1 A 9.3 B 8.4 A 8.5 A 

Willmott Ave I Friggs Ave NB/SB Stop 10.5 B 10.9 B 9.7 A 10.2 B 

Willmott Ave I 7th Street All-Way Stop 24.2 C 26.1 D 11.7 B 12.1 B 

Level of Service at unsignalized intersections controlled by side street stop signs is indicative of "worst case" conditions on side street approach 

Bold values indicate conditions in excess of the City's LOS D minimum. 
---- - ---- - --------------------

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Traffic Signal 
Warrants Met? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Page 21 

1:))4 



Impacts to Alternative Transportation Modes 

Development of the proposed project may result in increased demands for facilities serving 
alternative transportation modes, as noted in the text which follows. 

Pedestrian Facilities. Development of the project will result in pedestrian traffic between the 
site and other locations in Los Banos. It is likely that some school aged pedestrians will travel 
between the site and the existing schools on Overland Avenue or 7th Street. However, sidewalks 
already exist on the routes that would likely be used by pedestrians. With the installation of 
standard frontage improvements by project proponents the local sidewalk system would be 
complete and pedestrian impact would not be significant. 

The City of Los Banos regularly monitors the flow of traffic on collector streets and takes steps 
to control the speed of through traffic. In this case, City staff have suggested than an all-way 
stop may be installed at the intersection of North Street and Mandarin Avenue when the 
proposed project is developed. 

Bicycle Facilities. As noted in the setting, bicycle facilities already exist on Willmott Avenue 
and North Street in the area of the project. Thus, while the project may generate additional 
cyclists, its impact to this transportation mode is not significant. 

Transit Service. Development of the proposed project may result in an incremental increase in 
the demand for transit services offered by Merced County Transit (MCT) throughout all of 
Merced County. However, because transit service already exists and bus stops are available near 
the project, the impact is less than significant. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page 22 



EXISTING PLUS APPROVED PROJECTS (EPAP) CONDITIONS 

Background Characteristics 

For the purpose of this study, other projects already approved in Los Banos are assumed to have 
been occupied under an "Existing Plus Approved Projects" or EP AP background condition. 

The City of Los Banos developed a list of "approved but not constructed" development proposals 
for use in this analysis. This list is Table 8. As shown, all approved / pending projects could 
together generate about 6,742 new daily automobile trips, with 369 generated in the a.m. peak hour 
and 482 trips occurring in the p.m. peak hour. 

TABLES 
TRIP GENERATION ASSOCIATED WITH APPROVED PROJECTS 

NetNewTri • 

Daily AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Project Project Type Volume. In Out Total In Out Total 
Walmart 139,195 sf shopping center expansion on 4,131 115 103 218 116 121 237 
Expansion SW corner of Pacheco / Badger Flat 
Dollar General 21,000 sf retail store at SR 165 / 887 24 16 40 47 47 94 
Store Santa Barbara Street 
Family Dollar 9,000 sfretail store located at 380 10 7 17 20 20 40 
Store 2120 E. Pacheco Blvd. 
Circle K Convenience Store w Gasoline Sales at 1,344 48 46 94 56 55 III 

SR 165 / Overland Ave 

Total All Approved / Pending Projects 6,742 197 172 369 239 243 482 

Background Circulation System Improvements 

Based on review of available documents the local circulation system is not expected to be improved 
by approved projects. All are located along major travel routes and while improvements to 
locations on SR 152 are planned, these projects are not required to make improvements to Willmott 
Avenue. 

"Existing Plus Approved Projects - No Project" Traffic Conditions 

The trips associated with approved projects were assigned to the study area street system based on 
information from their respective traffic studies. Because the projects are relatively distant, little 
change in the volume of traffic at locations on Willmott A venue is anticipated. Figure 6 presents 
the peak hour traffic volumes that result from full development of all approved projects (i.e., 
"Existing Plus Approved Projects") without the AMG subdivision. 

Intersection Levels of Service. Levels of Service occurring under the baseline "Existing Plus 
Approved Projects" condition have been calculated and are shown in Table 9. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page 23 



1 
_0_ QRl o1 
- ON "'- '" --- It- 15 (20) -w .... 
"'00 105 (75) 

~+ 60 (40) 

(15) 10 .t. + -"-
R1·1 

(105) 60 ,. - co w 
(15) 25 000 ---

Rl<1p 
- - on ",,",,, 
-9"-

2'" Slteeli Wilim011 Avenue 

7(5D )tmk"",. & )lssociat.~ ltu. 
Transportatwn Enoineers 
047S·0SLT.Yso:l 12/11/201.3' 

wi 

~-

1 

2 

Ove~land Ave 

~ 
> -< 
~ 
c 
.~ 

• '" ~I enl Mandarin Aws 

~I 
z 

~ 0' I 1425 
LIme- Ave 

;;, ~ 
01 r ~I 

. '-~.y i ((.I: 
z 

Tu""" Ave 

~I "v. 
~ 4 .. ~ 

!:':-i::, j Rhoda Ave 10 / 

Project ~ . m 
SHe 0 

:~(!(~ , ~ 
""", Fro ",I 
::::::: WI, z 

.~:)) 
WIl~oUAve 

~12 J f f3 r:;./ 
L 

4 

0 z 

3400 

1 

3 4 
___ ~t.1 
-NN - ~- ct~~·1 

- OW 
o uo '" ?§Et 

0-0 
;::; -;: -;;; 20 (25) -...,- 35 (30) -.oN 

'" """ '" '" '" <> uo (> t 150 (100) 
~ + 10(5) ~+ 

+5(5) 
125 (120) 
2 (6) ~+ 

+ 130!80) 
!15 (40) 

(15) 10 t + -"-
(5)5 t + -"- (25) 10 t + -"-

Rl·t lilt·, 1lI~·1 
(155) 100 -N", (165) 135 (105) 90 

w - '" .... 0 V> 
(20) 20 "'0_ (5) , (l5)55 "'000 -- - toc'W _0_ 

.,.1p ~t;,~ --- ~qp 
w _ '" 
'" N 0 -- -w-
~ 

No~h Street I WDimott Avenue F'lggs COurt I WHlmott Avenue 7'" Street I Willmotl Avenue 

EXISTING PLUS APPROVED PROJECTS 
TRAFFIC VOLUMES AND LANE CONFIGURATIONS 

• WOJtI~ -NTS_ 

Legend 

.XX AM Peak HOtJt VohJme 

.(1XXI PM Pl'mJ< Hour vo(u~ 

9R1 -1 Stop Sl~r. 

I. AX Average Daily Trarne 

figure 6 



TABLE 9 
EXISTING PLUS APPROVED PROJECTS PLUS AMG SUBDIVISION 

PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 
Existing Plus Existing Plus 

Approved Projects EP AP Plus Project Approved Pro.iects EP AP Plus Project 

Average Average Average Average 
Delay Delay Delay Delay 

Location Control (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS 

Wilhnott Ave I 2nd Street All-Way Stop 10.5 B 10.6 B 9.5 A 9.7 A 

Wilhnott Ave I North Street All-Way Stop 9.2 A 9,4 B 8,4 A 8.6 A 

Wilhnott Ave I Friggs Ave NB/SB Stop 10.5 B 11.0 B 9.9 A 10,4 B 

Wilhnott Ave I 7"' Street All-Way Stop 26.7 D 29.2 D 12.2 B 12.61 B 

Level of Service at unsignalized intersections controlled by side street stop signs is indicative of "worst case" conditions on side street approach 

Bold values indicate conditions in excess of the City's LOS D minimum. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision. Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Traffic Signal 
Warrants 

Met? 

No 

No 

No , 

No 
• 

, 
, 
, 

I 
I 

Page 25 

/(:hf1 



EPAP PLUS PROJECT 

Traffic Volume Forecasts and Levels of Service 

The impacts of developing the AMG Subdivision project have been quantified by superimposing 
project traffic onto the EP AP background condition. Figure 7 presents resulting weekday peak 
hour traffic volumes for this scenario. 

Intersection Levels of Service. Table 9, shown previously, compares projected Levels of 
Service with development of all approved projects and with the addition of AMG Subdivision 
trips. As shown, the addition of traffic generated by the project will not result in conditions in 
excess of adopted minimum standards. Thus, the project's traffic impacts under this scenario are 
not significant, and no mitigation is required. 

Traffic Impact AnalysiS for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 



1 
9R101 _0_ 

-ON 
~-o --- + 15120) 
_ w.., 
",o0 tOO (78) 

RI4 + 66145) 
"'tr 

(15) 10 t -+ -"-
Rt·1 

1110) 61 _ '" w 
(15)25 OON 

Rf.1p 
__ vo 

,,,"',," -,9'-

2'" Stree' I Willmott Avenue 

'1(fD )!...ur.on & JL""d4U; In<. 
Transportation Entllneers 
047S·0StT .... ld 12/11/2013 

Overland Ave 

~ 
"" " " '" 

TusJwAve 
-, <Il, 

ill ~: 
C! 

<Cj 
m! 

" '" " 1"1 &51 Mandarin A.ve 

'B 
"'! 

~I zl 

~ Ave 

LIme lAve 
../ 

~I 'u, 
0( 4 .. , 

,~ 
. . . 5 RhodaAvp. 

:P{)u -I C¢ 

Project, ~ 
Site () 

:)\n !' 
z 

'.JY 
ci 
~! 

~I 

WIllmo!!A"", 

1 2 01 <:;13 4 

ill I ~, € n. 
~ l-I 

.. 
" .g ... 

2 3 4 
9.'" ;::; 1R1-t .. --- _0_ 

- '" N - - -ow 
~~.!::' "'_ 0 ..,- ° ,,",011111" 

22 (30) -0- +9 (19) 
- ..,- 35 (30) -~~~ NO~ -"'''' + 155 (104) 126 (125) <1'0'" + 132(89) N.T.S. 

Rl·1 + 12 (6) ~+ 2 (6) 
RM + 115(40) 

..."... -,,-

(22) 12 .. -+ ...0.. 
114)7 t 4-' -"- (26) 12 t + ...0.. Legend 

R1'-I Rf·1 "",.1 
1162) 10~t (110) 96 ,.XX AM r>e<'lk Hour \lohJt'!'1E'1 -",0- (168) 139 NO", .... - '" (20) 20 '" -- (5) 1 --- (39) 63 """'0 -flXXI PM Peak Hour Volu~ --- _0_ 

.",p ~~~ t:!S~ 

···'P "'-'" "''''0 ~R1-1 Stop Sis:tn -w-
):!! 

/S~ Average Dally Tn~ffk 

No~h Street I Wilmott Avenue Frlgg$ Court I Wflimott AYe1Iu. J" Street I WIllmott Avenue 

EPAP PLUS PROJECT 
TRAFFIC VOLUMES AND LANE CONFIGURATIONS 

figure 7 



CUMULATIVE TRAFFIC IMPACTS 

The relative impacts of the AMG Subdivision have also been assessed within the context of 
future traffic conditions that account for long term development in Los Banos. This analysis 
assumes Year 2030 conditions forecast based on development of Los Banos under the current 
General Plan. 

Methodology / Assumptions 

Traffic Volume Forecasts. The City of Los Banos has commissioned preparation of local travel 
demand forecasting models for the 2009 GPU and subsequently for the City'S Transportation 
Management Plan (TMP). These models reflect development throughout the community; 
however, the model's 2030 land use set does not assume full build out of all of the land uses 
identified in the General Plan. 

The approach taken to identify year 2030 traffic conditions for this analysis combines local 
projections for project site traffic with intersection turning movement forecasts developed for the 
TMP. Forecasts were available for cumulative p.m. peak hour conditions at the Willmott 
Avenue / 2nd Street and Willmott Avenue / 7th Street intersections. These forecasts were 
compared to current volumes, and resulting approach growth rates were calculated. These rates 
were then used to create a.m. peak hour forecasts and to interpolate growth for the other study 
intersections. Because development of the project site has been assumed in the TMP, "No 
Project" conditions were created by subtracting project trips from the cumulative forecasts. 

Figure 8 presents weekday a.m. and p.m. peak hour site traffic under year 2030 conditions with 
the AMG Subdivision project. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9, 2014) 

Page 28 



1 
b: <jRM .... 

_0_ 

'" - '" - ",- 15 (10) 
~~g; 100 (105) 

~+ 185 (95) 

(5}5 t + .A. 
R1·1 (215) 105 ..... _N 

(5) 60 """'0 -"'''' F> "'--Rf-1 _. ~ ~ 

.:!!~ 

2'" Slreet I Willmott Avenue 

1(f1J Jlm(.,,,,,, & )lssociate~ Inc. 
Transportation Engineers 
0475-05 LT.vsd 12/17/1:013 

~ « 
~ 
~ 
'C 

1l\1 {'! j Mands'in A"" 

M 

00' 
%: 

q ;; Avo 

Lit'l'l'e I Aile 

Ove<land Ave 

Tusky Aw 

:: 

~~t~~iiil 
. . . . . . . . 
1::::::1 ': Frl 

01 

~I lui<!i 
~~ 

"~ 
.3 

Wrllmot! Ave 

<il 
~ 

11 
:z 

V 

1 2 1)1 
iii I ~ 

ul3 
tl 

4 

€ 0.' 

~ 

.j! ... 
I 

",/ 
L 

I 

2 3 4 

§l Iil Iil <j"'" __ ..b..... 9~t.t 
~ '" '" 0_0 Q- U. 

65160) -0-
t10 (20) 

-N- t 210 (l80) ~ ... ~ -- .... -- .... ",0 t 245 (165) ,,"00 300(215) <,,," "" 325 (2201 
RM + 10 (5) RH 5 (S) ~+ 250 (40) ...,,- -V-

(125) 65 + ..a.. 
(15) 10 t + ...ll... (55) 20 + ..a.. 

Itf~1 ~1·1 it'l·t 
(495) 335 

- w '" (510) 355 (305) 275 --a-"'0"", (40) ~O 0"'_ (5) 5 (5) 35 o '" '" --- ~§§ 
_o_ 

""F> 
w .... o 

""F> 
Ln_. p"J 

.£.E!- - N '" en -
8: 

Nort~ Street I Wfflmott Ayenue Ftlggs Court I WHlmott Avenu. 7'" Stre.t I WiHmotl Avenue 

CUMULATIVE PLUS PROJECT 
TRAFFIC VOLUMES AND LANE CONFIGURATIONS 

• "O~I" -N.T.S. 

Legend 

.,,-XX AM Pf!Mc Hour VobJrtle 

.. XX) PM Peak Hour Volu~ 

9Rl •, Stop S,o;:tt'l 

,_X~ A\If':1'age Dally Traffic 

figure 8 



Circulation System Improvements. The analysis of year 2030 conditions assumes completion 
of regional circulation system improvements identified in the Los Banos General Plan and 
incorporated in the city-wide traffic model. 

The City's Transportation Master Plan (TMP) identifies recommended long tenn improvements 
to more than 50 intersections in the city. The extent of identified improvements is noted in Table 
10. The City anticipates eventually modifying its Traffic Impact Fee (TIF) to include these 
improvements projects. For the purpose of this analysis, no improvements to study intersections 
have been assumed. 

TABLE 10 
LOS BANOS TMP IMPROVEMENTS 

Intersection Improvements 

Wilhnott Avenue / 2"" Stteet Traffic Signal 

Willmott Avenue / 7th Street / Stonewood Drive Traffic Signal and left turn lanes on each approach 

Peak Hour Intersection Levels of Service. Table 11 identifies peak hour Levels of Service at 
study locations with and without the proposed project. As shown, two locations will operate 
with Levels of Service that exceed the City of Los Banos' minimum LOS D standard with and 
without the AMG subdivision. These are: 

Willmott Avenue / 2nd Street 
Willmott Avenue / 7th Street / Stonewood Drive 

The project's cumulative impact to each location is significant. In each case, the improvements 
contemplated in the City's TMP will be needed to improve long tenn traffic conditions. As 
indicated with planned improvements each intersection would operate at LOS D or better. The 
residences in the AMG project would contribute their fair share to the cost of these 
improvements by paying adopted City of Los Banos traffic impact mitigation fees. Because 
LOS D satisfies the City'S minimum standard, with this mitigation the project's cumulative 
impact is less than significant. 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos, CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Page 30 



TABLE 11 
YEAR 2030 PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 
WithAMG WithAMG 

No Pro eet Subdivision No ProJect Subdivision 
Average Average Average Average 

Delay Delay Delay Delay 
Location Control (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS (sec I veh) LOS 

Willmott Ave I 2nd Street All-Way Stop 223.4 F 228JJ F 131.1 F 139.0 F 

Signal 39.6 D 41.9 D 16.7 B 17.4 B 

Willmott Ave I North Street All-Way Stop 20.6 C 22.2 C 27.0 D 30.6 D 

Willmott Ave I Friggs Ave NE/SB Stop IS.7 C 17.6 C 14.8 B IS.3 C 

Willmott Ave I 7th Street All-Way Stop 268.4 F 279.8 F 27.7 D 31.1 D 

Signal 2S.3 C 2S.8 C 22.2 C 22.4 C 

Level of Service at unsignalized intersections controlled by side street stop signs is indicative of "worst case" conditions on side street approach 

Bold values indicate conditions in excess of the City's LOS D minimum. Highlighted values are significant impacts 

Traffic Impact Analysis for AMG Subdivision, Los Banos. CA 
(April 9. 2014) 

Traffic Signal 
Warrants Met? 

Yes 

- , 
, 

No 
i 

No 

Yes ! 

-

Page 3/ 

;:: :JJ:Il 



Appendix D 

Comment Letter, February 24, 2014, submitted to the City during the initial 30-

day public review period of January 24, 2014 to February 24, 2014 

Submitted by: Lozano Smith, Attorneys at Law, on behalf of the Los Banos 

Unified School District 

City of los Banos 
AMG and Associates Tentative Tract Map 

April 2014 

61 

- -I 1\" 0 , '> I P ( '\ '1.\ I \ (, 
, . " .- ,,-



Lozano Smith 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Megan E. Macy 
AUorney at Law 

February 24, 2014 

By U.S. Mail & E-Mail: stacy.souza@losbanos.org 

Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner 
Department of Community Development 
City of Los Banos 
520 J Street 
Los Banos, CA 93635 

E~mail: mmacy@lozanosmith.com 

Re: Tentative Tract Map Application No. 2013-01 - AMG and Associates Tentative Tract 
Map 

Dear Ms. Elms: 

This office represents Los Banos Unified School District ("District") in relation to the AMG & 
Associates Tentative Tract Map Application Number 2013-01 ("Project"). This letter comments 
on the Draft Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project dated January 2014 
("MND"). Fundamentally, the MND fails to identifY potential environmental impacts on the 
District as required by the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"). As a result, the 
conclusions and proposed mitigation of the potential environmental impacts on schools are not 
accurate or sufficient. 

The Project 

The proposed Project consists of 57 residential units on roughly 11 acres within the City of Los 
Banos. While the MND acknowledges the Project will impact public services, it states that any 
impact on schools will be less than significant based on extremely limited analysis. The only 
discussion related to schools in the MND is as follows: 

"The proposed project is located within the Los Banos Unified School District. 
According to the City's 2030 General Plan EIR, student generation factors for 
single-family residential units is .738 per household. Therefore, the proposed 
project is anticipated to generate approximately forty-two (42) students within the 
Los Banos Unified School District. In accordance with 2030 General Plan Policy 
LU-I-8 and Senate Bill (SB) 50, the proposed project will be required to pay the 
appropriate School Impact Fee. Therefore, the proposed project will have a less 
than significant impact." 

Umited Liability Partnership 

One Capitol Mall, Suite 640 Sacramento, California 95814 Tei916·329·7433 Fax 916·329-9050 



Stacy Souza Elms 
February 24, 2014 
Page 2 

Consultation with the District 

As a preliminary matter, neither the City nor the Project Applicant consulted with the District in 
preparation of the MND. CEQA requires consultation with other public agencies, including 
school districts. (See, e.g. Pub. Res. Code, § 21080.3.) The information upon which the MND is 
based was gathered from the City's 2030 General Plan ErR prepared nearly a decade ago. The 
data upon which the MND conclusions related to schools are reached is egregiously outdated, 
including the reliance on student generation rates published in 2005, which identifies an average 
student generation rate of .738 students per household. In contrast, the most current student 
generation data confums a generation rate of 1.272. (District's School Facilities Needs Analysis 
dated March 2013, enclosed.) Based on this information, the District anticipates the Project will 
generate roughly 73 students. The District currently has no available capacity at its elementary 
schools or middle schools to house these students. (Id.) 

Analysis of Environmental Impacts and Relationship to SB 50 

The MND also concludes that because the Project will be required to pay the appropriate School 
Impact Fee, no further analysis under CEQA is required. This is not accurate. In general, SB 50 
provides, among other things, that payment offees, charges, dedications or other requirements 
which can be levied against new construction to fund construction or reconstruction of school 
facilities is deemed to provide full and complete mitigation of impacts of development on school 
facilities. (See, Chawanakee Unified School District v. County of Madera (20 II) 196 
Cal.AppAth 1016.) However, the Chawanakee court expressly found that the phrase "impacts 
on school facilities" does not cover all possible environmental impacts that have any type of 
connection or relationship to schools. (ld. at 1028.) Therefore, impacts relating to schools that 
are not per se "impacts on school facilities" must be identified and analyzed. If those impacts are 
significant, they must be mitigated. Also, a project's indirect impacts on parts of the physical 
environment that are not school facilities are not excused from being considered and mitigated. 
(Id.) For example, an impact on traffic is not excused under SB 50, nor are impacts of 
construction on the nonschool physical environment. These and other impacts must be 
considered and mitigated as part of the CEQA process. 

As a result of the Chawanakee case, the City is required to consider, address, and mitigate any 
significant impacts which its development is likely to have on schools. Since the City has not 
done so, the MND is deficient because it did not include a discussion of the significant impacts 
on schools, including a determination of how the Project will mitigate these impacts. 

Similarly, the initial study should have identified the issue of interim housing for students which 
will be generated as a result of the Project. Since the District's schools are already at capacity, 
the District will have to add temporary buildings to house the 73 students. The addition of 
temporary buildings or classrooms at existing schools may result in multiple significant impacts 
which have not been considered in the initial study or addressed in the MND. For example, the 
addition of classrooms would certainly result in impacts from construction relating to noise and 
air quality. Further, the addition of temporary buildings could lead to aesthetic issues including 
view impainnent or degradation of the visual quality of the site and surroundings, including at 
the schools themselves. The MND completely fails to consider the multitude of possible impacts 
which could result from the addition of temporary structures or permanent additions. There 



Stacy Souza Elms 
February 24, 2014 
Page 3 

could be sensitive trees or other plants needing to be removed to accommodate the new facilities, 
and, importantly, these changes could lead to further aesthetic impacts. These potential impacts 
are not considered properly within the CEQA process. To the extent that identification of these 
issues should have either triggered mitigation measures identified in the MND, or a more 
expansive analysis, they nonetheless should have been identified and considered by the Project 
Applicant. 

As far as increased class size, the MND fails to acknowledge, consider, and address the likely 
impact on public services as increasing classes will handicap the District in its ability to provide 
a quality education to its students. Overcrowding is a very real problem faced by school 
districts. According to the United States Department of Education, a growing body of research 
has linked student achievement and behavior to the physical building conditions and 
overcrowding. (U.S. Dept. of Education, Impact of Inadequate School Facilities on Student 
Learning (April 3, 2000) 
<http://www2.ed.gov/offices/OESE/archives/inits/construction/impact2.html> [as of February 
24,2014).) Also, the MND fails to address any impacts on student and faculty safety that may 
occur from overloading students into schools which are already at or over maximum capacity. 

Cumulative Impacts 

CEQA also requires the City to consider any cumulative impacts related to schools resulting 
from additional development already approved or pending within the District. (Pub. Res. Code, 
§ 21083.) Cumulative impacts refer to two or more individual effects which, when considered 
together, are considerable or which compound or increase other environmental impacts. (CEQA 
Guidelines, § 15355.) The individual effects may be changes resulting from a single project or a 
number of separate projects. @. at 15355(a).) The cumulative impact from several projects is 
the change in the environment which results from the incremental impact of the project when 
added to other closely related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable probable future projects. 
(ld. at l5355(b).) In this case, the MND fails to acknowledge/mitigate any of the potential 
cumulative environmental impacts of the Project when combined with other proposed 
developments within the District (including but not limited to traffic, noise, public services and 
interim facilities impacts). 

Options 

A host of mitigation options in addition to School Impact Fees under SB 50 may help ensure 
sufficient school facilities and lessen the impacts of development. Examples include: 

• Participation in a Mello-Roos Community Facilities District. As expressed in 
Government Code section 65995, subdivision (g)(2), a developer may "voluntarily elect[] 
to establish, or annex into, a community facilities district .... " 

• Revision of the City's mitigation program, whether through revisions to its General Plan 
or through changes to the school district's procedures under that plan. For example, the 
City could implement a system where it will only approve a certain amount of 
development within a specified time frame in order to avoid uncontrolled growth. For 
example, the City may consider a program in which development applications are 



Stacy Souza Elms 
February 24, 2014 
Page 4 

approved based on a point system. For each commitment that the developer makes to the 
community - such as funding schools - the developer's point total is increased. 

• The City can impose conditions on development related to issues other than school 
overcrowding, such as the need to widen roads or put in other traffic controls to 
accommodate increased traffic (both from students and generally), safety measures to 
address pedestrian travel to school, and the need to add sound-proofing to offset noise 
increases from nearby development and resulting traffic. 

• The Subdivision Map Act states that "a city or county may adopt an ordinance requiring 
any [developer who develops in a school district] to dedicate to the school district ... 
such land as the local legislative body shall deem to be necessary for the purpose of 
constructing thereon such elementary schools as are necessary to assure the residents of 
the subdivision adequate public school service." (Gov. Code §66478.) Thus, the 
Subdivision Map Act allows a city or county to require land dedication for an elementary 
school in order to help a school district address the educational needs of the children from 
a new development. Nothing in SB 50 expressly prohibits reliance on the Subdivision 
Map Act. 

In sum, based on the considerations identified above, the District requests that the CEQA process 
be completed in a manner that will address all of the potential impacts of the Project on schools 
and school facilities, and to properly mitigate those impacts that are significant. The District also 
urges the City to consider all avenues available to it for mitigation of the potentially devastating 
impacts of its Project on schools, rather than considering itself unnecessarily limited by SB 50. 

Sincerely, 

LOZANO SMITH 

7--,/ MeCi'. Mllcy" 
MEMlkp 

Enclosure 
cc: Dr. Steve Tietjen, Superintendent, Los Banos Unified School District 



SCHOOL FACILITY NEEDS ANALYSIS AND 
JUSTIFICATION STUDY 

for the 

LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

March 2013 

Prepared for 
Los Banos Unified School District 

1717 S. 1l1h Street 
Los Banos, CA 93635 

(209) 826-3801 

Prepared by 
School Facility Consultants 

1303 J Street, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

(916) 441-5063 



Table of Contents 

Executive Summary .............................................................................................. 1 
Introduction ...................................................................................................... 2 

I. Authority to Collect Level II and Level III Fees ......................................................... 3 
A. Eligibility for State Funding for New Construction ................................................ 3 
B. Adoption of School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study ........................... 3 
C. Criteria in Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(A·D) ....................................... 3 

II. Amount of Level II and Levellll Fees .................................................................... 4 
A. Allowable Cost for New School Facilities .......................................................... .4 

I) Number of Unhoused Students ................................................................... 4 
2) Allowable Grant Costs .............................................................................. 7 
3) Allowable Site Acquisition and Development Costs .......................................... 7 
4) Local Funds Dedicated to School Facilities Necessitated by Future Development. ....... 8 
5) Total Allowable School Facility Cost for Level II Fees ....................................... 9 

B. Amount ofLeveJ.IIFee ....................................................................................... 10 
C. Amount of Level III Fee ...................................................................................... 10 

III. Findings and Recommendations .......................................................................... 11 
A. Findings ................................................................................................... 11 

I) Government Code Section 66001(a)(I) - Purpose of the Fee ................................... 11 
2) Government Code Section 66001 (a)(2) - Use of the Fee ..................................... 11 
3) Government Code Section 66001(a)(3) - Relationship Between the Fee's Use and 

the Type of Project Upon Which the Fee is Imposed .......................................... 11 
4) Government Code Section 66001 (a)(4) - Relationship Between the Need for the 

Public Facility and the Type of Project Upon Which the Fee is Imposed .................. 12 
5) Government Code Section 66001 (b) - Relationship Between the Fee and the Cost 

of the Public Facility Attributable to the Development aD Which the Fee is 
Imposed .............................................................................................. 12 

6) Other Funding Sources ........................................................... ; ................. 12 
a) General Fund .................................................................................... 12 
b) State Programs .................................................................................. 12 
c) General Obligation Bonds ..................................................................... 12 
d) Parcel Taxes .................................................................................... .13 
e) Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts ................................................. 13 
f) Surplus Property ................... ; ............................................................. 13 
g) Alternatives for Reducing Facility Costs ................................................... 13 

B. Recommendations ....................................................................................... 13 

Appendix A. Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Grant Costs 
Appendix B. Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Acquisition and Site Development Costs 



Los Banos Unified School District: 2013 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justffication Study 

Executive Summary 
The Los Banos Unified School District is authorized to collect $7.3S per square foot of 
residential development pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.5 and $14.70 per square 
foot pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.7 (also known as Level II and nr fees, 
respectively). 

The District meets the eJigibilityrequirements in Government Code Section 65995.5(b) regarding 
the collection ofLeve! II and ill fees. The dollar amounts of the fees are based on the fonowing 
facts and projections: 

I. The student generation rate of residential housing units projected to be built in the District, 
calculated in accordance with Government Code Section 65995.6(a), is 1.272 for single
family units and 1.005 for multi-family units. 

2. The number of new residential housing units subject to Level II and Level III fees projected 
to be built in the District over the nexi five years is 92 single;family and 80 multi-family 
units, based on information provided by the City of Los Banos and County of Merced 
planning departments. 

3. Multiplying the appropriate terms in (1) and (2) shows that future single- and multi-family 
residential development is projected to add 113 K-6 students, 347-8 students and 50 9-12 
students. 

4. The District has zero excess pupil capacity at the K-6 and 7-8 grade levels available for 
pupils generated by fu!l!re residential development and 321 seats of excess pupil capacity at 
the 9-12 grade level available for pupils generated by future residential development, based 
on its 2012113 enrollment, the District's capacity as calculated on its SAB 50-02, Existing 
School Building Capacity form, and pupil capacity added by the District's Lorena Palasco 
Elementary, Los Banos High School Addition and Pacheco High School projects. 

S. The total number of unhoused pupils generated by futore development equals 113 K·6 
stodents and 34 7-8 students from future single- and multi-mmily residential development. 

6. The per-pupil allowable costs for the Level II fee equation equal $13,266.00, $14,571.50 and 
$18,522.00 fur elementary, middle and high school students, respectively. These figures aTe 
equal to the per-pupil grant amounts in the State School Facility Program plus allowable per
pupil site develupment and site acquisition costs calculated pUTBuant to Government Code 
Section 65995.5(c) and 65995.5(h). 

7. Total allowable costs for the Level II fee equation equal $1,994,489 (K-6. 7-8 and 9-12 
unhoused students generated by future development times the appropriate allowable per-pupil 
cost). 

8. The total amount of residential square footage projected to be built in the District over the 
next five years is 271,272 square feet, based on an average square footage of 2,166 square 
feet for the 92 single-family units and 900 square feet for the 80 multi-family units projected 
to be built in the District and subject to Level II fees. 

9. The District has no local funds available to dedicate to school facilities necessitated by future 
residential development. 

As shown in the body of this Report, the District meets the requirements of Government Code 
Section 66001 regarding the coIlection of developer fees (the nexus reqUirements). 

End of Summary 



Los Banos Untjied School District: 2013 Sel,ool Facility Needs Analysis ami Jusltjicalion Study 

lnt.-odul'lillil 

The purpose of this Report is to calculate the fee amount that the Los Banos Unified School 
District (District) is authorized to collect on residential development projects pursuant to 
Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7. School Facility Consultants has been 
retained by the District to conduct the analysis and prepare this Report. 

State law gives school districts the authority to charge fees on new residential developments 
if those developments generate additional students and cause a need for additional school 
facilities. All districts with a demonstrated need may collect fees pursuant to Education 
Code Section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995 (referred to as Level I fees). 
Level I fees are currently capped at $3.20 per square foot of new residential development. 
Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7 authorize districts to collect fees (referred 
to as Level n and Level HI fees) in excess of Level I fees provided the districts meet certain 
conditions. Government Code Section 66001 requires that a reasonable relationship exist 
between the amount and use of developer fees and the developments on which they are to be 
charged. . 

This Report is divided into three sections. The first summarizes the specific requirements in 
State law regarding Level II and Level III fees and establishes the District's authority to 
collect them. The second calculates the dollar amounts of Level II and Level III fees that the 
District is authorized to collect. The third explains how the Distri0t satisfies the requirements 
of Government Code Section 66001 with respect to Level II and III fees, summarizes other 
potential funding sources for school facilities, and presents recommendations regarding the 
collection of developer fees. 

End of Section 

2 



Los Banos UnifUJd School District: 201 j School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study 

I. Authority to Collect Lc\'(~1 II lind Lew\ III Fccs 

State law establishes several requirements in order for school districts to collect Level II fees. 
Specifically, districts must: (1) apply to the State Allocation Board and be deemed eligible 
for State funding for new school construction, (2) adopt a school facility needs analysia and 
justification study, and (3) satisfy at least two of the four criteria set forth in Government 
Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(A.-P). 

The general conditions required for collecting Level m fees are the same as those for Level 
II fees. Before districts can collect Level m fees, however, the State Allocation Board must 
no longer be approving apportionments for new construction pursuant to Article 5 
(commencing with Section 17072.20) of Chapter 12.5 of Part 10 of the Education Code. 

The District satisfies the three conditions listed above in the following ways: 

A. Eligibility for State Fnnding for New Construction 

The District has been deemed eligible to receive State funding for construction of new 
school facilities as outlined in Govertunent Code Section 65995.5(b)(1). The District's 
most recent eligibility approval was at the August 27, 2008, meeting of the State 
Allocation Board. 

B. Adoption of School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study 

This Report meets the requirements of Government Code Section 65995.6 for a School 
Facility Needs AnalySis and Justification Study, that is, a study that shall "determine the 
need for new school facilities for unhoused pupils that are attributable to projected 
enrolhnent growth from the development of new residential units over the next five 
years." By adopting this study, the District will satisfy this requirement. 

C. Criteria in Government Code Section 6S995.5(b)(3)(A-D) 

The District meets the criterion outlined in 65995.5(b)(3)(C)(ii), that is, ithas issued debt 
andlor incurred obligations for capital outlay in excess of 30 percent of the District's 
bonding capacity. 

The District also meets the criterion outlined in 65995.5(b)(3)(D), that is, that at least 
twenty percent of a district's classrooms are relocatabJe. According to the District's 
current Office of Public School Construction Form SAB 50-02, 44.6 percent (115 out of 
258) of the total classrooms in the District are relocatable. The District has also added 
capacity through the construction of Lorena Falasco Elementary School (28 permanent 
teaching stations), an addition to Los Sanos High School (10 permanent teaching 
stations) and Pacheco High School (68 permailent tesching stations). Including these 
projects in the District's capacity indicates that 31.6 percent (115 out of364) of the total 
classrooms in the District are relocatable. 

End of Section 

3 



Los Banos Unified School District; 2013 School Facility Needs Analysis and Jusfification Study 

II. Amount of Levclll and Le\'cllIl Fees 

State law outlines the method by which Level IT fees are calculated. The intent of the law is 
that the Level II fee represents half the cost of providing new school facilities, as defined in 
the State School Facility Program. The methods defined in State law for calculating the 
Level II fee, however. underestimate the District's true cost of providing school facilities. 
Additional sources of funds are necessary to fully fund the facilities that are required as a 
result of new development and the generation of students from such development activity 
within the District. 

The Level II fee is calculated by (I) determining the allowable cost for new school facilities 
as outlined in the State School Facility Program, and (2) dividing that cost by the amount of 
new residential square footage projected to be built in the District over the next five years. 

A. Allowable Cost for New 8th.ao) Facilities 

State law prescribes the following process for calculating the allowable cost for new 
school facilities: 

(1) determiJ,le the number of unhoused students attributable to future residential 
development; 

(2) multiply the number of unhoused students by the per-pupil grant costs of new 
elementary, middle, or high schools as outlined in Education Code Section 
17072.10; 

(3) detennine the amount of site acquisition and development costs to be included 
as allowed by Government Code Section 65995.5(h); and 

(4) subtract the amount of local funds dedicated tQ school facilities necessitated 
by future residential development from the sum of(2) and (3). 

1) Number of Unhoused Students 

The number of unhoused students generated by future development equals the total 
number of students generated by future development minus the District's existing 
excess plipil capacity. 

As required by Government Code Section 65995.6(a), this Report estimates the 
number of students generated by new development based on the historical student 
generation rates of residential units constructed duri\lg the previous five years. 

This Report estimates the number of students that will be genenrted by new single
family and multi-family housing unit by (1) counting the uumber of students in the 
District who live in housing units that paid developer fees between January 2007 and 
December 20 1J, and (2) dividing that number by the total number of housing units 
that paid developer fees over the same time period. This Report uses historical 

4 



Los Banos Ullified School District: 20]3 School Facility Needs Analysis andJustijioation Study 

developer fee collection data from the Los Banos Unified School District to derive 
the hnusing counts and District-provided student lists to derive the student collUts. 

Addresses for units that paid developer fees from January 2012 to the present date are 
not used in the calculation because (1) student address files may not reflect residents' 
address changes for approximately one year, (2) students who have moved from a 
nearby district may continue to attend their previous school until the end of the school 
year and (3) units listed may not have been completed alid occupied by the time the 
student address list was compiled. 

It is noted that student generation rates are a calculation of students per residential 
unit at anyone moment in time. Therefore, student generation rates are constantly 
changing based on increases and decreases in enrolled students and the number of 
residential units within the District at the time of calculation. As such, the District 
should be cautious with regards to using student generation rates for long-term 
planning and development and should adjust such planning and development based 
on updated student generation rates that are more in line with the ourrent conditions at 
the time of evaluation. 

Table I-I summarizes the student generation rates for single-family and multi-family 
units. 

'GradeGroulI' 
K-6 
7-8 
9·12 

Total 

Table 1-1 
Student Generation Rates 

Siil!!le-Familv • :~; . 
0.641 
0.261 
0.370 

.' ,Multi~FlUD.ilv 
0.681 
0.124 
0.200 

1.272 " ~ .,": I,' 'l.OO5 

Information provided by the City of Los Banos and County of Merced planning 
depat1ments indicate that approximately 92 single-family and 80 multi-family units 
will be built in the District within the next five years that are not bound by alternate 
mitigation agreements and/or have not entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
with the District. Units that are bound by altemate mitigation agreements and/or have 
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the District are not expected to be 
charged Level II and Level II1 fees. . , 

Table 1-2 shows the total number of students projected to enter the District from new 
housing units subject to Level II and Level III fees built over the next five years. 

5 



Los Banos Unified School District; 2013 School Facility Needs Analy~is and Justification Study 

Table 1-2 
Students Generated by Future Development 

K-6 Students . 7-8 Students 9-12 Students 
Single-Family 0.641 x 92 = 59 0.261 x 92 - 24 0.370 x 92 = 34 
Multi-Family 0.681 x 80 = 54 0.124 x 80 -10 0.200 x 80 = 16 

Total 113 34 50 

In determining how many of the students in Table 1-2 are unhoused, the District must 
consider any existing excess capacity. State law requires districts 10 calculate their 
total pupil capacity according 10 the method described in Section 17071.10 of the 
Education Code. As stated on the District's current Office of Public School 
Construction Form SAB 50-02, the District's pupil capacity, as calculated pursuant 10 
Education Code Section 17071.10 is 2,500 in grades K-6, 918 in grades 7-8 and 1,089 
in grades 9-12. These capacities are inclusive of the Special Day Class capacity 
identified on the District's Office of Public School Construction Form SAB 50-02 
and reflect requirements for Year Round Education operational grants in accordance 
with Education Code Section 42268. In addition to the capacity reflected on the 
District's Form SAB 50-02, the District has added capacity through the State School 
Facility Program funding of Lorena Falasco Elementary School (700 K-6 seats), the 
Los Banos High School Addition project (270 seals) and Pacheco High School 
project (1,836 seats). 

The District's 2012113 enrollment is greater than the capacities listed above for the K-
6 and 7-8 grade groups: 5,421 students are enrolled in grades K-6 and 1,494 students 
arc enrolled in grades 7-8. Therefore, all K-6 and 7-8 grade pupils identified in Table 
1-2 are defined as unhoused. At the 9-12 grade grouping the District has 321 seats 
available for students from future residential development. 

Table 1-3 
Existing Capacity 

6 



Los Banos Unified School Distriel: 2013 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study 

2) Allowable Grant Costs 

Table 1-4 shows the total allowable grant costs for new facilities. The per-pupil grant 
cosfs are taken from Education Code Section J 7072.1 0 and include adjustments as 
required by Labor Code Section 1771.7(e) and Education Code Section 17074.56(a) 
(see Appendix A for details regarding grant cost funding). 

Grade 
Groun 

K-6 
6-8 

9-12 
Total. 

Table 1-4 
Allowable Grant Costs for Pupils Generat~ from 

Future Residential Development 

, Number-of····· '. ., 

Per-Pupil· '. U~Olised 
Grant Cost Students Total Grant Cost 
$10,096.50 113 $1,140,904.50 
$10,678.50 34 $363,069.00 
$13,444.50 0 $0.00 
'. N/A 147 '.' '.' . $1,503,973.50 

The per-pupil grant does not include all cost items that .the local community may 
deem important to meeting the quality of facilities in the District. Because the per
pupil grants do not address certain costs, the actual funding will likely not be 
adequate to fund school facilities to the quality and level required by the District. 
Therefore, the final calculation of Level II fees will likely understate the funding 
required by the District. 

3) Allowable Site Acquisition and Development Costs 

Table 1-5 shows the per-pupil site acquisition and development costs for elementary, 
middle and high school students. The site sizes for the District's elementary, middle 
and high school cost models are based on acreage amounts that are consistent with the 
guidelines in the "School Site Analysis and Development Handbook" published by 
the Califomia Department of Education (COE). 

Site acquisition cost for the District's planned elementary middle and high school 
projects equals $100,800 per acre based on (I) land prices of$97,000, consistent with 
future land acquisition costs that District administrators expect to pay for planned 
elementary school. middle and high school projects and (2) applicable. increases 
pursuant to Section 1859.74 of Title 2 of the Califoruia' Code of Regulations for 
appraisals, surveys, site testing, COE review/approval, preparation of the Phase One 
Environmental Site Assessment (POESA) and Preliminary Endangeonent 
Assessment (PEA) and Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) cost for 
review, approval and oversight of the POESA and the PEA. Site development costs 
for elementary. middle and high school projects are consistent with the guidelines in 
Government Code Section 65995.5(h). For more detail regarding site acquisition and 
site development cost estimates, see Appendix B. 

7 



Los Banos Unified School Dis/riel: 2013 SeluJol Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study 

Table 1-5 
Calculation of Per-Pupil Site Acquisition and Development Costs 

Per-Pupil Site Per-Pupil Site . Total Per-Pupil 
Grade Acquisition Development Acquisition and 
Groull Costs* Costs Development 
K-6 $1,824 $4,515 $6,339 
7-8 $2,243 $5,543 $7,786 

9-12 $3,341 $6,814 $10,155 
"'Based on 0. K-6 school capaclt)' bf813 •• 7...s 6dlool capaOlty of9tS and a 9--12acbooJcapaeityof 1,836. 

Pursuant to Government Code Sections 65995.5(c) and 65995.5(h), the allowable cost 
for site acquisition and development is oalculated by (1) multiplying the per-pupil 
cost by one-half and (2) multiplying that result by the number of unhoused 
elementary, middle and high school students. Table 1-6 shows the total allowable site 
acquisition and development costs. 

Table 1-6 
Allowable Site Acquisition and Developmeut Costs 

.' . of 
Grade 

4) ~unds Dedicated to School Facilities Necessitated by Future Development 

The District has no funds dedicated to school facilities necessitated by future 
development. All District funds available fur additional school facilities are rcquired 
to provide facilities for existing unhoused students. 

In addition, the District has no surplus property that could be used for a school site or 
that is available for sale to finance school facilities. 

According to District administrators, the District has approximately $15.1 million 
available for new construction. These amounts are comprised of current funds 
available in the District's Capital Facility Accounts and authorized but unissued 
Measure K bonds. 

As outlined in Table 1-7, the District currently has 2,221 1(-6,5761-8 and zero 9-12 
students that are unhoused. 

8 



Los Banos Unijled School DistriCt.' 2013 School Facility NeedsAnalySis andJURtijlcation Study 

Table 1.7 
Existing Unhoused PupJls 

Table 1-8 summarizes the cost of providing school facilities for these students. Table 
1-8 uses the per-pupil construction costs outlined in this report to calculate the cost of 
providing school facilities to currently unhoused students. AI; noted in other sections, 
the District's actual cost to house existing unhoused pupils is eXpected to be 
substantially higher than the State allowances outlined this report. 

Table 1-8 
Cost ofProviQ:ing School Facilities for Exiating Unhoused Students 

Comparing all of the District's funds ($15.1 million) to the cost of providing school 
facilities for existing unhoused students ($75,713,940) demonstrates that all District 
funds available for new construction are required to provide facilities for existing 
unhoused students. 

5) Total Allowable School Facility Cost for Level II Fees 

Table 1-9 shows the total allowable cost for Level II fees f{Jr K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 
students from future residential development. 

(Continued on the next page) 

9 



Los Banos UtUfied School District: 2013 School Facility Needs Ana{ysisand Justification Study 

Table 1-9 
Total Allowable Cost for Level II Fees 

Cattll(ory AlI10unt 
SFP Grant $1,503,973.50 

Site Aoquisition and 
Development $490,515.50 

Less Local Funds N/A 
Total $1,994,489.00 

B. Amount of Level II Fee 

The Level II fee is calculated by dividing the total allowable cost by the amount of new 
residential square footage projected to be built in the District over the next five years. 

As stated in Section II.A.i. above, over the next five years, 92 single. family and 80 
multi·family units that will be snbject to Level II and Level In fees are projected to be 
built in the District. Based on information provided by the City ofLes Banos and County 
of Merced planning departments, this report estimates that new housing units in the 
District will have an average square footage of 2,166 square feet and 900 square feet for 
single.family and multi-family units, respectively. Multiplying average square footage 
by number of units (2,166 square feet times 92 single-fanu1yunits, plus 900 square feet 
times 80 multi·family linits) produces a total of 271 ,272 square feet of new residential 
development projected to be built in the District over the next five years. Dividing this 
total square footage into total allowable cost results in a Level II fee of $7.35 per square 
foot of new residential development. 

The calculation of Level II fees, in accordance with the formulas provided in the statutes, 
will likeJy be understated when measured against the actual calculation of costs due to the 
limited inclusion of. cost categories to determine actual costs per student and the 
fluctuating student generation rates. The District needs to account fat these issues when 
conducting a revenue/cost analysis utilizing the calculated Level II fee. 

C. Amount of LevellIr Fee 

Under certain circumstances, State law allows school districts to charge a fee higher than 
a Level II fee if: (1) the district meets the requirements for Level II fees and (2) the State 
Allocation Board is no longer approving apportionments for new construction pursuant to 
Arti.cle 5 (commencing with Section 17072.20) of Chapter 12.5 of Part 10 of the 
Education Code. In the District's case, this higher fee, referred to as a Level III fee, can 
be no more than twice the Level II fee. The maximum Level III fee the District is 
authorized to charge, therefore, is $14.70 per square foot of new residential development 

End of Section 

10 



Los Banos Unified School Districl: 2013 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study 

III. Findings ami Recommendatiolls 

This Section (1) shows that the District meets the requirements of Government Code Section 
66001 regarding the collection of developer fees, (2) sunnnarizes other potential funding 
sources fOI the District's capital projects, and (3) presents recommendations regarding the 
collection of developer fees. 

A. Findings 

1) Government Code Section 6600HalC1t=Puroose ofthe Fee 

The purpose of collecting Level II and ill. fees on residential development is to 
acquire funds to construct or reconstruct school facilities for the students generated by 
future residential developments. 

2) Government Code Section 6600l(a){2b-Use of the Fee 
J, \, 

The District use;!if the fee will involve constructing !lndlor reconstructing new 
elementary, middle and high school campuses andlor additional permanent facilities 
on existirlg elementary and middlesch.ool campnses. In addition, the District may 
build other school related facilities or purchase or lease portsble classrooms to use for 
interim housing whilepemument facilities are being constrUcted. 

Revenue from Level II and III fees collected on residential development may be used 
to pay for all of the follow'.ng: 
(1) land (purchased or leased) for school facilities, 
(2) design of school facilities, 
(3) permit and plan checking fees, 
e 4) construction or reconstruction of school facilities. 
(5) testing and inspection of school sites and school buildings, 
(6) furniture for use in new school facilities, and 
(7) interim school facilities (purchased or leased) to house students generated by 

future development while permanllut facilities are being constructed. 

3) Government Code Section 6600Ha){3l-=:Relationship B.etween the Fee's Use and the 
Tvoe of Project Upon Which the Fee is Imposed 

All types of new residential development-including but not limited to single-family 
and multi-family units in new subdivisions and in "in-fill" lots, single-family and 
multi-family units:in redevelopment projects, single-farnlly and multi-family units 
that replace demolished units (to the extent that the new units are larger than the 
demolished units), additions of residential space to existing single-family and multi
family units, manufactured homes, mobile homes, and condominiums-are proj ecled 
to cause new fsmilies to move into the District and, consequently, generate additional 
students in the District. As shown earlier in this Report, sufficient school facilities do 

11 



Los Banos Unified School District: 2013 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study 

not exist for these students. All types of new residential development, therefore, 
create a need for additional school facilities. The fee's use (acquiring school 
facilities) is therefore reasonably related to the type of projects (new residential 
developments) upon which it is imposed. 

4) Government Code Section 6600lCa)(4)---Relationship Between the Need for the 
Public Facilitv and the Type of Project Upon Which the Fee is Imposed 

The District is currently operating over capacity, that is, the District has no available 
capacity to house additional students. Future residential development in the District 
will generate additional students and, consequently, a need for additional school 
facilities. A relationship exists, therefore, between the District's need to build 
additional school facilities and new residential development projects. 

5) Government Code Section 66001 Cb}--Relationship Between the Fee and the Cost of 
the Public Facility Attributable to the Development on Which the Fee is Imposed 

This Report concludes that the methods prescnbed by the State law for estimating 
school facility construction costs, and for calculating the Level II and Level III fees, 
supports the estsblishment of Level n and Level ill fees which, when collected, will 
contribute to the District's cost of constructing and reconstructing school facilities to 
house students generated by future residential construction. 

6) Other Funding Sources 

The following is a review of other potential funding sources for constructing school 
facilities: ' 

a) General Fund ' 
The District's General Fund budget is typically cominitted to instructional and 
day to day operating expenses and not used for capital outlay uses, as funds are 
needed solely to meet the District's non-facility needs. 

b) State Programs 
The District has applied for and received State funding for construction of new 
school facilities under the 1998 Leroy F. Greene School Facility Program. Even 
projects funded at 100 percent of the State allowance, however, often experience a 
shortfall between State funding and the District's actual facility needs. State 
funds for deferred maintenance may not be used to pay for new facilities. State 
law prohibits use of lottery funds for facilities. 

cJ General Obligation Bonds 
School districts can, with the approval of either two-thirds or 55 percent of its 
voters, issue general obligation bonds that are paid for out of property taxes. On 
February 5, 2008, voters approved the District's Measure K, which passed with 
65.3 percent of the votes cast. These funds are dedicated to building new school 
facilities and are included in the report. 

12 



Los Banos Unified School District: 2013 School Facility Needs Analysis ami Justification Study 

d) Parcel Taxes 
Approval by two-thirds of the voters is required to impose taxes that are not based 
on the assessed value of individual parcels. While these taxes have been 
occasionally used in school districts, the revenues are typically minor and are 
used to supplement operating budgets. 

ej Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts 
This altematiye uses a tax on property owners within a defined area to pay long
term bonds is~ued for specific public improvements. Mello-Roos taxes require 
approval from two-thirds of the voters (or land owners if fewer than 12) in an 
election. . 

f) SurolllS Property 
The District has no properties that could be sold to create a significant source of 
capital outlay funds. 

g) Alternatives for Reducing Facility Costs 
Alternatives to reducing facility costs, which have been used andlor explored by 
the District, include additional portable classrooms, joint-use of facilities, multi
track-year-round education, and other measures. These options remain available 
to the District in the future. 

B. Recommendations 

Based on the findings outlined above, it is recommended that the Board of Trustees, as 
provided for in Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7, approve a resolution to 
levy Level IT and Level ill fees on future residential development in the amounts of $7.35 
and $14,70 per square foot, respectively. 

End of Report 

13 



Appendix A 

Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil 
Grant Costs 



Table A-3 adds 50 percent of the per-pupil CMU grant addition calculated in Table A-2 to 
the totals calculated in Table A-I to determine the final per-pupil grants allowable for use in 
the Level IIIIll fee calculations. 

TableA-3 
Calculatiou of Final Per-Pupil Grant Costs by Grade Group 

Grade Groul> K-6 7·8 9·12 
50% SFP Grant $10,080.00 $10,660.50 $13,421.50 
50% CMU Grant $16.50 $18.00 $23.00 
50% Total Gnint $11f,096.51f $10,678.50 $13,444.50 



AppendixB 

Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil 
Site Acquisition and Site Development Costs 



Appendix A 
Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Grant Costs 

The per-pupil grant costs, calculated per the provisions of Government Code Section 
65995.5(c)(1), include the School Facility Program (SFP) grants outlined in Education Code 
Section 17072.1 0, fire alarm and sprinkler grants mandated by Education Code Section 
17074.56(a) and funding for Prevailing Wage Monitoring and Enforcement Costs as required 
by Labor Code Section 177!.3 and provided by the Department of Industrial Relations' 
Compliance Monitoring Unit (CMU). 

Table A-I increaseS the SFP base grant amounts by per-pupil grant increases mandated by 
SB 575 (fire alarm and sprinkler grants), For each of the District's cost models below, Table 
A-I dollar amounts will be used in determining the CMU per-pupil grant increases for each 
grade grouping. The sum of SFP base grant amounts, per-pupil grant increases mandated by 
SB 575 and CMU per-pupil grant increases, wiIl be used in oalculating the District's Level 
IIJIII fees. 

Table A-I 
SFP Per-Pupil Grants Plus Fire Alarm/Sprinkler Funding 

.. ,. . :;,\ 
.. '."j 

;',: K..(j':: 
Non-Severe SpeciaJ ' 

, nay Clliss " ' ' Grade Group 
SFP Grant $9,751 $10,312 $13,119 $18,321 
SB 575 Fire Alarm Grant $11 $17 $26 $34 
SB 575 Sprinkler Grant $164 $195 $202 $347 
50% TotalGhlllt " , $9,926 ' $10,524 $13,347 $18,702 
100% Total Grant '. $19,852, $21;048 Ai C, $26,694,', ; $:17,404:, 
Regular Pupil Adjustment" $19,505 $20,696 $26,323 nla 
Non-Severe SDC Adjustment** $655 $625 $520 nla 
100% ,', ' .. $20,160 $21,321 )$26,84:1 
"'Based on the percentage of Non-Special Day Clm: Studcn1S tt1mmtly enrolled tn the District (i.e., percentage ofK-8 and 9-12 studcms) . 
• ok Bued on lht percentage ofNoJrSpeelj I Day Class Students currently enrolled in the District (i.e., Ptl'ClIDtage of K·-g and 9-12 students ~ 

Estimated total funding for the K-12 cost models in Table A-2 equals the new per-pupil base 
grants calculated above added to the per-pupil site development figures calculated in 
Appendix E, multiplied by the pupil capacity of each K-12 cost model. Table A·2 then 
calculates the total CMU grant and per-pupil CMU grant additions for the K-12 cost models. 

TabJeA-2 
Calculation of Per·Pupll CMU Grant Additions 

Grade Per-Pupil Number of TotalCMU Per-Pupil CMU 
Group Cost Pupils TotaJ Funding Grant Grant 

K-6 $26,499 813 $21 543,687 $26,930 $33 
7-8 $29,1.07 985 $28,670,395 $35,838 $36 

9-12 $36,998 1,836 $67,928,328 $84,910 $46 



AppendlxB 
Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Acqnisition and Site Development Costs 

Site Acqnisition Costs for .Elementary, Middle and High School Proiects 
The site sizes for the District's elementary, middle and high school cost models are based on 
acreage amounts that are consistent with the guidelines in the "School Site Analysis and 
Development Handbook" published by the CalifomiaDepartment of Education (CDE). 

Site acquisition costs for the District's planned elementary, middle and high school projects 
equal $100,880 per acre based on (1) land prices of $97,000 consistent with future land 
acquisition costs that District administrators expect to pay for its planned elementary, middle 
and high school projects and (2) applicable increases pursuant to Section 1859.74 of TitIe 2 
of the California Code of Regulations for appraisals, surveys, site testing, CDE 
review/approval. preparation of the POESA and PEA and DTSC cost for review, approval 
and oversight of the POESA and the PEA. 

Table B-1 
Site Acquisition Costs for Elementary, Middle and High School Projects 

Nnml:ler of A~res . Site Acquisit;.on Total Site 
Grade Group . Required CosiN,. Acre ;, Acquisition Cost 

Elementarv 14.7 $100,880 $1,48~,936 
Middle 21.9 S100,880 . $2209.272 
High 60.8 $100,880 $6,133,504 

Service Site, Off-Site and Utility Costs for a New Elementary School 
Service site development, off-site development, and utility costs for the District's New 
Elementary School are based on the Architect's estimate of allowable costs, as defined in 
Section 1859.76 of Title 2 of the Califomia Code of Regulations. These costs are as follows: 

Table B-2 
Site Development Costs for a New Elementary School 

New Elementary School Projects ' Costs· 
New Elementary School Si.te Development Costs $2,221,473 

Total Site Development Cost $2,221,473 
Total Per-Pupil Site Development Cost $2,732* 

• . , 
liqua.Js lotal lite rlevdopment cost of It new elemmtllry II'CnooIs chvlded by the total ca:paelty ofa new elementary sellool (813 students) . 

Estimated general site development costs for District elementary school projects are based on 
the average allOWable general site development costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of TitIe 
2 of the California Code of Regulations, for the District's Cost Model Project. These costs 
are as follows: 



Table B-3 
General Site Development Costs for a New Elementary School 

Per-Acre Per~Pupn 

New Elementary School Projects Acres Cost Pupils Cost Costs 
Elementary School 

Per-Useable Acre General Site Cost 14.7 $31,692 nla nJa $465,872 
Per-Pupil General Site Cost nla nJa 813 $1210* $983730 

Totals 14;7 nla .813 nla 51.449.602 
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Cost** $1,783 

·Bquals 6% of 1he K·6 per .pI.Ipll bl$e grant amount of $2.0,160, 
·"Equals the rota1s of tht 0mlcra.1 Site Costs, dividtd by tile 101.&.1 capacity ofa new elementary school (B13 students). 

The total anticipated Site Development Costs for District New Elementary School projects 
equals the per-pupil service site, off-site and utilities development cost for the District's 
elementary school cost model project, plus the average per-pupil general site development 
costs related to the District's elementary school cost model proj.ect. The following table 
illustrates the total per-pupil site development costs for future District Elementary School 
projects. 

TableB-4 
Total Site Development Costs for a New Elementary School 

Site Development Costs for a New Middle School 
Service site development, off-site development, and utility costs for the District's new middle 
school are based on the Architect's estimate of allowable costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 
of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations. These costs are as follows: 

TableB-5 
Site Development Costs for a New Middle School 

. 

New Middle School Projects Costs 
New Middle School Site"Deve1opment Costs $3,505,574 

Total Site Development Cost 53,505,574 
Per-Pupil Site Development Cost $3,559* . . "Equals total sUe development cost ora new mIddle school dIvided by the total capac.lty ora new middle 1icMol (985 studcnt!) . 



Estimated general site development costs for District middle school projects are based on the 
average allowable general site development costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations, for the District's Cost Model Project. These costs are as 
follows: 

TableB-6 
General Site Development Costs for a New Middle School 

Per-Acre Per-Pupil 
New Middle School Projects Acres Cost Pupils Cost Costs 

Middle School 
Per-Useable Acre General Site Cost 21.9 $31,692 nJa nJa $694,055 
Per-Pupil General Site Cost nla n/a 985 $1,279* $1,259,815 

Totals 21.9 n/a 985 nJa $1,953,870 
Average.per-Pnpil General SUe Development Cost** $1,984 

• Equals 6% orlhe 7·8 pcr-pupll blrlSC·grantamount of$21,322-
"Equals the totals D{ the GeneraJ Site Costs, dividcil by the tollt crpacity of a new middle &Chool (985 students). 

The total anticipated Site Development Costs for District New Middle School projects equals 
the per-pupil service site, off-site and utilities development cost for the District's middle 
school cost model project, plus the average per-pupil general site development costs related 
to the District's middle school cost model project. The following table illustrates the total 
per-pupil site development costs for future District Middle School projects. 

TableB-7 
Total Site Development Costs for a New Middle School 

N'ew.MiddleSchooIProjects . Costs 
Average Per-Pupil Service Site, Off-Site and Utility Costs $3,559 
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Costs $1,984 

TotalPer~Pupil Site Development, Cost' $5,543' 

Site Development Costs for a New High School 
Service site development, off-site development, and utility costs fur a new District high 
school are based on allowable costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of Title 2 of the California 
Code of Regulations for the District's Pacheco High School project, approved at the 
December 10, 2008 meeting of the State Allocation Board, increased by 3.83 percent in 
accordance with adjustments to the Class B Construction Cost Index (CCI) from December 
2008 to January 2013. These costs are as follows: 



TableB-8 
Site Development Costs for a New High School 

New High School Projects Costs 
Typical High School Site Development Costs $8,4 J 3,046 . 
Class B CCl AdjUSlment (3.83%) $322220 

Total Site Development Costs for a New HiJdJ School Project 58,735,266· 
Per~Pl1pilCost. $4758** 

• .. 
Equals tbe total site development for a 60.8 acre Sltc. A 6O.S acre Ilte lS COnsistent with the guuSclines In the "School Si~ Anal)'!!.s tnd 

Development Hlndbook" published by the C,nfomia State Department of EdUCI/.ion, 
...... Equats total site dcvc10pmcnt cost or a new bigh scbool divided by the tollf capacity of a new higb school 0.836 students). 

Estimated general site development costs for District high school projects are based on the 
average allowable general site development costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations, for the District's Cost Model Project These costs are as 
follows: 

TableB-9 
General Site Development Costs for a New High School 

Costs· 
High School 

Per·Useable Acre General Site Cost 60.8 $31,692 nia nia $1,926874 
Per-PlI1lil General Site Cost nla nia 1,836 $1,007* $I 848852 

.... Tol:als,.60.8 ! •. n/a;·..: 1,836·· ·nia· $3;775,726 .... •. .... ..• . ... ., AveragePef~pupil·General SlteDeve!opment Cost** . $2,056 . 
-Equai6: 3.75% otihe 9-12 per-pupil base grant IlUOunl ofSl6.8S1. 
-*Equa!e the totals of Ihe General Sile Costs, divided by the. total capacity of a new middle school (1,.836 slUdonts). 

The total anticipated Site Development Costs for District New High School projects equals 
the per-pupil service site, off-site and utilities development cost for the District's high school 
cost model project, plus the average per-pupil general site development costs related to the 
District's high school cost model project. The following table illustrates the total per-pupil 
site development costs for future District High School projects. 

TableB-l0 
Total Site Development Costs for a New High School 

New High School Projects Costs 
Average Per-PUjJil Service Site, Off-Site and Utility Costs $4,758 
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Costs $2,056 

Total Per-Pupil Site Development Cost $6,814 



LOS Banos 
COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

DEPARTMENT 

Date: July 25,2014 

Re: Notice of Public Hearing 

Proposal: Appeal of Planning Commission Approval of Tentative Tract Map #2013-
01 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los Banos City 
Council to consider an appeal of the Planning Commission approval of Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (MND) SCH#2014011068 and Tentative Tract Map #2013-01 for 
AMG & Associates. The proposed project consists of subdividing 11.4 acres into fifty
seven (57) single-family residential lots located at the northeast corner of Willmott 
Avenue and North Street, more specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel Number: 
082-050-066. 

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of the 
City Council on Wednesday, August 6, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 
Los Banos City Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions regarding the above
referenced item may be directed to Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner II at City Hall 
or at (209) 827-7000, Ext. 133. 

Persons wishing to provide oral comments on the proposed project may do so at this 
meeting or may provide written comments on this matter prior to the public meeting. 
Written comments may be sent by U.S. Mail or hand delievered to the City of Los Banos 
City Hall at 520 "J" Street, Los Banos, California 93635. Please be advised that should 
the action by the City Council be challenged in court, you may be limited to only those 
issues raised at the public hearings or by written comment per Government Code 
Section 65009. 

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

Stacy Souza Elms 
Assistant Planner II 



Mobile Vendor Permit #2014-03 Tacos y Mariscos EI 

APN OWNER 

2S114015 MACIEL JOHN & 
ALDINA 

MAILSTREET 

713 E LAKE AVE 

MAILCITY 

WATSONVILLE 

428210004 VALTIERRA VERONICA 2051 CANAL FARM LN LOS BANOS 

428194019 CISNEROS PEDRO D & 18326 REYNOLDS AVE DOS PALOS 
MALINN P 

428194017 HAMMOND 
RAYMOND M & 
EARLINE 

2143 CANAL FARM LN LOS BANOS 

428194015 SANDOVAL JOSE 
GARCIA 

2167 CANAL FARM LN LOS BANOS 

428160031FD PARTNERS L L C 1000 N WESTERN AVE SAN PEDRO 
STE 200 

428160019 MANTHEY ROAD - 73700 DINAH SHORE PALM DESERT 
STERLING PARTNERS DR STE 401 
LLC 

428160013 CAMERA PROPERTIES 1801 S GILLIS RD 
LLC 

428160032 MANTHEY ROAD 3151 AIRWAY AVE 
STERLING PARTNERS L SUITE F207 
LC 

STOCKTON 

COSTA MESA 

428160029 IN-SHAPE 2423 W MARCH LN STOCKTON 
MANAGEMENT CO STE 202 
INC 

Page 1 of 2 

MAIL MAILZIP 

CA 95076 

CA 93635 

CA 93620 

CA 936355431 

CA 93635 

CA 90732 

CA 922110816 

CA 9521S 

CA 926264607 

CA 95202 



APN OWNER 

431141013 OLYMPUS REAL 
ESTATE LLC 

MAILSTREET MAILCITY 

4580 S THOUSAND SALT LAKE CITY 
OAKS DR 

4311410241245 WEST PACHECO 11403 MAKENA DR CHOWCHILLA 
CENTER L L C 

Page 2 of 2 

MAIL MAILZIP 

UT 84124 

CA 93610-8026 



LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

TO: 

FROM: 

Mayor Villa Ita & ~it{ Council Members 

Sonya William~ance Director 

DATE: August 6,2014 

SUBJECT: A resolution authorizing the levy and collection of assessments for weed 
abatement within the City of Los Banos 

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing 

Recommendation: 

Adopt the resolution authorizing the levy and collection of assessments for weed 
abatement with the City of Los Banos. 

Background: 

In the past, The City of Los Banos has submitted an assessment listing of charges per 
parcel to the Merced County Tax Collector for unpaid weed abatement. Weed 
abatement is performed by vendors contracted by City Staff after a notification for 
cleanup has been sent to property owners and is not performed. 

This weed abatement assessment is done in compliance to Municipal Code where the 
amount of any administrative penalty and/or administrative cost imposed, in connection 
with real property, has not been satisfied in full within ninety (90) days may constitute a 
lien against the real property on which the violation occurred. 

The attached resolution is for Council to review and take action to authorize the levy 
and collection of assessments for these unpaid weed abatement billings. 



Discussion: 

The following accounts have not been paid and constitute a lien on the property in the 
following amounts: 

APN# 

026-082-022 
082-357-012 
025-101-006 
027-081-007 
027-031-032 
027-053-001 
027-161-040 
027-055-019 
027-086-009 

2014/2015 
Proposed Assessment 

$258.72 
$472.56 
$625.68 
$517.44 
$158.40 
$316.80 
$211.20 
$211.20 
$3708.40 

Although parcel 025-103-004 was included in the Public Hearing Notice, the property 
has since changed hands and therefore can no longer be assessed for this abatement, 
it will instead be sent to the Collections Agency. 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is an annual fee of $50.00 to place the assessments on the tax roll and a per 
assessment fee of $.35 for a total costs to $53.15. The total amount being placed on 
the tax roll is $6,480.40 

Reviewed by: 

e Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 

Resolution 
Exhibit A - Assessments 
Notice of Public Hearing 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS AUTHORIZING 
THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS FOR WEED ABATEMENT WITHIN 

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

WHEREAS, the City has performed certain weed abatement activities within the City of Los 

Banos in accordance to Section 4-6.05 (c) of the Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4-6.05 (d) of the Code requires the City, under certain circumstances, to 

assess the cost of weed abatement the City performs to the parcel of land that has benefited from this 

service. The 2014-15 Assessment is attached to and made part of this resolution as Exhibit A. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Los Banos as follows: 

I . The charge is in compliance with all laws pertaining to the levy of weed abatement assessments. 

2. The Charge is levied without regard to property valuation. 

3. The Administrative Director of the City of Los Banos is hereby authorized and directed to submit 

the names, amounts, and the identification of real property to the Merced County Tax Collector as 

identified in Exhibit A for further disposition and to establish the appropriate lien on the subject 

real property. The Administrative Director is further authorized to make any adjustments or 

corrections to these charges as may become necessary to ensure accuracy and correctness of the 

lien. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Los 

Banos held on the 61h day of, August 2014 Council Member ___ who moved its adoption, which 

motion was duly seconded by Council Member ___ and the Resolution adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael V illalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Assessments 

Assessment # Tax Tax Code 
026082022000 258.72 85000 
082357012000 472.56 85000 
025101006000 625.68 85000 
027081007000 517.44 85000 
027031032000 158.40 85000 
027053001000 316.80 85000 
027161040000 211.20 85000 
027055019000 211.20 85000 
027086009000 3708.40 85000 



CITY OF LOS BANOS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED LEVY FOR WEED 
ABATEMENT 

WHERE: City Council Chambers 
520 J Street 
Los Banos, California 

WHEN: August 6, 2014 
7:00PM 

Notice is hereby given that the Los Banos City Council will conduct a Public Hearing to 
receive public comment on the consideration of a resolution levying the listed properties 
for weed abatement. 

The City Council intends to levy and collect assessments for weed abatement services 
performed during the Fiscal Year 2013/14 or prior. The area of land to be levied is 
located in the City of Los Banos, Merced County. 

The abated properties are generally described as follows: 

APN# 
026-082-022 
082-357-012 
025-101-006 
027-081-007 
027-031-032 
025-103-004 
027-053-001 
027-161-040 
027-055-019 
027-086-009 

2014/2015 
Proposed Assessment 

$258.72 
$472.56 
$625.28 
$517.44 
$158.40 
$277.20 
$316.80 
$211.20 
$211.20 

$3708.40 

The Public Hearing will be held at the regular meeting of the Los Banos City Council on 
Wednesday, August 6, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Los Banos City Hall 
located at 520 ] Street, or as near as possible thereafter, at which time and place 
interested persons may appear and be heard thereon. Questions regarding the above
referenced item may be directed to Sonya Williams, Finance Director, 520 ] Street or at 
(209) 827-7000. 

All interested persons will be given an opportunity to comment on this item at the Public 
Hearing. In addition, written comments may be submitted to the City Council at or prior 
to the hearing, mailed to 520 J Street, Los Banos, CA 93635, Attention: Sonya 
Williams, Finance Director. Please reference hearing title and date of hearing in any 



correspondence. If no comments are received prior to or on the above date, it will be 
assumed that no comments are being offered. Please note that if you challenge the City's 
final decision on the above matter in court, you may be limited to raising only those 
factual and legal issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this 
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. In light of the foregoing, all interested members of the public are 
encouraged to voice their concerns regarding all above matter either in person at the 
hearing or in writing through correspondence addressed to the City Council and 
submitted to the City Council at or prior to the date of the above hearing. 

It is the intention of the City to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 
If you require special assistance beyond what is normally provided, the City will attempt 
to accommodate you in every reasonable manner. Please contact the City Clerk's Office 
at (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs. 



LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

TO: Mayor & City Council Members 

FROM: Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer ~ ~. 
DATE: August 6, 2014 

SUBJECT: An Urgency Ordinance of the City of Los Banos Changing the Irrigation 
Restriction Schedule established by Ordinance No. 1090 as Codified in 
Title 10 Chapter 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code 

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing 

Recommendation: 
That the City Council open the Public Hearing, receive public comment, waive the 
reading, and adopt an Urgency Ordinance changing the irrigation restriction schedule 
from three days per week to two days per week, and making the schedule year round. 

Background: 
On February 3,2010, the Los Banos City Council adopted a Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance No. 1090. Included in Ordinance No. 1090, under section 10-2.03.10, is the 
irrigation schedule restricting irrigation to certain days and times. Irrigation is restricted 
to Sundays, Wednesdays, and Fridays of each week on the even numbered side of any 
street; and Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays of each week on the odd numbered 
side of any street. Irrigation of lawns and landscaping is prohibited between the hours of 
11 :00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on any day of the week, and watering is not allowed on 
Mondays. 

Due to the shortage of rain and in an effort to conserve water, per the Governor's 
Drought Declaration of January 17, 2014, that all Californians need to reduce their water 
use by 20 percent, the City Council on March 19, 2014 adopted an Urgency Ordinance 



No. 1118 temporarily changing the irrigation restriction beginning date for 2014 to March 
20,2014. 

Discussion: 
On July 15, 2014, in response to the 20% conservation goal not being met and that 80% 
of the State was reported to be under "extreme" drought conditions, the State Water 
Board approved emergency regulations, as stated in Resolution No. 2014-0038, to 
ensure agencies and State residents increase water conservation. Although the City of 
Los Banos had previously enacted almost all these emergency regulations, per section 
5.02 Water Shortage Contingency Planning of the 2010 Urban Water Management 
Plan, the requirement that communities restrict outdoor irrigation to twice a week in an 
attempt to meet the 20% use reduction goal is required of the City of Los Banos. 

In order to meet this regulation, the Public Works Department is requesting City Council 
adopt an Urgency Ordinance changing the irrigation restriction schedule from three 
days per week to two days per week, and making the schedule year round. The 
Urgency Ordinance would restrict outdoor irrigation to Sundays and Wednesdays of 
each week on the even numbered side of any street; and Tuesdays and Saturdays of 
each week on the odd numbered side of any street. Irrigation of lawns and landscaping 
would still be prohibited between the hours of 11 :OOa.m. and 7:00p.m. on any day of the 
week. Watering would not be allowed on Mondays, Thursdays, and Fridays. If adopted 
the provisions of the Urgency Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
The proposed Urgency Ordinance does not amend any other sections of Ordinance No. 
1090, as codified in Title 10, Chapter 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code. 

A Public Hearing notice was published in the Los Banos Enterprise on July 25, 2014. 

Reviewed by: 

~1-A../'--
Steve Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 
Public Hearing Notice 
Urgency Ordinance 
Ordinance No. 1090 
State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No. 2014-0038 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan, Section 5.02 



Where: 

CITY OF LOS BANOS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF AN 
URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

CHANGING THE IRRIGATION RESTRICTION SCHEDULE AS 
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE NO.1090 

City Council Chambers 
520 J Street 
Los Banos, California 

When: Wednesday,August6,2014 
7:00 PM 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Los Banos will conduct a Public Hearing to receive public 
comment on the consideration of an Urgency Ordinance of the City of Los Banos changing the irrigation 
restriction schedule as established by Ordinance No. 1090 as codified in Title 10 Chapter 2 of the Los 
Banos MuniCipal Code due to public health, safety and welfare as a result of the statewide drought. 

The proposed Urgency Ordinance will change the irrigation restriction schedule from three days per 
week to two days per week, will further limit the allowable irrigation hours for those two days, and make 
the schedule year round. If adopted the provisions of the Urgency Ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon adoption. The proposed Urgency Ordinance will not amend any other sections of 
Ordinance No. 1090, as codified in Title 10, Chapter 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code. 

The Public Hearing will be held at the regular meeting of the Los Banos City Council on Wednesday, 
August 6, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Los Banos City Hall located at 520 J Street, or 
as near as possible thereafter, at which time and place interested persons may appear and be heard 
thereon. Questions regarding the above-referenced item may be directed to Mark Fachin, Public Works 
Director/City Engineer at the Public Works Department, 411 Madison Avenue or at (209) 827-7056. 

All interested persons will be given an opportunity to comment on this item at the Public Hearing. In 
addition, written comments may be submitted to the City Council at or prior to the hearing, mailed to 411 
Madison Avenue, Los Banos, CA 93635, Attention: Mark Fachin, Public Works Director/City Engineer. 
Please reference hearing title and date of hearing in any correspondence. If no comments are received 
prior to or on the above date, it will be assumed that no comment is being offered. The public is also 
informed that should the action by the City Council be challenged in court, court testimony may be limited 
to only those issues raised at the Public Hearing, or by written correspondence received at or prior to the 
Public Hearing, per Government Code Section 65009. 

It is the intention of the City to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If you require 
special assistance beyond what is normally provided, the City will attempt to accommodate you in every 
reasonable manner. Please contact the City Clerk's Office at (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting to inform us of your particular needs. 

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 
MARKFACHIN 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER 

Legal July 25, 2014 



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS AMENDING TITLE 10 

CHAPTER 2 SECTION 10-2.03.10 (a)(2) OF THE 
LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
SCHEDULING OF LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION 

WHEREAS, the State of California is experiencing record dry conditions, with 
2014 projected to become the driest year on record; and 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, with California facing water shortfalls in the 
driest year in recorded state history, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. proclaimed a State 
of Emergency to exist in the State of California due to current drought conditions and 
directed state officials to take all necessary actions to prepare for these drought 
conditions; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Brown ordered State agencies, led by the Department of 
Water Resources, to execute a statewide water conservation campaign to make all 
Californians aware of the drought and encourage personal actions to reduce water 
usage. This campaign will be built on the existing Save Our Water campaign and will 
coordinate with local water agencies. This campaign will call on Californians to reduce 
their water usage by twenty percent; and. 

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2014 Governor Brown issued an Executive Order 
directing the State Water Board to adopt an emergency regulation as it deems 
necessary, pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5, to ensure that urban water 
suppliers implement conservation measures; and 

WHEREAS, in response to the ongoing severe drought, on July 15, 2014 the 
State Water Resources Control Board approved an emergency regulation to ensure 
water agencies, their customers and state residents increase water conservation in 
urban settings or face possible fines or other enforcement; and 

WHEREAS, the new conservation regulation is intended to reduce outdoor urban 
water use. The regulation, adopted by the State Water Board, mandates minimum 
actions to conserve water supplies both for this year and into 2015; and 

WHEREAS, on February 3, 2010 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1090 
entitled "Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance" which among other measures regulates 
the scheduling of outside landscape irrigation; and 

WHEREAS. a consistent and minimum reliable supply of potable water is 
essential to the public health, safety, and welfare of the people and community of Los 
Banos; and 



WHEREAS, in order to meet the water needs of residents and businesses and to 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the people and community of Los 
Banos, the City must impose more stringent water conservation measures immediately 
to reduce water consumption and conserve the City's groundwater supply; and 

WHEREAS, as a step in reducing water usage the City Council desires to adopt 
an amendment to Ordinance 1090 which would immediately restrict watering day 
restrictions for outside landscape irrigation from three days per week to two days per 
week year round; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code 36934 and 36937 empowers cities to 
adopt, by four-fifths vote, an urgency ordinance which is necessary for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety; and 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

1. Recitals: The above stated recitals are true and correct. 

2. Findings: The City Council hereby finds and determines that, based on all the 
facts described above, the staff reports and the testimony received at the public hearing 
on this Ordinance, the adoption of this measure is necessary to help preserve the public 
peace, health or safety. This Urgency Ordinance is enacted pursuant to Government 
code sections 36934 and 36937 for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health, and safety. 

3. Amendment: Subsection (a) (2) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"(2) Landscape irrigation shall be restricted to certain days and times at 
all times during the year. It shall be unlawful for any person to use City 
supplied water for irrigation of lawn, landscaping, et cetera, between the 
hours of 11 :00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on any day of the week, year round. 
Usage of water for the aforesaid purposes shall be restricted year round to 
Sunday and Wednesday before 11 :00 a.m. and after 7:00 p.m. on the even 
numbered side of any street and Tuesday and Saturday before 11 :00 a.m. 
and after 7:00 p.m. on the odd numbered side of any street. Watering shall 
be prohibited on Monday, Thursday and Friday. "Even-numbered side of any 
street" shall mean that side of this street on which the house numbers end in 
even figures. "Odd-numbered side of any street" shall mean that side of the 
street on which the house numbers end in odd figures. New plantings, such 
as new lawns, ground coverings, or bedding plants may be watered every 
day providing the following conditions are met: 



(A) New lawns, ground coverings, or bedding plants shall not include 
reseeding of existing lawns or replacement of existing ground cover, or 
bedding plants, and 

(B) New lawns, ground coverings, or bedding plants shall be considered 
new for a period of one year from planting date." 

4. Severability: If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause 
or phrase added by this Ordinance, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be 
unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance or any part thereof. 

5. Effective Date: Pursuant to Government Code 36937 this Urgency Ordinance 
shall be effective immediately. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 
Ordinance and cause the same to be posted and published once within fifteen days 
after passage and adoption as may be required by law; or, in the alternative, the City 
Clerk may cause to be published a summary of this Ordinance and a certified copy of 
the text of this Ordinance shall be posted in the Office of the City Clerk five days prior to 
the date of adoption of this Ordinance; and, within fifteen days after adoption, the City 
Clerk shall cause to be published, the aforementioned summary and shall post a 
certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the vote for and against the same, in the 
Office of the City Clerk. 

THE FOREGOING URGENCY ORDINANCE was introduced and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Los Banos City Council on the _ day of 2014 by 
the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 
NOES: Council Members: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1090 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 
AMENDING TITLE 10, CHAPTER 2 OF THE LOS 
BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE TO "CITY OF LOS BANOS 
WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE IN ITS 
ENTIRETY 

The City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby amend Title 10, 
Chapter 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code in its entirety to read as follows: 

CITY OF LOS BANOS WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE 

Sections: 
10·2.01 
10·2.01.01 
10-2.02 
10-2.03 
10-2.03.01 
10-2.03.02 
10-2.03.03 
10-2.03.04 
10-2.03.05 
10-2.03.06 
10-2.03.07 
10-2.03.08 
10-2.03.09 
10-2.03.10 
10-2.03.11 
10-2.03.12 
10-2.03.13 
10-2.03.14 
10-2.03.15 
10-2.03.16 
10~.03.17 
10-2.04 
10-2.04.01 
10-2.04.02 
10-2.05 
10-2.06 
10-2.07 
10-2.08 
10-2.09 
10-2.10 

Title and Purpose 
Applicability 
Definitions 
Provisions for New Construction or Rehabilitated Landscapes 
Compliance with Landscape Documentation Package 
Penalties 
Elements of the Landscape Documentation Package 
Water Efficient Landscape Worksheet 
Soil Management Report 
Landscape Design Plan 
Irrigation Design Plan 
Grading Design Plan 
Certificate of Completion 
Irrigation Scheduling 
Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Schedule 
Irrigation Audit, Irrigation Survey, and Irrigation Water Use Analysis 
Irrigation Efficiency 
Recycled Water 
Stormwater Management 
Public Education 
Environmental Review 
Provisions for Existing Landscapes 
Irrigation Audit, Irrigation Survey, and Irrigation Water Use Analysis 
Water Waste Prevention 
Effective Precipitation 
Reference Evapotranspiration (ETo) Table 
Efficient Landscape Worksheet 
Certificate of Completion Package 
Fees 
Inspections 

§ 10-2.01. Title and Purpose. 

(a) This chapter shall be known as the ~Los Banos Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance," 

(b) Purpose. The state Legislature has found: 
(1) that the waters of the state are of limited supply and are subject to ever increasing 

demands; 
(2) that the continuation of California's economic prosperity is dependent on the 

availability of adequate supplies of water for futUre uses; 
(3) that rt is the policy of the State to promote the conservation and efficient use of water 

and to prevent the waste of this valuable resource; 
(4) that landscapes are essential to the quality of life in California by providing areas for 

active and paSSive recreation and as an enhancement to the environment by 
cleaning air and water, preventing erosion, offering fire protection, and replacing 
ecosystems lost to development; and 

1 



(5) that landscape design, installation, maintenance and management can and should 
be water efficient; and 

(6) that Section 2 of Article X of the California Constitution specifies that the right to use 
water is limited to the amount reasonably required for the beneficial use to be served 
and the right does not and shall not extend to waste or unreasonabie method of use. 

(c) Consistent with these legislative findings, the purpose of this ordinance is to: 
(1) promote the values and benefrts of landscapes while recognizing the need to invest 

water and other resources as efficiently as possible; 
(2) establish a structure for planning, designing, installing, maintaining and managing 

water efficient landscapes in new construction and rehabilitated projects; 
(3) establish provisions for water management practices and water waste prevention for 

existing landscapes; 
(4) use water effiCiently without waste by setting a Maximum Applied Water Allowance 

as an upper limit for water use and reduce water use to the lowest practical amount; 
(5) promote the benefrts of consistent landscape ordinances with neighboring local and 

regional agencies; 
(6) encourage the use of economic incentives that promote the efficient use of water; 
(7) encourage cooperation between the City of Los Banos and other local agencies to 

implement and enforce this ordinance. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 65593, Government Code. Reference: Sections 65591, 65593, 65596, 
Government Code. 

§ 10-2.01.01 Applicability 

(a) After January 1, 2010, this ordinance shall apply to all of the following landscape projects: 
(1) new construction and rehabilitated landscapes for public agency projects and private 

development projects with a landscape area equal to or greater than 2,500 square 
feet requiring a building or landscape permit. plan check or design review; 

(2) new construction and rehabilitated landscapes which a-re developer-installed in 
single-family and multi-family projects with a landscape area equal to or greater than 
2,500 square feet requiring a building or landscape pennit, plan check, or design 
review; 

(3) new construction landscapes which are homeowner-provided andlor homeowner
hired in single-family and multi-family residential projects with a total project 
landscape area equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet requiring a building or 
landscape permit, plan check or design review; 

(4) existing landscapes limited to Seclions 10-2.04,10-2.04.01 and 10-2.04.02; and 
(5) cemeteries. Recognizing the special landscape management needs of cemeteries, 

new and rehabilitated cemeteries are limited to Sections 10-2.03.04, 10-2.03.11, and 
10-2.03.12; and existing cemeteries are limited to Sections 10-2.04, 10-2.04.01, and 
10-2.04.02. 

(b) This ordinance does not apply to: 
(1) registered local, state or federal historical sites; 
(2) ecological restoration projects that do not require a permanent irrigation system; 
(3) mined-land reclamation projects that do not require a permanent irrigation system; or 
(4) piant collections, as pert of botanical gardens and arboretums open to the public. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.02. Definitions. 

The terms used in this ordinance have the meaning set forth below: 

(a) "Applied Water" means the portion of water supplied by the irrigation system to the 
landscape. 

(b) UAutomatic Irrigation Controller" means an automatic timing device used to remotely control 
valves that operate an irrigation system. Automatic irrigation controllers schedule irrigation 
events using either evapotranspiration (weather-based) or soil moisture data. 

(c) ~Backflow Prevention Device~ means a safety device used to prevent pollution or 
contamination of the water supply due to the reverse flow of water from the irrigation system. 

(d) UCertificate of Completion" means the document required under Section 10-2.03.09. 
(e) UCertified Irrigation Designer" means a person certified to design irrigation systems by an 

2 



accredited academic institution a professional trade organization or other program such as 
the US Environmental Prolection Agency's Water Sense irrigation designer certification 
program and Irrigation Association's Certified Irrigation DeSigner pnogram. 

(f) "Certified Landscape Irrigation Audrtor" means a person certified to perform landscape 
irrigation audits by an accredited academic institution, a professional trade organization or 
other program such as the US Environmental Protection Agency's Water Sense irrigation 
audilor certification program and Irrigation Association's Certified Landscape Irrigation 
Auditor program. 

(g) "Check Valve" or "anti-drain valve" means a valve located under a sprinkler head, or other 
location in the irrigation system, to hold water in the system to prevent drainage from 
sprinkler heads when the sprinkler is off. 

(h) "Common Interest Developments~ means community apartment projects, condominium 
projects, planned developments, and stock cooperatives per Civil Code Section 1351. 

(i) "Conversion Factor (0.62)" means the number that converts acre-inches per acre per year to 
gallons per square foot per year, 

(j) ~Drip Irrigation" means any non-spray low volume irrigation system utilizing emission devices 
with a flow rate measured in gallons per hour. low volume irrigation systems are specifically 
designed to apply small volumes of water slowly at or near the root zone of plants. 

(k) "Ecological Restoration Project" means a project where the sile is intentionally aaered to 
establish a defined, indigenous, historic ecosystem. 

(I) "Effective Precipitation" or "Usable Rainfall" (Eppt) means the portion of total precipitation 
which becomes available for plant growth. 

(m) ~Emitter" means a drip irrigation emission device that delivers water slowly from the system 
to the soil. 

(n) "Established Landscape" means the point at which plants in the landscape have developed 
significant root growth into the soil. Typically, most plants are established after one or two 
years of growth. 

(0) "Establishment Period of the Plants" means the first year after installing the plant in the 
landscape or the first two years ff irrigation will be tenminated afier establishment. Typically, 
most plants are established after one or two years of growth. 

(p) "Estimated Total Water Use' (ETWU) means the total water used for the landscape as 
described in Section 10-2.03.04. 

(q)"ET Adjustment Factor" (ETAF) means a factor of 0.7, that, when applied to reference 
evapotranspiration, adjusts for plant factors and irrigation efficiency, two major influences 
upon the amount of water that needs to be applied to the landscape. 
A combined plant mix with a site-wide average of 0.5 is the basis of the plant factor portion of 
this calculation. For purposes of the ETAF, the average irrigation efficiency is 0.71. 
Therefore, the ET Adjustment Factor is (0.7)=(0.5/0.71). ETAF for a Special Landscape Area 
shall not exceed 1.0. ETAF for existing non-rehabilitated landscapes is 0.8. 

(r) "Evapotranspiration Rate~ means the quantity of water evaporated from adjacent soil and 
other surfaces and transpired by plants during a specified time. 

(s) "Flow Rate" means the rate at which water flows through pipes, valves and emission 
devices, measured in gallons per minute, gallons per hour, or cubic feet per second. 

(t) "Hardscapes~ meanS any durable material (pervious and non-pervious). 

(u) "Homeowner-Provided landscapingn means any landscaping either installed by a private 
individual for a single family residence or installed by a licensed contractor hired by a 
homeowner. A homeowner, for purposes of this ordinance, is a person who occupies the 
dwelling he or she owns. This exdudes speculative homes, which are not owner-occupied 
dwellings. 

(v) "Hydrozone~ means a portion of the landscaped area having plants with similar water needs. 
A hydrazone may be irrigated or non-irrigated. 

3 



(w) "Infinration Rate" means the rate of water entry into the soil expressed as a depth of water 
per un" of time (e.g., inches per hour). 

(x) "Invasive Plant Species· means speCies of plants not historically found in California that 
spread outside cultwated areas and can damage environmental or economic resources. 
Invasive species may be regulated by county agricuHural agenCies as noxious species. 
"Noxious weeds" means any weed designated by the Weed Control Regulations in the Weed 
Control Act and identified on a Regional District noxious weed control list. Lists of invasive 
plants are maintained at the California Invasive Plant Inventory and USDA invasive and 
noxious weeds database. 

(y) "Irrigation Audit" means an in-depth evaluation of the performance of an irrigation system 
conducted by a Certified Landscape Irrigation Auditor. An irrigation audft includes, but is not 
limited to: inspection, system tune-up, system test with distribution uniformity or emission 
unifonnity, reporting overspray or runoff that causes overland flow, and preparation of an 
irrigation schedule. 

(z) "Irrigation Efficiency" (IE) means the measurement of the amount of water beneficially used 
divided by the amount of water applied. Irrigation efficiency is derived from measurements and 
estimates of irrigation system characteristics and management practices. The minimum 
average irrigation efficiency for purposes of this ordinance is 0.71. Greater irrigation efficiency 
can be expected from well designed and maintained systems. 

(aa) "Irrigation Survey" means an evaluation of an irrigation system that is less detailed than an 
irrigation audit. An irrigation survey includes, but is not limited to: inspection, system test, 
and written recommendations to improve performance of the irrigation system. 

(bb) "Irrigation Water Use Analysis· means an analysis of water use data based on meter 
readings and billing data. 

(cc) "Landscape Architect" means a person who holds a license to practice landscape 
architecture in the state of California Business and Professions Code, Section 5615. 

(dd) "Landscape Area" means all the planting areas, turf areas, and water features in a 
landscape design plan subject to the Maximum Applied Water Allowance calculation. The 
landscape area does not include footprints of buildings or structures, sidewalks, driveways, 
parking lots, decks, patios, gravel or stone walks, other pervious or non-pervious 
hardscapes, and other non-irrigated areas designated for non-development (e.g., open 
spaces and existing native vegetation). 

(ee) "Landscape Contractor" means a person licensed by the state of California to construct, 
maintain, repair, install, or subcontract the development of landscape systems. 

(ff) "Landscape Documentation Package~ means the documents required under Section 
10-2.03.03. 

(gg) "Landscape Project" means total area of landscape in a project as defined in "landscape 
area" for the purposes of this ordinance, meeting requirements under Section 10-2.01.01. 

(hh) WLateral Line" means the water delivery pipeline that supplies water to the emitters or 
sprinklers from the valve. 

(Ii) Deleted 

(jj) "Local Water Purveyor" means any entity, including a public agency, city, county, or private 
water company that provides retail water service. 

(kk) "Low Volume Irrigation~ means the application of irrigation water at low pressure through a 
system of tubing or lateral lines and low-volume emitters such as drip, drip lines, and 
bubblers. Low volume irrigation systems are specifically designed to apply small volumes of 
water slowly at or near the root zone of plants. 

(II) ~Main Line~ means the pressurized pipeline that delivers water from the water source to the 
valve or outlet. 

{mm} "Maximum Applied Water Allowance" (MAWA) means the upper limit of annual applied 
water for the established landscaped area as specified in Section 10-2.03.04. It is based 
upon the area's reference evapotranspiration, the ET Adjustment Factor, and the size of 

4 



the landscape area. The Estimated Total Water Use shall not exceed the Maximum 
Applied Water Allowance. Special landscape Areas, including recreation areas, areas 
penmanently and solely dedicated to edible plants such as orcharcjs and vegetable 
gardens, and areas irrigated with recycled water are subject to the MAWA with an ETAF 
notto exceed 1.0. J 

(nn) "Microclimate" means the dimate of a small, specific area that mJcontrast with the 
climate of the overall landscape area due to factors such as wind, un exposure, plant 
density, or proximity to reflective surfaces. 

(00) ~Mined-Land Reclamation Projects~ means any surface mining 0 alian with a reclamation 
plan approved in accordance with the Surface Mining and Reclam'1 ion Act of 1975. 

(pp) ~Mulch" means any organic material such as leaves, bark, straw, Jmpost, or inorganic 
mineral materials such as rocks, gravel, and decomposed granite I~ft loose and applied to 
the soil surface for the beneficial purposes of reducing evaporationJ suppressing weeds, 
moderating soil temperature, and preventing soil erosion. 

(qq) "New Construction~ means, for the purposes of this ordinance, a n w building with a 
landscape or other new landscape, such as a park, playground, or greenbeH without an 
associated building. 

(rr) ~Operating Pressure" means the pressure at which the parts of an irrigation system are 
designed by the manufacturer to operate. I 

(ss) "Overhead Sprinkler Irrigation Systems" means systems that deliver water through the air 
(e.g., spray heads and rotors). I 

(tt) "Qverspray" means the irrigation water which is delivered beyond th~ target area, 

(uu) ~Permit" means an authorizing document issued by local agencies }or new construction or 
rehabilitated landscapes. i 

(w) "Pervious· means any surface or material that allows the passage tif water through the 
material and into the under1ying soil. I 

(ww) "Plant Factor" or "Plant Water Use Factor" is a factor, when mUHipJied by ETo, estimates 
the amount of water needed by plants. For purposes of this ordinance, the plant factor 
range for low water use plants is 0 to 0.3, the plant factor range far moderate water use 
plants is 0.4 to 0.6, and the plant factor range for high water use ~Iants is 0.7 to 1.0. Plant 
factors cited in this ordinance are derived from the Department of rater Resources 2000 
publication "Water Use Classification of Landscape Species~. 

I 
(xx) ~Precipitation Rate" means the rate of application of water measur~ld in inches per hour. 

(yy) "Project Applicanf means the individual or entity submitting a land cape Documentation 
Package required under Section 10-2.03.03, to request a penmit, pi n check, or design 
review from the City of Los Banos. A project applicant may be the p'roperty owner or his or 
her designee. I 

(zz) "Rain Sensor" or "Rain Sensing Shutoff Device" means a component which automatically 
suspends an irrigation event when it rains. I 

I 
(aaa) uRecord Drawing" or "As-Builts" means a set of reproducible dra~ngS which show 

significant changes in the work made during construction and which are usually based on 
drawings marked up in the field and other data furnished by the c~ntractor. 

I 
(bbb) "Recreational Area~ means areas dedicated to active play such as parks, sports fIeldS, 

and golf courses where turf provides a playing surface. . i 
(cce) "Recycled Water', "Reclaimed Water", or "Treated Sewage EfflUe?t Water" means treated 

or recycled waste water of a quality suitable for non-potable uses such as landscape 
irrigation and water features. This water 'is not intended for humar consumption. 

(ddd) "Reference Evapotranspiration~ or "ETa" means a standard meas~rement of 
environmental parameters which affect the water use of plants. ET 0 is expressed in inches 
per day, month, or year as represented in Section 10-2.06 and is rn estimate of the 
evapotranspiration of a large field of four- to seven·inch tall, cool-season grass that is well 

I 
I 

5 



watered. Reference evapotranspiration is used as the basis of determining the Maximum 
Applied Water Allowance so that regional differences in climate can be accommodated. 

(eee) "Rehabilitated Landscape' means any re-Iandscaping project that requires a permn, plan 
check, or design review, meets the requirements of Section 10-2.01.01, and the modified 
landscape area is equal to or greater than 2,500 square feet, is 50% of the total landscape 
area, and the modifications are completed within one year. 

(Iff) "RunOff" means water which is not absorbed by the soil or landscape to which it is applied 
and fiows from the landscape area. For example, runoff may resu~ from water that is applied 
at too great a rate (application rate exceeds infittration rate) or when there is a slope. 

(999) "Soil Moisture Sensing Device" or "Soil Moisture Sensor" means a device that measures 
the amount of water in the soil. The device may also suspend or initiate an irrigation 
event. 

(hhh) "Soil Texture" means the dassification of soil based on fts percentage of sand, silt, and 
clay. 

(iii) "Special Landscape Area" (SLA) means an area of the landscape dedicated solely to edible 
plants, areas irrigated wtth recycled water, water features using recycled water and areas 
dedicated to active play such as parks, sports fields, go~ courses, and where turf provides a 
playing surface. 

(jjj) "Sprinkler Head" means a device which delivers water through a nozzle. 

(kkk) "StatiC Water Pressure~ means the pipeline or municipal water supply pressure when 
water is not flowing. 

(III) "Station" means an area served by one valve or by a set of valves that operate 
simultaneously. 

(mmm) ~Swing Joinf means an irrigation component that provides a flexible, leak-free 
connection between the emission device and lateral pipeline to allow movement in any 
direction and to prevent equipment damage. 

(nnn) "Turf means a ground cover surface of mowed grass. Annual bluegrass, Kentucky 
bluegrass, Perennial ryegrass, Red fescue, and Tall fescue are cool-season grasses. 
Bermudagrass, Kikuyugrass, Seashore Paspalum, St. Augustinegrass, Zoysiagrass, and 
Buffalo grass are warm-season grasses. 

(000) "Valve" means a device used to control the flow of water in the irrigation system. 

(ppp) 'Water Conserving Plant Species' means a plant species identified as having a low plant 
factor. 

(qqq) "Water Feature~ means a design element where open water performs an aesthetic or 
recreational function. Water features include ponds, lakes, waterfalls, fountains, artificial 
streams, spas, and swimming pools (where water is artificially supplied). The surface area 
of water features is included in the high water use hydrazone of the landscape area. 
Constructed wetlandS used for on·site wastewater treatment or stormwater best 
management practices that are not irrigated and used solely for water treatment or 
stormwater retention are not water features and, therefore, are not subject to the water 
budget calculation. 

(rrr) "Watering Window" means the time of day irrigation is allowed. 

(sss) WUCOLS" means the Water Use Classification of Landscape Species published by the 
University of Califomia Cooperative Extension, the Department of Water Resources and 
the Bureau of Redamation, 2000. 

Note: AuthOrity Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Sections 65592, 65596, 
Government Code. 

6 



§ 10·2.03. Provisions for New Construction or Rehabilitated Landscapes. 

(a) The City of los Banos may designate another agency to implement some or all of the 
requirements contained in this ordinance. Local agencies may collaborate with water 
purveyors to define each entity's specific responsibilities relating to this ordinance. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, 
Government Code. 

§ 10·2.03.01 Compliance with landscape Documentation Package. 

(a) Prior to construction, the City of los Banos shall: 
(1) provide the project applicant with the ordinance and procedures for permits, plan 

checks, or design reviews; 
(2) review the Landscape Documentation Package submitted by the project applicant; 
(3) approve or deny the landscape Documentation Package; 
(4) issue a permit or approve the plan check or design review for the project applicant; 

and 
(5) upon approval of the landscape Documentation Package, submit a copy of the 

Water Efficient landscape Worksheet to the local water purveyor. 

(b) Prior to construction, the project applicant shall: 
(1) submit a Landscape Documentation Package to the City of Los Banos. 

(c) Upon approval of the Landscape Documentation Package by the City of Los Banos, the 
project applicant shall: 

(1) receive a permit or approval of the plan check or design review and record the date 
of the permit in the Certificate of Completion; 

(2) submit a copy of the approved Landscape Documentation Package along with 
the record drawings, and any other information to the property owner or his/her 
designee; and 

(3) submit a copy of the Water Efficient Landscape Worksheet to the City of Los Banos. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government COde. 

§ 10·2.03.02 Penalties. 

(a) Title 1, Chapter 2, of this code established the administrative enforcement of remedies for 
violations of this Code and applicable State Codes. The general remedies include administrative 
abatement, summary abatement, civil penalties, administrative citations. recordation of notices 
of violation and mediation. The City of los Banos may pursue any of these administrative 
remedies for violations of this chapter. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Govemment Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10·2.03.03 Elements of the Landscape Documentation Package. 

(a) The landscape Documentation Package shall include the following six (6) elements: 
(1) project information; 

(A) date 
(B) project applicant 
(C) project address (ff available, parcel andlor lot number(s)) 
(D) total landscape area (square feet) 
(E) project type (e.g., new, rehabilitated, public, private, cemetery, homeowner

installed) 
(F) water supply type (e.g., potable, recycled, well) and identify the local retail 

water purveyor if the applicant is not served by a private well 
(G) checklist of all documents in landscape Documentation Package 
(H) project contacts to include contact information for the project applicant and 

property owner 
(I) applicant signature and date with statement, "I agree to comply wfth the 

requirements of the water efficient landscape ordinance and submit a 
complete Landscape Documentation Pack.ageb

. 

(2) Water Efficient Landscape Worksheet; 
(A) hydrazone information table 
(B) water budget calculations 

1. Maximum Applied Water Allowance (MAWA) 

7 



2. Estimated Total Water Use (ETWU) 
(3) soil management report; 
(4) landscape design plan; 
(5) irrigation design plan; and 
(6) grading design plan. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Govemment Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.03.04 Water Efficient Landscape Worksheet. 

(a) A project applicant shall complete the Water Efficient Landscape Worksheet which contains 
two sections (see sample worksheet in Section 10-2.07): 

(1) a hydrozone information table (see 10-2.07. Part A) for the landscape 
project; and 

(2) a water budget calculation ( see Section 10-2.07, Part B) for the landscape project. 
For the calculation of the Maximum Applied Water Allowance and Estimated Total 
Water Use, a project applicant shall use the ET 0 values from the Reference 
Evapotranspiration Table in Section 10·2.06. For geographic areas not covered in 
Section 10-2.06, use data from other cHies located nearby in the same reference 
evapotranspiration zone, as found in the elMIS Reference Evapotranspiration 
Zones Map, Department of Water Resources, 1999. 

(b) Water budget calculations shall adhere to the following requirements: 
(1) The plant factor used shall be from WUCOLS. The plant factor ranges from a to 

0.3 for low water use plants, from 0.4 to 0.6 for moderate water use plants, and 
from 0.7 to 1.0 for high water use plants. 

(2) All waterfeatures shall be included in the high water use hydrozone and 
temporarily irrigated areas shall be included in the low water use hydrozone. 

(3) All SpeCial Landscape Areas shall be identified and their water use calculated as 
described below. 

(4) ETAF for Special landscape Areas shall not exceed 1.0. 

(c) Maximum Applied Water Allowance 
The Maximum Applied Water Allowance shall be calculated using the equation: 

MAWA = (ETo) (0.62) [(0.7 x LA) + (0.3 x SLA)j 

The example calculations below are hypotheticai10 demonstrate proper use of the equations 
and do not represent an existing and/or planned landscape project. The ETo values used in 
these calculations are from the Reference Evapotranspiration Table in Section 10-2.06, for 
planning purposes only. For actual irrigation scheduling, automatic irrigation controllers are 
required and shall use current reference evapotranspiration data, such as from the California 
Irrigation Management Information System (elM IS), other equivalent data, or soil moisture 
sensor data. 

(1) Example MAWA calculation: a hypothetical landscape project in Los Banos wHh 
an irrigated landscape area of 50,000 square feet w~hout any Special landscape 
Area (SLA= 0, no edible plants, recreational areas, or use of recycled water). To 
calculate MAWA, the annual reference evapotranspiration value for Los Banos is 
50.0 inches as listed in the Reference Evapotranspiration Table in Section 10-2.06. 
MAWA = (ETo) (0.62) [(0.7 x LA) + (0.3 x SLA)j 
MAWA = Maximum Applied Water Allowance (gallons per year) 
ET 0 = Reference Evapotranspiration (inches per year) 
0.62 = Conversion Factor (to gallons) 
0.7 = ET Adjustment Factor (ETAF) 
LA = Landscape Area including SLA (square feet) 
0.3 = AddITional Water Allowance for SLA 
SLA = Special landscape Area (square feet) 
MAWA = (50.0 inches) (0.62) [(0.7 x 50,000 square feet) + (0.3 x 0)) 
= 1,085,000 gallons per year 
To convert from gallons per year to hundred-cubic-feet per year: 
= 1,085,0001748 = 1,451 hundred-cubic-feet per year (100 cubic feet = 748 

gallons) 

(2) In this next hypothetical example, the landscape project in Los Banos has the 
same ETo value of 50.0 inches and a total landscape area of 50,000 square 
feet. Within the 50,000 square foot project, there is now a 2,000 square foot 
area planted with edible plants. This 2,000 square foot area is considered to be 

8 



a Special Landscape Area. 
MAWA = (ETo) (0.62) [(0.7 x LA) + (0.3 x SLA)J 
MAWA = (50.0 inches) (0.62) [(0.7 x SO,OOO square feet) + (0.3 x 2,000 square feet)] 
= 31 x [35,000 + 600J gallons per year 
= 31 x 35,600 gallons per year 
=1,103,600 gallons per year or 1,475 hundred-<:ubic·feat per year 

(d) Estimated Total Water Use. 
The Estimated Total Water Use shall be calculated using the equation below. The sum ofthe 
Estimated Total Water Use calculated for all hydrozones shall not exceed MAWA. 

ETWU = (ETO)(O.62{ PF;'HA +SLA) Where: 

ETWU = Estimated Total Water Use per year 
(gallons) 

ETo 
PF 
HA 
SLA 
0.62 
IE 

= Reference Evapotranspiration (inches) 
= Plant Factor from WUCOlS (see Section 10-2.02) 
= Hydrozone Area [high, medium, and low water use areasJ (square feet) 
= Special landscape Area (square feet) 
= Conversion Factor 
= Irrigation Efficiency (minimum 0.71) 

(1) Example ETWU calculalion: landscape area is 50,000 square feet; planl water 
use type, plant factor, and hydrozone area are shown in the table below. The 
ETo value is 50.0 inches per year. There are no Special landscape Areas 
(reereational area, area pemnanenlly and solely dedicated to edible plants, and 
area irrigaled with recycled water) in Ihis example. 

Hydrazone Plant Waler Planl Factor Hydrozone PFxHA 
Use Type(s) (PF)' 

1 ;iah 13.. 
2 ;iah 
3 

\4 .ow 
5 .ow .2 

'Plant • oo<v. • v,,1 WlleOI S 

ETWU = (50.0)(0.62)(24,700 + 0 I) 
0.71 

= 1,078,459 gallons per year 

Area (HA) 
(SQuare feel) 

(square feat) 

~ 
i.600 

21 00 
OG 10 2.000 

um 24,700 

Compare ETWU with MAWA: For Ihis example MAWA = (50.0) (0.62) [(0.7 x 50,000) + (0.3 
x O)J = 1,085,000 gallons per year. The ETWU (1,078,459 gallons per year) is less than 
MAWA (1,085,000 gallons per year). In this example, Ihe water budget complies with the 
MAWA. 

~. 

(2) Example ETWU calculation: total landscape area is 50,000 square feet, 2,000 
square feel of which is planted with edible plants. The edible planl area is 
considered a Special Landscape Area (SLA). The reference evapotranspiration 
value is 50.0 inches per year. The plant type, plant factor, and hydrozone area 
are shown in the table below. 

Hydrozone 
Hydrazone Plant Water Plant Factor Area (HA) PFxHA 

Use Type(s) i (PF)"._ .. (square Feet) (square feet) 
1 ~-.~ ... 0.8 7,000 5,600 
2 0.7 9,000 6,300 
3 Medium 0.5 15,000 7,500 
4 low 

---~-

0.3 7,000. __ . 2,100 
,5 low 

0.2 -.----.--
10,000 2,000 

I Sum 23,500 
16 SLA 1.0 2,000 2,000 -'-. Plant Factor from WUCOlS 

9 



ETWU = (50.0 )(0.62i23,500 + 2,000) 
\ 0.71 

= (31) (33,099 + 2,000) 
= 1,088,069 galions per year 

Compare ElWU with MAWA For this example: 
MAWA = (50.0) (0.62) (0.7 x 50,000) + (0.3 x 2,000)] 
= 31 x (35,000 + 600J 
= 31 x 35,600 
=1,103,600 galions per year 

The ETWU (1,088,069 gallons per year) is less than MAWA (1,103,600 galions per year). 
For this example, the water budget complies with the MAWA 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Govemment Code. 

§ 10-2.03.05 Soil Managemenl Report. 

(a) In order to reduce runoff and encourage heanhy plant growth, a soil management report 
shall be completed by the project applicant, or hisfher designee, as follows: 

(1) Submit soil samples to a laboratory for analysis and recommendations. 
(A) Soil sampling shall be conducted in accordance with laboratory protocol, 

including protocols regarding adequate sampling depth for Ihe intended 
plants. 

(B) The soil analysis may include: 
1. soil texture; 
2. infiltration rate determined by laboratory test or soil texture infiltration 

rate table; 
3. pH; 
4. total soluble salts; 
5. sodium; 
6. percent organic matter; and 
7. recommendations. 

(2) The project applicant, or his/her designee, shall comply w~h one of the 
following: 

(A) If significant mass grading is not planned, the soil analysis report shall 
be subm',tted to the City of Los Banos as part of the Landscape 
Documentation Package; or 

(B) tf significant mass grading is planned, the soil analysis report shall be 
submitted 10 the C~ of Los Banos as part of the Certificate of 
Completion. 

(3) The soil analysis report shall be made available, in a timely manner, to 
the profeSSionals preparing the landscape design plans and irrigation 
design plans to make any necessary adjustments to the design plans. 

(4) The project applicant, or his/her designee, shall submit documentation 
verifying implementation of soil analysis report recommendations to 
the City of Los Banos with Certificate of Completion. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.03.06 Landscape Design Plan. 

(a) For the efficient use of water, a landscape shall be carefully designed and planned for the 
intended function of the project. A landscape design plan meeting the following deSign 
criteria shall be submitted as part of the Landscape Documentation Package. 

(1) Plant Material 
(A) Any plant may be selected for the landscape, providing the Estimated Total 

Water Use in the landscape area does not exceed the Maximum Applied 
Water Allowance. To encourage the efficient use of water, the following is 
highly recommended: 

1. protection and preservation of native species and natural vegetation; 
2. selection of water-conserving plant and turf species; 
3. selection of plants based on disease and pest resistance; 
4. selection of trees based on approved local tree and tree shading 

guidelines as specified in the City of Los Banos Standards and 
Specifications; and 

10 

".-~-------. 



5. selection of plants from approved local and regional landscape 
program plant lists as specified in the City of Los Banos 
Standards and Specifications. 

(B) Each hydrozone shall have plant materials with similar water use, with the 
exception of hydrozones with plants of mixed water use, as 
specified in Section 10-2.03.07(a)(2)(0). 

(C) Plants shall be selected and planted appropriately based upon their 
adaptability to the climatic, geologic, and topographical conditions of 
the project site. To encourage the efficient use of water, the fot/owing 
is highly recommended: 

1. use the Sunset Westem Climate Zone System which takes into 
account temperature, humidity, elevation, terrain, latitude, and 
varying degrees of continental and marine influence on local climate; 

2. recognize the horticutlural attributes of plants (i.e., mature plant size, 
invasive surface roots) to minimize damage to property or 
infrastructure [e.g., buildings, sidewalks, power lines]; and 

3. consider the solar orientation for plant placement to maximize summer 
shade and winter solar gain. 

(0) Turf is not allowed on slopes greater than 25% where the toe of the slope is 
adjacent to an impermeable hardscape and where 25% means 1 foot of 
vertical elevation change for every 4 feet of horizontal length (rise divided by 
run x 100 = slope percent). 

(E) A landscape design plan for projects in fire-prone areas shall address 
fire safety and prevention. A defensible space or zone around a 
building or structure is required per Public Resources Code Section 
4291 (a) and (b). Avoid fire-prone plant materials and highly flammable 
mulches. 

(F) The use of invasive andlor noxious plant species is strongly discouraged. 
(G) The architectural guidelines of a common interest development, which 

include community apartment projects, condominiums, planned 
developments, and stock cooperatives, shall not prohibit or include 
conditions Ihat have the effect of prohibiting the use of low-water use 
plants as a group. 

(2) Waler Features 
(A) Recirculating water systems shall be used for water features. 
(B) Where available, recycled water shall be used as a source for decorative 

water features. 
(C) Surface area of a water fealure shall be included in the high water use 

hydrazone area of the water budget calculation. 
(0) Pool and spa covers are highly recommended. 

(3) Mulch and Amendments 
(A) A minimum two inch (2") layer of mulch shall be applied on all exposed soil 

surfaces of planting areas except in turf areas, creeping or rooting 
groundcovers, or direct seeding applications where mulch is 
contraindicated. 

(8) Stabilizing mulching products shall be used on slopes. 
(C) The mulching portion of the seed/mulch slurry in hydro-seeded 

applications shall meel the mulching requirement. 
(D) Soi! amendments shall be incorporated according to recommendations of 

the soil report and what is appropriate for the plants selected (see Section 
1 Q.2.03.05) 

(b) The landscape deSign plan, at a minimum, shall: 
(1) delineate and label each hydrazone by number, letter, or other method; 
(2) identify each hydrazone as low, moderate, high water, or mixed water use. 

Temporarily irrigated areas of the landscape shall be included in the low water 
use hydrazone for the water budget calculation; 

(3) identify recreational areas; 
(4) identify areas permanently and solely dedicated to edible plants; 
(5) identify areas irrigated with recycled water; 
(6) identify type of mulch and application depth; 
(7) identify soil amendments, type, and quantlly; 
(8) identify type and surface area of water features; 
(9) identify hardscapes (pervious and non-pervious); 
(10) identify location and installation details of any applicable stonnwater best 

management practices that encourage on-site retention and infiltration of 
stormwater. Storrnwater best management practices are encouraged in the 
landscape design plan and examples include, but are not limited to: 

11 



(A) infinration beds, swales, and basins that allow water to collect and soak into 
the ground; 

(B) constructed wetlands and retention ponds that relain water, handle 
excess flow, and fi~er pollutants; and 

(C) pervious or porous surfaces (e.g., permeable pavers or blocks, 
pervious or porous concrete, etc.) that minimjze runoff. 

(11) identify any applicable rain harvesting or catchmenl technologies (e.g., rain 
gardens, cisterns, etc.); 

(12) conlain the follOwing statement: "I have complied w~h the criteria of the 
ordinance and applied them for the efficient use of water in the landscape 
design plan"; and 

(13) bear the signature of a licensed landscape architect, licensed landscape 
contractor, or any other person authorized to design a landscape. (See Sections 
5500.1,5615,5641,5641.1,5641.2,5641.3,5641.4,5641.5,5641.6, 6701, 7027.5 
of the Business and Professions Code, Section 832.27 of Hle16 of the California 
Code of Regulations, and Section 6721 of the Food and AgricuHure Code.) 

Note: AuthOrity Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code 
and Sect jon 1351, Civil Code. 

§ 10·2,03.07 Irrigation DeSign Plan. 

(a) For the efficient use of water, an irrigation system shall meet aI/ the reqUirements listed in 
this section and the manufacturers' recommendations. The irrigation system and its related 
components shall be planned and designed to allow for proper installation, management, 
and maintenance. An irrigation design plan meeting the following design criteria shall be 
submitted as part of the Landscape Documentation Package. 

(1) System 
(A) Dedicated landscape water meters are highly recommended on landscape 

areas smaller than 5,000 square feet to facilitate water management. 
(B) Automatic irrigation controllers utilizing errher evapotranspiration or 

soil moisture sensor data shall be required for irrigation scheduling in 
all irrigation systems. 

(C) The inigation system shall be designed to ensure that the dynamiC 
pressure at each emission device is within the manufacturer's 
recommended pressure range for optimal performance. 

1. If the static pressure is above or below the required dynamic 
pressure of the irrigation system, pressure-regulating devices 
such as in line pressure regulators, booster pumps, or other 
devices shall be installed 10 meet the required dynamic 
pressure of the irrigation system, 

2, Static water pressure, dynamic or operating pressure. and flow 
reading of the water supply shall be measured al the point of 
connection. These pressure and flow measurements shall be 
conducted at the deSign stage. If the measurements are not 
available at the design stage, the measurements shall be 
conducted at installation. 

(D) Sensors (rain, freeze, wind), either integral or auxiliary, thaI 
suspend or alter irrigation operation during unfavorable weather 
conditions shall be required on all irrigation systems, as appropriate 
for loca! climatic conditions. Irrigation should be avoided during windy 
or freezing weather or during rain. 

(E) Manual shut-of! valves (such as a gale valve, ball valve, or butterfly 
valve) shall be required, as close as possible to the point of 
connection of the water supply, to minimize water loss in case of an 
emergency (such as a main line break) or routine repair. 

(F) Approved backflow prevention devices shall be required 10 protect the water 
supply from contamination by the irrigation system. A project applicant 
shall refer to the City of los Banos Standards and Speclfications for 
additional backflow prevention requirements. 

(G) High flow sensors that delect and report high flow conditions created by 
system damage or malfunction are recommended. 

(H) The irrigation system shall be designed to prevent runoff, low head 
drainage, overspray, or other similar conditions where irrigation water 
flows onto non-targeted areas, such as adjacent property, non~irrigated 
areas, hardscapes, roadways, or structures. 

(I) Relevant information from the soil management plan, such as soil type 
and infiltration rate, shall be utilized when designing irrigation systems. 

12 

- ... _--... --.. --- .. -------.. ~----.~--"---~---------



(J) The design of the irrigation system shall conform to the hydrozones of 
the landscape design plan. 

(K) The irrigation system must be designed and installed to meet, at a 
minimum, the irrigation efficiency criteria as described in Section 
10-2.03.04 regarding the Maximum Applied Water Allowance. 

(L) It is highly recommended that the project applicant inquire with the 
Public Works Department about peak water operating demands (on the water 
supply system) and water restrictions that may impact the effectiveness of the 
irrigation system. 

(M) In mulched planting areas, the use of low volume irrigation is required 
to maximize water infiltration into the root zone. 

(N) Sprinkler heads and other emission devices shall have matched 
precipitation rates, unless otherwise directed by the manufacturer's 
recommendations. 

(0) Head to head coverege is recommended. However, sprinkler spacing 
shall be deSigned to achieve the highest possible distribution 
uniformity using the manufacturer's recommendations. 

(P) Swing jOints or o!her riser-protection components are required on all 
risers subject to damage that are adjacent to high traffic areas. 

(Q) Check valves or anti-drain valves are required for all irrigation systems. 
(R) Narrow or irregularly shaped areas, including turf, less than eight (8) 

feet in width in any direction shall be irrigated with subsurface irrigation or 
low volume irrigation system. 

(S) Overhead irrigation shall not be permitted within 24 inches of any non
permeable surface. Allowable irrigation within the setback from non
permeable surfaces may include drip, drip line, or other low flow non
spray technology. The setback area may be planted or unplanted. 
The surfacing of the sl'tback may be mulch or City approved msterial. 
These restrictions may be modified if: 

1. the landscape area is adjacent to permeable surfacing and no runoff 
occurs; or 

2. the adjacent non-permeable surfaces are designed and construcled to 
drain entirely to landscaping; or 

3. the irrigation designer specifies an alternative design or technology, as 
part olthe Landscape Documentation Package and cleany 
demonstrates strict adherence to irrigation system design criteria in 
Section 10-2.03.07(a)(1)(H). Prevention of overspray and runoff must 
be confirmed during the irrigation audit. 

(T) Slopes greater than 25% shall not be irrigated with an irrigation system wah a 
precipitation rate exceeding 0.75 inches per hour. This restriction may be 
modified jf the landscape designer specifies an alternative design or 
technology, as part of the Landscape Documentation Package, and clearty 
demonstrates no runoff or erosion will occur. Prevention of runoff and 
erosion must be confinned during the irrigation audit. 

(2) Hydrozone 
(A) Each valve shall irrigate a hydrozone with similar site, slope, sun exposure, 

soil conditions, and plant materials with similar water use. 
(8) Sprinkler heads and other emission devices shall be selected based on what 

is appropriate for the plant type within that hydrozone. 
(C) Where feasible, trees shall be placed on separate valves from shrubs, 

groundcovers, and turf. 
(0) Individual hydrozones that mix plants of moderate and low water use, or 

moderate and high water use, may be allowed if: 
1. plant factor calculation is based on the proportions of the respective 

plant water uses and their plant factor; or 
2. the plant factor of the higher water using plant is used for calculations. 

(E) Individual hydrozones that mix high and low water use plants shall be 
permitted. 

(F) On the landscape design plan and irrigation design plan, hydrazone areas 
shall be deSignated by number, letter, or other designation. On the irrigation 
design plan, designate the areas irrigated by each valve, and assign a 
number to each valve. Use this valve number in the Hydrozone Information 
Table (10-2.07 Part A). This table can also ass,st with The City of Los Banos 
irrigation audit and programming the controller. 

(b) The irrigation design plan, at a minimum, shall contain: 
(1) location and size of separate water meters for landscape; 
(2) location, type and size of all components of the irrigation system, including 

13 



controllers, main and lateral lines, valves, sprinkler heads, moisture sensing devices. 
rain switches, quick ccuplers, pressure regulators, and backflow prevention devices; 

(3) static water pressure at the pOint of ccnnection to the public water supply; 
(4) flow rate (gallons per minute), application rate (inches per hour), and design 

operating pressure (pressure per square inch) for each station; 
(5) recycled water irrigation systems as specified in Section 10-2.03.14; 
(6) the following statement: "I have ccmplied wrth the criteria of the ordinance and 

applied them accordingly for the efficient use of water in the irrigation design plan"; 
and 

(7) the Signature of a licensed landscape archrtect, certified irrigation deSigner, licensed 
landscape contractor, or any other person authorized to design an irrigation system. 
(See Sections 5500.1, 5615, 5641, 5641.1, 5641.2, 5641.3, 5641.4, 5641.5, 5641.6, 
6701,7027.5 of the Business and Professions Code, Section 832.27 of Title 16 of 
the Cal~ornia Code of Regulations, and Section 6721 of the Food and Agricultural 
Code.) 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10·2.03,08 Grading Design Plan. 

(a) For the efficient use of water, grading of a project srte shall be designed to minimize soil 
erosion, runoff, and water waste. A grading plan shall be submitted as part of the Landscape 
Documentation Package. A comprehensive grading plan prepared by a civil engineer for 
other local agency permits satisfies this requirement. 

(1) The project applicant shall submrt a landscape grading plan that indicates finished 
configurations and elevations of the landscape area including: 

(A) height of graded slopes; 
(B) drainage patterns; 
(C) pad elevations; 
(D) finish grade; and 
(E) stormwater retention improvements, ~ applicable. 

(2) To prevent excessive erosion and runoff, it is highly recommended that project 
applicants: 

(A) grade so that all irrigation and normal rainfall remains within property lines 
and does not drain on to non-permeable hardscapes; 

(8) avoid disruption of natural drainage patterns and undisturbed soil; and 
(C) avoid soil compaction in landscape areas. 

(3) The grading design plan shall contain the following statement: "I have complied with 
the criteria of the ordinance and applied them accordingly for the efficient use of 
water in the grading deSign plan" and shall bear the signature of a licensed 
professional as authorized by law, 

Note: AuthOrity Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Govemment Code. 

§ 10·2.03.09 Certificate of Completion. 

(a) The Certificate of Completion (Section 10-2.08 for a sample certificate) shall include the 
following six (6) elements: 

(1) project information sheet that contains: 
(A) date; 
(B) project name; 
(C) project applicant name, telephone, and mailing address; 
(D) project address and location; and 
(E) property owner name, telephone, and mailing address; 

(2) certification by either the signer of the landscape design plan, the signer of 
the irrigation design plan, or the licensed landscape contractor that the 
landscape project has been installed per the approved Landscape Documentation 
Package; 

(A) where there have been signfficant changes made in the field during 
construction, these "as-builf or record drawings shall be included with 
the certification; 

(3) irrigation scheduling parameters used to set the controller (see Section 10-2.03.10); 
(4) landscape and irrigation maintenance schedule (see Section 1 0-2. 03.11); 
(5) irrigation audit report (see Section 10·2.03.12); and 
(6) soil analysis report, if not submitted with Landscape Documentation Package, and 

documentation verifying implementation of soil report recommendations (see Section 
10-2.03.05). 

14 



(b) The project applicant shall: 
(1) submit the signed Certificate of Completion to the City of Los Banos for review; 
(2) ensure that copies of the approved Certificate of Completion are submilled to the 

Public Works Department and property owner or his or her designee. 

(c) The City of Los Banos shall. 
(1) receive the signed Certificate of Completion from the project applicant; 
(2) approve or deny the Certificate of Completion. If the Certificate of Completion is 

denied, the City of Los Banos shall provide infonmation to the project appticant 
regarding reappfication, appeal, or other assistance. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Govemment Code. 

§ 10-2.03.10 Irrigation Scheduling_ 

(a) For the efficient use of water, all irrigation schedules shall be developed. managed, and 
evaluated to utilize the minimum amount of water required to maintain plant health. Irrigation 
schedules shall meet the following criteria: 

(1) Irrigation scheduling shall be regulated by automatiC irrigation controllers. 
(2) Irrigation shall be restricted to certain days and times. It shall be unlawful for any 

person to use City supplied water for irrigation of lawn, landscaping, et cetera, 
between the hours of 11:00 AM. and 7:00 P.M. on any day of the week. beginning 
May 1, through September 30. Usage of water for the aforesaid purposes during 
allowable shall be restricted to Sundays. Wednesdays, and Fridays of each week on 
the even numbered side of any street; and Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays of 
each week on the odd numbered side of any street. Watering shall be prohibHed on 
Mondays. "Even-numbered side of any street" shall mean that side of this street on 
which the house numbers end in even figures. wOdd-numbered side of any streeF 
shall mean that side of the street on which the house numbers end in odd figures. 
New plantings, such as new lawns, ground coverings, or bedding plants may be 
watered every day providing the following conditions are met: 

(A) New lawns, ground coverings, or bedding plants shall not include reseeding 
of existing lawns or replacement of existing ground cover, or bedding plants, 
and 

(8) New lawns, ground coverings, or bedding plants shall be considered new for 
a period of one (1) year from planting date. 

(3) For implementation of the irrigation schedule, particular attention must be paid to 
irrigation run times, emission device, flow rate, and current reference 
evapotranspiration, so that applied water meets the Estimated Total Water Use. Total 
annual applied water shall be less than or equal to Maximum Applied Water 
Allowance (MAWA). Actual irrigation schedules shall be regulated by automatic 
irrigation controllers using current reference evapotranspiration data (e.g., eIMIS) or 
soil moisture sensor data. 

{4} Parameters used to set the automatic controller shall be developed and submitted for 
each of the following: 

(A) the plant establishment period; 
(B) the established landscape; and 
(C) temporarily irrigated areas. 

(5) Each irrigation schedule shall consider for each station all of the following that apply: 
(A) irrigation interval (days between irrigation); 
(8) irrigation run times (hours or minutes per irrigation event to avoid runoff); 
(C) number of cycle starts required for each irrigation event to avoid runoff; 
(0) amount of applied water scheduled to be applied on a monthly basis; 
(E) application rate selling; 
(F) root depth selling; 
(G) plant type selling; 
(H) soil type; 
(I) stope factor setting; 
(J) shade factor selling; and 
(K) irrigation uniformity or efficiency setting. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Govemment Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.03.11 Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Schedule. 

(a) Landscapes shall be maintained to ensure water use efficiency. A regular maintenance 
schedule shall be submitted with the Certificate of Completion. 

15 

------------_._._---._------.~-------------------



(b) A regular maintenance schedule shall include, but not be limited to, routine inspection; 
adjustment and repair of the irrigation system and its components; aerating and dethatching 
turf areas; replenishing mulch; fertilizing; pruning; weeding in all landscape areas, and 
removing and obstruction to emission devices. Operation of the irrigation system outside the 
normal watering window is allOWed for auditing and system maintenance. 

(c) Repair of all irrigation equipment shall be done with the originally installed components or 
their equivalents. 

(d) A project appflcant is encouraged to implement sustainable or environmentally-friendly 
practices for overall landscape maintenance. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10·2.03,12 Irrigation Audi~ Irrigation Survey, and Irrigation Water Use Analysis, 

(a) All landscape irrigation audits shall be conducled by a certified landscape irrigation auditor. 

(b) For new construction and rehabilitated landscape projects installed after January 1, 2010, as 
described in Section 10·2.01.01: 

(1) the project applicant shall submit an irrigation audit report with the Certificate of 
Completion to the City of Los Banos that may include, but is not limited to: inspection, 
system tune-up, system test with distribution un~orrnity, reporting overspray or run off 
that causes overland flow, and preparation of an irrigation schedule; 

(2) the City of Los Banos shall administer programs that may include, but not be limited 
to, irrigation water use analYSis, irrigation audits, and irrigation surveys for 
compliance with the Maximum Applied Water Allowance. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10·2,03.13 Irrigation Efficiency, 

(a) For the purpose of determining Maximum Applied Water Allowance, average irrigation 
efficiency is assumed to be 0.71. Irrigation systems shall be designed, maintained, and 
managed to meet or exceed an average landscape irrigation efficiency of 0.71. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10·2,03.14 Recycled Water, 

(a) The installation of recycled water irrigation systems shall allow for the current and future use 
of recycled water, unless a written exemption has been granted as described in Section 
lQ.2.03.14(b). 

(b) Irrigation systems and decorative water features shall use recycled water unless a written 
exemption has been granted by the local water purveyor stating that recycled water meeting 
all public health codes and standards is not available and will not be available for the 
foreseeable future. 

(c) AU recycled water irrigation systems shall be designed and operated in accordance with all 
applicable local and State laws. 

(d) Landscapes using recycled water are considered Special Landscape Areas. The ET 
Adjustment Factor for Special Landscape Areas shall not exceed 1.0. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Govemment Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10·2.03,15 Stormwater Management. 

(a) Storrnwater management practices minimize runoff and increase infiltration which recharges 
groundwater and improves water quality. Implementing stormwater best management 
practices into the landscape and grading design plans to minimize runoff and to increase on
site retention and infiltration are encouraged. 

(b) Project applicants shall refer to the City of Los Banos PubliC Works Department for 
information on any applicable stormwater ordinances and stormwater management plans. 

16 



(c) Rain gardens, cisterns, and other landscapes features and practices that increase rainwater 
capture and create opportunities for infiltration andlor onsne storage are recommended. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2_03.16 Public Educa~on. 

(a) Publications. Educa1ion is a critical component to promote the efficient use of water in 
landscapes. The use of appropriate principles of design, installation, management and 
maintenance that save water is encouraged in the communITy. 

(1) The City of Los Banos shall provide inronnation to owners of new, single-family 
residential homes regarding the design, installation, management, and maintenance 
of water efficient landscapes. 

(b) Model Homes. All model homes that are landscaped shall use signs and written infonnation 
to demonstrate the principles of water efficient landscapes described in this ordinance. 

(1) Signs shall be used to identify the model as an example of water efficient 
landscape featuring elements such as hydrozones, irrigation equipment, and others 
that contribute to the overall water efficient theme. 

(2) Information shall be provided about designing, installing, managing, and maintaining 
water efficient landscapes. 

Note: AuthOrity Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.03.17 Environmental Review. 

(a) The City of Los Banos must comply wtth the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
as appropriate. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 21082, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 21080,21082, Public 
Resources Code. 

§ 10·2.04 Provisions for Existing landscapes. 

(a) The City of Los Banos may deSignate another agency, such as a water purveyor, to 
implement some or all of the reqUirements contained in this ordinance. Local agenci~s may 
collaborate with water purveyors to define each entity's specific responsibilities relating to 
this ordinance. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.04.01 Irrigation Audit, Irrigation Survey, and Irrigation Water Use Analysis. 

(a) This section, 10-2.04.01, shall apply to all existing landscapes that were installed before 
January 1, 2010 and are over one acre in size. 

(1) For all landscapes in 10-2.04.01 (a) that have a water meter, the City of Los Banos 
shall administer programs that may include, but not be limited to, irrigation water use 
analyses, irrigation surveys, and irrigation audits to evaluate water use and provide 
recommendations as necessary to reduce landscape water use to a level that does 
not exceed the Maximum Applied Water Allowance for existing landscapes. The 
Maximum Appfied Water Allowance for existing landscapes shall be calculated as: 
MAWA = (0.8) (ETo)(LA)(0.62). 

(2) For all landscapes in 10-2.04.01(a), that do not have a meter, the City of Los Banos 
shall administer programs that may include, but not be limited to, irrigation surveys 
and irrigation audits to evaluate water use and provide recommendations as 
necessary in order to prevent water waste. 

(b) All landscape irrigation audits shall be conducted by a certified landscape 
irrigation auditor. 

Note: Authority Clted: Section 65595, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-4.02.02 Water Waste Prevention. 

(a) The City of Los Banos shall prevent water waste resulting from inefficient landscape 
irrigation by prohibiting runoff from leaving the target landscape due to low head drainage, 
overspray, or other similar conditions where water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated 

17 



areas, walks, roadways, parking lots, or structures. No person shall allow water to run or 
waste from one's property onto a City street or right-of-way to such an extent that water 
shall flow in the streeUgutter excessively beyond the frontage of the property occupied by 
such person; nor to flow excessively off the occupied property into the streeUgutter; nor to 
continuously fall upon a public right of way or adjoining property such as to significantly 
contribute to gutter flow; nor to excessively flow onto or continuously upon adjoining 
properties or an alley 

Penalties for violation of these prohibitions are set forth Los Banos Municipal Code Title 4 
Chapter 11. 

(b) Restrictions regarding overspray and runoff may be modified if: 
(1) the landscape area is adjacent to permeable surfacing and no runoff occurs; or 
(2) the adjacent non-penneable surfaces are designed and constructed to drain entirely 

to landscaping. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 65594, Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Government Code. 

§ 10-2.05 Effective Precipitation. 

(a) A local agency may consider Effective PreCipitation (25% of annual precipitation) in tracking 
water use and may use the following equation to calculate Maximum Applied Water 
Allowance: MAWA= (ETo - Eppt) (0.62) [(0.7 x LA) + (0.3 x SLA)]. 

Note: Authority Cited: Section 65595. Government Code. Reference: Section 65596, Govemment Code. 

§ 10-02.06 Reference Evapotranspiration (ETo) Table". 

<a) The following is the referenoe Evapotranspiration (ETa) Table lor the Cfty of Los Banos: 

Los Banos 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul 
1.0 1.5 32 4.7 6.1 7.4 8.2 

* The values in this table were derived from: 

Aug Sep Oct 
7.0 5.3 3.4 

1) California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS); 

Nov Dec 
1.4 0.7 

2) Reference EvapoTranspiration Zones Map, UC Dept. of Land, Air & Water 
Resources and Cal~omia Dept of Water Resources 1999; and 

Annual 
ETo 
50.0 

3) Reference Evapotranspiration for California, University of California, Department of 
Agricu~ure and Natural Resources (1987) Bulletin 1922, 

4) Determining Daily Reference Evapotranspiration, Cooperative Extension UC DiviSion 
of Agricu~ure and Natural Resources (1987). Publication Leafiet 21426 

§ 10-02.07 Water Efficient Landscape Worksheet. 

WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE WORKSHEET 
This worksheet is filled out by the project applicant and it is a required element of the Landscape Documentation 
Package. Please complete all sections (A and 8) of the worksheet. 

PART A. HYDROZONE INFORMATION TABLE 
Please complete the hydrozone tabJe(s) for each hydrazone. Use as many tables as necessary to provide the square 
footage of landscape area per hydrozone. 

Irrigation Area % of 
Hydrazone· Zone or Valve Method.... (Sq.Ft.) Landscape Area 

/---+----_____�e--.--+----+'--.-~--

/---+------+--+---+----_._----
f-----+-----+----+--.,-----".-
f--~-·I---__j--_+-_____I---,--·

I---~r_--_+--t_--i-----~'--

18 



PART B. WATER BUDGET CALCULATIONS 

Part 81. Maximum Applied Water Allowance (MAWA) 

The project's Maximum Applied Water Allowance shall be calculated using this equation: 

MAWA = (ETo) (0.62) [(0.7 x LA) + (0.3 x SLA)1 

where: 

MAWA 
ETo 
0.7 
LA 
0.62 
SLA 
0.3 

= Maximum Applied Water Allowance (gallons per year) 
= Reference Evapotranspiration from Appendix A Onches per year) 
= ET Adjustment Factor (ETAF) 
= Landscaped Area includes Special Landscape Area (square feet) 
= Conversion factor (to galloflS per square foot) 
= Portion of the landscape .area identified as Special Landscape Area (square feet) 
= the additional ET Adjustment Factor for Special Landscape Area (1.0 - 0.7 = 0.3) 

Maximum Applied Water Allowance = _________ -"9'allon& per year 

Show calculations. 

Effective Precipitation (Epptl 

If considering Effective Precipitation, use 25% of annual precipitation. Use the following equation to calculate 
Maximum Applied Water Allowance: 

MAWA= (ETo - Eppt) (0.62) [(0.7 x LA) + (0.3 x SLA)1 

Maximum Applied Water Allowance = _________ -"9'allons per year 

ShOW calculations. 

The project's Estimated Total Water Use is calculated using the following formula: 

where: 

ETWU 
ETo 
PF 
HA 
SLA 
0.62 
IE 

= Estimated total water use per year (gallons per year) 
= Reference Evapotranspiration (inches per year) 
= Plant Factor from WUCOLS (see Definitions) 
= Hydrazone Area [high, medium, and low waler use areas] (square feet) 
= Special Landscape Area (square feet) 
= Conversion Factor (to gallons per square foot) 
= Irrigation Efficiency (minimum 0.71) 

19 



Hydrozone Tabkl for Calculatin.9 ETWU 

Please complete the hydrozone table{s). Use as many tables as necessary. 

I Plant Water Plant Factor ~~ (HA) ,t) IPF x HAi 
Hvdrozone I Use Tvpe(sl I (PFl uare feet ; (souare feet) -

r--- I, 
"t - I ---r---

Estimated Total 
Water Use 

--
, ---
1 

-
-

---

I I 
-- Sum 

I I : SLA i ----gallons 

Show calculations. 

§ 10-2.08 Certificate of Completion Package. 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
This certificate is filled out by the project applicant upon completion of the landscape project. 

PART 1 PROJECT INFORMATION SHEET 
Date 

------
Project Name 

Name of Project Applicant Telephone No. 

Fax No. 

-
Tille Email Address 

-
Company Street Address 

~- --
State ! Zip Code 

Property Owner or hislher desi!:m(l(j: 
Name Telephone No. 

Fax No. 

~--Title Email Address 

-- -
Company Street Address 

fc.y- -
Slat, 

-
\ZiPCO~_ 

- --
Property Owner 
"If we certify that l/we have received copies of all the documents within the Landscape Documentation Package and 
the Certificate of Completion and that it is our responsibility to see that the project is maintained in accordance with 
the Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Schedule." 

Property Owner S·lgnature Date 
Please answer the questions below: 
1. Date the Landscape Documentation Package was submitted to the local agency.-::;;::;::::::::::;::::; 
2, Date the Landscape Documentation Package was approved by the local agency:-
3. Date that a copy of the Water Efficient LandSCl?ope Worksheet (including the Water Budget Calculation) 

was submitted to the local water pwveyor _____ _ 

20 



PART 2. CERTIFICATION OF INSTALLATION ACCORDiNG TO THE lANDSCAPE DOCUMENTATION 
PACKAGE 

'I!we certify that based upon periodic site observations, the work has been substantially completed in accordance 
with the ordinance and that the landscape planting and irrigation installation conform with the criteria and 
specifications of the approVed Landscape Documentation Package.· 

Signature" om. 

Name (print) Telephone No. 

Fax-No. 

Tlfle Email Address 

-license No. or Certification No. 

Company Street Address 

City Stale \ Zip Code .. Signer of the landscape design pian, stgner of the Imgation plan, or a licensed landscape contractor. 

PART 3. IRRIGA nON SCHEDULING 
Attach parameters for setting the irrigation schedule on oootroller per ordinance Section 10-2.03.10. 

PART 4. SCHEDULE OF LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE 
Attach schedule of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance per ordinance Section 10-2.03.11. 

PART 5.LAND$CAPE IRRIGATION AUDIT REPORT 
Attach Landscape Irrigation Audit Report per ordinance Section 10-2.03.12. 

PART 6. SOIL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
Attach soil analysis report, if not previously submitted with the Landscape Documentation Packaye per ordinance 
Section 10-2.03.05. 
Attach documentation vertfylng implementation of recommendations from soil analysis report per ordinance Section 
10-2.03.05. 

§ 10-2.09 Fees. 

Landscape and irrigation plan review and inspection fees shall be paid to the City at Public 
Works Department when landscape and irrigation plans are submitted. The amount of the fee is 
established by City Council resolution as recommended by the Parks and Recreation 
Commisson. 

§ 10-2.10 Inspection. 

Upon installation of landscaping and irrigation systems, the installer must contact the Public 
Works Department to request an inspection for compliance with the approved plans before a 
certificate of occupancy will be issued by the Public Works Department. 

Section 2. To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be 
inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior City ordinance, 
motion, resolution, rule or regulation governing the same subject, the terms of this 
Ordinance shall prevail with respect to the subject matter thereof and such inconsistent 
or conflicting provisions of prior ordinances, motions, resolutions, rules or regulations 
are hereby repealed. 

Section 3. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause 
or phrase added by this Ordinance, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be 
unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that anyone or more subsections, subdivisions, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases are declared unconstitutional, invalid or 
ineffective. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force and operation 
thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. The City Clerk shall certify to the 

21 



adoption of this Ordinance and cause the same to be posted and published once within 
fifteen days after passage and adoption as may be required by law; or, in the attemative 
the City Clerk may cause to be published a summary of this Ordinance and a certified 
copy of the text of this Ordinance shall be posted in the Office of the City Clerk five days 
prior to the date of adoption of this Ordinance; and, within fifteen days after adoption, 
the City Clerk shall cause to be published, the aforementioned summary and shall post 
a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the vote for and against the same, in the 
Office of the City Clerk. 

Introduced by Council Member Sousa and seconded by Council Member Villalta 
on the 20·h day of January 201 O. 

Passed on the 3'" day of February 2010 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

AnEST: 

Council Members Faria, Sousa, Stone, Villalta, Mayor Jones 
None 
None 

APPROVED: 

£;P't, :£ )J.ae~ 
Lucille L Mallonee, City Clerk 

22 



WHEREAS: 

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-0038 

TO ADOPT AN EMERGENCY REGULATION 
FOR STATEWIDE URBAN WATER CONSERVATION 

1. On April 25, 2014, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. issued an executive order to 
strengthen the state's ability to manage water and habitat effectively in drought 
conditions and called on all Californians to redouble their efforts to conserve water. The 
executive order finds that the continuous severe drought conditions present urgent 
challenges across the state including water shortages in communities and for agricultural 
production, increased wildfires, degraded habitat for fish and wildlife, threat of saltwater 
contamination, and additional water scarcity if drought conditions continue into 2015. 
The National Integrated Drought Information System reported that nearly 80% of the 
state was reported to be under "extreme" drought conditions at the end of June; 

2. The executive order refers to the Governor's Proclamation No. 1-17-2014, issued on 
January 17, 2014, declaring a State of Emergency to exist in California due to severe 
drought conditions. The January Proclamation notes that the state is experiencing 
record dry conditions, with 2014 projected to become the driest year on record. Since 
January, state water officials indicate that reservOirs, rainfall totals and the snowpack 
remain critically low. This follows two other dry or below average years, leaving 
reservoir storage at alarmingly low levels. The January Proclamation highlights the 
State's dry conditions, lack of precipitation and the resulting effects on drinking water 
supplies, the cuttivation of crops, and the survival of animals and plants that rely on 
California's rivers and streams. The January Proclamation also calls on all Californians 
to reduce their water usage by 20 percent; 

3. There is no guarantee that winter preCipitation will alleviate the drought conditions that 
the executive orders address, which will lead to even more severe impacts across the 
state if the drought wears on; 

4. Water Code section 1058.5 grants the State Water Board the authority to adopt 
emergency regulations in certain drought years in order to: "prevent the waste, 
unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable method of diversion, 
of water, to promote water recycling or water conservation, to require curtailment of 
diversions when water is not available under the diverter's priority of right, or in 
furtherance of any of the foregoing, to require reporting of diversion or use or the 
preparation of monitoring reports"; 

5. Over 400,000 acres of farmland are expected to be fallowed, thousands of people may 
be out of work, communities risk running out of drinking water, and fish and wildlife will 
suffer. 



6. Many Californians have taken bold steps over the years and in this year to reduce water 
use; nevertheless, the dire nature of the current drought requires add~ional conservation 
actions from residents and businesses. Some severely affected communities have 
implemented water rationing, lim~ing water use in some cases to only 50 gallons per 
person per day, foregoing showers, laundry, toilet flushing, and all outdoor watering. 

7. Water conservation is the easiest, most efficient and most cost effective way to quickly 
reduce water demand and extend supplies into the next year, providing flexibility for all 
California communities. Water saved this summer is water available next year, giving 
water suppliers the flexibility to manage their systems efficiently. The more water that is 
conserved now, the less likely it is that a commun~y will experience such dire 
circumstances that water rationing is required; 

8. Most Californians use more water outdoors than indoors. In many areas, 50 percent 
or more of daily water use is for lawns and outdoor landscaping. Outdoor water use 
is generally discretionary, and many irrigated landscapes would not suffer greatly from 
receiving a decreased amount of water; 

9. Public information and awareness is cr~ical to achieving conservation goals and the 
Save Our Water campaign, run jointly by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
and the Association of California Water AgenCies, is an excellent resource for 
conservation infomnation and messaging that is integral to effective drought response 
(http://saveourwate r. com). 

10. Enforcement against water waste is a key tool in conservation programs. When 
conservation becomes a social norm in a community, the need for enforcement is 
reduced or eliminated; 

11. The emergency regulations set a minimum standard requiring only modest lifestyle 
changes across the state. Many communities are already doing more and have been for 
years. They should be commended, but can and should do more. Others are not yet 
doing so and should at least do this, but should do much more given the severity of the 
drought; 

12. On July 8, 2014, the State Water Board issued public notice that the State Water Board 
would consider the adoption of the regulation at the Board's regularly-scheduled 
July 15, 2014 public meeting, in accordance w~h applicable State laws and regulations. 
The State Water Board also distributed for public review and comment a Finding of 
Emergency that complies with State laws and regulations; 

13. On April 25, 2014, the Governor suspended the California Environmental Qual~y Act's 
application to the State Water Board's adoption of emergency regulations pursuant to 
Water Code section 1058.5 to prevent the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable 
method of use, or unreasonable method of diversion of water, to promote water recycling 
or water conservation; 

14. As discussed above, the State Water Board is adopting the emergency regulation 
because of emergency drought conditions, the need for prompt action, and current 
limitations in the existing enforcement process; 

2 



15. Disadvantaged communities may require assistance in increasing water conservation 
and state agencies should look for opportunities to provide assistance in promoting 
water conservation; 

16. Nothing in the regulations or in the enforcement provisions of the regulations, preclude a 
local agency from exercising its authority to adopt more stringent conservation 
measures. Moreover, the Water Code does not impose a mandatory penalty for 
violations of the regulations adopted by this resolution and local agenCies retain their 
enforcement discretion in enforcing the regulations, to the extent authorized, and may 
develop their own progressive enforcement practices to encourage conservation. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The State Water Board adopts California Code of Regulations, title 23, sections 863, 
864, and 865, as appended to this resolution as an emergency regulation; 

2. The State Water Board staff will submit the regulation to the Office of Administrative Law 
(OAL) for final approval; 

3. If, during the approval process, State Water Board staff, the State Water Board, or OAL 
determines that minor corrections to the language of the regulation or supporting 
documentation are needed for clarity or consistency, the state Water Board Executive 
Director or designee may make such changes; 

4. These regulations shall remain in effect for 270 days after filing with the Secretary of 
State unless the State Water Board determines that it is no longer necessary due to 
changed conditions, or unless the State Water Board renews the regulations due to 
continued drought conditions as described in Water Code section 1058.5; 

5. The State Water Board directs staff to provide the Board with monthly updates on the 
implementation of the emergency regulations and their effect; 

6. Directs state Water Board staff to condition funding upon compliance with the 
emergency regulations, to the extent feasible; 

7. Directs State Water Board staff to work with the Department of Water Resources and the 
Save Our Water campaign to disseminate information regarding the emergency 
regulations; and 

8. Directs State Water Board staff in developing an electronic reporting portal to include 
data fields so that local agencies may provide monthly reporting data on (i) conservation
related implementation measures or enforcement actions taken by the local agency and 
(ii) substitution during the drought of potable water with recycled water to extend water 
supplies. 

3 



THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: 

9. The State Water Board commends water suppliers that have increased conservation 
messaging and adopted innovative strategies to enhance customer awareness of water 
use, such as applications that let customers compare their water use to water use by 
others; reduce system losses, such as fixing system leaks which can deplete supplies by 
10 percent or more; and establish incentives to reduce demand, such as tiered or 
drought rate structures. The State Water Board also commends all Californians that 
have already been working to maximize their conservation efforts, both at home and at 
work; 

10. The State Water Board calls upon water suppliers to take the following actions: 

Educate customers and employees 
• Retail water suppliers should provide notice of the regulations in English and 

Spanish in one or more of the following ways: newspaper advertisements, bill inserts, 
website homepage, social media, notices in public libraries; 

• Wholesale suppliers should include reference to the regulations in their customer 
communications; 

• All water suppliers should train personnel on the regulations; 
• All water suppliers should provide signage where recycled or reclaimed water is 

being used for activ~ies that the emergency regulations prohibit with the use of 
potable water, such as operation of fountains and other water features; 

• All water suppliers should redouble their efforts to disseminate information regarding 
opportun~ies and incentives to upgrade indoor fixtures and appliances; 

• All water suppliers should use education and the tools available through the Save 
Our Water website (http://saveourwater.com); and 

• All water suppliers should educate and prepare their boards and councils on the 
drought response actions contained in the emergency regulations and in this 
resolution, and to make sure that drought response ~ems are placed on agendas as 
early as possible; 

Increasing local supplies 
• All water suppliers should accelerate the completion of projects that will conserve 

potable water by making use of non-potable supplies, such as recycled water, 
"greywater," and stormwater collection projects; 

• All water suppliers should improve their leak reporting and response programs and 
request that police and fire departments and other local government personnel report 
leaks and water waste that they encounter during their routine duties/patrols; 

• Smaller water suppliers - those with fewer than 3,000 service connections - should 
take proactive steps to secure their commun~ies' water supplies and educate their 
customers about water conservation and the status of their supply reserves; 

• All water suppliers should conduct water loss aud~s and make leak detection and 
repair a top priority for the duration of the drought; and 

• All urban water suppliers should evaluate their rate structures and begin to 
implement needed changes as part of planning for another dry year. Information and 
assistance on setting and implementing drought rates is available from the Alliance 
for Water Efficiency. (http://www.allianceforwaterefficiency.org/). 

4 



11. The State Water Board calls on all Californians to take the following additional actions: 
• Further reduce water demand, whether by using less water in daily routines indoors 

and out, retrofitting appliances and installing greywater and rainwater catchment 
systems; and 

• Check residential and business water bills to see if there are high charges that may 
indicate a leak and to fix the leak, if they are able, or contact their local water utility if 
they need assistance. 

12. The State Water Board encourages its staff, the Department of Water Resources, the 
Public Utilities Commission, urban water suppliers, and other local agencies to look for 
opportunities to encourage and promote new technologies that reduce water usage, 
including through timely access to water usage information and behavioral response. 

13. The State Water Board encourages all state and local agencies to look for additional 
opportunities to minimize potable water use in outdoor spaces. 

14. The State Water Board encourages investor-owned utilities to expeditiously submit 
applications for implementation of the regulations to the California Public Utilities 
Commission. 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned Clerk to the Board does hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the State Water 
Resources Control Board held on July 15, 2014. 

AYE: 

NAY: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Chair Felicia Marcus 
Vice Chair Frances Spivy-Weber 
Board Member Steven Moore 
Board Member Dorene D'Adamo 

None 

Board Member Tam M. Doduc 

None 

5 

Jeani.n~ Townsend 
Clerk't6 the Board 



PROPOSED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 

Article 22.5. D.-ought Emergency Water Conservation 

Sec. 863 Findings of Drought Emergency 
(a) The State Water Resources Control Board finds as follows: 
(1) On January 17, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a state of 

emergency under the California Emergency Services Act based on drought conditions; 
(2) On April 25, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a continued state of 

emergency under the California Emergencv Services Act based on continued drought 
conditions; 

(3) The drought conditions that formed the basis of the Governor's emergency 
proclamations continue to exist; 

(4) The present year is criticallv drv and has been immediately preceded by two or 
more consecutive below normal, drv, or critically dry years; and 

(5) The drought conditions will likely continue for the foreseeable future and 
additional action by both the State Water Resources Control Board and local water 
suppliers \\~lIlikely be necessary to further promote conservation. 

Authority: Wat, Code, § 1058.5. 
References: Wat. Code, §§ 102. 104, 105. 

Sec. 864 Prohibited Activities in Promotion of Water Conservation 
(a) To promote water conservation, each of the following actions is prohibited, 

except where necessary to address an immediate health and safety need or to comply with 
a term or condition in a permit issued by a state or federal agencv: 

(1) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes 
runoff such that water flows onto adjacent propertv, non-irrigated areas, private and 
public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures; 

(2) The use of a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, except 
where the hose is fitted \\~th a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that causes it to 
cease dispensing water immediately when not in use; 

(3) The application of potable water to driveways and sidewalks; and 
(4) The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water feature, 

except where the water is part of a recircnlating svstem. 
(b) The taking of any action prohibited in subdivision (a) of this section, in 

addition to any other applicable civil or criminal penalties is an infraction punishable bv 
a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500) for each dav in which the violation occurs. 

Authoritv: Wat. Code, § 1058.5. 
References: Wat. Code, §§ 102, 104, 105. 



PROPOSED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 

Sec. 865 Mandatory Actions by Water Suppliers 
(a) The term "urban water supplier," when used in this section, refers to a supplier 

that meets the definition set forth in Water Code section 10617, except it does not refer to 
suppliers when they are functioning solely in a wholesale capacity, but does apply to 
suppliers when they are functioning in a retail capacitv. 

(b)(l) To promote water conservation, each urban water supplier shall implement 
all reqLrirements and actions of the stage of its water shortage contingency plan that 
imposes mandatory restrictions on outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf 
with potable water. 

(2) As an alternative to subdivision (blO)' an urban water supplier mav submit a 
request to the Executive Director for approval of an alternate plan that includes 
allocation-based rate structures that satisfies the reqLrirements of chapter 3.4 
(commencing with section 3701 of division 1 of the Water Code, and the Executive 
Director may approve such an alternate plan upon determining that the rate structure, in 
conjunction with other measures, achieves a level of conservation that would be superior 
to that achieved bv implementing limitations on outdoor irrigation of ornamental 
landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it serves to no more than two davs 
per week. 

(c) To promote water conservation, each urban water supplier that does not have a 
water shortage contingency plan or has been notified bv the Department of Water 
Resources that its water shortage contingency plan does not meet the reqLrirements of 
Water Code section 10632 shall. within thirty (30) davs, limit outdoor irrigation of 
ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it serves to no more than 
two days per week or shall implement another mandatory conservation measure or 
measures intended to achieve a comparable reduction in water consumption by the 
persons it serves relative to the amount consumed in 2013. 

(d) In furtherance of the promotion of water conservation each urban water 
supplier shall prepare and submit to the State Water Resources Control Board bv the 15th 

of each month a monitoring report on forms provided by the Board. The monitoring 
report shall include the amount of potable water the urban water supplier produced 
including water provided by a wholesaler. in the preceding calendar month and shall 
compare that amount to the amount produced in the same calendar month in 2013. 
Beginning October 15, 2014, the monitoring report shall also estimate the gallons of 
water per person per day used bv the residential customers it serves. In its initial 
monitoring report, each urban water supplier shall state the number of persons it serves. 

(e) To promote water conservation, each distributor of a public water supply, as 
defined in Water Code section 350, that is not an urban water supplier shalL \\~thin thirty 
(30) davs, take one or more of the following actions: 

0) Limit outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf \\~th potable water 
bv the persons it serves to no more than two days per week: or 

(2) Implement another mandatory conservation measure or measures intended to 
achieve a comparable reduction in water consumption by the persons it serves relative to 
the amount consumed in 2013. 

Authority: Wat. Code, § 1058.5. 
References: Wat. Code, §§ 102, 104, 105: 350: 10617: 10632. 



5.02 Water Shortage Contingency Planning 

Law 

Actions to be undertaken by the urbsn water supplier to prepare for, and implement during, 8 

catastrophiC interruption of water supplies including, but not limited to, a regional power outage, an 
earthquake, or other disaster (10632(c)). 

Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water shortages, 
including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable water for street cleaning (10632(d). 

Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. Each urban water supplier may use any 
type of consumption reduction methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce 
water use, are appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a water use reduction consistent 
with up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply (10632(e)). 

Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable (10632(f)). 

An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions described in subdivisions (a) to (f). 
inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts, such as the development of reserves and rate adjustments (10632(g)). 

A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance (10632(h)). 

Preparation for Catastrophic Water Supply Interruption 

The City relies solely on groundwater for its source of water supply and is therefore not subject to reduction 
in its water supply like communities that rely on surface water to meet all or a portion of their water demands. 
As discussed in Section 4.02, the Delta-Mendota Subbasin water levels are very stable and in fact have risen 
since 1970 and groundwater in the Los Banos area specifically has been approximately in balance over the 
1989 to 2009 period. In addition, the quality of the groundwater produced by the City wells currently meets 
all drinking water standards. If and when drinking water standards are exceeded at a particular well, the City 
will develop the required groundwater treatment facilities or construct a replacement well if needed. A 
treated surface water supply component may be added to the system in the future as previously discussed. 

As discussed in Section 4.02, because of large volumes of available groundwater and the fact that water 
levels are very stable in the Subbasin and the Los Banos area it is anticipated that groundwater will be able 
to meet all the water supply needs of the City for the next 25 years and beyond, even in drought periods 
such as the severe one year drought experienced in1977 and the prolonged drought of 1987 to 1992.The 
City plans to have groundwater be its supply due to its availabilrty even during extended drought periods. 
However groundwater treatment may eventually be required if not replaced or supplemented by the use of 
treated surface water. 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

The Urban Water Management Planning Act requires that a water shortage contingency analysis be 
prepared to address methods to react to a water shortage Situation, which reduces supply by up to 50 
percent of water available to the City. Because of the City's reliance on groundwater for its supply, a water 
shortage of this magnitude would be due to a catastrophic interruption of water supply caused by a regional 
power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. Conservation measures encouraged or required during a 
water shortage are temporary measures to last only for the duration of the shortage. This Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan presents the City's planned action associated wth different stages of water supply 
shortage up to a 50 percent shortage of supply. Each of these stages is discussed below. 

2010 Urban Water Management Plan 24 



Stages of Action 

The City of Los Banos has three trigger levels which correspond to three water shortage stages. The 
rationing plan includes voluntary and mandatory rationing, depending on the causes, severity, and 
anticipated duration of the water supply shortage. The water shortage stages have reduction in consumption 
goals varying from 10% to 50%. Stage 1, 'Nith a target of between 10% and15% reduction, is effective >Mhen 
available water production is 10% to 15% less than the estimated monthly peak hourly demand. Stage 2, 
'Nith a target of between 15% and 30% reduction, is effective >Mhenever the available water production is 
15% to 30% less than the estimated monthly peak hourly demand. Stage 3, with a target of between 30% 
and 50% reduction, is effective whenever the available water production is 30% to 50% less than the 
estimated monthly peak hourly demand. The shortage stages, the initiating ccnditions and the reduction 
goals are presented in Table 35. 

Table 35. Water Supply Stages and Conditions 

Stage No. Water Supply Conditions % Shortage 

1 (Voluntary) 
Available water production is 10% to 15% less than the 

10to 15 
estimated monthly peak hour demands 

2 (Mandatory) 
Available water production is 15% to 30% less than the 

151030 
estimated monthly peak hour demand 

3 (Mandatory) 
Available water production is 30% to 50% less than the 

30 to 50 estimated monthly peak hour demand 

Catastrophic Supply Interruption Plan 

In the event of a catastrophic water supply interruption immediate measures need to be planned that will 
allow the City to provide a minimum amount of water to customers. Possible catastrophes include a regional 
power outage, terrorism event at selected locations or a natural disaster which affects selected facilities. 

Preparation Actions for a Catastrophe 

Possible Catastrophe Summary of Actions 

Activate emergency backup power and provide public notice through 
Regional power outage broadcasts of emergency and ask customers to reduce consumption 

to essential uses 

Utilize emergency backup power if utility provided power is 
Earthquake interrupted. Immediately implement Stage 2 or Stage 3 demand 

reduction program 

Terrorism event Make use of alternate production facilities as available 

Prohibitions, Penalties and Consumption Reduction Methods 

The first step in a demand reduction program is to prohibit wasteful practices and provide enforcement 
methods. The current City ordinance regulates waste of water and provides penalties for waste and failure to 
comply with any water conservation program the City enacts, such as scheduled days for outdoor watering. 
The penalties range from a first time warning to progressively more severe fines as discussed in Section 
6.13. 

In a water Shortage situation, additional mandatory prohibitions, consumption reduction methods, and 
associated penalties and charges will apply as presented in Tables 36 through 38. The City will notify its 
customers of the implementation of a declared water shortage stage or an increase in the level of the water 
shortage stage. Any customer violating the regulations and restrictions on water use set forth in the 
emergency water shortage resolution adopted by the City Council shall receive a written warning for the first 
such violation. Upon subsequent violations, the customer shall receive written warning and a penalty fee will 
be added to their water bill as shown in Table 38. 

2010 Urban Water Management Plan 25 AECOM 



Table 36. Mandatory Prohibitions 

Examples of Prohibitions Stage When Prohibition Becomes Mandatory 

Washing cars without a shutoff valve on hose Slage 1 

Prohibiting use of water for driveway cleaning Slage 1 

Prohibiting use of water for City street cleaning Slage 2 

No vehicle washing Slage 3 

Table 37. Consumption Reduction Methods 

Slage When Method Projected Reduction 
Consumption Reduction Method Takes Effect (%) 

Voluntary rationing Slage 1 10to 15 

Mandatory irrigation conservation program Slages 1 & 2 15t030 

No new connections Slage 3 None, but no increase 

No refilling of pools Slage 3 1 

Customer allonnents/rate changes Slage 3 30 to 50 

Table 38. Penalties and Charges 

Water Use Violation Penalty/Charge 1 Slage When Penalty Takes Effect 

Water waste violation (Municipal Code Sec. 6-728) $15 Currently in effect 

Water use violation during declared water shortage $30 Slage 2 

Water use violation during declared water shortage $50 Slage 3 

Customer will receive a warning for first offense. Penalties shown are for second offense and will be added to the 
customer's water bill. Penalties for subsequent offenses will be 1SOO,i, of the previous penalty. 

Analysis of Revenue Impacts of Reduced Sales During Shortages 

The City of Los Banos has a fiat rate component in its current rate structure for its residential customers that 
are billed on a volume basis by means of a water meter. The residential flat rate component is currently 
$16.24 per month which includes upto 1,500 cubic feet (ef) of water. Water use in excess of 1,500 cf per 
month is charged at the rate of $1.26 per hundred cubic feet (hcf). The flat rate component of the water rate 
is designed to covered basic operation and maintenance costs and helps mitigate the financial impacts of a 
water shortage. Therefore reduced water sales on a temporary basis will not prevent the continued operation 
of the water system. In addition. the City currently has approximately $100,000 in a water system emergency 
fund. 

Water Shortage Emergency Resolution 

Water use prohibitions and enforcement mechanisms must be approved by City Council resolution. A Draft 
Water Shortage Emergency Resolution is included in Appendix D. The resolution can be mOdified depending 
on the severITY of the drought and can be approved quickly, should an emergency arise. It is not currently 
adopted. as specific conditions of each emergency will likely be added as each emergency arises. 

Water Use Monitoring Mechanisms 

Under normal water supply conditions, potable water production figures are recorded daily. 

During a Stage 1 water shortage, weekly production figures shall be reported to the City Manager. The City 
Manager shall compare the weekly production to the target weekly production to verify that the reduction 

2010 Urban Water Management Plan 26 AS'COM 



goal is being met. Monthly reports shall be sent to the Ctty Council. If reduction goals are not met, the City 
Manager will notify the City Council so that corrective action can be taken. 

During a Stage 2 or Stage 3 water shortage, the procedure listed above will be followed, with the addttion of 
a daily production report to the City Manager. 

During emergency shortages, production figures shall be reported hourly to the City Manager daily. Daily 
reports shall also be provided to the City Council. 

Emergency Preparation 

In preparation for possible electrical service interruptions, all of the City's active wells are equipped wtth dual 
drive equipment. These wells are equipped with backup diesel and natural gas engines to be used in the 
event of a power failure. The backup equipment is routinely maintained and tested to ensure the facilities 
can continue to deliver the full water supply in the event of a power outage. 

Agency Coordination 

The City's preparation for a catastrophic water supply interruption includes coordination with any or all of the 
following agencies depending upon the severity of the actual emergency: 

• Merced County Sheriff Department 
• California Department of Transportation 
• California Office of Emergency Services 
• California Highway Patrol 
• California Department of Water Resources 
• Pacific Gas & Electric Company 
• California Department of Public Health 

5.03 Water Quality 

Law 

The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of existing sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments as described in subdivision (a) of 
Section 10631, and the manner in which water quality affects water management strategies and supply 
reliability (10634). 

The quality of the groundwater available to the City is quite variable. With careful siting of wells and 
selection of aquifer production zones, groundwater meeting the Domestic Water Quality Standards (drinking 
water standards) has been successfully developed to meet the needs of the City. As required by State 
regulations, all wells are equipped with a chlorine injection system. Well No.8 was removed from service in 
2000 when the MCl for uranium, a primary drinking water standard was exceeded. In addition, Well 15 is on 
standby because of elevated arsenic concentrations. Two of the twelve wells exceed the recommended 
limits but are less than the upper limits of the secondary standards for electrical conductivity (EC) and total 
dissolved solids (TDS). Exceeding any secondary standards does not constITute a health issue. Secondary 
standard MCls are set based on consumer acceptability of the supply, as the secondary constituents above 
upper limits may adversely affect taste, odor or appearance of the drinking water. Nitrates and chromium VI 
have also been found in some well water and use of that well water could be impacted by future changes in 
drinking water standards. The quality of the groundwater in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin is further discussed 
in Appendix C and in the "Update on Groundwater Conditions in the Vicintty of the City of los Banos" report. 

The availability of groundwater meeting the standards is limited and therefore the City expects that surface 
water may eventually become a component of its water supply. The estimates of water supply impacts due 
to water quality problems, shown in Table 30, assume that the City will continue to rely solely on 

2010 Urban Water Management Plan 27 



LOS Banos 
i',~' 
l' \ 

Agenda Staff Report 

TO: Mayor & City Council Members 

[0 

FROM: Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 1~J/ij~~~v~ 
DATE: August 6,2014 

SUBJECT: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Los Banos Indefinitely 
Suspending the Collection of All Regional Transportation Impact Fees 
(RTIF) established by Ordinance No. 1031 as Amended and Codified in 
Title 3, Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code 

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing 

Recommendation: 
That the City Council open the Public Hearing, receive public comment, waive the first 
reading, and introduce a new Ordinance indefinitely suspending the collection of All 
Regional Transportation Impact Fees (RTIF). 

Background: 
The main purpose of a regional transportation impact fee is to help plan for and mitigate 
transportation impacts of future growth on the regional transportation system. Local 
traffic impact fees are used to fund local improvements to mitigate cumulative impacts 
to local roadways caused by development. In theory, regional transportation impact 
fees build multi-jurisdictional transportation projects that benefit two or more 
communities. 

Before a new transportation impact fee can be established, the California Mitigation Fee 
Act (AB 1600) requires cities or counties prepare "nexus" calculations, based on project 
cost estimates, land use projections, traffic modeling, and appropriate trip generation 
rates to make sure that the impact fee will primarily benefit new development. Based on 
the project and program nexus, such fees can either fund all, but sometimes only a 
proportionate share of the project needed to accommodate the new development. Fees 
cannot pay for more than the project costs, should not overlap (but can complement) 
existing impact fees and must provide credit for developers who actually construct all or 
a portion of the project for which that the fee is paid. Such fees can only be used for 



capital projects and not be used for operations and maintenance. Impact fees are 
required to have a 5-year capital improvement plan indicating the purpose and use of 
the fee. Therefore, impact fee programs can be used very effectively on project 
development activities (i.e. preliminary engineering, environmental studies or other early 
project phases such as acquisition of right-of-way and/or commitment as a local match 
for other funding to fund construction activities). Although some of the smaller projects 
can be entirely funded with traffic impact fees (if the project is entirely needed because 
of a new development area), regional transportation impact fees are best coordinated in 
a funding package with a variety of other local, regional, state and/or federal funds. 

One of the main advantages of establishing the program is that most state and federal 
transportation programs are very competitive, and require at least 20% of the funding 
mix to come from local funding sources. Therefore, the RTIF would help make Merced 
County agencies' applications more successful, particularly for securing our share of 
larger statewide interregional transportation funds and federal funds. 

Background of Merced County RTIF: 
On July 19, 2001, the MCAG Governing Board unanimously adopted the 2001 Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP). The RTP documented the region's population, housing, and 
economic growth and the need for transportation projects to ensure safety, relieve 
congestion, and maintenance for Merced County's regional transportation system. In 
addition to listing and prioritizing the region's transportation projects and programs, the 
plan's Financial Element documented that the existing financial resources to fund these 
projects were inadequate. The RTP called for pursuing two new sources of funding, a 
local Yo cent sales tax dedicated solely to transportation projects and a regional 
transportation impact fee to mitigate future development impacts on the regional road 
system. 

During the fall/winter of 2001-02, an amendment to the MCAG Joint Powers Agreement 
was submitted and approved by each city council and board of supervisors authorizing 
MCAG to administer a regional transportation impact fee program adopted by 
ordinance, resolution, or other appropriate action by each member agency. 
This unanimous action by each member amended the MCAG JPA to allow MCAG to 
receive the fees from a locally adopted transportation fee program and implement 
transportation projects. Further, as a local program, it meant that a jurisdiction retains 
the individual authority to implement, change, and/or terminate the program. 

Thereafter, a regional road network was defined, growth impacts modeled, and projects 
were identified that would mitigate resultant traffic congestion. 

In July 2004, the MCAG Governing Board adopted the 2004 Regional Transportation 
Plan with a Financial Element that assumed funding resources would be available from 
Regional Transportation Impact Fee program. The 2004 Regional Transportation 
Impact Fee Study includes a project financial plan listing the multiple sources of funds 
that will be used to pay for the identified projects, a uniform mitigation fee, and the "fair
share" fee contributions from vehicle trips beginning or ending in each respective 



jurisdiction. At the January 20, 2005 MCAG Governing Board meeting, the RTIF Study 
was accepted and the RTIF Model Ordinance and RTIF Implementation Agreement 
were transmitted to the City of Los Banos for consideration and action. 

On April 29, 2005 the Los Banos City Council considered the RTIF Implementation 
Agreement and the Model RTIF Ordinance and unanimously approved both. 

Approval of the RTIF Implementation Agreement. The RTIF Implementation Agreement 
amended the MCAG Joint Powers Agreement to permit MCAG to deliver the 
transportation projects identified in the program. Approval of the RTIF Implementation 
Agreement does not commit the City to adopt the fee program. 

Adoption of the RTIF Ordinance. This action enacted the regional transportation impact 
fee. To implement the regional transportation impact fee and start to collect the fee, five 
member jurisdictions needed to adopt the program by ordinance or resolution including 
the Merced County Board of Supervisors and a majority of the cities with a majority of 
the population. 

Effective August 1, 2005, the cities of Atwater, Dos Palos, Los Banos, Merced, and the 
County of Merced began collecting RTIF fees through their local permitting process. 
The City of Gustine began collecting the fee effective August 22, 2005. The City of 
Livingston has not adopted an ordinance or resolution to implement the RTIF program 
fee collection. 

In August of 2008, the City Council adopted a Resolution approving the implementation 
of the updated RTIF study. On April 15, 2009, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 
1086 that established new non-residential RTIF fees, per the approved updated RTIF 
study. 

The Fee Program 
The current RTIF fees that were adopted per Ordinance No. 1086 are: 

• Residential, single-family $3,115 per dwelling unit 

• Residential, multi-family $1,892 per dwelling unit 

• Retail commercial, general $4,146 per 1,000 sq. ft. (Suspended until 3/21/15 
floor area Ordinance No. 1115) 

• Retail commercial, high $12,082 per 1,000 sq. ft. (Suspended until 3/21/15 

turnover floor area Ordinance No. 1115) 

• Retail commercial, low $2,780 per 1,000 sq. ft. (Suspended until 3/21/15 

turnover floor area Ordinance No. 1115) 

• Retail commercial, over $7,161 per 1,000 sq. ft. (Suspended until 3/21/15 



50,000 sq. ft. 

• Office commercial 

• Industrial/Ag processing 

floor area 

$3,337 per 1,000 sq. ft. 
floor area 

$1,409 per 1,000 sq. ft. 
floor area 

Ordinance No. 1115) 

(Suspended until 3/21/15 
Ordinance No. 1115) 

(Suspended until 3/21/15 
Ordinance No. 1115) 

Per the Ordinance all commercial and industrial projects pay the impact fees at the time 
of building permit issuance and all residential projects pay the impact fees at the time of 
issuance of the certificate of occupancy. Since 2005 of the $10,425,316.99 collected by 
all the member cities, the City of Los Banos has collected $1,773,116.89 as follows: 

• FY 2005-06 $ 69,534.00; 

• FY 2006-07 $601,678.57; 

• FY 2007-08 $433,153.29; 

• FY 2008-09 $355,488.97; 

• FY 2009-10 $182,434.83; 

• FY2010-11 $ 58,308.90; 

• FY 2011-12 $ 41,203.34; 

• FY 2012-13 $ 3,115.00; 

• FY 2013-14 $ 28,199.99. 
(3,d Quarter) 

The amount of the fee assessed to a particular project is dependent upon the land use 
category of the specific project based upon the Trip Generation Rate published by the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) as follows: 

• "Residential/Single Family" = Single-family detached homes on individual lots. 

• "Residential/Multiple Family" = Two- and multiple-family dwelling units, including 
apartments, condominiums, and mobile homes in mobile home parks. 

• "Retail Commercial, General" = Retail uses, including but not limited to, discount 
stores, nurseries, automobile sales and service, supermarkets, drugstores, stores 
selling electronics, toys, apparel, etc., video rentals, and other similar uses. 



• "Commercial/High Turnover" = Sit-down and fast food restaurants with or without 
drive-up windows, drinking establishments, convenience markets, gas stations, 
quick lubes, and banks (walk-in and drive-through). 

• "Commercial/Low Turnover" = Specialty retail or strip centers, factory outlets, tire 
stores, home improvement stores, furniture stores, and other similar uses. 

• "Commercial/Greater Than 50,000 Square Feet" = Shopping centers and 
commercial uses defined above with more than 50,000 square feet of floor area. 

• "Office/Commercial" = Professional offices, business parks, business or 
administrative offices, insurance/financial/real estate services, research & 
development, medical or dental services, government offices, and similar uses. 

• "Industrial/Agricultural Processing" = Light and heavy industrial uses, including 
but not limited to: manufacturing, assembly, bottling, printing, cabinet/machine shop, 
wholesale business, warehouses, corporation yards, moving/storage services, 
utilities, lumberyards, canneries, and agricultural food processing. 

Adoption of Ordinance No. 1115 
The Los Banos City Council, on February 19, 2014, adopted Ordinance No. 1115 which 
temporarily suspended the collection of Regional Transportation Impact Fees (RTIF) for 
a period of twelve months from the effective date of the Ordinance for the following land 
use categories: 

Retail commercial, general 
Retail commercial, high tumover 
Retail commercial, low turnover 
Retail commercial, over 50,000 sq. ft. 
Office commercial 
Industrial/Ag processing 

Ordinance No. 1115 will expire on March 21, 2015. 

At the City Council meeting on July 16, 2014, Council directed staff to prepare an 
Ordinance that would indefinitely suspend the collection of all Regional Transportation 
Impact Fees (RTIF) for all land use categories. This Ordinance, if adopted, would go 
into effect 30 days after its final passage and adoption. 

Discussion: 
The Ordinance that is attached allows for the following: 

A) The collection of RTIF fees charged for all land use categories pursuant to 
Title 3 Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code is indefinitely suspended 
from the effective date of this Ordinance for the following land use categories: 



Residential, single-family 
Residential, multi-family 
Retail commercial, general 
Retail commercial, high tumover 
Retail commercial, low turnover 
Retail commercial, over 50,000 sq. ft. 
Office commercial 
Industrial/Ag processing 

B) This Ordinance would not repeal Ordinance No. 1031, as amended by 
Ordinance No. 1073 and Ordinance No. 1086, nor would it amend the rates 
set forth by prior Ordinances or affect the operation of said prior Ordinances, 
except as specifically set forth herein. 

C) No person who has already paid Regional Transportation Impact Fees would 
be entitled to receive a refund, credit, or reimbursement of such payment. 

A Public Hearing notice was published in the Los Banos Enterprise on July 25, 2014. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Since the development impact fees pay for planned infrastructure, the result of this fee 
suspension would be a decrease in the amount of planned regional transportation 
infrastructure that can be funded by the Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) 
program. The magnitude of the impact to the RTIF would largely be dependent on the 
pace of development during the fee suspension period. 

Reviewed by: 

Steve Carrigan, City Manager 

Attachments: 
RTIF Suspension Ordinance 
Public Hearing Notice 



CC 08.06.2014 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LOS BANOS INDEFINITELY SUSPENDING 

THE COLLECTION OF REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES ESTABLISHED 

BY ORDINANCE NO. 1031 AS AMENDED AND 
CODIFIED IN TITLE 3 CHAPTER 18 OF THE LOS 

BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE 

WHEREAS, Development Impact Fees are levied on new development to cover 
the cost of infrastructure or facilities necessitated by that development pursuant to the 
Mitigation Fee Act; and 

WHEREAS, on May 4, 2005, the Los Banos City Council adopted Ordinance No. 
1031 establishing a Regional Transportation Impact Fee - RTIF administered by the 
Merced County Association of Governments; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Los Banos City Council adopted Ordinance 
No. 1105 temporarily suspending the collection of fees charged pursuant to Title 3 
Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code (Regional Transportation Impact Fee -
RTIF) for specified land use categories for a period of twelve months from the effective 
date of the Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013, the Los Banos City Council adopted 
Ordinance No. 1107 temporarily suspending the collection of fees charged pursuant to 
Title 3 Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code (Regional Transportation Impact 
Fee - RTIF) for specified land use categories for an additional period of twelve months 
from the effective date of the Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2014, the Los Banos City Council adopted 
Ordinance No. 1115 temporarily suspending the collection of fees charged pursuant to 
Title 3 Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code (Regional Transportation Impact 
Fee - RTIF) for specified land use categories for an additional period of twelve months 
from the effective date of the Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the City Council is concerned about the Regional Transportation 
Impact Fee Program in terms of the benefits of the Program to the Los Banos Area and 
the Westside of Merced County; and 

WHEREAS, the Ordinance is exempt from the provisions of CEOA, in that it is 
not a project under CEOA pursuant to subdivision (b) (4) of section 15378 of CEOA 
Guidelines, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. 

1 



CC 08.06.2014 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

1. Recitals: The above stated recitals are true and correct. 

2. Indefinite Suspension of Regional Transportation Impact Fee: The collection of 
fees charged pursuant to Title 3 Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code (Regional 
Transportation Impact Fee - RTIF) for the following land use categories is suspended 
indefinitely from the effective date of this Ordinance: 

Residential, single-family 
Residential, multi-family 
Retail commercial, general 
Retail commercial, high turnover 
Retail commercial, low turnover 
Retail commercial, over 50,000 sq. ft. 
Office commercial 
Industrial/Ag processing 

3. Relationship to Prior Ordinances: This Ordinance does not repeal Ordinance No. 
1031 as amended by Ordinance No. 1073 and Ordinance No. 1086, amend the rates 
set forth by said prior Ordinances, alter any finding by said prior Ordinances, or 
otherwise affect the operation of said prior Ordinances except as specifically set forth 
herein. 

4. Effect: No provision of this Ordinance shall entitle any person who has already 
paid Regional Transportation Impact Fees to receive a refund, credit or reimbursement 
of such payment. 

5. CEOA: The City Council finds that the Ordinance is exempt from the provisions 
of CEOA, in that it is not a project under CEOA pursuant to subdivision (b) (4) of section 
15378 of CEOA Guidelines, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, because this 
Ordinance only relates to a governmental funding mechanism, or fiscal activities, which 
do not involve any commitment to any specific project, which may result in a potentially 
significant physical impact on the environment. 

6. Severability: If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause 
or phrase added by this Ordinance, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be 
unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance or any part thereof. 

7. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force and 
operation thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. The City Clerk shall 
certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and cause the same to be posted and published 
once within fifteen days after passage and adoption as may be required by law; or, in 

2 



CC 08.06.2014 

the alternative, the City Clerk may cause to be published a summary of this Ordinance 
and a certified copy of the text of this Ordinance shall be posted in the Office of the City 
Clerk five days prior to the date of adoption of this Ordinance; and, within fifteen days 
after adoption, the City Clerk shall cause to be published, the aforementioned summary 
and shall post a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the vote for and against 
the same, in the Office of the City Clerk. 

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the Los 
Banos City Council on the _ day of 2014 and was adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Los Banos City Council on the _ day of 2014 by the 
followi ng vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 
NOES: Council Members: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille l. Mallonee, City Clerk 

3 



CITY OF LOS BANOS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF LOS BANOS INDEFINTEL Y SUSPENDING THE COLLECTION OF ALL 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE NO.1031 

Where: City Council Chambers 
520 J Street 
Los Banos, California 

When: Wednesday, August 6, 2014 
7:00 PM 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Los Banos will conduct a Public Hearing to receive public 
comment on the consideration of an Ordinance of the City of Los Banos indefinitely suspending the 
collection of all Regional Transportation Impact Fees established by Ordinance No. 1031 as amended 
and codified in Title 3 Chapter 18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code. 

The proposed Ordinance will indefinitely suspend the collection of all Regional Transportation Impact 
Fees (RTIF), and would go into effect 30 days after its final passage and adoption. The proposed 
Ordinance will not amend the rates set by prior Ordinances or affect the operation of prior Ordinances. 
The proposed Ordinance will not entitle any person who has already paid Regional Transportation 
Impact Fees to receive a refund, credit, or reimbursement of payment. 

The Public Hearing will be held at the regular meeting of the Los Banos City Council on Wednesday, 
August 6, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Los Banos City Hall located at 520 J Street, or 
as near as possible thereafter, at which time and place interested persons may appear and be heard 
thereon. Questions regarding the above-referenced item may be directed to Mark Fachin, Public Works 
Director/City Engineer at the Public Works Department, 411 Madison Avenue or at (209) 827-7056. 

All interested persons will be given an opportunity to comment on this item at the Public Hearing. In 
addition, written comments may be submitted to the City Council at or prior to the hearing, mailed to 411 
Madison Avenue, Los Banos, CA 93635, Attention: Mark Fachin, Public Works Director/City Engineer. 
Please reference hearing title and date of hearing in any correspondence. If no comments are received 
prior to or on the above date, it will be assumed that no comment is being offered. The public is also 
informed that should the action by the City Council be challenged in court, court testimony may be limited 
to only those issues raised at the Public Hearing, or by written correspondence received at or prior to the 
Public Hearing, per Government Code Section 65009. 

It is the intention of the City to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If you require 
speCial assistance beyond what is normally provided, the City will attempt to accommodate you in every 
reasonable manner. Please contact the City Clerk's Office at (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting to inform us of your particular needs. 

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 
MARK FACHIN 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER 

Legal July 25,2014 



LOS Banos 
Agenda Staff Report 

TO: Mayor and Council Members 

FROM: Steve Carrigan, City Manage./1/ 
William A. Vaughn, City Attorln':r 

DATE: August 6,2014 

SUBJECT: Submission of By-District Method Election of City Council Members to the 
Voters Pursuant to California Government Code § 34871; Approval of 
Ballot Argument in Favor 

TYPE OF REPORT: Non Consent Agenda 

Recommendation: 
The recommendation from the City Manager and the City Attorney is for the City Council 
of the City of Los Banos to 

1. Adopt Resolution No. _, calling for a special ballot measure election to be held 
in the City of Los Banos on Tuesday, November 4, 2014, in consolidation with 
the statewide general election, at which there will be submitted to the qualified 
electors of the City of Los Banos a ballot measure seeking voter approval to 
provide for the election of the members of the City Council of the City of Los 
Banos by districts in four districts with a separately-elected mayor, elected on a 
Citywide basis. 

2. Adopt Resolution No. _, submitting a ballot argument in favor of the measure 
to the voters, on behalf of the City Council, pursuant to Elections Code section 
9282(b). As part of approving this Resolution, we would ask that the Council 
designate two Councilmembers to provide a rebuttal to any argument against the 
Measure, if one is filed. 

1 



Background: 
On June 4, the Council adopted Resolution No. 5584 to begin the process for 
submission of a by-district election method of City Council-members to the voters at the 
November 4, 2014, statewide election. The City has retained an experienced 
redistricting/demographic consulting firm, National Demographics Corporation ("NDC"), 
and experienced special legal counsel, Nielsen Merksamer Parrinello Gross & Leoni 
LLP ("Nielsen Merksamer"), to advise the City on the process of preparing a Council 
district plan for submission to the voters. Following presentations by NDC and Nielsen 
Merksamer on June 18, 2014, the Council adopted Resolution No. 5587, setting forth 
the criteria to guide the creation of a council district plan. 

On June 25, 2014, an initial set offour draft council district plans, prepared by the City's 
demographic consultant according to the criteria set forth in Resolution No. 5587, were 
made publicly available on the City's website, and at the regular City Council meeting 
on July 2, 2014, the demographic consultant presented the four initial draft council 
district plans to the Council and the members of the public, after which the Council 
solicited public comments on the draft plans. 

At its July 18, 2014, meeting, the Council conducted a duly-noticed public hearing 
regarding the four draft district proposals from the consultant as well as a fifth district 
plan proposed by a member of the public (Public Plan A1). Following the public 
hearing, the Council requested the preparation of a resolution and ordinance for 
submission of draft council district Plan 3 to the voters in November. 

At a special meeting on July 30, 2014, the Council conducted a second duly-noticed 
public hearing regarding the proposal to move forward with Plan 3. No opposition was 
expressed. 

The deadline to submit a measure to the County elections official for inclusion in the 
November 2014 ballot is Friday, August 8,2014-88 days prior to the election. 

Discussion: 
If the resolution is approved by the City Council, the following ballot question would be 
placed on the November 4, 2014 ballot: 

"LOS BANOS COUNCIL DISTRICTS, Shall 
four members of the legislative body of the City of 

YES (+) 
Los Banos be elected by districts described in 
Ordinance No. _, and the Mayor of the City of 
Los Banos be elected on a citywide basis by the 

NO (+) 
voters of the entire city to serve a two-year tenn?'" 

The ballot measure to adopt by-district Council elections shall be approved if a majority 
of the votes cast on the measure are affirmative. 



The first district-based elections would be conducted at the next general municipal 
election in November 2016. Councilmembers would be elected in Districts 1 and 4 at 
the election in 2016 and in Districts 2 and 3 at the election in 2018. Councilmembers 
would continue to serve four year terms. 

State law provides that the adoption of district-based elections shall not affect the terms 
of sitting Councilmembers, so Councilmembers elected in 2012 would continue to serve 
out their terms until 2016, but could only run for re-election in the district in which he or 
she resides. Councilmembers elected in 2014 would continue to serve out their terms 
until 2018, but could then only run for re-election in the district in which he or she 
resides. 

Fiscal Impact: 
There will be significant legal, experts, consultants, and processing costs associated 
with this process however, as of this writing those fiscal impacts cannot be accurately 
estimated. 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS, 
CALIFORNIA, CALLING AND GIVING NOTICE OF A SPECIAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014, 
FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY A 
MEASURE TO ESTABLISH ELECTORAL DISTRICTS FOR ELECTION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE LOS BANOS CITY COUNCIL BY DISTRICTS AND 
ELECTION OF THE MAYOR OF LOS BANOS CITY-WIDE, AND 
REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 
MERCED, CALIFORNIA, TO PROVIDE FOR THE CONSOLIDATION OF 
THE SPECIAL BALLOT MEASURE ELECTION WITH THE STATEWIDE 
GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 4,2014, PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 10403 OF THE ELECTIONS CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos supports the full participation of all residents in 
electing members of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, members of the public have petitioned the City Council to adopt "by
district" voting for the City Council, contending that such a system would better promote the full 
participation of all residents in electing members of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of California Government Code sections 34870-34884 
and 34900-34906, a proposal to adopt district-based voting in a general law city must be 
submitted to the voters of the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws relating to general law cities in the State of California, 
a general municipal election shall be held on November 4, 2014, for the purpose of electing 
members of the Los Banos City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Council supports the adoption of by-district elections and supports the 
submission of a proposal to adopt district-based voting to the voters of Los Banos; and 

WHEREAS, on June 4, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 5584, 
commencing the process of submitting a measure to the voters for the adoption of district-based 
elections pursuant to California Government Code sections 34870-34884 and 34900-34906; and 

WHEREAS, at the regular City Council meeting on June 18,2014, the Council and the 
public received a presentation by the City's special redistricting counsel regarding legal 
considerations and appropriate policy criteria governing districting, and by the City's 
demographic consultant regarding City demographics; and 

WHEREAS, following those presentations, the Council solicited public input regarding 
appropriate criteria, and adopted Resolution No. 5587, setting forth the following criteria to 
guide the establishment of council districts consistent with legal requirements, including 
reasonably equal population and Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act, and which address 
other concerns and considerations important to the City: 

1 



• The boundaries of the Council districts shall be established so that the Council 
districts are equal in population as defined by law. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts shall not be gerrymandered in violation of 
the principles established by the United States Supreme Court in Shaw v. Reno, 
509 U.S. 630 (1993), and its progeny. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts shall be established so that the Council 
districts do not result in a denial or abridgement of the right of any citizen to vote 
on account of race or color as provided in Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights 
Act. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts shall observe communities of interest 
including rural or urban populations, municipalities, social interests, agricultural, 
industrial or service industry interests, and the like, insofar as practicable. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts shall be compact, insofar as practicable. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts shall be created to contain cohesive, 
contiguous territory, insofar as practicable. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts may observe topography and geography, 
such as the existence of mountains, flat land, forest lands, man-made geographical 
features such as highways and canals, etc. as natural divisions between districts, 
insofar as practicable. 

• Unless otherwise required by law, the Council districts shall be created using 
whole census blocks. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts may seek to avoid the "pairing" of 
incumbents in the same Council districts, insofar as this does not conflict with the 
constitution and laws of the State of California and the United States, and insofar 
as feasible. 

• The boundaries of the Council districts shall comply with such other factors 
which become known during the redistricting process and are formally adopted by 
the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2014, an initial set of four draft council district plans, prepared 
by the City'S demographic consultant according to the criteria set forth above, were made 
publicly available on the City's website; and 

WHEREAS, at the regular City Council meeting on July 2, 2014, the demographic 
consultant presented the four initial draft council district plans to the Council and the members of 
the public, after which the Council solicited public comments on the draft plans; and 

2 



WHEREAS, at its July 18, 2014, meeting, the Council conducted a duly-noticed public 
hearing regarding the four draft district proposals from the consultant as well as a fifth district 
plan proposed by a member of the public (Public Plan AI); and 

WHEREAS, at a special meeting on July 30, 2014, the Council conducted a second duly
noticed public hearing regarding the draft district proposals previously presented; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has considered all public comments on the proposed council 
district plans; and 

WHEREAS, the populations in the proposed districts of all five draft council district 
plans are reasonably equal in compliance with legal requirements; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973 prohibits the use of 
any voting qualification, or prerequisite to voting, or standard, practice, or procedure in a manner 
which results in a denial or abridgement of the right of any citizen of the United States to vote on 
account of race or color, and all five draft council district plans comply with section 2 of the 
Voting Rights Act; and 

WHEREAS, all five draft council district plans anticipate the use of a single-member, by
district electoral system, and thereby comply with the California Voting Rights Act; and 

WHEREAS, each of the plans is drawn to be compact and to contain cohesive, 
contiguous territory to the extent possible; and 

WHEREAS, each of the plans is drawn to take into account geography, topography, and 
communities of interest to the extent possible; and 

WHEREAS, each of the draft council district plans is drawn to avoid the "pairing" of 
incumbent Council-members to the extent feasibly possible, consistent with the other criteria set 
forth in Resolution No. 5587; and 

WHEREAS, the Council believes that the districts contained in proposed Plan 3, 
incorporated herein, best reflect the criteria adopted in Resolution No. 5587, and best serve the 
interests ofthe City and the public at large; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION I. Pursuant to California Elections Code section 9222, a special municipal 
election is hereby called and ordered to be held in the City on Tuesday, November 4, 2014, at 
which election there shall be submitted to the qualified voters the measure that, if approved, 
would enact an ordinance adopting the electoral district lines contained in proposed council 
district Plan 3 for use beginning at the 2016 election. 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby orders submitted to the voters on the ballot for 
Tuesday, November 4,2014, the following ballot question: 

3 



"LOS BANOS COUNCIL DISTRICTS. Shall 
YES (+) four members of the legislative body of the City of 

Los Banos be elected by districts described in i 
Ordinance No. _, and the Mayor of the City of 
Los Banos be elected on a citywide basis by the 

NO (+) 
voters of the entire city to serve a two-year term?" 

SECTION 3. The complete text of the Ordinance to be approved by the voters is attached 
hereto as Exhibit "A". The City Council approves the form and content of the Ordinance and 
approves submitting the Ordinance to the voters at the Tuesday, November 4, 2014, election. 

SECTION 4. Pursuant to California Elections Code section 10400, et seq., the County 
Board of Supervisors is hereby requested to consent and agree to the consolidation of this special 
election with the general municipal election for the City of Los Banos and the statewide general 
election to be held on November 4, 2014. 

SECTION 5. Pursuant to California Elections Code section 10002, the City requests that 
the Board of Supervisors permit the County Registrar of Voters to render services to the City 
relating to this election. 

SECTION 6. The consolidated election shall be held and conducted, elections officers 
appointed, voting precincts designated, ballots printed, polls opened and closed, ballots counted 
and returned, returns canvassed, results declared, certificates of election issued, and all other 
proceedings incidental to and connected with the elections shall be regulated and done by the 
County Registrar of Voters in accordance with the provisions of law regulating a regularly 
scheduled consolidated election. The Board of Supervisors is hereby requested to issue all 
officers of the County charged with duties pertaining to the November 4, 2014, election 
instructions to take any and all steps necessary for the holding of a consolidated election 
pursuant to California Elections Code sections 10400-10418. 

SECTION 7. The ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and content as 
required by law. 

SECTION 8. In all particulars not recited in this Resolution, the election shall be held 
and conducted as provided by law for holding elections in the City of Los Banos that are 
consolidated with any other elections. 

SECTION 9. The City Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to procure and furnish 
any and all official ballots, notices, printed matter and all supplies, equipment and paraphernalia 
that may be necessary in order to properly and lawfully conduct the special municipal election. 

SECTION 10. Notice of the time and place of holding the election is given and the City 
Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to give further or additional notice of the election, in 
time, form, and manner as required by law. 

4 



SECTION 11. The City Council hereby directs the City Attorney to prepare an impartial 
analysis of the measure in accordance with section 9280 of the Elections Code showing the 
effect of the measure on existing law and the operation of the measure. 

SECTION 12. Arguments in favor of or against the ballot measure and rebuttal 
arguments may be submitted in accordance with sections 9282-9285 of the Elections Code of the 
State of California. The provisions of said sections 9282-9285 are hereby adopted and shall 
apply to this election. 

SECTION 13. Pursuant to California Elections Code section 9282(b), the City Council 
will approve and submit a ballot argument in support of the adoption of the proposed ordinance. 

SECTION 14. The City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this resolution 
with the Board of Supervisors and the Election Department for the County of Merced no later 
than 88 days prior to the November 4 election. 

SECTION 15. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the measure to be 
published once in the Los Banos Enterprise, the official newspaper of the City, in accordance 
with section 12111 of Elections Code and section 6061 and the Government Code of the State of 
California. 

SECTION 16. The full text of the ordinance contained in Exhibit "A," adding Los Banos 
Municipal Code Title 2, Chapter 1, Article 2, and entitled "AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
VOTERS OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS TO ADD MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 2, 
CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 2, TO ESTABLISH ELECTORAL DISTRICTS FOR ELECTION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE LOS BANOS CITY COUNCIL BY DISTRICTS AND ELECTION OF 
THE MAYOR OF LOS BANOS AT-LARGE, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY A VOTE OF 
THE PEOPLE," will be made available at no cost, at the Los Banos City Clerk's office or on the 
City of Los Banos's website at www.losbanos.org. A statement about how to obtain the full text 
of the ordinance will be included in the voter information pamphlet below the impartial analysis. 

SECTION 17. The City of Los Banos recognizes that additional costs will be incurred by 
the County by reason of the requested consolidation and agrees to reimburse the County for such 
costs. 

SECTION 18. The City Clerk shall certifY to the passage and adoption of this Resolution 
and enter it into the book of original Resolutions, and to take other appropriate actions necessary 
to ensure the placement of said proposition before the voters of the City of Los Banos at said 
special election. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Los Banos at a regular 
meeting held on the 6th day of August, 2014, by the following called vote: 

5 



AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 

6 



EXHIBIT "A" 

[full text of ordinance] 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VOTERS OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS TO 
ADD MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 2, CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 2, TO 
ESTABLISH ELECTORAL DISTRICTS FOR ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF 
THE LOS BANOS CITY COUNCIL BY DISTRICTS AND ELECTION OF 
THE MAYOR OF LOS BANOS AT-LARGE, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY A 
VOTE OF THE PEOPLE 

THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos supports the full participation of all residents in 
electing members ofthe City Council; and 

WHEREAS, members of the public have petitioned the City Council to adopt "by
district" voting for the City Council, contending that such a system would better promote the full 
participation of all residents in electing members of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of California Government Code sections 34870-34884 
and 34900-34906, a proposal to adopt district-based voting in a general law city must be 
submitted to the voters of the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws relating to general law cities in the State of California, 
a general municipal election shall be held on November 4, 2014, for the purpose of electing 
members of the Los Banos City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Council supports the adoption of by-district elections and supports the 
submission of a proposal to adopt district-based voting to the voters of Los Banos; and 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to enact, pursuant to California Government Code 
sections 34870-34906, an ordinance providing for the election of the members of the City 
Council of the City of Los Banos by districts in four districts with a separately-elected mayor, 
elected on a Citywide basis. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO CODE. 

Title 2, Chapter 1, of the Los Banos Municipal Code is amended to add Article 1 thereto, 
to read as follows: 

7 



Article 2. Method of election of Mayor and City Council. 

Sec. 2-2.101 Method of election. 

(a) Pursuant to California Government Code sections 34871(c) and 34881. 
members of the legislative body of Los Banos shall be elected by districts in four (4) 
districts with a separately-elected mayor elected Citywide pursuant to Article 5 
(commencing with Section 34900) of the Government Code. 

(b) Mayor. The Mayor shall be elected by the voters of the entire City at each 
general municipal election, and shall serve a two-year term until his or her successor is 
elected and qualified. The Mayor shall be a resident of the City of Los Banos. The 
Mayor in office at the time this Article takes effect shall continue in office until the 
expiration of the full term to which he or she was elected and until his or her successor is 
elected and qualified. 

(c) Councilmembers. 

(I) Beginning with the general municipal election in November 2016, 
members of the City Council shall be elected in the electoral districts established 
by Section 2-2.102 and subsequently reapportioned as provided by state law. 
Elections shall take place on a "by-district" basis as that term is defined in 
California Government Code section 34871, meaning one member of the Council 
shall be elected from each district, by the voters of that district alone. Each 
member of the Council shall serve a four-year term until his or her successor is 
elected and qualified. 

(2) Except as provided in subdivision (3) hereof, the Councilmember 
elected to represent a district must reside in that district and be a registered voter 
in that district, and any candidate for the Council must live in, and be a registered 
voter in, the district in which he or she seeks election. Termination of residency 
in a district by a Councilmember shall create an immediate vacancy for that 
Council district unless a substitute residence within the district is established 
within thirty (30) days of the termination of residency. 

(3) Transition. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, 
the members of the Council in office at the time this ordinance takes effect shall 
continue in office until the expiration of the full term to which he or she was 
elected and until his or her successor is elected and qualified. Each 
Councilmember's successor shall be elected on a "by-district" basis in the 
districts established in Section 2-2.102. 

Sec. 2-2.102 Establishment of council districts. 

(a) Beginning with the general municipal election in November 2016, 
members of the City Council shall be elected on a "by-district" basis from the Council 
districts described as follows: 

8 



(I) Council District 1 shall comprise all that portion of the City 
beginning at the intersection of Overland Rd and the City's western border on the 
eastern border of parcel APN 081100033000; thence proceeding easterly along 
Overland Rd to San Miguel St; thence proceeding northerly along San Miguel St 
to La Purisma St; thence proceeding easterly along La Purisma St to San Luis 
Obispo St; thence proceeding notherly along San Luis Obispo St to San Diego St; 
thence proceeding westerly along San Diego St to the parcel border between 1512 
and 1516 San Diego St; thence proceeding northerly along that parcel border and 
continuing northerly along the parcel borders between parcels APN 
424115004000 and 424115005000 and continuing northerly along the parcel 
borders between parcels APN 424114009000 and 4241140 I 0000; and continuing 
northerly along the parcel borders between parcels APN424 I 140 16000 and 
424114015000 on the west and 424114014000 on the east; and continuing 
northerly along the parcel borders between parcels APN 424116011000 and 
424116012000; thence proceeding westerly along the northern border of parcels 
APN 424116010000 and 424116011000; thence proceeding northerly along the 
parcel borders between parcels APN 424116006000 and 424116005000 to 
Regency Dr; thence proceeding westerly along Regency Dr to Rockport Dr; 
thence proceeding northerly along Rockport Dr to Westminster Way; thence 
proceeding northerly along Westminster Way and its extension along the western 
border of parcel APN 4240 I 0002000; thence proceeding easterly along the 
northern border of parcel APN 4240 I 0002000 to the intersection of the City 
border and the San Luis Canal; thence proceeding counter-clockwise along the 
City border to the point of beginning. 

(2) Council District 2 shall comprise all that portion of the City 
beginning at the intersection of Highway 165 (a.k.a. Mercey Springs Rd) and the 
City's southern border just south of Pioneer Rd; thence proceeding northerly 
along Mercey Springs Rd to E Pacheco Blvd; thence proceeding easterly along E 
Pacheco Blvd to Nickel St; thence proceeding northerly along Nickel St to San 
Luis St; thence proceeding westerly along San Luis St to Place Rd; thence 
proceeding northerly along Place Rd to E B St; thence proceeding westerly along 
E B St to Wisteria Ave; thence proceeding northwesterly along Wisteria Ave to 
Willmott Rd; thence proceeding westerly along Willmott Rd to Mercey Springs 
Rd; thence proceeding northerly along Mercey Springs Rd to Overland Ave; 
thence proceeding easterly along Overland Rd to San Miguel St; thence 
proceeding northerly along San Miguel St to La Purisma St; thence proceeding 
easterly along La Purisma St to San Luis Obispo St; thence proceeding notherly 
along San Luis Obispo St to San Diego St; thence proceeding westerly along San 
Diego St to the parcel border between 1512 and 1516 San Diego St; thence 
proceeding northerly along that parcel border and continuing northerly along the 
parcel borders between parcels APN 424115004000 and 424115005000 and 
continuing northerly along the parcel borders between parcels APN 
424114009000 and 424114010000; and continuing northerly along the parcel 
borders between parcels APN424 1 14016000 and 424114015000 on the west and 
424114014000 on the east; and continuing northerly along the parcel borders 
between parcels APN 424116011000 and 424116012000; thence proceeding 

9 



westerly along the northern border of parcels APN 4241160 I 0000 and 
424116011000; thence proceeding northerly along the parcel borders between 
parcels APN 424116006000 and 424116005000 to Regency Dr; thence 
proceeding westerly along Regency Dr to Rockport Dr; thence proceeding 
northerly along Rockport Dr to Westminster Way; thence proceeding northerly 
along Westminster Way and its extension along the western border of parcel APN 
424010002000 to the northern border of parcel APN 424010002000; thence 
proceeding easterly along the northern border of parcel APN 424010002000 to 
the intersection of parcel APN 424010002000, the City border, and the San Luis 
Canal; thence proceeding clockwise along the City border to the point of 
beginning. 

(3) Council District 3 shall comprise all that portion of the City 
beginning at the intersection of Highway 165 (a.k.a. Mercey Springs Rd) and the 
City's southern border just south of Pioneer Rd; thence proceeding northerly 
along Mercey Springs Rd to E. Pacheco Blvd; thence proceeding easterly along E 
Pacheco Blvd to Nickel St; thence proceeding northerly along Nickel St to San 
Luis St; thence proceeding westerly along San Luis St to Place Rd; thence 
proceeding northerly along Place Rd to E B St; thence proceeding westerly along 
E B St to Wisteria Ave; thence proceeding northwesterly along Wisteria Ave to 
Willmott Rd; thence proceeding westerly along Willmott Rd to Mercey Springs 
Rd; thence proceeding northerly along Mercey Springs Rd to Overland Ave; 
thence proceeding westerly along Overland Rd to North St; thence proceeding 
southerly along North St to Willmott Rd; thence proceeding westerly along 
Willmott Rd to 2nd St; thence proceeding southerly along 2nd St to I St; thence 
proceeding southeasterly along I St to 3rd St; thence proceeding southwesterly 
along 3rd St to K St; thence proceeding westerly along K St to California Ave; 
thence proceeding southerly along California Ave to Pacheco Blvd; thence 
proceeding easterly along Pacheco Blvd to Center Ave; thence proceeding 
southerly along Center Ave to the intersection of the city border, Center Ave, and 
Main Canal; thence proceeding counter-clockwise along the city border to the 
point of beginning. 

(4) Council District 4 shall comprise all that portion of the City 
beginning at the intersection of Overland Rd and the City's western border on the 
eastern border of parcel APN 081100033000; thence proceeding easterly along 
Overland Rd to North St; thence proceeding southerly along North St to Willmott 
Rd; thence proceeding westerly along Willmott Rd to 2nd St; thence proceeding 
southerly along 2nd St to I St; thence proceeding southeasterly along I St to 3rd 
St; thence proceeding southwesterly along 3rd St to K St; thence proceeding 
westerly along K St to California Ave; thence proceeding southerly along 
California Ave to Pacheco Blvd; thence proceeding easterly along Pacheco Blvd 
to Center Ave; thence proceeding southerly along Center Ave to the intersection 
of the city border, Center Ave, and Main Canal; thence proceeding clockwise 
along the city border to the point of beginning. 

10 



(5) A map showing these districts is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 
incorporated by this reference. To the extent there is a conflict between the 
descriptions contained in subdivisions (1 )-(4) and the map incorporated herein, 
subdivisions (1)-(4) shall prevail. 

(6) If necessary to facilitate the implementation of this Article, the 
City Clerk is authorized to make technical adjustments to the district boundaries 
that do not substantively affect the populations in the districts, the eligibility of 
candidates, or the residence of eJected officials within any district. The Clerk 
shall advise the Council of any such adjustments that are found to be required in 
the implementation of the districts. 

(b) Councilmembers shall be elected in Council District 1 and Council 
District 4 beginning at the general municipal election in 2016 and every four years 
thereafter. Members shall be elected from Council District 2 and Council District 3 
beginning at the general municipal election in 2018 and every four years thereafter. 

(c) The council districts specified in subdivision (a) hereof shall continue in 
effect until they are repealed or amended by the voters or until they are adjusted pursuant 
to California Elections Code sections 21600-21606, any successor statute thereto, or any 
other provision of state law authorizing the City Council to amend the districts without a 
vote of the people. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Pursuant to California Elections Code section 9217, this Ordinance shall be in full force 
and effect ten (10) days after the certification by the City Council of the election returns 
indicating passage of the Ordinance by a majority of the voters casting votes in the election. 

SECTION 4. INCONSISTENCIES. 

To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be inconsistent or in 
conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior City ordinance, motion, resolution, rule or 
regulation governing the same subject, the terms of this Ordinance shall prevail with respect to 
the subject matter thereof. 

SECTION 5. INTERPRETATION. 

In interpreting this Ordinance or resolving any ambiguity, this Ordinance shall be 
interpreted in a manner that effectively accomplishes its stated purposes. 

SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY. 

If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this Ordinance. The People of the City of Los Banos hereby declare that they would have 
adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 

II 



portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, 
sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 7. PUBLICATION. 

The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published in the official 
newspaper at least once within fifteen (15) days after its approval by the voters. 

12 



Exhibit 1 to Los Banos Municipal Code § 2.2-102(a)(5) 

(Map of City Council Districts) 

13 



Los Banos 
Selected Plan "3" 

Map layers 
DPlan3 

D Incorporated Cities 

1 Water Area 

Streets 

: Landmark Area 
; 

Pipeline/Power Line 

.'-- Railroad 

River 

<ts, 
--

r 
~ 

~ .. 

Co~ f[J;~ij~' Co 
y.,!:~". 

"i,:iit:'e ~ape_ .. 
Park 

~,..~ 
,,~/ 

Par!> 

;} 

t·· 
.. T7~ 

~ T8)j~Dlf'drk 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AND SUBMITTING A BALLOT ARGUMENT 
IN FAVOR OF A MEASURE TO ESTABLISH ELECTORAL DISTRICTS 
FOR ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE LOS BANOS CITY COUNCIL BY 
DISTRICTS AND ELECTION OF THE MAYOR OF LOS BANOS CITY
WIDE, TO BE VOTED ON NOVEMBER 4,2014, PURSUANT TO SECTION 
9282(B) OF THE ELECTIONS CODE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos supports the fuli participation of all residents in 
electing members of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, members of the public have petitioned the City Council to adopt "by
district" voting for the City Council, contending that such a system would better promote the full 
participation of all residents in electing members of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of California Government Code sections 34870-34884 
and 34900-34906, a proposal to adopt district-based voting in a general law city must be 
submitted to the voters of the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws relating to general law cities in the State of California, 
a general municipal election shall be held on November 4, 2014, for the purpose of eJecting 
members of the Los Banos City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Council supports the adoption of by-district elections and supports the 
submission ofa proposal to adopt district-based voting to the voters of Los Banos; and 

WHEREAS, on August 6, 2014, the Council adopted Resolution No. __ , submitting a 
measure to the voters of the City of Los Banos that would establish electoral districts for election 
of members of the Los Banos City Council by districts and election of the Mayor of Los Banos 
City-wide; and 

WHEREAS, Section 13 of Resolution No. __ provided that "Pursuant to California 
Elections Code section 9282(b), the City Council will approve and submit a baliot argument in 
support of the adoption of the proposed ordinance"; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Pursuant to California Elections Code section 9282(b), the City Council 
approves the ballot argument contained in Exhibit I hereto, and incorporated herein by this 
reference, for submission to the elections official for inclusion in the sample ballot. The 
members of the City Council shall be deemed the "authors" of the argument. 

SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby designated to act as the contact person on 
behalf of the Council for communications regarding the ballot argument, and for receipt of the 
argument in opposition to the measure, if any, pursuant to California Elections Code section 

I 



9285(a)(l). The City Manager is hereby instructed to take all necessary actions to submit the 
ballot argument contained in Exhibit 1 to the elections official on behalf of the City Council. 

SECTION 3. The Council hereby authorizes the following members of the Council, 
pursuant to California Elections Code section 9285(a)(2), to prepare and file a rebuttal to the 
argument in opposition to the measure, if any, on behalf of the Council. 

SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution 
and enter it into the book of original Resolutions. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Los Banos at a regular 
meeting held on the 6th day of August, 2014, by the following called vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 

Michael Villalta, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk 

2 



Exhibit 1 to Los Banos City Council Resolution No. 

(City Council's Ballot Argument in Favor of Measure to Establish Electoral Districts for 
Election of Members of the Los Banos City Council By Districts and Election of the Mayor 

of Los Banos City-Wide, to be Voted on November 4, 2014) 

Los Banos is a great place to live, and a city we're proud to represent. 

That's why we should vote YES on Measure _. 

Measure _ requires that council members live in the district they represent and allows 
you to elect a council member from your neighborhood. 

Over the past 10-15 years, Los Banos has grown significantly-by more than 40% since 2000. 
As part of adapting to that growth, and the growth we anticipate in the future, we must ensure 

that all parts of the City are effectively represented and governed by council members who are 
personally knowledgeable of the unique needs of the City'S various neighborhoods. 

The districts contained in Measure _ were thoughtfully crafted to reflect its neighborhoods 
through an extensive public process. The Council solicited and received input on the districting 
process and proposed draft district plans at half a dozen Council meetings, over the course of 
several months, including two duly-noticed public hearings. We believe that this plan is 
designed to best serve the interests of the City. 

Yes on Measure _ means smaller electoral districts, and a council member elected to represent 

your neighborhood. Under Measure _, your council member's job will be to make sure your 
part of town gets its fair share of city services, and its streets are clean, the potholes filled, the 
trees trimmed, and your voices heard at City Hall. Well-represented neighborhoods mean a 
strong City overall. 

Voting YES on Measure _ keeps Los Banos a wonderful, safe place to live, and gives us the 
necessary tools to achieve our full potential. 

3 



LOS Banos 
AI Ihl' Cro\srowj, of CaliJiJlrlio 

& = & 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Date: August 1, 2014 

Regarding: Notice of Public Hearing 

Proposal: Mobile Vendor Permit #2014-03 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los 
Banos Planning Commission to consider a Mobile Vendor Permit to allow the 
operation of a mobile trailer to vend on private property located at 840 H Street; 
more specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel Number: 025-114-019. The 
applicant is Alfonso Valenzuela, dba: Tacos Y Mariscos EI Plebe. 

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of 
the Planning Commission on Wednesday, August 13, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of Los Banos City Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions 
regarding the above-referenced item may be directed to Stacy Souza Elms, 
Assistant Planner II at City Hall or at (209) 827-7000, Ext. 133. 

Persons wishing to provide oral comments on the proposed project may do so at 
this meeting or may provide written comments on this matter prior to the public 
meeting. Written comments may be sent by U.S. Mail or hand delivered to the 
City of Los Banos City Hall at 520 "J" Street, Los Banos, California 93635. 
Please be advised that should the action by the City Council be challenged in 
court, you may be limited to only those issues raised at the hearings or by written 
comment per Government Code Section 65009. 

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS 

~ Ylt&jd,i 
g;;sfda'I~~L~ 
Assistant Planner II 



rosBanos 
'I, rile Cmssnwds of Caii[tJr!1in 

& 

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DEPARTMENT 

Date: August 1, 2014 

Re: Notice of Public Hearing 

Proposal: Conditional Use Permit #2014-10 - Morfin's Recycling Center 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los Banos 
Planning Commission to consider a Conditional Use Permit for a small collection 
recycling facility. The requested Conditional Use Permit is for Morfin's' Recycling Center 
located at 745 W. Pacheco Blvd., more specifically described as Assessor's Parcel 
Number: 027-171-011. 

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of the 
Planning Commission to consider a recommendation to the Los Banos City Council on 
Wednesday, August 13, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of Los Banos City 
Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions regarding the above-referenced item may be 
directed to Stacy Souza Elms, Assistant Planner II at City Hall or at (209) 827-7000, 
Ext. 133. 

Persons wishing to provide oral comments on the proposed project may do so at this 
meeting or may provide written comments on this matter prior to the public meeting. 
Written comments may be sent by U.S. Mail or hand delievered to the City of Los Banos 
City Hall at 520 "J" Street, Los Banos, California 93635. Please be advised that should 
the action by the City Council be challenged in court, you may be limited to only those 
issues raised at the public hearings or by written comment per Government Code 
Section 65009. 

~~~LOSBANO~ 

Z:j~uk~ 
Assistant Planner II 




